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·1· · · · · · · · · · · BE IT REMEMBERED that on Monday, March

·2· ·20, 2023, via Zoom, at 1:32 p.m., before Christy

·3· ·Sheppard, Certified Court Reporter, CCR, RPR;

·4· · · · · · · · · · · WHEREUPON, the following proceedings

·5· ·were had, to wit:

·6

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · ·<<<<<< >>>>>>

·8

·9

10

11· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· This is Judge Torem

12· ·calling our prehearing conference, the second one, for

13· ·March 20th, 2023.· It was supposed to start at 1:30 today

14· ·and it's now 1:34.

15· · · ·This is in the matter of the application of Scout

16· ·Clean Energy, LLC, and better known as the Horse Heaven

17· ·Wind Farm project in Benton County.

18· · · ·I am going to do a roll call now for the Applicant.

19· ·Do we have Crystal Chase?

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· We do, Judge Torem.· This

21· ·is Crystal Chase and with me in the same conference room

22· ·is Ms. Schimelpfenig and Mr. McMahan.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Ms. Chase, I

24· ·am going to ask you to spell the last names of all of the

25· ·parties that you just mentioned and we will take it the



·1· ·first names the court reporter will pick up.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Great.· Happy to do that.

·3· ·This is Crystal Chase, last name C-H-A-S-E.· With me in

·4· ·the room is Tim McMahan, M-C-M-A-H-A-N.· Also with me in

·5· ·the room is Emily Schimelpfenig,

·6· ·S-C-H-I-M-E-L-P-F-E-N-I-G.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

·8· ·Counsel for the Environment, do we have Ms. Reyneveld?

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· Ms. Reyneveld is

10· ·present.· Sarah Reyneveld, and Reyneveld is spelled

11· ·R-E-Y-N-E-V-E-L-D.· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you.· God

13· ·afternoon.· And for Benton Country, do we have Mr.

14· ·Harper?

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· This is Ken Harper for

16· ·Benton County, H-A-R-P-E-R.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Anybody else with you

18· ·today, Mr. Harper?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· My colleague, Zi Foster

20· ·is also with us today.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And, Ms. Sheppard, if

22· ·you need any of these other names spelled again later

23· ·just be in touch with me.· Staff will make sure you have

24· ·my phone number and email contact.

25· · · ·All right.· Our intervening parties, the



·1· ·Confederated Tribes and Band of the Yakama Nation.

·2· ·Shona Voelckers, are you with us today?

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor.· I'm

·4· ·Shona Voelckers on behalf of the Yakama Nation.· My last

·5· ·name is V-O-E-L-C-K-E-R-S.· My colleague Ethan Jones is

·6· ·not present today, but my colleague Jessica Houston is

·7· ·also on the line.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Excellent.· Welcome all.

·9· ·And, finally, Tri-Cities CARES, and that's an acronym

10· ·CARES and it stands for Community Action for Responsible

11· ·Environmental Stewardship.· Do we have Mr. Richard

12· ·Aramburu?

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Present, Your Honor.

14· ·The last name is spelled A-R-A-M-B-U-R-U.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you

16· ·very much.· We have got all of our parties accounted for

17· ·today, and I wanted to see who else is on the line for

18· ·EFSEC staff.· I believe we have Jonathan Thompson, our

19· ·assistant attorney general.· Mr. Thompson, if you could

20· ·just acknowledge?

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· Yes, I'm present.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And we also have Lisa

23· ·Masengale, M-A-S-E-N-G-A-L-E, and Andrea Grantham

24· ·indicate they could hear me on the voice check earlier.

25· ·Is there any other EFSEC staff present that wants to be



·1· ·acknowledged?

·2· · · ·All right.· Not hearing anybody come off mute right

·3· ·away, we will move on to the next agenda item.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Unidentified speaker.)

·5

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Judge Torem, this is

·7· ·Andrea, you might have been muted if you could unmute

·8· ·yourself.· Try star six or pound six.· Try star six or

·9· ·pound six since you are calling in.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· It sounds like

11· ·I'm no longer muted.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· There you go.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you staff for

14· ·helping me.· I heard some other lines so maybe you just

15· ·muted all the other lines.· If there's other folks

16· ·listening in today, that's great.· This is a procedural

17· ·prehearing conference to go over details about scheduling

18· ·the upcoming adjudication and a number of other rules

19· ·that we are working on.· If you are listening in, please

20· ·keep your microphone muted so we don't have to do that

21· ·all mute again and result in actual people that are

22· ·having a speaking role get cut back.· There is no public

23· ·comments opportunity today, but there will be at the

24· ·adjudication.· Contact EFSEC staff if you are worried

25· ·about or want to know what the procedures will be.



·1· · · ·And, finally, just to be sure, there is no evidence

·2· ·being taken today.· These are just planning discussions

·3· ·with the parties.

·4· · · ·All right.· Our prehearing conference order got out

·5· ·to the parties quite later than I thought it would, but

·6· ·it's been a busy week since we last talked on March 10th,

·7· ·and the agenda hopefully went out with it.

·8· · · ·For those that are following along, I believe the

·9· ·agenda got posted on the EFSEC website, but I will walk

10· ·everybody through it so if you don't have it in front of

11· ·you it's obvious what we are doing.

12· · · ·We have a total of seven listed items, the first of

13· ·which is the roll call I have already gone through.· And

14· ·the second one we are going to get to now is an update on

15· ·the venue for the adjudication.

16· · · ·I, after our call on March 10th, reached out and

17· ·talked to the EFSEC manager and relayed the parties'

18· ·feelings about wanting to have this either virtual,

19· ·hybrid, or in person in the county, in Benton County.· As

20· ·I said in the agenda, it has been raised with Sonia

21· ·Bumpus and she was going to meet with Chair Drew sometime

22· ·after last week's Wednesday regular monthly meeting of

23· ·the EFSEC Council.· I haven't heard anything back from

24· ·Ms. Bumpus upon that.· We last talked by email at least

25· ·on Thursday, and I don't have any updates on decisions.



·1· ·There's some question as to whether or not having some

·2· ·portion of the adjudication in Benton County might be

·3· ·approved so that at least the parties and the judge and

·4· ·whatever staff we need might be present in the county.

·5· ·And perhaps the Council members would not be imposed upon

·6· ·to travel to each and every session, but might be able to

·7· ·make it to some if not all of them.· For some council

·8· ·members it may prove too much of a burden to do the

·9· ·travel, and I know that Chair Drew is considering those

10· ·kinds of things.

11· · · ·What I would like to do is, as it says in the

12· ·agenda, ask for those parties that would like to, write a

13· ·letter to Chair Drew and to me with the reasons, in your

14· ·own words rather than the ones I might have relayed to

15· ·the manager last week, stating why you believe it should

16· ·be held however you want.· Today being the 20th, I would

17· ·hope that those could be -- if by next Monday, March

18· ·27th, all the parties that are interested in filing their

19· ·request for inperson, hybrid, virtual you could file

20· ·those -- they are totally optional, but if we could get

21· ·that in by next Monday the 27th, that would help, I

22· ·think, Chair Drew understand where everybody is coming

23· ·from and be able to make a more informed discussion.

24· · · ·Ms. Voelckers, I did relay, and I think you heard a

25· ·little bit of that at the council meeting, the importance



·1· ·that -- of the special request you made on behalf of the

·2· ·Yakama Tribe for your elders to testify, and you might

·3· ·want to have an additional portion of your letter

·4· ·explaining essentially the logistics that might be

·5· ·necessary, and any support on how to record the voices

·6· ·that they might speak in.· Again, you said they would

·7· ·speak in perhaps native tongue as well as in English to

·8· ·express their positions.· And my only concern as we

·9· ·talked about ten days ago is if there would be any

10· ·gesturing or other things that couldn't be captured in a

11· ·written transcript of words in English, whether we need

12· ·an interpreter or some other way to capture that for the

13· ·record.· I leave that for you to describe if there be any

14· ·necessary additional support to capture the testimony and

15· ·presentation of your elders.

16· · · ·Does any party, and I will survey one at a time,

17· ·have any concerns about filing a letter by next Monday

18· ·the 27th, and, Ms. Voelckers, when I get to you any other

19· ·special requests.

20· · · ·Let me start with the Applicant, Ms. Chase.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· This is Ms. Chase, and no

22· ·concern about the deadline.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Ms.

24· ·Reyneveld for CFE?

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· This is Ms. Reyneveld,



·1· ·and I have no concerns about the deadline either.· Thank

·2· ·you, Judge.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· You're welcome.· Mr.

·4· ·Harper?

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper for Benton

·6· ·County, no, Your Honor, that's fine.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Ms.

·8· ·Voelckers for the Tribe?

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

10· ·No concerns.· Just to confirm you would like this letter

11· ·addressed to Chair Drew or to yourself?

12· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· To both of us, please,

13· ·that way she and I may have cause to talk about all of

14· ·the inputs once they are all in.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Understood.· Thank

16· ·you.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu?

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· For Tri-Cities CARES,

19· ·no concerns with that schedule.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I hope all

21· ·of you will take advantage of that opportunity to

22· ·communicate directly with me and the Chair with regard to

23· ·your preferences for venue, and it will, again, just give

24· ·you all a forum to get that out in your words.

25· · · ·All right.· Let's turn to the third item on the



·1· ·agenda for today, the actual scheduling of the

·2· ·adjudication itself.· We are still working with the

·3· ·deadline of July 8th, 2023.· I think a number of you

·4· ·heard what I had to say about that at the monthly meeting

·5· ·last week.· Let's take a look on the agenda.· What I have

·6· ·stated is that the approved second extension request from

·7· ·the Applicant does require us to get a recommendation to

·8· ·the governor no later than July 8th of this year.· We

·9· ·have had at least 25 months that have elapsed since the

10· ·application came in, and the current statutory deadline

11· ·has certainly been passed.· That 12-month processing time

12· ·for 80.50.100 is well past, and we are projecting a total

13· ·of 29 months at this time to get a full vote and

14· ·consideration on the application.

15· · · ·Based on our discussions ten days ago, you can see

16· ·the proposed dates that would have started perhaps as

17· ·early as Monday, May 15th for the hearing, are now based

18· ·on prefiled testimony coming in no earlier than April 3rd

19· ·or maybe April 10th.· The earliest hearing dates, Ms.

20· ·Chase, that I can offer the Applicant and the other

21· ·parties look to be Monday June 5th for that entire week,

22· ·and the remainder of the week after Juneteenth, on that

23· ·holiday from June 20th to the 23rd.

24· · · ·I'm wondering, for the parties, just how many days

25· ·of hearing you would each estimate this case might take.



·1· ·And I realize it's a little bit of a shot in the dark

·2· ·because you don't know -- we haven't agreed on what

·3· ·issues will be adjudicated or what witnesses, but based

·4· ·on your prior experience, and I know many of you on the

·5· ·line have been in complex litigation like this, including

·6· ·before this council, so I want to ask you, I can't hold

·7· ·you to it, but just your today estimate of how many days

·8· ·of hearing time you each think it might take.

·9· · · ·Let me start with the Applicant, again, and see, Ms.

10· ·Chase, between you and Mr. McMahan and Ms. Schimelpfenig

11· ·what you are thinking for the number of days?

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Thank you, Judge Torem.

13· ·This is Ms. Chase.· We -- I think based on information we

14· ·have now, we would anticipate a couple weeks, so two

15· ·weeks total.· I'm recognizing that that will depend on

16· ·large part on how the issues get finalized.

17· · · ·And then also for the scheduling discussion, I did

18· ·want to share that Applicant will be submitting a third

19· ·extension request shortly, if it hasn't already been

20· ·submitted, that will extend the time to complete the

21· ·adjudication through the timeline that you have been

22· ·discussing at the last prehearing conference, which was

23· ·September 2023.· I wanted to share that now as it may

24· ·inform the parties' scheduling discussions.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· I appreciate that if the



·1· ·application extension request is actually being filed

·2· ·today, it won't be acted upon until the Council can

·3· ·receive it, but it notionally will release a lot of

·4· ·pressure on everybody on the line today.· I do appreciate

·5· ·that very much, and I will thank the Applicant for

·6· ·allowing the Council to be able to do a thorough job, and

·7· ·all the other parties, frankly, to prepare testimony less

·8· ·under the gun and really get a thorough adjudication on

·9· ·the issues they would like to present.· So your estimate

10· ·for the amount of time is going to be approximately two

11· ·weeks.

12· · · ·Let me turn next to the Counsel for the Environment

13· ·and see, Ms. Reyneveld, your thoughts on how many days of

14· ·adjudication this might take.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· I would be in

16· ·agreement with the Applicant, although I do think that

17· ·there are a lot of unknowns to this ligation, including

18· ·just the number of witnesses that are going to be called

19· ·so it's difficult to determine without that.· I would say

20· ·at most we will likely be calling one to two witnesses,

21· ·and so I just don't know the number of witnesses from the

22· ·other parties.· But I think, you know, probably one and a

23· ·half to two weeks would be a good estimate.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Mr. Harper, for

25· ·the County?



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper for Benton

·2· ·County.· Yeah, I think Ms. Chase has a pretty good best

·3· ·estimate there.· I don't think I can really add to that.

·4· ·Two weeks sounds about right with all the disclaimers,

·5· ·but it does sound about appropriate.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you,

·7· ·Mr. Harper.

·8· · · ·Ms. Voelckers, how does the Tribe feel about

·9· ·predicting how long this might take?

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

11· ·I don't have any better ability to predict and would

12· ·agree with the statements that have already been made by

13· ·other counsel.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Mr.

15· ·Aramburu?

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· My understanding is

17· ·that the hearing time that we are going to take is going

18· ·to be principally cross-examination with some exceptions.

19· ·So if that's the understanding, then I think two weeks

20· ·would probably be fine, although these dates that you

21· ·have here probably are not the appropriate two weeks in

22· ·our view.· So we think two weeks is fine, closely

23· ·coordinating cross-examination time and those kinds of

24· ·things.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.



·1· ·When you say these two weeks I have here, you are

·2· ·referring to the weeks in June that I mentioned and that

·3· ·are listed on the agenda?

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· That's correct, Your

·5· ·Honor.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·THE JUDGE:· And as Ms. Chase

·7· ·indicated, if the Council approves an extension to the

·8· ·end of September, which is what I understood, Ms. Chase,

·9· ·it would be through September 30th?

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· This is Ms. Chase, yes.

11· ·That's correct.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· So, Mr. Aramburu, that's

13· ·going to give us the month of July, the month of August,

14· ·and the month of September to process the application,

15· ·and the hearing time would certainly not have to start as

16· ·of June 5th if that extension is approved at the April

17· ·council meeting.

18· · · ·All right.· Thank you all for validating what I told

19· ·the EFSEC manager last week on Wednesday afternoon or

20· ·Thursday, whenever it was Ms. Bumpus and I spoke, I

21· ·estimated two weeks.· I think she was a little bit

22· ·surprised that we would have two weeks' worth of hearing

23· ·time.· I hope we can knock it down to less as we sort out

24· ·the issues and the number of witnesses.· And particularly

25· ·knowing, as Mr. Aramburu pointed out, that the prefiled



·1· ·written testimony comes in then we will be able to have

·2· ·mainly an adoption of that on the record and a

·3· ·cross-examination.· And, Mr. Aramburu, as you pointed out

·4· ·previously we will be working with exhibits and a number

·5· ·of other things, if we do our prehearing housekeeping

·6· ·correctly everybody will have exhibits and know exactly

·7· ·where we are going with them.· For each witness, we will

·8· ·be doing exams, discussion, and preparation so that the

·9· ·hearing time itself can be used efficiently and everybody

10· ·won't have to pause to get exhibits and things like that.

11· · · ·I'm not sure today that I can tell you what weeks

12· ·are available.· I received in an email earlier today a

13· ·listing of council unavailability out through September

14· ·30th, so notionally we could talk about that if I'd

15· ·actually read that email yet, and I will confess I have

16· ·not.· I have that information, and I believe all parties

17· ·have also filed their notices of unavailability.· If

18· ·there's any party who has not done so as of today, I

19· ·won't have you self-identify on the line, but I think all

20· ·five parties have submitted their requests for

21· ·unavailability, and if not, if you can get it in by close

22· ·of business today that will give me time tomorrow to

23· ·start doing some cross comparison of council availability

24· ·and party availability and see what we have notionally

25· ·beyond the July 8th current deadline.



·1· · · ·If I make an assumption that the Council might act

·2· ·at their next meeting to approve it then we can start to

·3· ·sketch out a schedule.

·4· · · ·So let me turn then to the prefiled testimony piece

·5· ·of our agenda, item number four.· I think last time we

·6· ·talked about having three rounds of testimony.· And I

·7· ·initially, based on discussions with staff, had proposed

·8· ·the Applicant file first and then a bunch of other

·9· ·testimony come in in response and then reply.

10· · · ·I can't remember which of you wisely pointed out

11· ·that in past practice we allowed all testimony to come in

12· ·in the first round from all parties, based on their

13· ·issues, and then all parties have a chance to respond,

14· ·and if necessary, rebuttal on the third round.

15· · · ·I don't know, but I want to survey again if parties

16· ·have a preference on ordering and the type of three

17· ·rounds of testimony and the intervals in between.  I

18· ·think we talked about potentially 28 days after the first

19· ·filing for the next round, and then 21 days for the third

20· ·round to come in.

21· · · ·So I am going to ask counsel for all of the parties,

22· ·and I will go in the same order as usual, to comment on

23· ·that if they have thoughts and I will take notes as we

24· ·go.

25· · · ·Let me start with the Applicant, Ms. Chase?



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· The Applicant has no

·2· ·preference between the two approaches.· And it's fine

·3· ·with the allotted 28, 21 intervals, acknowledging that

·4· ·based on parties' different availability those dates may

·5· ·end up needing to shift a few days as we plot out the

·6· ·schedule.

·7· · · ·I think it would be helpful to have -- I think

·8· ·I'm -- it would be -- it would make more sense for all

·9· ·parties to file simultaneously because then Applicant, at

10· ·least from our perspective, would have the ability to

11· ·respond to the issues that were presented by the parties

12· ·on the issues that they are wishing to present in this

13· ·proceeding.

14· · · ·And then I think the last comment would be as to

15· ·timing.· Given that we still need to finalize the issues,

16· ·the initial discussions of April 3rd and April 10th may

17· ·be slightly ambitious, but we do want to make sure that

18· ·we are getting an initial deadline as soon as possible.

19· · · ·Thank you, Judge Torem.· I'm happy to answer any

20· ·questions.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Given that the

22· ·Council may not act on the extension request until the

23· ·third week in April, which would put us at the April 19th

24· ·meeting, would the Applicant and all parties, I guess, if

25· ·we are going to do it simultaneously, be comfortable with



·1· ·the first round of testimony coming in not knowing quite

·2· ·what the hearing dates are, but notionally knowing that

·3· ·they won't be in June, what are your thoughts on filing a

·4· ·first round of testimony ahead of next month's council

·5· ·meeting so we can get things rolling?· And, again, that's

·6· ·subject to identifying all the disputed issues, if not

·7· ·today, then shortly after today.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· As Applicant we have no

·9· ·objection, and agree that we should start with our first

10· ·round of filings before the Council has the opportunity

11· ·to act on that request.· Understanding that everybody

12· ·seems to acknowledge that the June dates are not

13· ·practically realistic.· We have no objection to that as

14· ·long as there is adequate time between when the issues

15· ·are finalized for the parties to have a couple of weeks

16· ·to get their third round of testimony together.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Anything

18· ·else from the Applicant on the scheduling of prefiled

19· ·testimony or the topics we are covering before I shift to

20· ·Counsel for the Environment?

21· · · ·Okay.· All right.· Hearing none, let me shift to Ms.

22· ·Reyneveld, and ask for your input on the round of

23· ·testimony, the intervals, and potentially starting the

24· ·filing if we do it simultaneously then that would apply

25· ·to CFE and all the other parties to be ready sometime



·1· ·between now and April, middle of the month, when the

·2· ·Council has their meeting.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· Thank you, Judge.· The

·4· ·Counsel for the Environment has a slight preference for

·5· ·the Applicant filing first and then other parties

·6· ·responding and then reply or rebuttal.· I don't have a

·7· ·preference on the intervals other than that they be

·8· ·sufficiently spaced out.· And I would prefer to have the

·9· ·hearing scheduled and then to work from there in terms of

10· ·the filing schedule.· I don't think it necessarily makes

11· ·sense to establish an arbitrary filing schedule in April

12· ·and then have the hearing potentially be in July.· It's

13· ·just -- from a kind of litigation perspective I think we

14· ·should schedule the hearing and then schedule kind of

15· ·those filing deadlines accordingly.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And, Ms. Reyneveld, I

17· ·think in a perfect world I would agree a hundred percent.

18· ·There's a certain part of me that remembers somebody in

19· ·our federal government talking about unknown unknowns,

20· ·and we are dealing with those right now, but I don't want

21· ·to waste the time between now and the next counsel

22· ·meeting because every day is valuable.· I think as of

23· ·last week we had 115 days to go to the July 8th

24· ·extension, and if we do get an approved extension to

25· ·September 30th, today might be the first day of Spring



·1· ·but the first day of Fall may be the date that the

·2· ·council members are deliberating and we are trying to get

·3· ·an order out, so that September time I don't want to be

·4· ·holding a hearing in September.· I want to be evaluating

·5· ·what's going on with the filings and post hearing briefs

·6· ·by then.· I just want the parties to think that the judge

·7· ·and the council need time to after the adjudication read

·8· ·your post hearing briefs, make decisions, draft the

·9· ·recommendation, and work accordingly to get everything

10· ·ready to announce and deliver to the governor.

11· · · ·One other piece that's come to my attention in

12· ·looking past the SEPA questions is that the final EIS has

13· ·to be part of the recommendation.· That has to be

14· ·finalized, I believe, seven days according to law before

15· ·the recommendation goes to the governor, so that's

16· ·another week of backing up time for many to grant an

17· ·extension to have to be considered.

18· · · ·But that said, Ms. Reyneveld, I want to know when

19· ·the hearing is too so that we get -- we don't

20· ·artificially put pressure to file that first round of

21· ·testimony.· So my thought is we may get a feel and a

22· ·decision today on the intervals and the soon as possible

23· ·date.· We may yet schedule a shorter prehearing

24· ·conference to announce dates and then work through those

25· ·and then set the schedule depending on how far we get



·1· ·today.

·2· · · ·Ms. Reyneveld, anything else?

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· That makes sense,

·4· ·Judge.· I just want to make sure that there's ample time

·5· ·to be able to, you know, actually submit testimony and

·6· ·call witnesses, and so I think that's my concern about

·7· ·just the -- to expediting the process for filing prior to

·8· ·knowing the hearing date.· I appreciate that.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· A hundred percent

10· ·understood.· I don't want to rush anybody further.· And

11· ·if we do have ample time, and thanks to the Applicant's

12· ·intention or already filed extension request, we probably

13· ·should, but I have to look at all those notices of

14· ·unavailability and see where the jigsaw puzzle lines up.

15· · · ·All right.· That's my problem to deal with.· Let's

16· ·shift to the County now.· Mr. Harper, thoughts on

17· ·prefiled testimony?

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper for Benton

19· ·County, Your Honor.· I have strong concerns about the

20· ·concept of simultaneous filing with a target date of mid

21· ·April.· I just, you know, I'm very concerned about the

22· ·definition of the issues.· I'm concerned about the status

23· ·of SEPA.· I share Ms. Reyneveld's concern, and we don't

24· ·need to go over that again regarding the sequence here

25· ·from hearing date forward.· But, Your Honor, I don't know



·1· ·what really is going to be sort of the focal point of the

·2· ·hearing of the Applicant's position.· I don't really know

·3· ·how the respondents/interveners may be able to work

·4· ·between themselves and streamline testimony with having

·5· ·to simultaneously hit that date as part of our own

·6· ·prefiled testimony due date.· So, Your Honor, from the

·7· ·County's perspective we would strongly request at least a

·8· ·staggered series of filings and/or -- I know this isn't

·9· ·really what you want to know, but and/or an initial

10· ·prefiled testimony due date somewhat later than April.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And I was going to ask

12· ·you if the nature of your concern is more of the timing

13· ·of a mid April filing date without the full fleshing out

14· ·of issues and other things, or is it the you don't want

15· ·to file simultaneously with the Applicant with the

16· ·County's issues?· Is it both or is it weighted more

17· ·toward the timing?

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Thanks, Your Honor, for

19· ·the chance to clarify.· It's a combination of the two.  I

20· ·don't know that I have a strong reservation about the

21· ·idea of simultaneous filing, but that clearly puts more

22· ·onus on the County, possibly the other responding party

23· ·and interveners to really, you know, very carefully

24· ·structure what their prefiled testimony will be, which

25· ·takes time.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Agreed.· And I know the

·2· ·Applicant knows what it's applying for.· And the

·3· ·Applicant knows what it thinks its disputed issues are

·4· ·going to be may be in a better position, but I do think

·5· ·each of the parties know why they are here in the case.

·6· ·They filed petitions for intervention, or as the County

·7· ·has been involved in the beginning as well, Mr. Harper,

·8· ·before your firm filed its appearance so everybody knows

·9· ·why they are here.

10· · · ·I'm a little bit honestly less concerned with the

11· ·question of what are we going to do.· You are going to

12· ·identify your witnesses at the same rate, if you haven't

13· ·already.· So you will have a full period of time to

14· ·respond.· It looks like the 28-day interval to respond to

15· ·the Applicant's witnesses that they file.

16· · · ·Again, if we need to extend it from 28 days if we

17· ·have a little more grace time longer to perhaps allow for

18· ·some informal discovery, or formal if necessary.· That

19· ·may be some way to accommodate the concern you are

20· ·expressing, and I hope we can do that fairly so you don't

21· ·feel that there's any trial by ambush or any other

22· ·concern of any party surprising the others, anymore than

23· ·any other filing that comes into court might do.

24· · · ·Mr. Harper, I will give you a chance to respond on

25· ·how I'm evaluating your concerns.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· No. I think you have

·2· ·stated it, Your Honor.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Let's move

·4· ·on then to Ms. Voelckers working with prefiled testimony

·5· ·questions and about intervals as well.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

·7· ·We are not opposed to filing simultaneously, although I

·8· ·would note that we have been operating on the last

·9· ·discussion, the last hearing conference in preparation

10· ·to -- we anticipate that we would not be asked to file

11· ·that direct testimony in the same time line that

12· ·Applicant is comfortable with, but depending on when the

13· ·date is that we are not opposed to filing testimony

14· ·simultaneously.

15· · · ·I will say that I also have very strong concerns

16· ·about the timing and especially knowing that Applicant

17· ·has submitted an application to extend the deadline.

18· ·That is still, frankly, quite ambitious.· I think that

19· ·walking back from the date of the hearing being set is

20· ·what makes the most sense here and sets everyone up for

21· ·the best possible process, even though we are under this

22· ·timeline or time crunch.

23· · · ·And I would just respectfully also push back a

24· ·little bit on the language about wasting time.· I think

25· ·we are all working really hard to get caught up on a lot



·1· ·of materials the Applicant has had years to put together,

·2· ·including the amended site verification application that

·3· ·was filed just months ago.· So we, you know, do need that

·4· ·time to have a fair process here.· So those are my

·5· ·comments on the timing.· I think that we should wait

·6· ·until the hearing is set and walk back from the hearing,

·7· ·and do so in a way that is fair, regardless of whether or

·8· ·not we are filing simultaneously.

·9· · · ·And lastly I would just note that those 28 days were

10· ·agreed before the Applicant went on the record and said

11· ·that they were prepared to file in just a few weeks.· So

12· ·when we had that the discussion about the 28-day timeline

13· ·there were no dates that were being proposed or agreed to

14· ·by the Applicant to inform that discussion.· Again, I

15· ·would submit that that should be as much time as possible

16· ·given that the hearing date -- once the hearing date is

17· ·put on the calendar.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And, Ms. Voelckers, I

19· ·just want to validate for you that when I said there was

20· ·going to be any wasting of time, that would be from my

21· ·perspective of my time and the Council's time to elapsing

22· ·towards that perhaps now September 30th deadline.  I

23· ·didn't mean any implication or offense that parties are

24· ·wasting time.· From a procedural standpoint, though,

25· ·every day to me is precious and I don't want to sit on my



·1· ·hands until the council meeting on April 19th.· You know,

·2· ·that's a full month away from today, and we can make good

·3· ·use of that time even if it doesn't include a filing

·4· ·deadline.· It can involve a lot of other procedural

·5· ·progress to get to the first filing round.· So, again,

·6· ·that's what I meant there.

·7· · · ·I do see that my notes reflect that these other

·8· ·filing deadlines of being ready as soon -- April 3rd or

·9· ·April 10th were not offered by anybody that I recall

10· ·other than Ms. Chase as to when the Applicant might be

11· ·ready to file.· You are correct to bring that up and make

12· ·a clarification.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· With those comments, Ms.

15· ·Voelckers, did you have anything else to add?

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

17· ·I would add one other thing, which is that I did listen

18· ·to the discussion during the EFSEC meeting last week, and

19· ·I also heard that the staff team is working really hard

20· ·on the SEPA side and did not have a schedule to commit to

21· ·on issuance of the SEIS, and so it seemed like that would

22· ·also be something that we would want to avoid setting,

23· ·arbitrarily limiting deadlines when the SEIS might also

24· ·not be ready as early as the Applicant would like it.· So

25· ·that's my only other comment in terms of timelines is



·1· ·that I don't know that we would need to have the

·2· ·adjudication be done any earlier than -- given reasonable

·3· ·time to review, but if the SEIS is going to be months

·4· ·away as well, I would hate to have all of us working

·5· ·under really hard deadlines on the adjudication side that

·6· ·are months ahead of an SEIS.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And that's a fine point

·8· ·to make.· I have no reason to believe that the staff

·9· ·would need an exorbitant amount of time to respond.  I

10· ·know there's a lot of comments on the draft EIS, but

11· ·unless there's going to be requests from staff based on

12· ·comments for a supplemental environmental review, I

13· ·haven't been given any such indication yet, but that may

14· ·be premature.· I will bring that up with the staff that

15· ·is handling the parallel SEPA evaluation that will be

16· ·going alongside but separate from the adjudication and

17· ·make sure that that's a valid concern.· If they think

18· ·that they can't get things done within the times frames

19· ·that are currently set or might be approved for September

20· ·30th, I will count on Ms. Lune (phonetic) and the rest of

21· ·the SEPA staff to make sure the adjudication team is

22· ·aware so the right hand and the left hand of the EFSEC

23· ·Council and staff know what's going on here.· Thank you,

24· ·Ms. Voelckers.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.



·1· ·Nothing else at this time.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you.· Mr.

·3· ·Aramburu?

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Richard Aramburu for

·5· ·Tri-Cities CARES.· A couple of issues.· Number one, I

·6· ·appreciate that the EFSEC Council does meet once a month,

·7· ·but with no objections to the Applicant's request, I

·8· ·don't know why we necessarily need to wait for that

·9· ·period of time.· Isn't there some process available so

10· ·that we can have a more rapid decision about that?· That

11· ·would be the request that's coming from me so we know

12· ·where we are.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Let me address that

14· ·right away, Mr. Aramburu, and just say it's possible that

15· ·there would be a special meeting, but Mr. Thompson would

16· ·have to work with the Chair and indicate whether or not

17· ·we can waive notice periods or give special notice

18· ·periods, so there are still laws to comply with to get

19· ·things done ahead of April 19th and clarify the dates for

20· ·us.· I'm sure Mr. Thompson hearing that concern, if he

21· ·hasn't already, had that motion as making notes and will

22· ·be reaching out to the Chair shortly after we hang up

23· ·today.· So that's in the cards as well if it can be

24· ·accelerated.· And if there truly is no objection, the

25· ·Applicant is just getting that filed today.· We do need



·1· ·to give all the other parties an opportunity to respond

·2· ·and see.· I don't want to assume that anybody on the line

·3· ·here today that's a party to this matter won't have a

·4· ·concern or objection.· There may be one that we haven't

·5· ·thought about or hasn't been voiced yet.

·6· · · ·All right.· So on to the other pieces of prefiled

·7· ·testimony, Mr. Aramburu.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· I agree with some of

·9· ·the other parties that the agenda for prefiled testimony

10· ·is aggressive.· I think we should be looking at dates for

11· ·testimony in -- testimony submission, in perhaps mid to

12· ·late June.

13· · · ·One of the other concerns that we have had has to do

14· ·with the preparation of the final environmental impact

15· ·statement.· We believe that the final impact statement

16· ·should be available during the time the testimony is

17· ·prepared, not after.· So we would like to see if a

18· ·schedule can be worked out to have that testimony -- or

19· ·have that document ready at the time we go into our

20· ·filing of testimony.· That would be another request.

21· · · ·Regarding the timing, and I appreciate, Judge Torem,

22· ·us being active during this interim time, additional time

23· ·we may have.· I do think there are some motions that

24· ·perhaps will be filed.· I also think there may be some

25· ·discovery that some of the parties would like.· I think



·1· ·some of that can take place in the next month or so.· It

·2· ·might be having some productive time available to us at

·3· ·that point.

·4· · · ·Regarding the testimony, I think I am an advocate of

·5· ·all of the parties filing at the same time and responses

·6· ·and replies for -- there may be some issues that will

·7· ·come up that a party will be filing on the subject matter

·8· ·and that the Applicant is not filing on at all.· So from

·9· ·that standpoint, getting the direct testimony in at one

10· ·time, and having responses and replies, I think, is the

11· ·preferable way to proceed.· So those are my thoughts.

12· ·The 28/21 day agenda or schedule for submission of

13· ·testimony is probably fine.· So those are my thoughts.

14· ·Thank you.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you, Mr. Aramburu.

16· ·And I know you have been through this before, so it's not

17· ·that I'm giving it any additional weight, but I know you

18· ·are commenting from a position of been there and done

19· ·that, and I appreciate that the insight is there.

20· · · ·I think I do agree with all the parties' concerns

21· ·about being ready to file next month.· The applicant has

22· ·said that, and may have a better idea of a list of

23· ·witnesses, but I do hope everybody on the line is getting

24· ·ready and identifying witnesses now.· And as Mr. Aramburu

25· ·stated, starting to do the drafting of any motions you



·1· ·think might be necessary on a sooner rather than later

·2· ·basis, and, frankly, any informal discovery that can be

·3· ·done until we establish the actual rules that will apply

·4· ·beyond those that are in the law and the Administrative

·5· ·Procedures Act of RCW 34.05, and those that are already

·6· ·adopted for EFSEC practice I think within WAC 463.  I

·7· ·don't have the exact citation off the top of my head.

·8· ·It's been a few years.· Look at those rules.· That's what

·9· ·applies now if you are going to ask for formal discovery

10· ·until we adopt specific procedures for this adjudication,

11· ·that WAC will govern and hopefully all parties will

12· ·adhere to those deadlines that are set in the WAC until

13· ·we can figure out any special accommodations for this

14· ·Horse Heaven adjudication.

15· · · ·I wish I could tell you we could resolve everything

16· ·about the prefiled testimony today under Item No. 4, but

17· ·I don't think we should or will given the breathing room

18· ·that we are being offered by the Applicant's extension

19· ·request that's announced to all of us today.

20· · · ·I want to skip over the disputed issues list until

21· ·we have our first break because I don't think it does us

22· ·any favors to start on that and then have to stop for a

23· ·ten minute comfort and court reporter rest break.

24· · · ·I think if we go for another 15 or 20 minutes and

25· ·talk a little bit more about discovery, and maybe even



·1· ·the schedule for our next prehearing conference that that

·2· ·would be productive use of our time in the next 15 to 20

·3· ·minutes.

·4· · · ·So let's turn to Item No. 6, the discovery.· As I

·5· ·have already covered, there's informal discovery

·6· ·available under the Administrative Procedures Act.· And I

·7· ·have listed three different adjudications from past

·8· ·experience.· The Kittitas Valley wind power project,

·9· ·which I presided over.· The Whispering Ridge project that

10· ·I believe that Bob Wallace was the ALJ on that one.· And

11· ·then Cassandra Noble, I believe, presided over the Tesoro

12· ·Vancouver Energy project.· Each of us probably issued

13· ·different prehearing conference orders with slightly

14· ·different discovery practices.

15· · · ·I wish I could tell you that I had time to read all

16· ·three of those orders before today's proceeding, but I

17· ·have not.· I just know notionally how it went the last

18· ·time I had been in complex adjudication before this

19· ·Council, as well as other proceedings I have been

20· ·involved in.

21· · · ·I wanted to hear from all five parties on what your

22· ·thoughts are for any special needs for discovery that

23· ·aren't addressed in one of those three orders, or if

24· ·there's something in one of those three orders and you

25· ·have had a chance to look at it and I haven't that you



·1· ·want to call my attention to, or just out of the WAC 463

·2· ·provision if there's any need to tailor those for this

·3· ·adjudication.· So, Ms. Chase, I am going to come back to

·4· ·you to start us off.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Sure.· Thank you, Judge

·6· ·Torem.· I think Applicant's view is that informal -- or

·7· ·discovery is likely not particularly necessary here, but

·8· ·we understand that the current WAC and other provisions

·9· ·apply to operate informal discovery, and we will

10· ·cooperate as contemplated by those items.· I think our

11· ·view is that the procedure in the Kittitas Valley, and

12· ·I'm looking at the order on discovery procedures,

13· ·prehearing order number eight that you provided the

14· ·parties, or referred the parties to in connection with

15· ·your -- your agenda last week.· I think that makes sense

16· ·to encourage the parties to cooperate informally if we

17· ·are going to have informal discovery, and you serve as

18· ·the presiding officer if there are formal discovery

19· ·issues that need to be resolved.

20· · · ·And I think the other note that we would make is

21· ·that, in our view, the use of the prefiled testimony

22· ·largely supplants some of the other items that you might

23· ·need discovery for, so that's just a comment about how

24· ·the parties will be working together in advance of the

25· ·adjudication to narrow the issues and the scope of items



·1· ·to be discussed with the prefiled written testimony.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Chase, let me ask, I

·3· ·think all the parties may have a concern with wanting to

·4· ·do maybe some formal discovery, such as the discovery

·5· ·deposition of some witnesses.· I know it's an incredible

·6· ·expense, and trying to get people together to do those

·7· ·kind of things, particularly when you have prefiled

·8· ·testimony that allows for the preparation of any

·9· ·cross-exam, but I believe there have been some limited

10· ·discovery depositions authorized in the past, or at least

11· ·agreed to by parties in these types of matters.· I don't

12· ·remember them necessarily in the Kittitas Valley case.

13· · · ·Has the Applicant had any experience where their

14· ·witnesses have been subjected to a pre-adjudication

15· ·discovery deposition on or before the prefiled testimony

16· ·came in?

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. MCMAHON:· Your Honor, Tim McMahan,

18· ·here for the record.· Having been involved in Wild Horse,

19· ·Kittitas Valley, Whistling Ridge, in none of those cases

20· ·have pre -- have the parties been allowed or have even

21· ·requested really, there was some request for discovery in

22· ·the Kittitas Valley case with depositions, but that did

23· ·not end up being as necessary or allowed.· You know, if

24· ·you are asking about experience in prior EFSEC

25· ·proceedings, I don't recall that ever occurring.· And it



·1· ·was considered to be a successful process to engage in

·2· ·informal discovery.· And as Ms. Chase indicates, the

·3· ·prefiled testimony largely, I believe, supplants the need

·4· ·for much of that.

·5· · · ·The only use of the depositions that I can recall

·6· ·was after the Kittitas Valley case was actually

·7· ·completed, and there were pre -- there were depositions

·8· ·taken prior to submittal of the record to the Washington

·9· ·State Supreme Court.· And those depositions had a lot to

10· ·do with accusations of ex parte contact and inappropriate

11· ·behaviors which were pretty soundly rejected by the

12· ·Washington State Supreme Court.

13· · · ·Again, I have not participated in actual cases where

14· ·depositions were taken in lieu of informal discovery.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. McMahan, did you

16· ·participate in the Whispering Ridge matter?

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. MCMAHAN:· I did.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· I had a notion

19· ·from staff or other things that I had heard about that

20· ·case that maybe there had been formal discovery and

21· ·depositions taken, but it's been many years ago so maybe

22· ·memories are a little foggy.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. MCMAHAN:· Well, I don't recall

24· ·that happening with Whispering Ridge.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· I was referring to --



·1· ·it's my recollection that I wasn't directly involved so

·2· ·who knows.· I don't know for sure what happened, but

·3· ·there are other parties, and Mr. Aramburu I will come to

·4· ·you shortly, but I don't want you to -- I don't mean to

·5· ·encourage that parties should be seeking this kind of

·6· ·discovery simply because it will eat up more time and

·7· ·cause more expense.· And I do believe this practice of

·8· ·having everybody put their cards on their table up front

·9· ·avoids the need to prefile testimony for most, if not

10· ·all, depositions of parties until you at least read what

11· ·they are going to be saying, if you think that there's

12· ·more that you need to get, then we can talk about a

13· ·motion for additional inquiry or essentially voir dire a

14· ·witness in an efficient manner that allows for the

15· ·information for all parties to prepare for the

16· ·adjudication.

17· · · ·Mr. Aramburu, you were going to maybe enlighten us

18· ·on your experience?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Yes.· Mr. McMahan and I

20· ·were involved in the Whispering Ridge case.· There were

21· ·some discovery issues there but there were not

22· ·depositions that were taken in that case.· I will just

23· ·wait until I'm called on for other issues.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· I will tell you what, I

25· ·will call on you now since you are already thinking about



·1· ·it.· Go ahead, Mr. Aramburu.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Well, I don't want to

·3· ·cut in line here.· So for the issue of discovery, again,

·4· ·I think opportunity for depositions should be given, but

·5· ·I think they are of limited use here.· More often we have

·6· ·witnesses that are preparing and need information from

·7· ·the Applicant or perhaps from another party.· And there

·8· ·would be requests for documents, data requests, those

·9· ·kinds of things.· That's what's more likely here as our

10· ·witnesses prepare.· So on the subject of discovery I

11· ·think we should have an opportunity for that kind of

12· ·discovery formal or informal.· And perhaps we start with

13· ·informal discovery where you make documents available et

14· ·cetera, et cetera, and then if we ran into problems we

15· ·can go into more detail procedures connected with

16· ·discovery, including motions.· So that's my thought on

17· ·that.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And I

19· ·appreciate, Mr. Aramburu, the insights there because I

20· ·know in my day job as Board of Industrial Insurance

21· ·Appeals industrial appeals judge, if that's not a

22· ·mouthful, I typically rely on perpetuation depositions

23· ·for the expert testimony, and that is the testimony that

24· ·comes in.· So sometimes counsel perform discovery

25· ·depositions before they are ready to cross-examine a



·1· ·witness they haven't seen before, but I -- in this

·2· ·context, I don't think so that same practice adds the

·3· ·value that it does in the Labor & Industries practice.

·4· · · ·So I would -- at risk of wondering what the other

·5· ·parties are going to say, concur with what you have

·6· ·indicated so far.· I think the parties can get most of it

·7· ·done, especially on a more relaxed schedule we are

·8· ·anticipating informally.

·9· · · ·Let me turn to Ms. Reyneveld and see if in your

10· ·experience, Ms. Reyneveld, if you are anticipating any

11· ·formal discovery or any special needs?

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· Counsel for the

13· ·Environment agrees with the informal discovery procedures

14· ·under the APA and proceeding with more formal discovery

15· ·only if necessary.

16· · · ·I also practiced before the Board of Industrial

17· ·Insurance Appeals for about nine years representing L&I

18· ·so I did take many discovery depositions in that context,

19· ·but I don't anticipate taking pre-adjudication discovery

20· ·depositions in this context just because of the prefiled

21· ·testimony requirement and the nature of prefiled

22· ·testimony.· And the Counsel for the Environment doesn't

23· ·anticipate any special discovery needs or preferences for

24· ·this adjudication at this time.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you,



·1· ·Ms. Reyneveld.

·2· · · ·Mr. Harper, for the County?

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper for Benton

·4· ·County.· Your Honor, I think it seems like kind of a

·5· ·consensus is emerging, and I am not going to dissent.· We

·6· ·don't see a great likelihood of any special needs for

·7· ·discovery, any special preferences for discovery.  I

·8· ·can't foreclose the possibility of some pre-adjudication

·9· ·deposition, but it doesn't seem like that's going to be

10· ·the direction that the County goes.· So, Your Honor, I

11· ·think we are pretty comfortable with relying on good

12· ·faith and APA-based discovery concepts.· I will just

13· ·leave it at that unless you have any questions, Judge.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· I don't.· Let me hear

15· ·from Ms. Voelckers and then we will kind of -- I will

16· ·give you my thoughts on how we might handle any disputes

17· ·in discovery, which I will say up front judges hate.· Ms.

18· ·Voelckers?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

20· ·I would like to share a few thoughts and just acknowledge

21· ·that a few of the terms being used are not ones I'm as

22· ·familiar with, so I might be imprecise in my language

23· ·here in terms of formal or informal.· We agree with the

24· ·statement that was made earlier that there's likely not a

25· ·need to depose witnesses before they file their written



·1· ·testimony, but we would like to reserve the right to file

·2· ·pre-adjudication depositions of witnesses that have

·3· ·submitted testimony and we would like to see that

·4· ·testimony before we make that decision.· There might be

·5· ·an instance where we would be asking to depose a witness

·6· ·after they have filed their direct testimony.

·7· · · ·The other areas of discovery we are interested in

·8· ·are data requests, as Mr. Aramburu mentioned, more so

·9· ·than depositions, but we do think we might need to depose

10· ·one or two third party witnesses, given the lack of a

11· ·final EIS to have as part of the record.· So likely to be

12· ·technical staff on impacts of the project.· The technical

13· ·staff that carry knowledge that's important to this case,

14· ·such as WDFW.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· So if I

16· ·understand you correctly, the Yakama Tribe would concur

17· ·that informal discovery will likely work for most things,

18· ·but once you see the first round of prefiled testimony

19· ·you might want to file a data request before you file

20· ·your responsive testimony to flesh something out; is that

21· ·an understanding, first?

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· I think, Your Honor,

23· ·need to, I think, clarify my statement further.· So the

24· ·two types of discovery we anticipate would be data

25· ·requests or some limited number of depositions.· And as



·1· ·for depositions of witnesses of other parties, we would

·2· ·not request those until their direct, you know,

·3· ·prewritten, direct written testimony has been submitted.

·4· ·In the meantime, though, we would potentially be

·5· ·requesting data in depositions of third parties,

·6· ·specifically technical staff with expertise on the impact

·7· ·of the project.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· I wanted to ask you

·9· ·about that second point separately.· When you say third

10· ·parties that may imply to me, at least, that we are not

11· ·talking about a witness being sponsored or called by any

12· ·of the other four parties that might have interests

13· ·different from or adverse to the Tribe.· You mentioned

14· ·the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, WDFW, as

15· ·a potential party that you might want to seek a

16· ·deposition from.· And I would have to, I think, tell you

17· ·I may not have the jurisdiction to, you know, force them

18· ·to testify in this matter, or, you know, be in a position

19· ·to exclude testimony as a penalty for failing to respond

20· ·to a request or a deposition discovery request.

21· · · ·So I'm also trying to think from the perspective of

22· ·who is really at the table here to present evidence, and

23· ·what do you really need for the adjudication issues, and

24· ·then what are other issues that the Tribe may think need

25· ·to be covered through either its independent consultation



·1· ·rights or through the SEPA process, which are separate

·2· ·and apart from what we are doing here in the

·3· ·adjudication.· So I don't say that to prejudge.· It's not

·4· ·a no by any means, but it's tell me more if and when that

·5· ·comes up so that I can decide is it something within the

·6· ·gambit of an administrative law judge for EFSEC with an

·7· ·adjudication, or is that a decision that I have to defer

·8· ·and essentially say no, I don't have the power to grant

·9· ·what you are questioning, and figure out what other

10· ·alternate relief would allow the Tribe to feel that they

11· ·have had their day in court, not only in the

12· ·adjudication, but before the Council makes its ultimate

13· ·recommendation, which includes some other moving parts

14· ·that are not part of the adjudication.· Fair enough?

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes.· Thank you, Your

16· ·Honor.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· So when we

18· ·get to that portion of any more formal discovery, and,

19· ·again, when I use that term, Ms. Voelckers, I'm thinking

20· ·in my mind about things that would happen under the Civil

21· ·Rules, such as formal interrogatories, requests for

22· ·production, requests for admission, or the actual

23· ·discovery depositions we have been talking about this

24· ·morning, or this afternoon.· I forgot, it's 2:30.

25· · · ·All right.· So, Counsel, it sounds like a discovery



·1· ·process can be adapted from what I have done previously

·2· ·in the Kittitas Valley process.· I remember there were

·3· ·motion practice in that case that I had to discover

·4· ·some -- or make some decisions.· They were motions to

·5· ·strike testimony.· There were motions to disqualify

·6· ·council members.· There were a variety of things that

·7· ·happened.· It wasn't quite everything under the sun, but

·8· ·it was an expansive and thorough, you know, weighing of

·9· ·issue before we even go to the adjudication.· So we will

10· ·talk a little bit more about the timelines at another

11· ·prehearing conference, I think, once -- and maybe like

12· ·Mr. Aramburu said, maybe we will have a decision or at

13· ·least a pending council meeting before April 19th to

14· ·specially decide once we all see the extension request

15· ·filed by the Applicant today.

16· · · ·Before we take our break, I want to ask everybody to

17· ·look at their calendar and see if next week a shorter

18· ·period of time on Monday afternoon might be available to

19· ·meet again and wrap up these issues and maybe by then I

20· ·will have had a moment to come back with new timelines

21· ·when the Council might be available and have a chance to

22· ·look at your notices of unavailability, and, frankly, to

23· ·see how many of those requests can be accommodated and

24· ·fit into the notional new schedule of getting a

25· ·recommendation out by September 30th.· My schedule next



·1· ·Monday doesn't really allow any time before the noon

·2· ·hour, and I have a 1:30 hearing that would have had me in

·3· ·Moses Lake but the parties have agreed to do it by Zoom.

·4· ·I doubt very much it's going to take more than 60 minutes

·5· ·to take one witness' testimony, so I think I could

·6· ·available at 2:30 or 2:45 to have a much shorter

·7· ·prehearing conference and nail down dates.

·8· · · ·I hope that's not too optimistic, but if we nailed a

·9· ·schedule down next Monday afternoon for the hearing, with

10· ·the contingency of knowing that the Council is going to

11· ·meet to approve this extension request, if we go on that

12· ·assumption, who is available Monday afternoon the 27th of

13· ·March at 2:45?· Would the Applicant be available?

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· This is Ms. Chase, yes,

15· ·Applicant would be available.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And let me put a bumper

17· ·on the end time of that of 4:30, so that when you are

18· ·saying yes you would be available, you know, I'm hoping

19· ·that we will be done by four, but if I go to 4:30 is that

20· ·still a yes, Ms. Chase?

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· It is a still a yes for

22· ·Applicant.· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Reyneveld, would

24· ·your schedule accommodate that?

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· Yes, my schedule would



·1· ·accommodate that.· Thank you, Judge.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Mr.

·3· ·Aramburu?

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· That would -- 2:30 to

·5· ·4:00, that would work with my schedule.· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Specifically I'm looking

·7· ·at 2:45 to 4:30.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· 2:45 to 4:30, I will be

·9· ·available.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you,

11· ·sir.· Ms. Voelckers?

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor, that

13· ·time works for me.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And, Mr.

15· ·Harper?

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Unfortunately, Your

17· ·Honor, I have a problem.· Your Honor, that's the date

18· ·that we secured many months ago for a significant

19· ·mediation involving a number of attorneys.· If we could

20· ·revisit this perhaps after the break I may be able to

21· ·make some accommodations so that we could handle that on

22· ·the 27th.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· What I will

24· ·offer you since there's a potential problem, if all the

25· ·parties would take a look at either the morning hours of



·1· ·the next day, the 28th, the hearing that I have in the

·2· ·Tri-Cities is scheduled to go from ten a.m. until three

·3· ·p.m., so I have no objections to my old military hours as

·4· ·early as 7:30, but I think the court reporter contract is

·5· ·probably no earlier than eight.· We could do things from

·6· ·eight to ten or somewhere in that range, or possibly I

·7· ·would delay my return travel and we could do this between

·8· ·three and five on the 28th.

·9· · · ·My schedule after that gets a little more difficult,

10· ·but I think I have time also on the 30th between ten a.m.

11· ·and one p.m. that I could chew on two hours of time in.

12· ·Wednesday is out, and I have got another couple of things

13· ·cooking on the 31st.· Maybe we could do it on the morning

14· ·of the 31st as well.· So if other parties could check

15· ·their calendars again for a morning block of time, a

16· ·couple of hours in the afternoon on March 28th, Thursday

17· ·midday from ten to one on the 30th, and maybe eight to

18· ·10:30'ish on the 31st.· I will ask staff for our normal

19· ·check-in on this to maybe move it to 10:30 to accommodate

20· ·a prehearing conference if that's what we need to do.

21· · · ·Counsel, it's now 2:40.· I want to take break until

22· ·2:50 and give the court reporter a rest.· We will come

23· ·back at 2:50 and pick up with our discussion of the

24· ·disputed issues.· I know some emails came in earlier

25· ·today from several parties.· I think Ms. Voelckers and



·1· ·and I think Counsel for the Environment submitted their

·2· ·disputed issues this morning that I saw come in, so if

·3· ·you haven't received those maybe reach out to other

·4· ·counsel by email or pick up the phone while we are on

·5· ·break, but I think it went out to everybody.

·6· · · ·All right.· Will the court reporter show us off the

·7· ·record.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · (Recess from 2:39 p.m.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · · to 2:50 p.m.)

10

11· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· I will do a quick roll

12· ·call.· Is Ms. Chase here for the Applicant?

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Yes, Judge, this is Ms.

14· ·Chase.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you.· Mr. Harper

16· ·for the County?

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper for Benton

18· ·County present.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Reyneveld?

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· I am present.· Thank

21· ·you, Your Honor.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Voelckers for the

23· ·Tribe?

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Shona Voelckers

25· ·present on behalf of Yakama Nation.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And Mr.

·2· ·Aramburu for TCC?

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Present on behalf of

·4· ·Tri-Cities CARES.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

·6· ·Mr. Harper, what did you find out about that schedule on

·7· ·Monday the 27th?· Do you think that will that work or do

·8· ·we need to look at an alternate date that week?

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· We can make it work, Your

10· ·Honor.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· So Monday.  I

12· ·appreciate the accommodation.· It sounded like it might

13· ·have been a big lift, but I'm glad you got it done.

14· ·Let's count on then having a notice issued and I will

15· ·work with staff but tell you now on the record, at 2:45

16· ·p.m. we will get together next Monday and we will hope to

17· ·be done by four but will schedule it to end no later than

18· ·4:30 on March 27th.· And by then I hope to have feedback

19· ·from the Chair on potential venue concerns and, again,

20· ·have sorted out all of the unavailability orders as well.

21· · · ·Let's turn to the disputed issues list.· And, Ms.

22· ·Chase, did the Applicant submit anything since the last

23· ·prehearing conference?

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· No, Judge Torem, Applicant

25· ·has not submitted a disputed issues lists or anything on



·1· ·this point since the last prehearing conference.· I think

·2· ·Applicant's view is that the -- we have submitted the

·3· ·application or prepared to defend the application and so

·4· ·the specific issues in terms of the concerns about the

·5· ·applications are for the other parties to identify.· And

·6· ·just on that point that you just wrapped up, I wonder if

·7· ·we have a prehearing conference on the 27th if it makes

·8· ·sense for folks to submit their venue items on a shorter

·9· ·timeline so that you can receive and consider those

10· ·before the prehearing conference?

11· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you.· That is a

12· ·good point.· So let's circle back to that first.· How

13· ·soon do you think the Applicant would be ready to submit

14· ·their letter.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· We can submit it by

16· ·Wednesday of this week or any other time this week that

17· ·works for the other parties.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· And if we are

19· ·going to have feedback on that matter next Monday, and I

20· ·would hope to so we can decide maybe all of the

21· ·scheduling issues, that might be overly optimistic.· If

22· ·we give folks to the close of business today when we are

23· ·done, or close to, until say Thursday morning, that would

24· ·give two full days, tomorrow and Wednesday.· Does any

25· ·party have an objection to me having you turn in your



·1· ·venue discussion that we talked about earlier, that

·2· ·letter by the morning of say 9:30 in the morning on

·3· ·Thursday the 23rd of this month?· It sounds like the

·4· ·Applicant is okay with that.

·5· · · ·Would the County be okay with that, Mr. Harper?

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Yes.· Ken Harper for the

·7· ·County.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Voelckers for the

·9· ·Tribe, would that be sufficient time to get your venue

10· ·request, the concerns stated in a letter to me and to the

11· ·Chair?

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

13· ·We can do that by Thursday morning.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Ms. Reyneveld,

15· ·does that work for you?

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· That will work for me.

17· ·Thank you, Judge.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Mr.

19· ·Aramburu, will that work for you as well?

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Fine with us.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· So we are

22· ·accelerating that deadline to March 23rd, that's Thursday

23· ·at 9:30 a.m.· Thank you all for that.

24· · · ·On to the other point Ms. Chase raised.· I do

25· ·appreciate the approach of, hey, we filed the application



·1· ·so we already know what issues we think are necessary for

·2· ·the Council to consider.· I think that is just fine.  I

·3· ·just wanted to make sure I hadn't missed any

·4· ·correspondence from the Applicant in that regard, so

·5· ·thank you for clarifying that's the approach the

·6· ·Applicant is taking.

·7· · · ·Let me turn to the County then and see, Mr. Harper,

·8· ·you had filed a disputed issues list last week and some

·9· ·of that in conjunction with other parties.· Was there any

10· ·new filing since then that the County submitted?

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· There has not been a new

12· ·filing to date.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· All right.· Thank

14· ·you.

15· · · ·Ms. Reyneveld, let me come to you because your email

16· ·came in mid-morning today if I'm correct in the timing.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· It came in just right

18· ·prior to this meeting, or this prehearing conference,

19· ·Judge.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And I'm pulling that up.

21· ·I see it at 12:28 p.m. so you are operating on the same

22· ·just in time production as I am on some of these things.

23· ·I appreciate that very much.· And hopefully with time I

24· ·will get caught up where I'm several days in advance and

25· ·thinking ahead of all of you.



·1· · · ·All right.· I am looking at Counsel for the

·2· ·Environment's preliminary list of disputed issues, and as

·3· ·I would expect they are mainly focused on environmental

·4· ·impact issues.· All right.· I am going to ask the

·5· ·Applicant to respond if they have had a chance first to

·6· ·review these five enumerated issues, and if there's any

·7· ·objection or concern with how Counsel for the Environment

·8· ·has phrased this list of disputed issues with the limited

·9· ·additional guidance I was able to provide last week?

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· This is Ms. Chase for the

11· ·Applicant, and we have had an opportunity to review these

12· ·issues, including -- because Counsel for the Environment

13· ·shared these with us, and I think in essentially the same

14· ·form last week, which we appreciated, and so we don't

15· ·have any objections or concerns with these issues.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Did any of

17· ·the other parties have any concerns they wanted to speak

18· ·to on the five issues that Counsel for the Environment

19· ·listed?· I will ask the County first.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· No, Ken Harber for the

21· ·County.· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Ms.

23· ·Voelckers, from the tribal perspective?

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· No.· Thank you, Your

25· ·Honor.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Mr. Aramburu?

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· No objections.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Well, Ms. Reyneveld, you

·4· ·have got the first unanimous grouping on something of

·5· ·substance from this group so that may bode well for how

·6· ·the other ones look.· Thank you.· I will close that email

·7· ·and see if I can find Ms. Voelckers' email.

·8· · · ·Your email came in this morning, I think, a couple

·9· ·hours ahead of Counsel for the Environment, but I have

10· ·got to find it.· It's· 10:14 a.m. on my receipt.· Let me

11· ·open that up and do the same process here to review what

12· ·you have submitted.

13· · · ·You have some procedural issues, some environmental

14· ·impact issues, and then some location specific issues.

15· ·Let me start with the procedural issues, and the first

16· ·one I see is looking at a SEPA question, and the second

17· ·is a timing issue under 80.50.100.· My thought initially

18· ·on those is that they are not adjudicative issues that

19· ·we'll pull out of the application and the specific items

20· ·there.· Would you be willing to file a motion regarding

21· ·these items?· And, you know, I spoke on the record of

22· ·this counsel prehearing conference like ten days ago

23· ·about the position of the SEPA questions, so I think my

24· ·statement should be challenged in a formal motion as to

25· ·whether or not we are going to take up SEPA issues during



·1· ·the adjudication.

·2· · · ·Do you have any concern about styling those

·3· ·procedural issues into a motion that you would file at

·4· ·some point that we agree on the timing?

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

·6· ·I don't.· I do think that these should be handled through

·7· ·motions practice.· I know that during the last prehearing

·8· ·conference I asked for a briefing schedule to that point,

·9· ·given the different discussions we spent on timing I

10· ·think it makes sense that the overall schedule worked

11· ·out.· There was a comment made earlier by Mr. Aramburu

12· ·that these procedural type issues could be handled

13· ·through motions practice on the earlier rather than the

14· ·later end of the schedule.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· I would concur because

16· ·some of these look like they are jurisdictional.· I don't

17· ·know that they would be dispositive motions, but they are

18· ·things that parties want to know what the ruling is right

19· ·away so that if they are ruled out of the adjudication

20· ·you can preserve those issues for appeal and maybe save

21· ·yourself finding a witness on those matters that I might

22· ·rule against you.· So, again, I don't want to prejudge

23· ·any of these issues, but we are creatures of statutes in

24· ·this administrative law under the APA, and I will make

25· ·sure that for you, and I would imagine that Mr. Aramburu



·1· ·might join you, and perhaps Mr. Harper and the County you

·2· ·might all consider whether a joint motion on some of

·3· ·these procedural issues once we establish a schedule with

·4· ·the most efficient use of pleadings so you are not all

·5· ·recreating the same wheel.· I can see already from the

·6· ·limited discussions we have had and the filings that some

·7· ·of these procedural issues seem to cross interests of at

·8· ·least three of the parties we have at the table.

·9· · · ·Ms. Voelckers, anything else on those two issues?

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Your Honor, nothing

11· ·else on the specific issues, but if I could, though, I

12· ·would like to just confirm that we still -- that this is

13· ·not -- our filing of these preliminary issues this

14· ·morning does not negate the joint letter that we filed

15· ·with the County, and so we are still joining with the

16· ·County in the identification of issues that we identified

17· ·together, including this procedural issue.· This was our

18· ·best case effort to try to incorporate the feedback that

19· ·you provided, and our review of the orders that you

20· ·directed us to, so this list is, I think, consistent with

21· ·the letter that we submitted along with the County

22· ·previously, and this is meant to further clarify the

23· ·issues themselves.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you for that

25· ·clarification. I fully agree this is a cumulative process



·1· ·where all that has been submitted before.· It's going to

·2· ·be in consideration as I help with other parts of the

·3· ·staff come up with my proposed issues list that will be

·4· ·more comprehensive than the samples I sent you, but it

·5· ·takes all of this into consideration, and maybe by next

·6· ·Monday afternoon I will have something to present in

·7· ·advance of that, so that everybody can say okay, this is

·8· ·what Judge Torem is thinking all of the issues that have

·9· ·been raised so far might be that are in dispute based on

10· ·the filing of the application and whatever else might

11· ·have been informed by the draft EIS; is that fair, Ms.

12· ·Voelckers?

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Perfect.· Let's

15· ·move on to the environmental impact issues that you have.

16· ·Some of these, I think, are pretty self explanatory, and

17· ·I'm just going through them honestly for maybe the second

18· ·time today, but I'm on the record here thinking out loud.

19· ·When you -- your issue number five about whether the

20· ·project might negatively impact plants, wildlife, and

21· ·habitat, and, again, you reference threatened,

22· ·endangered, and sensitive species, is that an overlap of

23· ·the Tribe's gathering concern of other plants and other

24· ·species that are important culturally, or is that more of

25· ·a general environmental statement?



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· I think, Your Honor,

·2· ·there is some overlap but that is more of a general

·3· ·environmental statement.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Because I see

·5· ·that in your location specific issues you focus more on

·6· ·cultural properties and potential impacts.  I

·7· ·appreciate -- I won't go through all of the other

·8· ·preliminary issues, but I will ask the Applicant if they

·9· ·have any questions or concerns about the filing that came

10· ·in this morning from Ms. Voelckers.· Ms. Chase, any

11· ·comments or other items I should consider as I review

12· ·these?

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Thank you, Judge Torem.

14· ·So we agree that the first two procedural issues should

15· ·be resolved via motion.· I think that that process could

16· ·occur on an earlier rather than later to agree with

17· ·everything, I think, that's been discussed there.

18· · · ·And since the substantive issue is labeled

19· ·environmental impact issues and location specific issues,

20· ·I will acknowledge that I don't think we have had the

21· ·opportunity to review them in as great a detail as to

22· ·provide sort of full reactions on these, and I especially

23· ·am a little -- I didn't understand until this afternoon

24· ·that they were cumulative of the issues that had been

25· ·offered in conjunction with the County, and so I want to



·1· ·have the opportunity to look at that overlap.· We are

·2· ·happy to provide some written comments on the issues if

·3· ·that would be helpful to you this week in advance of the

·4· ·prehearing conference.· I am not fully prepared to react

·5· ·to this issue that was submitted this morning.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· So unlike me reading

·7· ·these for the first or second time today you don't have

·8· ·some special power to divine these things faster?

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Unfortunately, no, Judge

10· ·Torem.· My apologies for that.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Well, we are

12· ·all in the same boat here.· And, again, I say it partly

13· ·in jest because I am working on this just in time

14· ·schedule as well.· And I want to be transparent about

15· ·maybe sounding more prepared at times than I might

16· ·actually be.· Today I totally confess I was on the bench

17· ·until ten after one and rushed home and was on time to

18· ·connect with the call, but that's about as much prep as I

19· ·got today, at least for those email that came in this

20· ·morning.

21· · · ·Let me turn to other parties then and see if they

22· ·have had any further time to digest these, or maybe they

23· ·have discussed them with Ms. Voelckers before she filed

24· ·them.

25· · · ·Mr. Harper, did the County have any further



·1· ·collaboration with Ms. Voelckers or comments on what she

·2· ·submitted today?

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ms. Voelckers and I spoke

·4· ·after those were submitted, but what she filed on behalf

·5· ·of the Yakama Nation today is not -- it doesn't need to

·6· ·be collaborated on, so I really -- it really doesn't

·7· ·speak for the County's position from our earlier issue

·8· ·statement.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Any thoughts from

10· ·the County on the short amount of time you have had to

11· ·review and discuss them with Ms. Voelckers.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Your Honor, they

13· ·generally strike me as appropriate issue statements.  I

14· ·am going to join the chorus, though, and I think some

15· ·early motion practice would be helpful.· And really I'm

16· ·just sort of interested in hearing more collective

17· ·thoughts on how issues are being defined.

18· · · ·It may be possible for the County to follow up after

19· ·today with the revised set of issues of our own.· I think

20· ·that was something that the court was seeking, but I

21· ·wasn't sure exactly how or when that would be required.

22· ·And I think right now from the County's point of view, we

23· ·are just trying to get that level of sort of resolution

24· ·dialed in so it's most helpful.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Yep, I'm definitely



·1· ·hearing what the chorus is saying, and we have a little

·2· ·bit more breathing room to establish and get that done.

·3· · · ·All right.· Let me ask then, Ms. Reyneveld, any

·4· ·thoughts on the tribal issues that were submitted today,

·5· ·or comments that would guide me between now and our next

·6· ·prehearing conference?

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· I haven't had

·8· ·sufficient time to review these to be able to provide any

·9· ·sort of comprehensive thoughts or analysis, but from an

10· ·initial reading they look okay, but I would like some

11· ·additional time to review them.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And we are

13· ·all going to have some additional time to flesh out the

14· ·disputed issues.

15· · · ·Mr. Aramburu, any thoughts on the list that came in

16· ·this morning from Ms. Voelckers?

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· I certainly have no

18· ·objections to it.· Of course we have similar issues that

19· ·we have raised.· We are in agreement with the procedural

20· ·issues certainly, and we raised issues of wildlife and

21· ·other things as well.· I think it does kind of raise the

22· ·question of what we are going to do with this issues

23· ·list.· Are we going to have a list that reflects -- is

24· ·there some consolidation that you have in mind, Judge

25· ·Torem?· Are we going to list the issues that have been



·1· ·brought up, sort of what happened, I guess, in Tesoro.  I

·2· ·don't have any objection, but I kind of am wondering what

·3· ·our exercise is here as we go through this.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu, it's a

·5· ·good question.· I am trying to decide which rocks I want

·6· ·counsel to bring me, but, frankly, what I want to do is,

·7· ·as you hinted, something that might have occurred in

·8· ·previous adjudications where the judge sits down with

·9· ·staff and tries to figure out where there might be

10· ·overlap, trying to figure out where there might be some

11· ·opportunity for simplification, and creating a way for

12· ·parties that have the same issue to maybe decide who

13· ·amongst them is taking the lead so that only one witness

14· ·is called jointly.

15· · · ·It may be that there's a need for somebody that --

16· ·let's take this Ferruginous hawk issue.· Maybe there are

17· ·competing experts, Tri-Cities CARES, the Yakama Nation,

18· ·and Counsel for the Environment all see that Ferruginous

19· ·hawk issue slightly different and we really need three

20· ·witnesses.· I may come back and say on that issue, for

21· ·instance, I see that all three parties are raising this.

22· ·It's been covered in the application.· We will find out

23· ·who the Applicant's witness is, and not to say that

24· ·there's not a fourth party that might also join in that,

25· ·but that's what I'm looking at doing, Mr. Aramburu, is



·1· ·trying to take these issues lists that have come in for

·2· ·the first prehearing conference, and those in the

·3· ·interval between March 10th and today, and see if I can

·4· ·comb through this and come up with hey, this is what I

·5· ·have heard so far, and put them into one comprehensive

·6· ·list and send it back to the parties.· And it may be a

·7· ·little ambitious to get it by next Monday afternoon, but

·8· ·I do have some holes in the schedule this week that might

·9· ·allow it.· If I can get those to you by close of the

10· ·week's business on Friday then you have will at least

11· ·Monday morning to look at that comprehensive list and we

12· ·will have further discussion about it, and you can tell

13· ·me if I'm missing anything.· You can tell me which issues

14· ·people might be aligned with to collaborate on a single

15· ·witness as opposed to two and three witnesses on a

16· ·similar topic.

17· · · ·Again, I don't want to portend I'm going to limit

18· ·anybody if their particular expert and we can agree you

19· ·want to hire the same one, or you think that two or three

20· ·experts on a topic will add to the record and help the

21· ·Council decide the issue.· I do think what I'm trying to

22· ·do is head off some motion practice from the Applicant or

23· ·other parties that might be moving to strike witnesses as

24· ·cumulative or duplicative.· By doing the work up front,

25· ·it may save me and all of you some work down the road.



·1· · · ·So I hope, Mr. Aramburu, those random thoughts from

·2· ·the judge give you a little bit more guidance on what I'm

·3· ·thinking.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· They do.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I think we

·6· ·have covered everybody's response to both the Counsel for

·7· ·the Environment and the Tribe's issues, so Mr. Aramburu

·8· ·that brings us back to the email you filed, I think, on

·9· ·Friday afternoon and then filed a supplemental correction

10· ·to on Saturday morning; is that right?

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Yes, spell check caught

12· ·me.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Fair enough.· I am going

14· ·to see if I can find your motion.· I think I know where I

15· ·filed that one.· Yes.· And yours was not an attachment

16· ·but a listing of Roman numeral one through twelve, and

17· ·then you highlighted that word "amenities" in Roman

18· ·numeral eight as the change.· And I think your issues

19· ·again speak, as you have sent in previous filings, and

20· ·again I have considered these as cumulative to the

21· ·thought process, so I will look at your initial filings

22· ·from last week from that time and these as well.

23· · · ·Did you want to say anything further about the

24· ·issues before I go around the horn again to see what

25· ·other comments there might be?



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· No.· I think my issues

·2· ·are -- I think Tri-Cities CARES' issues are

·3· ·self-explanatory.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Let me push

·5· ·Mr. Aramburu's issues off the Council's table for this

·6· ·time.

·7· · · ·Let's turn then to the Applicant and see if the

·8· ·Applicant had a chance to review the email that came in

·9· ·last Friday and the change on amenities on Saturday

10· ·morning.· Ms. Chase?

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Thank you, Judge Torem.

12· ·This is Ms. Chase.· We have had a chance to look at this

13· ·on a preliminary basis.· I think -- and this really goes

14· ·to both the issues submitted by the Yakama Nation and

15· ·issues to be submitted by the County, as well as this

16· ·one, we would like the opportunity to provide some more

17· ·detailed comments before -- for considering these issues.

18· ·I think our overarching concern is that many of those

19· ·seem a bit overbroad and don't quite define the issues

20· ·with enough specificity that the other parties can,

21· ·including the Applicant, can reasonably respond.· And I

22· ·will just highlight a couple of those here.· I think

23· ·issue seven, which raises general concerns about natural

24· ·assets of our national heritage, for example.· And nine,

25· ·which talks about the adverse impacts generally that have



·1· ·not been mitigated.

·2· · · ·So I do think we have some concerns about the

·3· ·breadth of these issues and those are just a couple of

·4· ·examples.

·5· · · ·I'm happy to answer any questions you might have

·6· ·about those comments.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· The only question I

·8· ·would like to pose to the Applicant, and if you can

·9· ·answer it to today, fantastic.· If you can't answer

10· ·today, I know I will get something further in writing

11· ·once you and your colleagues have had a little bit more

12· ·time.

13· · · ·But as we talked about with the Tribe's procedural

14· ·issues number one and two that were labeled that way in

15· ·Ms. Voelckers' filing, are there any of these 12 issues

16· ·that you see are procedural in nature and would be

17· ·subject to pre-adjudication motion practice to either

18· ·clarify them as jurisdictional or otherwise?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· I will think on that.  I

20· ·don't see them as being procedural in quite the same way

21· ·that I think the issues that Ms. Voelckers identified in

22· ·her submittal are procedural, although, I do think some

23· ·of them are -- so this is one example, we need to place

24· ·this hearing in the context of the existing land use

25· ·decision that's already been issued.· And so, for



·1· ·example, the Applicant has some concerns about

·2· ·relitigating, and I will let Mr. McMahan speak in more

·3· ·detail to this if you have further questions today, but

·4· ·relitigating what's already been decided in that language

·5· ·consistency order.· And so when I look at issue number

·6· ·three I think that's one place where we think maybe some

·7· ·motion practice potentially could be useful, depending on

·8· ·how everyone wants to frame issues to make clear what's

·9· ·been decided in that order already and what remains live

10· ·for the adjudication.

11· · · ·I'm looking at Mr. McMahon in case he as anything to

12· ·add and he's telling me he does not at this time.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Frankly, I

14· ·was expecting the Applicant to also raise the questions

15· ·of whether the scope of the adjudication could possibly

16· ·take on number one and number two.· I'm not saying that

17· ·it can't, but as far as meaningful reductions of

18· ·omissions to justify any adverse impacts caused by the

19· ·wind farm as proposed and Washington policy legislative

20· ·priorities, I'm going to need some further explanation,

21· ·Mr. Aramburu, for TCC's position on whether or not the

22· ·question of abundant useful power at reasonable cost is

23· ·something that's before EFSEC or more likely before the

24· ·Utilities and Transportation Commission.· And as much as

25· ·these two agencies used to be co-housed, I don't think



·1· ·their missions are continuous.· They might be adjacent in

·2· ·the big scheme of things with Governor Inslee and the

·3· ·policies he's signed into law during his terms in office,

·4· ·but I have some concerns.· And if no one else asks for

·5· ·briefing on those, I want you to, Mr. Aramburu, as I

·6· ·consider these think that I might be asking you for

·7· ·briefing to see if they come within the scope of 80.50.

·8· ·I just want to tee that up if the Applicant wasn't ready

·9· ·to have those thoughts today, I am, and just a question

10· ·mark that I want to put over those.

11· · · ·All right.· Let me move to the County and see, Mr.

12· ·Harper, if you have looked at Tri-Cities CARES' issues as

13· ·submitted by Mr. Aramburu.· Do you have any comments?

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper, Your Honor.

15· ·I have looked at those.· No particular item by item

16· ·comments, Your Honor.· I think one of the things I want

17· ·to comment on, though, and this is really just to elicit

18· ·further comment from you, if I understand correctly, what

19· ·we are doing here is really just kind of engaged in s

20· ·focusing process?

21· · · ·And so if an issue statement is inartfully

22· ·expressed, or heaven forbid some sub issue is omitted in

23· ·this process, it's Your Honor's expectation that there

24· ·will be sort of a -- sort of a funneling down to or

25· ·sifting down to a final sort of set of issues that will



·1· ·then define the case?· Am I channelling you correctly

·2· ·there, Your Honor?

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Yes, your crystal ball

·4· ·is correct.· The sorting and sifting, I don't have a hat

·5· ·like the Harry Potter school did but we will do the

·6· ·sorting.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Your Honor, with that in

·8· ·mind, I don't have anything further to add to our

·9· ·discussion so far on Mr. Aramburu's comments.· I think

10· ·his issues, I don't have anything else on that.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Ms.

12· ·Voelckers, let me come next to you on what Tri-Cities

13· ·CARES submitted.· Do you have any anything you want to

14· ·add today as I kind of do this sifting and sorting?

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

16· ·I don't have anything else to add specific to this list,

17· ·but I do appreciate the question as I have been better

18· ·understanding the goal here of this discussion.· And so I

19· ·would, as things are sifted and sorted, and I think

20· ·preserved this in what I filed this morning, but we would

21· ·anticipate that parties would be able to argue any

22· ·dispute issue even if they are not the ones initially

23· ·listing it, so we didn't want to create duplication, and

24· ·so therefore didn't list certain things that were part of

25· ·Mr. Aramburu's list, or Ms. Reyneveld's list, but did



·1· ·preserve the ability to still join in the discussion of

·2· ·those issues throughout the adjudication.· I just wanted

·3· ·to raise that as another potential point of clarification

·4· ·if that causes any concern.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· No, not whatsoever.  I

·6· ·think that's the general spirit, Ms. Voelckers, of where

·7· ·we are going with this.· There may be a party that

·8· ·decides they are the lead and other parties are in

·9· ·support, ask similar issues in cross-examination but

10· ·essentially adopt the previous questions, if you will,

11· ·once we get to that stage.· And when it comes to

12· ·testimony, parties that have issues that are aligned.

13· ·Like let's say I list a party issue as Mr. Aramburu has

14· ·listed, does the project have unacceptable impact on

15· ·wildlife and heir habitat.· Well, once we get more

16· ·specifics on his issue number five, which habitats and

17· ·which wildlife, and it may be that a number of parties

18· ·have similar concerns, maybe all parties, and choose

19· ·amongst themselves as to who is going to file the issue

20· ·on this species and which biologist will be called on

21· ·another, but all parties might have those similar

22· ·concerns.· I hope that helps.

23· · · ·Through the sifting and sorting and narrowing

24· ·process, it may reduce some of the filing burden from one

25· ·party and it can be shared amongst two or three.· It



·1· ·might be that, you know, two or three parties sponsor the

·2· ·testimony of one witness because it speaks to all of

·3· ·their issues, and then I just need to know who the lead

·4· ·party is that will be sponsoring the witness and go from

·5· ·there on further examination.· I hope that helps.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· It does.· Thank you,

·7· ·Your Honor.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu, you have

·9· ·your mic opened right now.· I can hear you in the

10· ·background.· I am about to turn to Ms. Reyneveld and talk

11· ·about your issue there.· So if you all can make sure we

12· ·have the microphone discipline continue.· We've been

13· ·pretty good today.

14· · · ·Ms. Reyneveld, anything else on the issues filed

15· ·last week by Mr. Aramburu on behalf TCC?

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· I agree with the

17· ·Applicant that some of these issues appear to be a little

18· ·broad, and so it would be great to add a little more

19· ·specificity to understand what is being at issue

20· ·specifically.· There's also some redundancy in all of

21· ·the -- some of these issues, both the Counsel for the

22· ·Environment and also Yakima Nation and these issues, so

23· ·I'm assuming that the sifting and sorting process as you

24· ·say that we are going to be narrowing these down to kind

25· ·of come up with kind of what -- the question on each of



·1· ·these issues.· And then I agree with their comments

·2· ·regarding some following up on the scope of this

·3· ·adjudication.· Generally, you know, they look fine.

·4· · · ·I'm kind of interested in what are the next steps in

·5· ·terms of combining of the issues and narrowing the issues

·6· ·here.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And as we had at the end

·8· ·of the last prehearing conference when you asked for next

·9· ·steps, and I'm developing what do you really want, Judge,

10· ·I think we have covered a lot of progress in the last ten

11· ·days to get these issue statements and to work on the

12· ·neutral tone and the more specifics to the topics we are

13· ·looking at, so we will continue to make some more steps.

14· · · ·I want to reiterate what I said last time about

15· ·these proposed issues having a basis in existing law.

16· ·And, you know, there is a good faith argument for some of

17· ·what I'm indicating might not be within the expected

18· ·scope of the adjudication.· When the motions come in to

19· ·say, Judge, here's why we think you are wrong, or at

20· ·least based on comments you've made at prehearing

21· ·conferences, here's why we think this is a legitimate

22· ·issue under 80.50 and other applicable laws.· That's the

23· ·kind of motion practice I expect to see if the issues are

24· ·essentially flagged for a need for prehearing motions

25· ·before they are added to the list.



·1· · · ·From here, Ms. Reyneveld, and to all the other

·2· ·parties, what I hope to do is take everything you talked

·3· ·about today, the filings that came in by email last

·4· ·Friday and this morning, and all the previous letters

·5· ·that came in based on the parties collaboration before

·6· ·the first prehearing conference, sift and sort, come up

·7· ·with that comprehensive list and get it back to you.  I

·8· ·am going to see if I can work independently and then with

·9· ·EFSEC staff, including Mr. Thomson, to refine that so

10· ·it's not just my thoughts, that I have the benefit of the

11· ·AG's office opinion as servicing the Council, and any

12· ·other staff members that might want to help me to comment

13· ·on that.· Some of those may be more substantive in citing

14· ·staff.· We might have some of the SEPA staff involved,

15· ·and definitely just the good minds of the rest of the

16· ·ladies and gentlemen that are supporting this

17· ·adjudication in the background.· They have had some great

18· ·insight along the way and I want to continue to take

19· ·advantage of what they are hearing from their

20· ·perspective.

21· · · ·So I think that's really all we can get through on

22· ·issue number five on my agenda today.· And once again I

23· ·have some homework to turn around for you.

24· · · ·I think on discovery, on item number six, we have

25· ·covered as much as we needed to before the break, so



·1· ·let's turn to the last item on today's agenda, prehearing

·2· ·motion practice and briefing.· We need to have a better

·3· ·look at the schedule, and I look at all of the other

·4· ·things about when testimony might due and have a proposal

·5· ·for you on that next time around.

·6· · · ·The deadline for nondispositive motions will

·7· ·probably be set in the timing after prefiled testimony

·8· ·comes in, so I don't know how long we will have in

·9· ·between.· Maybe my questions on this are premature, but I

10· ·think it's good practice to have all the motions decided

11· ·with time for parties to file a motion for

12· ·reconsideration before the first day of the adjudication.

13· · · ·That's the thought process that I'm looking at, and,

14· ·again, a good reason why we maybe settle on the

15· ·adjudication dates and then roll backwards as far as we

16· ·need to to get this motion practice in between, testimony

17· ·filing, and then back to what's realistic for that first

18· ·round of prefiled testimony.

19· · · ·Ms. Chase, any thoughts on that?

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Judge Torem, this is Ms.

21· ·Chase, and I'm thinking -- and I don't think that we

22· ·have -- I don't have any particular thoughts on that

23· ·other than I agree with that general comment about the

24· ·importance of having the issues resolved prior to the

25· ·actual adjudication, but I think we are flexible on how



·1· ·you would like to set those deadlines.· If I think of

·2· ·anything else I will let I know, but that's my initial

·3· ·thought on that point.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· There are a couple of

·5· ·issues -- well, before I let you go back, some of the

·6· ·ones that the Tribe has flagged as those procedural

·7· ·issues that I don't think we really need to wait for the

·8· ·filing of testimony.· This may be a simultaneous or even

·9· ·before the testimony comes in motion practice, and we can

10· ·talk about a schedule for that next week.· I hope that

11· ·all the parties will kind of collaborate and say these

12· ·are some issues that we are prepared to file a motion

13· ·sooner rather than later that are not dependent on the

14· ·filing of testimony as proposed for prefiled and

15· ·responsive or rebuttal testimony, but some of these scope

16· ·of adjudication issues, I think, could be handled well in

17· ·advance or simultaneously with the parties filing their

18· ·actual testimony.· That's what I'm thinking about kind of

19· ·two different timelines or time periods for motions to

20· ·come in an be decided.

21· · · ·Does the Applicant have any thoughts on two periods

22· ·of time or should we put it all off until after testimony

23· ·is filed?

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Thank you, Judge Torem.

25· ·That clarification was helpful to me in terms of what you



·1· ·are thinking and asking.· And yes, it's Applicant's

·2· ·preference that we do set an initial motion deadline.  I

·3· ·think it would be a motion deadline that would include,

·4· ·among other things as you noted, motions on the

·5· ·procedural issues that the Yakima Nation and others have

·6· ·indicated they may wish to raise, as well as to the

·7· ·extent that it's not resolved as part of the issues

·8· ·shaping and sorting process.· Motions on some of the

·9· ·issues such as TCC issues one and two are issues that may

10· ·be redundant of the existing land use approval process

11· ·that's already taken place.

12· · · ·So I agree with that.· I agree we can do that sooner

13· ·rather than later.· I think we can set that deadline

14· ·pretty soon after the prehearing conference on the 27th,

15· ·and that that could run in parallel with the parties

16· ·preparation of the prefiled testimony.· In other words,

17· ·we could get those motions resolved hopefully either

18· ·before or while prefiled testimony was still being

19· ·submitted so that we can keep the process moving.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

21· ·That's kind of what I'm thinking as well, but I'm open to

22· ·other parties telling me we should wait even longer on

23· ·some of those because if they are dependent on the

24· ·testimony, or at least a finalization of the issues list,

25· ·which, again, that would hopefully be sooner rather than



·1· ·later.

·2· · · ·Let me turn to Mr. Harper for Benton County and get

·3· ·your thoughts on those same questions.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Your Honor, Ken harper

·5· ·for the County.· My concern is that I generally think

·6· ·that it would be helpful to get some motions filed sooner

·7· ·rather than later.· I think that almost seems like just

·8· ·should certainly be allowed.· My reservation, Your Honor,

·9· ·is that it's not necessarily clear to me how we will

10· ·decide what is a procedural issue that might be subject

11· ·to some kind of early cutoff or deadline compared to what

12· ·may not be a procedural issue.· It may be that a

13· ·procedural issue seems substantive or vice versa only at

14· ·some later date, so I think my suggestion would be if you

15· ·could indicate to the parties that motion practice is

16· ·open and encourage early motions on procedural issues

17· ·that may help streamline matters, I think that might

18· ·prove to be more manageable.· I'm just not totally

19· ·convinced that it's going to be helpful to have a hard

20· ·cutoff on something that is, you know, sort of perceived

21· ·to be procedural at this early stage of the adjudication.

22· · · ·Other than that, Your Honor, I do support the idea

23· ·of getting motions filed.· And I think most of the

24· ·parties that think they have a motion would probably like

25· ·to file those soon, so maybe that is a sort of self



·1· ·correcting thing to allow motions and then not

·2· ·necessarily worry too much about deadlines over

·3· ·procedural versus substantive categorizations.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I think

·5· ·that's fair.· Some issues you kind of -- I think the

·6· ·Supreme Court has said, you know it when you see it, and

·7· ·others they say develop over the course of litigation.  I

·8· ·like the idea of having kind of an open filing for that

·9· ·the judge says this is the time to file your initial

10· ·motions, and have another round after testimony.· Again,

11· ·I don't think I can preclude and just, you know, tell you

12· ·don't file a motion if you think you have one at any

13· ·given time now that the adjudication has been commenced.

14· · · ·I would appreciate parties following some guidelines

15· ·if we can agree on windows of time, but I also say if you

16· ·file something that I think should be for later, I may

17· ·issues a preliminary ruling just deferring any further

18· ·action on it until another date certain or milestone in

19· ·the process.

20· · · ·So I like what Mr. Harper is suggesting, and if I

21· ·see something that I think is just not right for action,

22· ·I imagine either with responsive pleading or on my own

23· ·sua sponte if I read it fast enough getting an order out

24· ·telling parties hold off, don't put your energy into this

25· ·until later and we will tell you what the response



·1· ·deadline is.· That's the kind of thing I'm thinking, Mr.

·2· ·Harper, based on your comments might be helpful for all

·3· ·the parties.· Is that fair enough?

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper again for the

·5· ·County.· I think what you just said, if I understand

·6· ·correctly, is maybe a transition from the sort of

·7· ·distinguishing procedural from substantive and instead

·8· ·thinking of initial motions as the parties may perceive

·9· ·them, and then Your Honor sort of picking up, you know,

10· ·the motion as filed and then responding to it.· If it's

11· ·an initial motion that's procedural, then great.· If it's

12· ·an initial motion that's· substantive and premature, then

13· ·you can make a ruling accordingly.

14· · · ·And if somebody holds back on what is perceived to

15· ·be an initial motion and they hold it back and hold it

16· ·back, then I suppose it may not be very well received,

17· ·but I think that's the kind of idea, you know, initial

18· ·motion opportunities that the County would like to see,

19· ·and, frankly, what we would like to take advantage of.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

21· ·That's helping to guide the discussion quite well.

22· · · ·Let me turn to Mr. Aramburu and Tri-Cities CARES and

23· ·see, Mr. Aramburu, you have been in these motion battles

24· ·before, what are your thoughts?

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Well, I kind of have a



·1· ·general thought about how we proceed here.· I looked at

·2· ·dozens of prehearing orders and many of them are pretty

·3· ·specific as to deadlines, events, those kinds of things.

·4· · · ·Judge Torem, are we in a position now that perhaps

·5· ·you can put together what would be a prehearing order for

·6· ·draft consideration by everyone, and include within that

·7· ·to set some deadlines we know we are going to have to

·8· ·deal with, and testimony is certainly one.· There may be

·9· ·objections, motions to strike, that would be another one.

10· ·There would be opportunities for discovery, motion

11· ·practice that would be included.· And I think it would be

12· ·good for -- at least in my opinion, for us to take a look

13· ·at this comprehensive list of things and start to -- and

14· ·leaving dates blank.· Again, this is my suggestion, so

15· ·that we can start to fill in these issues.

16· · · ·Now more specifically to the motions, obviously

17· ·there may be procedural motions that are being discussed.

18· ·A dispositive motion would be one that would seek to get

19· ·rid of an issue, if that's something that the parties

20· ·have in mind.· And then there may be motion practice

21· ·following the submission of testimony.· And, again, the

22· ·prehearing order would set times and dates and responses

23· ·and reconsiderations and all those kinds of things.  I

24· ·hope I haven't gone on too long, but I think we are

25· ·probably at the point where we really need to start to



·1· ·look at that in a comprehensive order.· And deadlines for

·2· ·motions are certainly one of those things that we would

·3· ·need the fill in.· I kind of think that -- I think Ms.

·4· ·Voelckers and Mr. Harper pointed out that we kind of need

·5· ·to work backwards on these issues to kind of see where we

·6· ·are instead of trying to do it forward.· That's my

·7· ·suggestion.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· And I appreciate that,

·9· ·Mr. Aramburu.· I like the idea of -- and I will have a

10· ·skeleton order laying out all of these things and I will

11· ·be filling in the dates I know I can, or a date range,

12· ·and maybe sets of intervals.· Once I have a chance when

13· ·we hang up today to review the Applicant's extension

14· ·request and see what Mr. Thompson and I can work with

15· ·getting a more expedited review and decision on that from

16· ·the Council, then we will have a better time frame on

17· ·picking a date to work backwards from.

18· · · ·You are right.· I have some homework to do as I look

19· ·at the nonavailability and what the rest of the calendar

20· ·holds through September 30th to start giving you the hard

21· ·and fast dates or date ranges and then figuring this

22· ·whole thing out as you suggest.

23· · · ·And that would include, it sounds like, a

24· ·preliminary round of motions followed by a post filing of

25· ·testimony round of motions, exactly as you suggest for



·1· ·motions to strike, or maybe a dispositive motion to

·2· ·strike an issue altogether.· I do hope that in that time

·3· ·frame that I'm referring to now the parties will also see

·4· ·where there might be agreement, and if there are

·5· ·litigation measures that can be agreed upon for a

·6· ·particular issue, settlements of certain issues that

·7· ·might obviate the need for testimony, or disputed

·8· ·cross-examination of a witness, or maybe just limit it

·9· ·for things that the Council might still have questions on

10· ·where the parties have a meeting of all five minds, the

11· ·Council may still have its own concerns that they want to

12· ·ask.· Those are some other thoughts that I will add to

13· ·your skeleton order and overall comprehensive timeframe

14· ·and chronology.· I hope that's responsive, Mr. Aramburu.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· I think so.· There's a

16· ·question about one of the issues that perhaps we could

17· ·seek some guidance on.· There is an issue that's been

18· ·discussed about the need to have the final impact

19· ·statement available for the adjudication, but that, given

20· ·some extension in time here, it may be that if the final

21· ·impact statement is going to be out in advance of us

22· ·getting in the adjudication that's not really an issue.

23· · · ·And I wonder if we might get some guidance from

24· ·staff as to dates that we might expect to see that

25· ·document.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Mr. Thompson

·2· ·and I will talk to the appropriate staff to see if they

·3· ·have any news that can be shared with everybody, but,

·4· ·again, without putting any undue pressure on them to

·5· ·finish early.· And as I said, maybe there's still need

·6· ·for the legal briefing on that so I can make a formal

·7· ·ruling on the suggestions and comments I made last

·8· ·prehearing conference, Mr. Aramburu.· I don't want to

·9· ·make you do work just for -- if you think that the FEIS

10· ·would somehow be done sooner and obviate the need for the

11· ·motion, but if I can give you a date certain if it's

12· ·available to me, I'm happy to pass it along.

13· · · ·All right.· Let me turn to Ms. Voelckers and the

14· ·Tribe and see on this discussion of the overall schedule

15· ·and the motions timeframe as we wrap up today's

16· ·conference, I will come to Ms. Reyneveld last.

17· · · ·Ms. Voelckers any thoughts from the Tribe on this

18· ·matter?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

20· ·I think I'm most aligned with counsel for Benton County

21· ·here, although I do support the requests for stretching

22· ·this out.· And I certainly would reiterate, and I think I

23· ·already said this, that we think the hearing should be

24· ·set and we should walk back from that.· I think that the

25· ·proposal that Mr. Harper made makes a lot of sense.· And



·1· ·rather than having a cutoff for motions necessary next

·2· ·week, as I think I heard from Ms. Chase, but to have a

·3· ·period of time where those procedural issues can be dealt

·4· ·with.· Certainly, also finalization issue statements I

·5· ·think is a really good idea.

·6· · · ·The only thing I would add to that is an

·7· ·understanding of what you just said about the work that

·8· ·staff is doing, the FEIS or Supplemental EIS, I'm not

·9· ·sure, but it did sound like the discussion last week was

10· ·about a proposed schedule, and so if there was any

11· ·finalization of a schedule for the next EFSEC meeting

12· ·that would be helpful to inform what we are talking

13· ·about.· I don't know if that was a moot or not moot

14· ·procedural issue without knowing more about the schedule,

15· ·but that would helpfully help inform a deadline for

16· ·procedural motions.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· I think I

18· ·understood all of that.· Let me turn to Ms. Reyneveld and

19· ·see if she has anything else on the motion practice as it

20· ·fits into the overall timeframe, and thoughts on any

21· ·issues that that might be keyed up earlier rather than

22· ·later.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· I don't have much to

24· ·add.· I agree with what the parties have stated,

25· ·including Ms. Voelckers and the other parties, we should



·1· ·set a hearing and then walk back from there.· And I

·2· ·agree, Judge, that the procedural issue motion that might

·3· ·be one percent, and we can absolutely start having that

·4· ·motion practice as kind of the first part of this

·5· ·adjudication.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Those are

·7· ·all the things I had for today.· The comments that I have

·8· ·got on item number seven, let's talk about prehearing

·9· ·opening statements and any supporting briefing, and, of

10· ·course, posthearing closing arguments and briefing.

11· · · ·I just want the parties to anticipate there will be

12· ·an opportunity to file those in writing.· There's going

13· ·to be a lot, just a lot of reading for this Council and I

14· ·don't know that any of our council members have

15· ·participated in an adjudication before, or in any complex

16· ·litigation where they have got to be decision makers and

17· ·digest all the information.

18· · · ·So as you think about between now and next week, the

19· ·witnesses you are going to be calling in the months

20· ·ahead, and the position you want to put in front of the

21· ·council members, any opening statements or opening

22· ·briefing that you present, consider the audience.· I'm

23· ·not hinting at all that they are unrefined in any way,

24· ·but just their inexperience at these matters, and a

25· ·precise opening statement that you want the members to



·1· ·read essentially on the morning of the first adjudication

·2· ·date.· I'm thinking they could read three to five pages

·3· ·and capture what each of the five parties is going to say

·4· ·as an overall perspective, and then they will be ready

·5· ·witness by witness, topic by topic however we schedule

·6· ·the dates up to maybe as you said two weeks of

·7· ·adjudication.· I just want you to think about, as you

·8· ·structure things, what that opening statement filed in

·9· ·writing might be so that at my insistence they will have

10· ·read that before they hear the first witness and be keyed

11· ·up to hear what each party is going to have based on

12· ·whatever order we present it.

13· · · ·Now when the adjudication is all done, that, in my

14· ·experience, is when you really want to have a chance to

15· ·file that posthearing brief so that I can digest with Mr.

16· ·Thompson's help all the legal issues you might be raising

17· ·and answer questions of the Council accordingly during

18· ·their deliberations, and that they can hear, based on

19· ·what the testimony showed or perhaps didn't through

20· ·cross-examination, have a better view of here is what we

21· ·heard and here is what the parties really think this is

22· ·why he should do X or Y with particular impacts for

23· ·mitigation, or perhaps with the overall project and its

24· ·recommendation for approval or denial to the governor.

25· · · ·So the opening statements I just think you don't



·1· ·want to be too much time on your positions, but more

·2· ·again about what you want them to pay attention to over

·3· ·the course of the adjudication.· Save that super advocacy

·4· ·role for the posthearing brief, and then the Council will

·5· ·be in a better position to understand how and why you are

·6· ·taking the positions you do.

·7· · · ·I hope that's helpful just in this sort of practice

·8· ·as it's not a criminal proceeding.· It is an explanatory

·9· ·proceeding and an evaluative proceeding.· It's truly an

10· ·adjudication of all the issues that we are going to

11· ·settle on, and I hope that sets a tone for when I put

12· ·that in there for prehearing opening statements what that

13· ·means, an posthearing closing arguments.

14· · · ·I know those are words that we all learned in law

15· ·school and sometimes statements and arguments get

16· ·confused, and I just invite you to, as you develop your

17· ·cases, keep that in mind.· I don't think anybody is going

18· ·to move to strike an opening argument as too -- an

19· ·opening statement as too argumentative in this position,

20· ·but if we all keep that in mind no one will even think

21· ·to.

22· · · ·Let me go around the horn to see if there were any

23· ·other issues that were left unaddressed.· Ms. Chase,

24· ·anything for the Applicant you wanted to bring up before

25· ·we close out today's conference?



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. CHASE:· Thank you, Judge Torem.

·2· ·This is Ms. Chase, nothing further for the Applicant.

·3· ·Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Harper, how about

·5· ·for the County?

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper for the

·7· ·County, nothing further.· Thank you, Your Honor.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Reyneveld, Counsel

·9· ·for the Environment?

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· Sarah Reyneveld,

11· ·Counsel for the Environment, nothing further.· Thank you,

12· ·Judge.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Voelckers, anything

14· ·on behalf of the Yakama Nation?

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. VOELCKERS:· Shona Voelckers on

16· ·behalf of the Yakama Nation, we have nothing else.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And for

18· ·Tri-Cities CARES, Mr. Aramburu?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ARAMBURU:· Nothing further at this

20· ·time, Your Honor.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Well our

22· ·conference then is adjourned at 3:47 p.m.· We are off the

23· ·record.

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Proceedings concluded

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · at 3:47 p.m.)
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 1                      BE IT REMEMBERED that on Monday, March

 2   20, 2023, via Zoom, at 1:32 p.m., before Christy

 3   Sheppard, Certified Court Reporter, CCR, RPR;

 4                      WHEREUPON, the following proceedings

 5   were had, to wit:

 6

 7                         <<<<<< >>>>>>

 8

 9

10

11                     JUDGE TOREM:  This is Judge Torem

12   calling our prehearing conference, the second one, for

13   March 20th, 2023.  It was supposed to start at 1:30 today

14   and it's now 1:34.

15       This is in the matter of the application of Scout

16   Clean Energy, LLC, and better known as the Horse Heaven

17   Wind Farm project in Benton County.

18       I am going to do a roll call now for the Applicant.

19   Do we have Crystal Chase?

20                     MS. CHASE:  We do, Judge Torem.  This

21   is Crystal Chase and with me in the same conference room

22   is Ms. Schimelpfenig and Mr. McMahan.

23                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Chase, I

24   am going to ask you to spell the last names of all of the

25   parties that you just mentioned and we will take it the
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 1   first names the court reporter will pick up.

 2                     MS. CHASE:  Great.  Happy to do that.

 3   This is Crystal Chase, last name C-H-A-S-E.  With me in

 4   the room is Tim McMahan, M-C-M-A-H-A-N.  Also with me in

 5   the room is Emily Schimelpfenig,

 6   S-C-H-I-M-E-L-P-F-E-N-I-G.

 7                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

 8   Counsel for the Environment, do we have Ms. Reyneveld?

 9                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Ms. Reyneveld is

10   present.  Sarah Reyneveld, and Reyneveld is spelled

11   R-E-Y-N-E-V-E-L-D.  Thank you.

12                     JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  God

13   afternoon.  And for Benton Country, do we have Mr.

14   Harper?

15                     MR. HARPER:  This is Ken Harper for

16   Benton County, H-A-R-P-E-R.

17                     JUDGE TOREM:  Anybody else with you

18   today, Mr. Harper?

19                     MR. HARPER:  My colleague, Zi Foster

20   is also with us today.

21                     JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Sheppard, if

22   you need any of these other names spelled again later

23   just be in touch with me.  Staff will make sure you have

24   my phone number and email contact.

25       All right.  Our intervening parties, the
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 1   Confederated Tribes and Band of the Yakama Nation.

 2   Shona Voelckers, are you with us today?

 3                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.  I'm

 4   Shona Voelckers on behalf of the Yakama Nation.  My last

 5   name is V-O-E-L-C-K-E-R-S.  My colleague Ethan Jones is

 6   not present today, but my colleague Jessica Houston is

 7   also on the line.

 8                     JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.  Welcome all.

 9   And, finally, Tri-Cities CARES, and that's an acronym

10   CARES and it stands for Community Action for Responsible

11   Environmental Stewardship.  Do we have Mr. Richard

12   Aramburu?

13                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Present, Your Honor.

14   The last name is spelled A-R-A-M-B-U-R-U.

15                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you

16   very much.  We have got all of our parties accounted for

17   today, and I wanted to see who else is on the line for

18   EFSEC staff.  I believe we have Jonathan Thompson, our

19   assistant attorney general.  Mr. Thompson, if you could

20   just acknowledge?

21                     MR. THOMPSON:  Yes, I'm present.

22                     JUDGE TOREM:  And we also have Lisa

23   Masengale, M-A-S-E-N-G-A-L-E, and Andrea Grantham

24   indicate they could hear me on the voice check earlier.

25   Is there any other EFSEC staff present that wants to be
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 1   acknowledged?

 2       All right.  Not hearing anybody come off mute right

 3   away, we will move on to the next agenda item.

 4                           (Unidentified speaker.)

 5

 6                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Judge Torem, this is

 7   Andrea, you might have been muted if you could unmute

 8   yourself.  Try star six or pound six.  Try star six or

 9   pound six since you are calling in.

10                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  It sounds like

11   I'm no longer muted.

12                     MS. GRANTHAM:  There you go.

13                     JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you staff for

14   helping me.  I heard some other lines so maybe you just

15   muted all the other lines.  If there's other folks

16   listening in today, that's great.  This is a procedural

17   prehearing conference to go over details about scheduling

18   the upcoming adjudication and a number of other rules

19   that we are working on.  If you are listening in, please

20   keep your microphone muted so we don't have to do that

21   all mute again and result in actual people that are

22   having a speaking role get cut back.  There is no public

23   comments opportunity today, but there will be at the

24   adjudication.  Contact EFSEC staff if you are worried

25   about or want to know what the procedures will be.
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 1       And, finally, just to be sure, there is no evidence

 2   being taken today.  These are just planning discussions

 3   with the parties.

 4       All right.  Our prehearing conference order got out

 5   to the parties quite later than I thought it would, but

 6   it's been a busy week since we last talked on March 10th,

 7   and the agenda hopefully went out with it.

 8       For those that are following along, I believe the

 9   agenda got posted on the EFSEC website, but I will walk

10   everybody through it so if you don't have it in front of

11   you it's obvious what we are doing.

12       We have a total of seven listed items, the first of

13   which is the roll call I have already gone through.  And

14   the second one we are going to get to now is an update on

15   the venue for the adjudication.

16       I, after our call on March 10th, reached out and

17   talked to the EFSEC manager and relayed the parties'

18   feelings about wanting to have this either virtual,

19   hybrid, or in person in the county, in Benton County.  As

20   I said in the agenda, it has been raised with Sonia

21   Bumpus and she was going to meet with Chair Drew sometime

22   after last week's Wednesday regular monthly meeting of

23   the EFSEC Council.  I haven't heard anything back from

24   Ms. Bumpus upon that.  We last talked by email at least

25   on Thursday, and I don't have any updates on decisions.
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 1   There's some question as to whether or not having some

 2   portion of the adjudication in Benton County might be

 3   approved so that at least the parties and the judge and

 4   whatever staff we need might be present in the county.

 5   And perhaps the Council members would not be imposed upon

 6   to travel to each and every session, but might be able to

 7   make it to some if not all of them.  For some council

 8   members it may prove too much of a burden to do the

 9   travel, and I know that Chair Drew is considering those

10   kinds of things.

11       What I would like to do is, as it says in the

12   agenda, ask for those parties that would like to, write a

13   letter to Chair Drew and to me with the reasons, in your

14   own words rather than the ones I might have relayed to

15   the manager last week, stating why you believe it should

16   be held however you want.  Today being the 20th, I would

17   hope that those could be -- if by next Monday, March

18   27th, all the parties that are interested in filing their

19   request for inperson, hybrid, virtual you could file

20   those -- they are totally optional, but if we could get

21   that in by next Monday the 27th, that would help, I

22   think, Chair Drew understand where everybody is coming

23   from and be able to make a more informed discussion.

24       Ms. Voelckers, I did relay, and I think you heard a

25   little bit of that at the council meeting, the importance
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 1   that -- of the special request you made on behalf of the

 2   Yakama Tribe for your elders to testify, and you might

 3   want to have an additional portion of your letter

 4   explaining essentially the logistics that might be

 5   necessary, and any support on how to record the voices

 6   that they might speak in.  Again, you said they would

 7   speak in perhaps native tongue as well as in English to

 8   express their positions.  And my only concern as we

 9   talked about ten days ago is if there would be any

10   gesturing or other things that couldn't be captured in a

11   written transcript of words in English, whether we need

12   an interpreter or some other way to capture that for the

13   record.  I leave that for you to describe if there be any

14   necessary additional support to capture the testimony and

15   presentation of your elders.

16       Does any party, and I will survey one at a time,

17   have any concerns about filing a letter by next Monday

18   the 27th, and, Ms. Voelckers, when I get to you any other

19   special requests.

20       Let me start with the Applicant, Ms. Chase.

21                     MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, and no

22   concern about the deadline.

23                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.

24   Reyneveld for CFE?

25                     MS. REYNEVELD:  This is Ms. Reyneveld,
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 1   and I have no concerns about the deadline either.  Thank

 2   you, Judge.

 3                     JUDGE TOREM:  You're welcome.  Mr.

 4   Harper?

 5                     MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton

 6   County, no, Your Honor, that's fine.

 7                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.

 8   Voelckers for the Tribe?

 9                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

10   No concerns.  Just to confirm you would like this letter

11   addressed to Chair Drew or to yourself?

12                     JUDGE TOREM:  To both of us, please,

13   that way she and I may have cause to talk about all of

14   the inputs once they are all in.

15                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Understood.  Thank

16   you.

17                     JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu?

18                     MR. ARAMBURU:  For Tri-Cities CARES,

19   no concerns with that schedule.

20                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I hope all

21   of you will take advantage of that opportunity to

22   communicate directly with me and the Chair with regard to

23   your preferences for venue, and it will, again, just give

24   you all a forum to get that out in your words.

25       All right.  Let's turn to the third item on the
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 1   agenda for today, the actual scheduling of the

 2   adjudication itself.  We are still working with the

 3   deadline of July 8th, 2023.  I think a number of you

 4   heard what I had to say about that at the monthly meeting

 5   last week.  Let's take a look on the agenda.  What I have

 6   stated is that the approved second extension request from

 7   the Applicant does require us to get a recommendation to

 8   the governor no later than July 8th of this year.  We

 9   have had at least 25 months that have elapsed since the

10   application came in, and the current statutory deadline

11   has certainly been passed.  That 12-month processing time

12   for 80.50.100 is well past, and we are projecting a total

13   of 29 months at this time to get a full vote and

14   consideration on the application.

15       Based on our discussions ten days ago, you can see

16   the proposed dates that would have started perhaps as

17   early as Monday, May 15th for the hearing, are now based

18   on prefiled testimony coming in no earlier than April 3rd

19   or maybe April 10th.  The earliest hearing dates, Ms.

20   Chase, that I can offer the Applicant and the other

21   parties look to be Monday June 5th for that entire week,

22   and the remainder of the week after Juneteenth, on that

23   holiday from June 20th to the 23rd.

24       I'm wondering, for the parties, just how many days

25   of hearing you would each estimate this case might take.
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 1   And I realize it's a little bit of a shot in the dark

 2   because you don't know -- we haven't agreed on what

 3   issues will be adjudicated or what witnesses, but based

 4   on your prior experience, and I know many of you on the

 5   line have been in complex litigation like this, including

 6   before this council, so I want to ask you, I can't hold

 7   you to it, but just your today estimate of how many days

 8   of hearing time you each think it might take.

 9       Let me start with the Applicant, again, and see, Ms.

10   Chase, between you and Mr. McMahan and Ms. Schimelpfenig

11   what you are thinking for the number of days?

12                     MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.

13   This is Ms. Chase.  We -- I think based on information we

14   have now, we would anticipate a couple weeks, so two

15   weeks total.  I'm recognizing that that will depend on

16   large part on how the issues get finalized.

17       And then also for the scheduling discussion, I did

18   want to share that Applicant will be submitting a third

19   extension request shortly, if it hasn't already been

20   submitted, that will extend the time to complete the

21   adjudication through the timeline that you have been

22   discussing at the last prehearing conference, which was

23   September 2023.  I wanted to share that now as it may

24   inform the parties' scheduling discussions.

25                     JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that if the
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 1   application extension request is actually being filed

 2   today, it won't be acted upon until the Council can

 3   receive it, but it notionally will release a lot of

 4   pressure on everybody on the line today.  I do appreciate

 5   that very much, and I will thank the Applicant for

 6   allowing the Council to be able to do a thorough job, and

 7   all the other parties, frankly, to prepare testimony less

 8   under the gun and really get a thorough adjudication on

 9   the issues they would like to present.  So your estimate

10   for the amount of time is going to be approximately two

11   weeks.

12       Let me turn next to the Counsel for the Environment

13   and see, Ms. Reyneveld, your thoughts on how many days of

14   adjudication this might take.

15                     MS. REYNEVELD:  I would be in

16   agreement with the Applicant, although I do think that

17   there are a lot of unknowns to this ligation, including

18   just the number of witnesses that are going to be called

19   so it's difficult to determine without that.  I would say

20   at most we will likely be calling one to two witnesses,

21   and so I just don't know the number of witnesses from the

22   other parties.  But I think, you know, probably one and a

23   half to two weeks would be a good estimate.

24                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Mr. Harper, for

25   the County?
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 1                     MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton

 2   County.  Yeah, I think Ms. Chase has a pretty good best

 3   estimate there.  I don't think I can really add to that.

 4   Two weeks sounds about right with all the disclaimers,

 5   but it does sound about appropriate.

 6                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,

 7   Mr. Harper.

 8       Ms. Voelckers, how does the Tribe feel about

 9   predicting how long this might take?

10                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

11   I don't have any better ability to predict and would

12   agree with the statements that have already been made by

13   other counsel.

14                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.

15   Aramburu?

16                     MR. ARAMBURU:  My understanding is

17   that the hearing time that we are going to take is going

18   to be principally cross-examination with some exceptions.

19   So if that's the understanding, then I think two weeks

20   would probably be fine, although these dates that you

21   have here probably are not the appropriate two weeks in

22   our view.  So we think two weeks is fine, closely

23   coordinating cross-examination time and those kinds of

24   things.

25                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.
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 1   When you say these two weeks I have here, you are

 2   referring to the weeks in June that I mentioned and that

 3   are listed on the agenda?

 4                     MR. ARAMBURU:  That's correct, Your

 5   Honor.

 6                     THE JUDGE:  And as Ms. Chase

 7   indicated, if the Council approves an extension to the

 8   end of September, which is what I understood, Ms. Chase,

 9   it would be through September 30th?

10                     MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, yes.

11   That's correct.

12                     JUDGE TOREM:  So, Mr. Aramburu, that's

13   going to give us the month of July, the month of August,

14   and the month of September to process the application,

15   and the hearing time would certainly not have to start as

16   of June 5th if that extension is approved at the April

17   council meeting.

18       All right.  Thank you all for validating what I told

19   the EFSEC manager last week on Wednesday afternoon or

20   Thursday, whenever it was Ms. Bumpus and I spoke, I

21   estimated two weeks.  I think she was a little bit

22   surprised that we would have two weeks' worth of hearing

23   time.  I hope we can knock it down to less as we sort out

24   the issues and the number of witnesses.  And particularly

25   knowing, as Mr. Aramburu pointed out, that the prefiled
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 1   written testimony comes in then we will be able to have

 2   mainly an adoption of that on the record and a

 3   cross-examination.  And, Mr. Aramburu, as you pointed out

 4   previously we will be working with exhibits and a number

 5   of other things, if we do our prehearing housekeeping

 6   correctly everybody will have exhibits and know exactly

 7   where we are going with them.  For each witness, we will

 8   be doing exams, discussion, and preparation so that the

 9   hearing time itself can be used efficiently and everybody

10   won't have to pause to get exhibits and things like that.

11       I'm not sure today that I can tell you what weeks

12   are available.  I received in an email earlier today a

13   listing of council unavailability out through September

14   30th, so notionally we could talk about that if I'd

15   actually read that email yet, and I will confess I have

16   not.  I have that information, and I believe all parties

17   have also filed their notices of unavailability.  If

18   there's any party who has not done so as of today, I

19   won't have you self-identify on the line, but I think all

20   five parties have submitted their requests for

21   unavailability, and if not, if you can get it in by close

22   of business today that will give me time tomorrow to

23   start doing some cross comparison of council availability

24   and party availability and see what we have notionally

25   beyond the July 8th current deadline.
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 1       If I make an assumption that the Council might act

 2   at their next meeting to approve it then we can start to

 3   sketch out a schedule.

 4       So let me turn then to the prefiled testimony piece

 5   of our agenda, item number four.  I think last time we

 6   talked about having three rounds of testimony.  And I

 7   initially, based on discussions with staff, had proposed

 8   the Applicant file first and then a bunch of other

 9   testimony come in in response and then reply.

10       I can't remember which of you wisely pointed out

11   that in past practice we allowed all testimony to come in

12   in the first round from all parties, based on their

13   issues, and then all parties have a chance to respond,

14   and if necessary, rebuttal on the third round.

15       I don't know, but I want to survey again if parties

16   have a preference on ordering and the type of three

17   rounds of testimony and the intervals in between.  I

18   think we talked about potentially 28 days after the first

19   filing for the next round, and then 21 days for the third

20   round to come in.

21       So I am going to ask counsel for all of the parties,

22   and I will go in the same order as usual, to comment on

23   that if they have thoughts and I will take notes as we

24   go.

25       Let me start with the Applicant, Ms. Chase?

0018

 1                     MS. CHASE:  The Applicant has no

 2   preference between the two approaches.  And it's fine

 3   with the allotted 28, 21 intervals, acknowledging that

 4   based on parties' different availability those dates may

 5   end up needing to shift a few days as we plot out the

 6   schedule.

 7       I think it would be helpful to have -- I think

 8   I'm -- it would be -- it would make more sense for all

 9   parties to file simultaneously because then Applicant, at

10   least from our perspective, would have the ability to

11   respond to the issues that were presented by the parties

12   on the issues that they are wishing to present in this

13   proceeding.

14       And then I think the last comment would be as to

15   timing.  Given that we still need to finalize the issues,

16   the initial discussions of April 3rd and April 10th may

17   be slightly ambitious, but we do want to make sure that

18   we are getting an initial deadline as soon as possible.

19       Thank you, Judge Torem.  I'm happy to answer any

20   questions.

21                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Given that the

22   Council may not act on the extension request until the

23   third week in April, which would put us at the April 19th

24   meeting, would the Applicant and all parties, I guess, if

25   we are going to do it simultaneously, be comfortable with
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 1   the first round of testimony coming in not knowing quite

 2   what the hearing dates are, but notionally knowing that

 3   they won't be in June, what are your thoughts on filing a

 4   first round of testimony ahead of next month's council

 5   meeting so we can get things rolling?  And, again, that's

 6   subject to identifying all the disputed issues, if not

 7   today, then shortly after today.

 8                     MS. CHASE:  As Applicant we have no

 9   objection, and agree that we should start with our first

10   round of filings before the Council has the opportunity

11   to act on that request.  Understanding that everybody

12   seems to acknowledge that the June dates are not

13   practically realistic.  We have no objection to that as

14   long as there is adequate time between when the issues

15   are finalized for the parties to have a couple of weeks

16   to get their third round of testimony together.

17                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Anything

18   else from the Applicant on the scheduling of prefiled

19   testimony or the topics we are covering before I shift to

20   Counsel for the Environment?

21       Okay.  All right.  Hearing none, let me shift to Ms.

22   Reyneveld, and ask for your input on the round of

23   testimony, the intervals, and potentially starting the

24   filing if we do it simultaneously then that would apply

25   to CFE and all the other parties to be ready sometime
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 1   between now and April, middle of the month, when the

 2   Council has their meeting.

 3                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Thank you, Judge.  The

 4   Counsel for the Environment has a slight preference for

 5   the Applicant filing first and then other parties

 6   responding and then reply or rebuttal.  I don't have a

 7   preference on the intervals other than that they be

 8   sufficiently spaced out.  And I would prefer to have the

 9   hearing scheduled and then to work from there in terms of

10   the filing schedule.  I don't think it necessarily makes

11   sense to establish an arbitrary filing schedule in April

12   and then have the hearing potentially be in July.  It's

13   just -- from a kind of litigation perspective I think we

14   should schedule the hearing and then schedule kind of

15   those filing deadlines accordingly.

16                     JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, I

17   think in a perfect world I would agree a hundred percent.

18   There's a certain part of me that remembers somebody in

19   our federal government talking about unknown unknowns,

20   and we are dealing with those right now, but I don't want

21   to waste the time between now and the next counsel

22   meeting because every day is valuable.  I think as of

23   last week we had 115 days to go to the July 8th

24   extension, and if we do get an approved extension to

25   September 30th, today might be the first day of Spring
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 1   but the first day of Fall may be the date that the

 2   council members are deliberating and we are trying to get

 3   an order out, so that September time I don't want to be

 4   holding a hearing in September.  I want to be evaluating

 5   what's going on with the filings and post hearing briefs

 6   by then.  I just want the parties to think that the judge

 7   and the council need time to after the adjudication read

 8   your post hearing briefs, make decisions, draft the

 9   recommendation, and work accordingly to get everything

10   ready to announce and deliver to the governor.

11       One other piece that's come to my attention in

12   looking past the SEPA questions is that the final EIS has

13   to be part of the recommendation.  That has to be

14   finalized, I believe, seven days according to law before

15   the recommendation goes to the governor, so that's

16   another week of backing up time for many to grant an

17   extension to have to be considered.

18       But that said, Ms. Reyneveld, I want to know when

19   the hearing is too so that we get -- we don't

20   artificially put pressure to file that first round of

21   testimony.  So my thought is we may get a feel and a

22   decision today on the intervals and the soon as possible

23   date.  We may yet schedule a shorter prehearing

24   conference to announce dates and then work through those

25   and then set the schedule depending on how far we get
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 1   today.

 2       Ms. Reyneveld, anything else?

 3                     MS. REYNEVELD:  That makes sense,

 4   Judge.  I just want to make sure that there's ample time

 5   to be able to, you know, actually submit testimony and

 6   call witnesses, and so I think that's my concern about

 7   just the -- to expediting the process for filing prior to

 8   knowing the hearing date.  I appreciate that.

 9                     JUDGE TOREM:  A hundred percent

10   understood.  I don't want to rush anybody further.  And

11   if we do have ample time, and thanks to the Applicant's

12   intention or already filed extension request, we probably

13   should, but I have to look at all those notices of

14   unavailability and see where the jigsaw puzzle lines up.

15       All right.  That's my problem to deal with.  Let's

16   shift to the County now.  Mr. Harper, thoughts on

17   prefiled testimony?

18                     MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton

19   County, Your Honor.  I have strong concerns about the

20   concept of simultaneous filing with a target date of mid

21   April.  I just, you know, I'm very concerned about the

22   definition of the issues.  I'm concerned about the status

23   of SEPA.  I share Ms. Reyneveld's concern, and we don't

24   need to go over that again regarding the sequence here

25   from hearing date forward.  But, Your Honor, I don't know
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 1   what really is going to be sort of the focal point of the

 2   hearing of the Applicant's position.  I don't really know

 3   how the respondents/interveners may be able to work

 4   between themselves and streamline testimony with having

 5   to simultaneously hit that date as part of our own

 6   prefiled testimony due date.  So, Your Honor, from the

 7   County's perspective we would strongly request at least a

 8   staggered series of filings and/or -- I know this isn't

 9   really what you want to know, but and/or an initial

10   prefiled testimony due date somewhat later than April.

11                     JUDGE TOREM:  And I was going to ask

12   you if the nature of your concern is more of the timing

13   of a mid April filing date without the full fleshing out

14   of issues and other things, or is it the you don't want

15   to file simultaneously with the Applicant with the

16   County's issues?  Is it both or is it weighted more

17   toward the timing?

18                     MR. HARPER:  Thanks, Your Honor, for

19   the chance to clarify.  It's a combination of the two.  I

20   don't know that I have a strong reservation about the

21   idea of simultaneous filing, but that clearly puts more

22   onus on the County, possibly the other responding party

23   and interveners to really, you know, very carefully

24   structure what their prefiled testimony will be, which

25   takes time.
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 1                     JUDGE TOREM:  Agreed.  And I know the

 2   Applicant knows what it's applying for.  And the

 3   Applicant knows what it thinks its disputed issues are

 4   going to be may be in a better position, but I do think

 5   each of the parties know why they are here in the case.

 6   They filed petitions for intervention, or as the County

 7   has been involved in the beginning as well, Mr. Harper,

 8   before your firm filed its appearance so everybody knows

 9   why they are here.

10       I'm a little bit honestly less concerned with the

11   question of what are we going to do.  You are going to

12   identify your witnesses at the same rate, if you haven't

13   already.  So you will have a full period of time to

14   respond.  It looks like the 28-day interval to respond to

15   the Applicant's witnesses that they file.

16       Again, if we need to extend it from 28 days if we

17   have a little more grace time longer to perhaps allow for

18   some informal discovery, or formal if necessary.  That

19   may be some way to accommodate the concern you are

20   expressing, and I hope we can do that fairly so you don't

21   feel that there's any trial by ambush or any other

22   concern of any party surprising the others, anymore than

23   any other filing that comes into court might do.

24       Mr. Harper, I will give you a chance to respond on

25   how I'm evaluating your concerns.
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 1                     MR. HARPER:  No. I think you have

 2   stated it, Your Honor.  Thank you.

 3                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let's move

 4   on then to Ms. Voelckers working with prefiled testimony

 5   questions and about intervals as well.

 6                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 7   We are not opposed to filing simultaneously, although I

 8   would note that we have been operating on the last

 9   discussion, the last hearing conference in preparation

10   to -- we anticipate that we would not be asked to file

11   that direct testimony in the same time line that

12   Applicant is comfortable with, but depending on when the

13   date is that we are not opposed to filing testimony

14   simultaneously.

15       I will say that I also have very strong concerns

16   about the timing and especially knowing that Applicant

17   has submitted an application to extend the deadline.

18   That is still, frankly, quite ambitious.  I think that

19   walking back from the date of the hearing being set is

20   what makes the most sense here and sets everyone up for

21   the best possible process, even though we are under this

22   timeline or time crunch.

23       And I would just respectfully also push back a

24   little bit on the language about wasting time.  I think

25   we are all working really hard to get caught up on a lot
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 1   of materials the Applicant has had years to put together,

 2   including the amended site verification application that

 3   was filed just months ago.  So we, you know, do need that

 4   time to have a fair process here.  So those are my

 5   comments on the timing.  I think that we should wait

 6   until the hearing is set and walk back from the hearing,

 7   and do so in a way that is fair, regardless of whether or

 8   not we are filing simultaneously.

 9       And lastly I would just note that those 28 days were

10   agreed before the Applicant went on the record and said

11   that they were prepared to file in just a few weeks.  So

12   when we had that the discussion about the 28-day timeline

13   there were no dates that were being proposed or agreed to

14   by the Applicant to inform that discussion.  Again, I

15   would submit that that should be as much time as possible

16   given that the hearing date -- once the hearing date is

17   put on the calendar.

18                     JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Voelckers, I

19   just want to validate for you that when I said there was

20   going to be any wasting of time, that would be from my

21   perspective of my time and the Council's time to elapsing

22   towards that perhaps now September 30th deadline.  I

23   didn't mean any implication or offense that parties are

24   wasting time.  From a procedural standpoint, though,

25   every day to me is precious and I don't want to sit on my
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 1   hands until the council meeting on April 19th.  You know,

 2   that's a full month away from today, and we can make good

 3   use of that time even if it doesn't include a filing

 4   deadline.  It can involve a lot of other procedural

 5   progress to get to the first filing round.  So, again,

 6   that's what I meant there.

 7       I do see that my notes reflect that these other

 8   filing deadlines of being ready as soon -- April 3rd or

 9   April 10th were not offered by anybody that I recall

10   other than Ms. Chase as to when the Applicant might be

11   ready to file.  You are correct to bring that up and make

12   a clarification.  Thank you.

13                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

14                     JUDGE TOREM:  With those comments, Ms.

15   Voelckers, did you have anything else to add?

16                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

17   I would add one other thing, which is that I did listen

18   to the discussion during the EFSEC meeting last week, and

19   I also heard that the staff team is working really hard

20   on the SEPA side and did not have a schedule to commit to

21   on issuance of the SEIS, and so it seemed like that would

22   also be something that we would want to avoid setting,

23   arbitrarily limiting deadlines when the SEIS might also

24   not be ready as early as the Applicant would like it.  So

25   that's my only other comment in terms of timelines is
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 1   that I don't know that we would need to have the

 2   adjudication be done any earlier than -- given reasonable

 3   time to review, but if the SEIS is going to be months

 4   away as well, I would hate to have all of us working

 5   under really hard deadlines on the adjudication side that

 6   are months ahead of an SEIS.

 7                     JUDGE TOREM:  And that's a fine point

 8   to make.  I have no reason to believe that the staff

 9   would need an exorbitant amount of time to respond.  I

10   know there's a lot of comments on the draft EIS, but

11   unless there's going to be requests from staff based on

12   comments for a supplemental environmental review, I

13   haven't been given any such indication yet, but that may

14   be premature.  I will bring that up with the staff that

15   is handling the parallel SEPA evaluation that will be

16   going alongside but separate from the adjudication and

17   make sure that that's a valid concern.  If they think

18   that they can't get things done within the times frames

19   that are currently set or might be approved for September

20   30th, I will count on Ms. Lune (phonetic) and the rest of

21   the SEPA staff to make sure the adjudication team is

22   aware so the right hand and the left hand of the EFSEC

23   Council and staff know what's going on here.  Thank you,

24   Ms. Voelckers.

25                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.
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 1   Nothing else at this time.

 2                     JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  Mr.

 3   Aramburu?

 4                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Richard Aramburu for

 5   Tri-Cities CARES.  A couple of issues.  Number one, I

 6   appreciate that the EFSEC Council does meet once a month,

 7   but with no objections to the Applicant's request, I

 8   don't know why we necessarily need to wait for that

 9   period of time.  Isn't there some process available so

10   that we can have a more rapid decision about that?  That

11   would be the request that's coming from me so we know

12   where we are.

13                     JUDGE TOREM:  Let me address that

14   right away, Mr. Aramburu, and just say it's possible that

15   there would be a special meeting, but Mr. Thompson would

16   have to work with the Chair and indicate whether or not

17   we can waive notice periods or give special notice

18   periods, so there are still laws to comply with to get

19   things done ahead of April 19th and clarify the dates for

20   us.  I'm sure Mr. Thompson hearing that concern, if he

21   hasn't already, had that motion as making notes and will

22   be reaching out to the Chair shortly after we hang up

23   today.  So that's in the cards as well if it can be

24   accelerated.  And if there truly is no objection, the

25   Applicant is just getting that filed today.  We do need
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 1   to give all the other parties an opportunity to respond

 2   and see.  I don't want to assume that anybody on the line

 3   here today that's a party to this matter won't have a

 4   concern or objection.  There may be one that we haven't

 5   thought about or hasn't been voiced yet.

 6       All right.  So on to the other pieces of prefiled

 7   testimony, Mr. Aramburu.

 8                     MR. ARAMBURU:  I agree with some of

 9   the other parties that the agenda for prefiled testimony

10   is aggressive.  I think we should be looking at dates for

11   testimony in -- testimony submission, in perhaps mid to

12   late June.

13       One of the other concerns that we have had has to do

14   with the preparation of the final environmental impact

15   statement.  We believe that the final impact statement

16   should be available during the time the testimony is

17   prepared, not after.  So we would like to see if a

18   schedule can be worked out to have that testimony -- or

19   have that document ready at the time we go into our

20   filing of testimony.  That would be another request.

21       Regarding the timing, and I appreciate, Judge Torem,

22   us being active during this interim time, additional time

23   we may have.  I do think there are some motions that

24   perhaps will be filed.  I also think there may be some

25   discovery that some of the parties would like.  I think
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 1   some of that can take place in the next month or so.  It

 2   might be having some productive time available to us at

 3   that point.

 4       Regarding the testimony, I think I am an advocate of

 5   all of the parties filing at the same time and responses

 6   and replies for -- there may be some issues that will

 7   come up that a party will be filing on the subject matter

 8   and that the Applicant is not filing on at all.  So from

 9   that standpoint, getting the direct testimony in at one

10   time, and having responses and replies, I think, is the

11   preferable way to proceed.  So those are my thoughts.

12   The 28/21 day agenda or schedule for submission of

13   testimony is probably fine.  So those are my thoughts.

14   Thank you.

15                     JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Mr. Aramburu.

16   And I know you have been through this before, so it's not

17   that I'm giving it any additional weight, but I know you

18   are commenting from a position of been there and done

19   that, and I appreciate that the insight is there.

20       I think I do agree with all the parties' concerns

21   about being ready to file next month.  The applicant has

22   said that, and may have a better idea of a list of

23   witnesses, but I do hope everybody on the line is getting

24   ready and identifying witnesses now.  And as Mr. Aramburu

25   stated, starting to do the drafting of any motions you
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 1   think might be necessary on a sooner rather than later

 2   basis, and, frankly, any informal discovery that can be

 3   done until we establish the actual rules that will apply

 4   beyond those that are in the law and the Administrative

 5   Procedures Act of RCW 34.05, and those that are already

 6   adopted for EFSEC practice I think within WAC 463.  I

 7   don't have the exact citation off the top of my head.

 8   It's been a few years.  Look at those rules.  That's what

 9   applies now if you are going to ask for formal discovery

10   until we adopt specific procedures for this adjudication,

11   that WAC will govern and hopefully all parties will

12   adhere to those deadlines that are set in the WAC until

13   we can figure out any special accommodations for this

14   Horse Heaven adjudication.

15       I wish I could tell you we could resolve everything

16   about the prefiled testimony today under Item No. 4, but

17   I don't think we should or will given the breathing room

18   that we are being offered by the Applicant's extension

19   request that's announced to all of us today.

20       I want to skip over the disputed issues list until

21   we have our first break because I don't think it does us

22   any favors to start on that and then have to stop for a

23   ten minute comfort and court reporter rest break.

24       I think if we go for another 15 or 20 minutes and

25   talk a little bit more about discovery, and maybe even
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 1   the schedule for our next prehearing conference that that

 2   would be productive use of our time in the next 15 to 20

 3   minutes.

 4       So let's turn to Item No. 6, the discovery.  As I

 5   have already covered, there's informal discovery

 6   available under the Administrative Procedures Act.  And I

 7   have listed three different adjudications from past

 8   experience.  The Kittitas Valley wind power project,

 9   which I presided over.  The Whispering Ridge project that

10   I believe that Bob Wallace was the ALJ on that one.  And

11   then Cassandra Noble, I believe, presided over the Tesoro

12   Vancouver Energy project.  Each of us probably issued

13   different prehearing conference orders with slightly

14   different discovery practices.

15       I wish I could tell you that I had time to read all

16   three of those orders before today's proceeding, but I

17   have not.  I just know notionally how it went the last

18   time I had been in complex adjudication before this

19   Council, as well as other proceedings I have been

20   involved in.

21       I wanted to hear from all five parties on what your

22   thoughts are for any special needs for discovery that

23   aren't addressed in one of those three orders, or if

24   there's something in one of those three orders and you

25   have had a chance to look at it and I haven't that you
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 1   want to call my attention to, or just out of the WAC 463

 2   provision if there's any need to tailor those for this

 3   adjudication.  So, Ms. Chase, I am going to come back to

 4   you to start us off.

 5                     MS. CHASE:  Sure.  Thank you, Judge

 6   Torem.  I think Applicant's view is that informal -- or

 7   discovery is likely not particularly necessary here, but

 8   we understand that the current WAC and other provisions

 9   apply to operate informal discovery, and we will

10   cooperate as contemplated by those items.  I think our

11   view is that the procedure in the Kittitas Valley, and

12   I'm looking at the order on discovery procedures,

13   prehearing order number eight that you provided the

14   parties, or referred the parties to in connection with

15   your -- your agenda last week.  I think that makes sense

16   to encourage the parties to cooperate informally if we

17   are going to have informal discovery, and you serve as

18   the presiding officer if there are formal discovery

19   issues that need to be resolved.

20       And I think the other note that we would make is

21   that, in our view, the use of the prefiled testimony

22   largely supplants some of the other items that you might

23   need discovery for, so that's just a comment about how

24   the parties will be working together in advance of the

25   adjudication to narrow the issues and the scope of items
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 1   to be discussed with the prefiled written testimony.

 2                     JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Chase, let me ask, I

 3   think all the parties may have a concern with wanting to

 4   do maybe some formal discovery, such as the discovery

 5   deposition of some witnesses.  I know it's an incredible

 6   expense, and trying to get people together to do those

 7   kind of things, particularly when you have prefiled

 8   testimony that allows for the preparation of any

 9   cross-exam, but I believe there have been some limited

10   discovery depositions authorized in the past, or at least

11   agreed to by parties in these types of matters.  I don't

12   remember them necessarily in the Kittitas Valley case.

13       Has the Applicant had any experience where their

14   witnesses have been subjected to a pre-adjudication

15   discovery deposition on or before the prefiled testimony

16   came in?

17                     MR. MCMAHON:  Your Honor, Tim McMahan,

18   here for the record.  Having been involved in Wild Horse,

19   Kittitas Valley, Whistling Ridge, in none of those cases

20   have pre -- have the parties been allowed or have even

21   requested really, there was some request for discovery in

22   the Kittitas Valley case with depositions, but that did

23   not end up being as necessary or allowed.  You know, if

24   you are asking about experience in prior EFSEC

25   proceedings, I don't recall that ever occurring.  And it
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 1   was considered to be a successful process to engage in

 2   informal discovery.  And as Ms. Chase indicates, the

 3   prefiled testimony largely, I believe, supplants the need

 4   for much of that.

 5       The only use of the depositions that I can recall

 6   was after the Kittitas Valley case was actually

 7   completed, and there were pre -- there were depositions

 8   taken prior to submittal of the record to the Washington

 9   State Supreme Court.  And those depositions had a lot to

10   do with accusations of ex parte contact and inappropriate

11   behaviors which were pretty soundly rejected by the

12   Washington State Supreme Court.

13       Again, I have not participated in actual cases where

14   depositions were taken in lieu of informal discovery.

15                     JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, did you

16   participate in the Whispering Ridge matter?

17                     MR. MCMAHAN:  I did.

18                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I had a notion

19   from staff or other things that I had heard about that

20   case that maybe there had been formal discovery and

21   depositions taken, but it's been many years ago so maybe

22   memories are a little foggy.

23                     MR. MCMAHAN:  Well, I don't recall

24   that happening with Whispering Ridge.

25                     JUDGE TOREM:  I was referring to --
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 1   it's my recollection that I wasn't directly involved so

 2   who knows.  I don't know for sure what happened, but

 3   there are other parties, and Mr. Aramburu I will come to

 4   you shortly, but I don't want you to -- I don't mean to

 5   encourage that parties should be seeking this kind of

 6   discovery simply because it will eat up more time and

 7   cause more expense.  And I do believe this practice of

 8   having everybody put their cards on their table up front

 9   avoids the need to prefile testimony for most, if not

10   all, depositions of parties until you at least read what

11   they are going to be saying, if you think that there's

12   more that you need to get, then we can talk about a

13   motion for additional inquiry or essentially voir dire a

14   witness in an efficient manner that allows for the

15   information for all parties to prepare for the

16   adjudication.

17       Mr. Aramburu, you were going to maybe enlighten us

18   on your experience?

19                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Yes.  Mr. McMahan and I

20   were involved in the Whispering Ridge case.  There were

21   some discovery issues there but there were not

22   depositions that were taken in that case.  I will just

23   wait until I'm called on for other issues.

24                     JUDGE TOREM:  I will tell you what, I

25   will call on you now since you are already thinking about
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 1   it.  Go ahead, Mr. Aramburu.

 2                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Well, I don't want to

 3   cut in line here.  So for the issue of discovery, again,

 4   I think opportunity for depositions should be given, but

 5   I think they are of limited use here.  More often we have

 6   witnesses that are preparing and need information from

 7   the Applicant or perhaps from another party.  And there

 8   would be requests for documents, data requests, those

 9   kinds of things.  That's what's more likely here as our

10   witnesses prepare.  So on the subject of discovery I

11   think we should have an opportunity for that kind of

12   discovery formal or informal.  And perhaps we start with

13   informal discovery where you make documents available et

14   cetera, et cetera, and then if we ran into problems we

15   can go into more detail procedures connected with

16   discovery, including motions.  So that's my thought on

17   that.

18                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And I

19   appreciate, Mr. Aramburu, the insights there because I

20   know in my day job as Board of Industrial Insurance

21   Appeals industrial appeals judge, if that's not a

22   mouthful, I typically rely on perpetuation depositions

23   for the expert testimony, and that is the testimony that

24   comes in.  So sometimes counsel perform discovery

25   depositions before they are ready to cross-examine a
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 1   witness they haven't seen before, but I -- in this

 2   context, I don't think so that same practice adds the

 3   value that it does in the Labor & Industries practice.

 4       So I would -- at risk of wondering what the other

 5   parties are going to say, concur with what you have

 6   indicated so far.  I think the parties can get most of it

 7   done, especially on a more relaxed schedule we are

 8   anticipating informally.

 9       Let me turn to Ms. Reyneveld and see if in your

10   experience, Ms. Reyneveld, if you are anticipating any

11   formal discovery or any special needs?

12                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Counsel for the

13   Environment agrees with the informal discovery procedures

14   under the APA and proceeding with more formal discovery

15   only if necessary.

16       I also practiced before the Board of Industrial

17   Insurance Appeals for about nine years representing L&I

18   so I did take many discovery depositions in that context,

19   but I don't anticipate taking pre-adjudication discovery

20   depositions in this context just because of the prefiled

21   testimony requirement and the nature of prefiled

22   testimony.  And the Counsel for the Environment doesn't

23   anticipate any special discovery needs or preferences for

24   this adjudication at this time.

25                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,
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 1   Ms. Reyneveld.

 2       Mr. Harper, for the County?

 3                     MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton

 4   County.  Your Honor, I think it seems like kind of a

 5   consensus is emerging, and I am not going to dissent.  We

 6   don't see a great likelihood of any special needs for

 7   discovery, any special preferences for discovery.  I

 8   can't foreclose the possibility of some pre-adjudication

 9   deposition, but it doesn't seem like that's going to be

10   the direction that the County goes.  So, Your Honor, I

11   think we are pretty comfortable with relying on good

12   faith and APA-based discovery concepts.  I will just

13   leave it at that unless you have any questions, Judge.

14                     JUDGE TOREM:  I don't.  Let me hear

15   from Ms. Voelckers and then we will kind of -- I will

16   give you my thoughts on how we might handle any disputes

17   in discovery, which I will say up front judges hate.  Ms.

18   Voelckers?

19                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

20   I would like to share a few thoughts and just acknowledge

21   that a few of the terms being used are not ones I'm as

22   familiar with, so I might be imprecise in my language

23   here in terms of formal or informal.  We agree with the

24   statement that was made earlier that there's likely not a

25   need to depose witnesses before they file their written
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 1   testimony, but we would like to reserve the right to file

 2   pre-adjudication depositions of witnesses that have

 3   submitted testimony and we would like to see that

 4   testimony before we make that decision.  There might be

 5   an instance where we would be asking to depose a witness

 6   after they have filed their direct testimony.

 7       The other areas of discovery we are interested in

 8   are data requests, as Mr. Aramburu mentioned, more so

 9   than depositions, but we do think we might need to depose

10   one or two third party witnesses, given the lack of a

11   final EIS to have as part of the record.  So likely to be

12   technical staff on impacts of the project.  The technical

13   staff that carry knowledge that's important to this case,

14   such as WDFW.

15                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So if I

16   understand you correctly, the Yakama Tribe would concur

17   that informal discovery will likely work for most things,

18   but once you see the first round of prefiled testimony

19   you might want to file a data request before you file

20   your responsive testimony to flesh something out; is that

21   an understanding, first?

22                     MS. VOELCKERS:  I think, Your Honor,

23   need to, I think, clarify my statement further.  So the

24   two types of discovery we anticipate would be data

25   requests or some limited number of depositions.  And as
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 1   for depositions of witnesses of other parties, we would

 2   not request those until their direct, you know,

 3   prewritten, direct written testimony has been submitted.

 4   In the meantime, though, we would potentially be

 5   requesting data in depositions of third parties,

 6   specifically technical staff with expertise on the impact

 7   of the project.

 8                     JUDGE TOREM:  I wanted to ask you

 9   about that second point separately.  When you say third

10   parties that may imply to me, at least, that we are not

11   talking about a witness being sponsored or called by any

12   of the other four parties that might have interests

13   different from or adverse to the Tribe.  You mentioned

14   the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, WDFW, as

15   a potential party that you might want to seek a

16   deposition from.  And I would have to, I think, tell you

17   I may not have the jurisdiction to, you know, force them

18   to testify in this matter, or, you know, be in a position

19   to exclude testimony as a penalty for failing to respond

20   to a request or a deposition discovery request.

21       So I'm also trying to think from the perspective of

22   who is really at the table here to present evidence, and

23   what do you really need for the adjudication issues, and

24   then what are other issues that the Tribe may think need

25   to be covered through either its independent consultation
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 1   rights or through the SEPA process, which are separate

 2   and apart from what we are doing here in the

 3   adjudication.  So I don't say that to prejudge.  It's not

 4   a no by any means, but it's tell me more if and when that

 5   comes up so that I can decide is it something within the

 6   gambit of an administrative law judge for EFSEC with an

 7   adjudication, or is that a decision that I have to defer

 8   and essentially say no, I don't have the power to grant

 9   what you are questioning, and figure out what other

10   alternate relief would allow the Tribe to feel that they

11   have had their day in court, not only in the

12   adjudication, but before the Council makes its ultimate

13   recommendation, which includes some other moving parts

14   that are not part of the adjudication.  Fair enough?

15                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes.  Thank you, Your

16   Honor.

17                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So when we

18   get to that portion of any more formal discovery, and,

19   again, when I use that term, Ms. Voelckers, I'm thinking

20   in my mind about things that would happen under the Civil

21   Rules, such as formal interrogatories, requests for

22   production, requests for admission, or the actual

23   discovery depositions we have been talking about this

24   morning, or this afternoon.  I forgot, it's 2:30.

25       All right.  So, Counsel, it sounds like a discovery
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 1   process can be adapted from what I have done previously

 2   in the Kittitas Valley process.  I remember there were

 3   motion practice in that case that I had to discover

 4   some -- or make some decisions.  They were motions to

 5   strike testimony.  There were motions to disqualify

 6   council members.  There were a variety of things that

 7   happened.  It wasn't quite everything under the sun, but

 8   it was an expansive and thorough, you know, weighing of

 9   issue before we even go to the adjudication.  So we will

10   talk a little bit more about the timelines at another

11   prehearing conference, I think, once -- and maybe like

12   Mr. Aramburu said, maybe we will have a decision or at

13   least a pending council meeting before April 19th to

14   specially decide once we all see the extension request

15   filed by the Applicant today.

16       Before we take our break, I want to ask everybody to

17   look at their calendar and see if next week a shorter

18   period of time on Monday afternoon might be available to

19   meet again and wrap up these issues and maybe by then I

20   will have had a moment to come back with new timelines

21   when the Council might be available and have a chance to

22   look at your notices of unavailability, and, frankly, to

23   see how many of those requests can be accommodated and

24   fit into the notional new schedule of getting a

25   recommendation out by September 30th.  My schedule next
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 1   Monday doesn't really allow any time before the noon

 2   hour, and I have a 1:30 hearing that would have had me in

 3   Moses Lake but the parties have agreed to do it by Zoom.

 4   I doubt very much it's going to take more than 60 minutes

 5   to take one witness' testimony, so I think I could

 6   available at 2:30 or 2:45 to have a much shorter

 7   prehearing conference and nail down dates.

 8       I hope that's not too optimistic, but if we nailed a

 9   schedule down next Monday afternoon for the hearing, with

10   the contingency of knowing that the Council is going to

11   meet to approve this extension request, if we go on that

12   assumption, who is available Monday afternoon the 27th of

13   March at 2:45?  Would the Applicant be available?

14                     MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, yes,

15   Applicant would be available.

16                     JUDGE TOREM:  And let me put a bumper

17   on the end time of that of 4:30, so that when you are

18   saying yes you would be available, you know, I'm hoping

19   that we will be done by four, but if I go to 4:30 is that

20   still a yes, Ms. Chase?

21                     MS. CHASE:  It is a still a yes for

22   Applicant.  Thank you.

23                     JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, would

24   your schedule accommodate that?

25                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, my schedule would
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 1   accommodate that.  Thank you, Judge.

 2                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.

 3   Aramburu?

 4                     MR. ARAMBURU:  That would -- 2:30 to

 5   4:00, that would work with my schedule.  Thank you.

 6                     JUDGE TOREM:  Specifically I'm looking

 7   at 2:45 to 4:30.

 8                     MR. ARAMBURU:  2:45 to 4:30, I will be

 9   available.

10                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,

11   sir.  Ms. Voelckers?

12                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor, that

13   time works for me.

14                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And, Mr.

15   Harper?

16                     MR. HARPER:  Unfortunately, Your

17   Honor, I have a problem.  Your Honor, that's the date

18   that we secured many months ago for a significant

19   mediation involving a number of attorneys.  If we could

20   revisit this perhaps after the break I may be able to

21   make some accommodations so that we could handle that on

22   the 27th.

23                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  What I will

24   offer you since there's a potential problem, if all the

25   parties would take a look at either the morning hours of
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 1   the next day, the 28th, the hearing that I have in the

 2   Tri-Cities is scheduled to go from ten a.m. until three

 3   p.m., so I have no objections to my old military hours as

 4   early as 7:30, but I think the court reporter contract is

 5   probably no earlier than eight.  We could do things from

 6   eight to ten or somewhere in that range, or possibly I

 7   would delay my return travel and we could do this between

 8   three and five on the 28th.

 9       My schedule after that gets a little more difficult,

10   but I think I have time also on the 30th between ten a.m.

11   and one p.m. that I could chew on two hours of time in.

12   Wednesday is out, and I have got another couple of things

13   cooking on the 31st.  Maybe we could do it on the morning

14   of the 31st as well.  So if other parties could check

15   their calendars again for a morning block of time, a

16   couple of hours in the afternoon on March 28th, Thursday

17   midday from ten to one on the 30th, and maybe eight to

18   10:30'ish on the 31st.  I will ask staff for our normal

19   check-in on this to maybe move it to 10:30 to accommodate

20   a prehearing conference if that's what we need to do.

21       Counsel, it's now 2:40.  I want to take break until

22   2:50 and give the court reporter a rest.  We will come

23   back at 2:50 and pick up with our discussion of the

24   disputed issues.  I know some emails came in earlier

25   today from several parties.  I think Ms. Voelckers and
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 1   and I think Counsel for the Environment submitted their

 2   disputed issues this morning that I saw come in, so if

 3   you haven't received those maybe reach out to other

 4   counsel by email or pick up the phone while we are on

 5   break, but I think it went out to everybody.

 6       All right.  Will the court reporter show us off the

 7   record.

 8                          (Recess from 2:39 p.m.

 9                            to 2:50 p.m.)

10

11                     JUDGE TOREM:  I will do a quick roll

12   call.  Is Ms. Chase here for the Applicant?

13                     MS. CHASE:  Yes, Judge, this is Ms.

14   Chase.

15                     JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  Mr. Harper

16   for the County?

17                     MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton

18   County present.

19                     JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld?

20                     MS. REYNEVELD:  I am present.  Thank

21   you, Your Honor.

22                     JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers for the

23   Tribe?

24                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Shona Voelckers

25   present on behalf of Yakama Nation.
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 1                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And Mr.

 2   Aramburu for TCC?

 3                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Present on behalf of

 4   Tri-Cities CARES.

 5                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

 6   Mr. Harper, what did you find out about that schedule on

 7   Monday the 27th?  Do you think that will that work or do

 8   we need to look at an alternate date that week?

 9                     MR. HARPER:  We can make it work, Your

10   Honor.

11                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So Monday.  I

12   appreciate the accommodation.  It sounded like it might

13   have been a big lift, but I'm glad you got it done.

14   Let's count on then having a notice issued and I will

15   work with staff but tell you now on the record, at 2:45

16   p.m. we will get together next Monday and we will hope to

17   be done by four but will schedule it to end no later than

18   4:30 on March 27th.  And by then I hope to have feedback

19   from the Chair on potential venue concerns and, again,

20   have sorted out all of the unavailability orders as well.

21       Let's turn to the disputed issues list.  And, Ms.

22   Chase, did the Applicant submit anything since the last

23   prehearing conference?

24                     MS. CHASE:  No, Judge Torem, Applicant

25   has not submitted a disputed issues lists or anything on
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 1   this point since the last prehearing conference.  I think

 2   Applicant's view is that the -- we have submitted the

 3   application or prepared to defend the application and so

 4   the specific issues in terms of the concerns about the

 5   applications are for the other parties to identify.  And

 6   just on that point that you just wrapped up, I wonder if

 7   we have a prehearing conference on the 27th if it makes

 8   sense for folks to submit their venue items on a shorter

 9   timeline so that you can receive and consider those

10   before the prehearing conference?

11                     JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  That is a

12   good point.  So let's circle back to that first.  How

13   soon do you think the Applicant would be ready to submit

14   their letter.

15                     MS. CHASE:  We can submit it by

16   Wednesday of this week or any other time this week that

17   works for the other parties.

18                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And if we are

19   going to have feedback on that matter next Monday, and I

20   would hope to so we can decide maybe all of the

21   scheduling issues, that might be overly optimistic.  If

22   we give folks to the close of business today when we are

23   done, or close to, until say Thursday morning, that would

24   give two full days, tomorrow and Wednesday.  Does any

25   party have an objection to me having you turn in your
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 1   venue discussion that we talked about earlier, that

 2   letter by the morning of say 9:30 in the morning on

 3   Thursday the 23rd of this month?  It sounds like the

 4   Applicant is okay with that.

 5       Would the County be okay with that, Mr. Harper?

 6                     MR. HARPER:  Yes.  Ken Harper for the

 7   County.

 8                     JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers for the

 9   Tribe, would that be sufficient time to get your venue

10   request, the concerns stated in a letter to me and to the

11   Chair?

12                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

13   We can do that by Thursday morning.

14                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Ms. Reyneveld,

15   does that work for you?

16                     MS. REYNEVELD:  That will work for me.

17   Thank you, Judge.

18                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.

19   Aramburu, will that work for you as well?

20                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Fine with us.

21                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So we are

22   accelerating that deadline to March 23rd, that's Thursday

23   at 9:30 a.m.  Thank you all for that.

24       On to the other point Ms. Chase raised.  I do

25   appreciate the approach of, hey, we filed the application
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 1   so we already know what issues we think are necessary for

 2   the Council to consider.  I think that is just fine.  I

 3   just wanted to make sure I hadn't missed any

 4   correspondence from the Applicant in that regard, so

 5   thank you for clarifying that's the approach the

 6   Applicant is taking.

 7       Let me turn to the County then and see, Mr. Harper,

 8   you had filed a disputed issues list last week and some

 9   of that in conjunction with other parties.  Was there any

10   new filing since then that the County submitted?

11                     MR. HARPER:  There has not been a new

12   filing to date.

13                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  All right.  Thank

14   you.

15       Ms. Reyneveld, let me come to you because your email

16   came in mid-morning today if I'm correct in the timing.

17                     MS. REYNEVELD:  It came in just right

18   prior to this meeting, or this prehearing conference,

19   Judge.

20                     JUDGE TOREM:  And I'm pulling that up.

21   I see it at 12:28 p.m. so you are operating on the same

22   just in time production as I am on some of these things.

23   I appreciate that very much.  And hopefully with time I

24   will get caught up where I'm several days in advance and

25   thinking ahead of all of you.
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 1       All right.  I am looking at Counsel for the

 2   Environment's preliminary list of disputed issues, and as

 3   I would expect they are mainly focused on environmental

 4   impact issues.  All right.  I am going to ask the

 5   Applicant to respond if they have had a chance first to

 6   review these five enumerated issues, and if there's any

 7   objection or concern with how Counsel for the Environment

 8   has phrased this list of disputed issues with the limited

 9   additional guidance I was able to provide last week?

10                     MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase for the

11   Applicant, and we have had an opportunity to review these

12   issues, including -- because Counsel for the Environment

13   shared these with us, and I think in essentially the same

14   form last week, which we appreciated, and so we don't

15   have any objections or concerns with these issues.

16                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Did any of

17   the other parties have any concerns they wanted to speak

18   to on the five issues that Counsel for the Environment

19   listed?  I will ask the County first.

20                     MR. HARPER:  No, Ken Harber for the

21   County.  Thank you.

22                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.

23   Voelckers, from the tribal perspective?

24                     MS. VOELCKERS:  No.  Thank you, Your

25   Honor.
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 1                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Mr. Aramburu?

 2                     MR. ARAMBURU:  No objections.

 3                     JUDGE TOREM:  Well, Ms. Reyneveld, you

 4   have got the first unanimous grouping on something of

 5   substance from this group so that may bode well for how

 6   the other ones look.  Thank you.  I will close that email

 7   and see if I can find Ms. Voelckers' email.

 8       Your email came in this morning, I think, a couple

 9   hours ahead of Counsel for the Environment, but I have

10   got to find it.  It's  10:14 a.m. on my receipt.  Let me

11   open that up and do the same process here to review what

12   you have submitted.

13       You have some procedural issues, some environmental

14   impact issues, and then some location specific issues.

15   Let me start with the procedural issues, and the first

16   one I see is looking at a SEPA question, and the second

17   is a timing issue under 80.50.100.  My thought initially

18   on those is that they are not adjudicative issues that

19   we'll pull out of the application and the specific items

20   there.  Would you be willing to file a motion regarding

21   these items?  And, you know, I spoke on the record of

22   this counsel prehearing conference like ten days ago

23   about the position of the SEPA questions, so I think my

24   statement should be challenged in a formal motion as to

25   whether or not we are going to take up SEPA issues during
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 1   the adjudication.

 2       Do you have any concern about styling those

 3   procedural issues into a motion that you would file at

 4   some point that we agree on the timing?

 5                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 6   I don't.  I do think that these should be handled through

 7   motions practice.  I know that during the last prehearing

 8   conference I asked for a briefing schedule to that point,

 9   given the different discussions we spent on timing I

10   think it makes sense that the overall schedule worked

11   out.  There was a comment made earlier by Mr. Aramburu

12   that these procedural type issues could be handled

13   through motions practice on the earlier rather than the

14   later end of the schedule.

15                     JUDGE TOREM:  I would concur because

16   some of these look like they are jurisdictional.  I don't

17   know that they would be dispositive motions, but they are

18   things that parties want to know what the ruling is right

19   away so that if they are ruled out of the adjudication

20   you can preserve those issues for appeal and maybe save

21   yourself finding a witness on those matters that I might

22   rule against you.  So, again, I don't want to prejudge

23   any of these issues, but we are creatures of statutes in

24   this administrative law under the APA, and I will make

25   sure that for you, and I would imagine that Mr. Aramburu
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 1   might join you, and perhaps Mr. Harper and the County you

 2   might all consider whether a joint motion on some of

 3   these procedural issues once we establish a schedule with

 4   the most efficient use of pleadings so you are not all

 5   recreating the same wheel.  I can see already from the

 6   limited discussions we have had and the filings that some

 7   of these procedural issues seem to cross interests of at

 8   least three of the parties we have at the table.

 9       Ms. Voelckers, anything else on those two issues?

10                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, nothing

11   else on the specific issues, but if I could, though, I

12   would like to just confirm that we still -- that this is

13   not -- our filing of these preliminary issues this

14   morning does not negate the joint letter that we filed

15   with the County, and so we are still joining with the

16   County in the identification of issues that we identified

17   together, including this procedural issue.  This was our

18   best case effort to try to incorporate the feedback that

19   you provided, and our review of the orders that you

20   directed us to, so this list is, I think, consistent with

21   the letter that we submitted along with the County

22   previously, and this is meant to further clarify the

23   issues themselves.

24                     JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you for that

25   clarification. I fully agree this is a cumulative process
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 1   where all that has been submitted before.  It's going to

 2   be in consideration as I help with other parts of the

 3   staff come up with my proposed issues list that will be

 4   more comprehensive than the samples I sent you, but it

 5   takes all of this into consideration, and maybe by next

 6   Monday afternoon I will have something to present in

 7   advance of that, so that everybody can say okay, this is

 8   what Judge Torem is thinking all of the issues that have

 9   been raised so far might be that are in dispute based on

10   the filing of the application and whatever else might

11   have been informed by the draft EIS; is that fair, Ms.

12   Voelckers?

13                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.

14                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Perfect.  Let's

15   move on to the environmental impact issues that you have.

16   Some of these, I think, are pretty self explanatory, and

17   I'm just going through them honestly for maybe the second

18   time today, but I'm on the record here thinking out loud.

19   When you -- your issue number five about whether the

20   project might negatively impact plants, wildlife, and

21   habitat, and, again, you reference threatened,

22   endangered, and sensitive species, is that an overlap of

23   the Tribe's gathering concern of other plants and other

24   species that are important culturally, or is that more of

25   a general environmental statement?
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 1                     MS. VOELCKERS:  I think, Your Honor,

 2   there is some overlap but that is more of a general

 3   environmental statement.

 4                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Because I see

 5   that in your location specific issues you focus more on

 6   cultural properties and potential impacts.  I

 7   appreciate -- I won't go through all of the other

 8   preliminary issues, but I will ask the Applicant if they

 9   have any questions or concerns about the filing that came

10   in this morning from Ms. Voelckers.  Ms. Chase, any

11   comments or other items I should consider as I review

12   these?

13                     MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.

14   So we agree that the first two procedural issues should

15   be resolved via motion.  I think that that process could

16   occur on an earlier rather than later to agree with

17   everything, I think, that's been discussed there.

18       And since the substantive issue is labeled

19   environmental impact issues and location specific issues,

20   I will acknowledge that I don't think we have had the

21   opportunity to review them in as great a detail as to

22   provide sort of full reactions on these, and I especially

23   am a little -- I didn't understand until this afternoon

24   that they were cumulative of the issues that had been

25   offered in conjunction with the County, and so I want to
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 1   have the opportunity to look at that overlap.  We are

 2   happy to provide some written comments on the issues if

 3   that would be helpful to you this week in advance of the

 4   prehearing conference.  I am not fully prepared to react

 5   to this issue that was submitted this morning.

 6                     JUDGE TOREM:  So unlike me reading

 7   these for the first or second time today you don't have

 8   some special power to divine these things faster?

 9                     MS. CHASE:  Unfortunately, no, Judge

10   Torem.  My apologies for that.

11                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Well, we are

12   all in the same boat here.  And, again, I say it partly

13   in jest because I am working on this just in time

14   schedule as well.  And I want to be transparent about

15   maybe sounding more prepared at times than I might

16   actually be.  Today I totally confess I was on the bench

17   until ten after one and rushed home and was on time to

18   connect with the call, but that's about as much prep as I

19   got today, at least for those email that came in this

20   morning.

21       Let me turn to other parties then and see if they

22   have had any further time to digest these, or maybe they

23   have discussed them with Ms. Voelckers before she filed

24   them.

25       Mr. Harper, did the County have any further
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 1   collaboration with Ms. Voelckers or comments on what she

 2   submitted today?

 3                     MR. HARPER:  Ms. Voelckers and I spoke

 4   after those were submitted, but what she filed on behalf

 5   of the Yakama Nation today is not -- it doesn't need to

 6   be collaborated on, so I really -- it really doesn't

 7   speak for the County's position from our earlier issue

 8   statement.

 9                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Any thoughts from

10   the County on the short amount of time you have had to

11   review and discuss them with Ms. Voelckers.

12                     MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, they

13   generally strike me as appropriate issue statements.  I

14   am going to join the chorus, though, and I think some

15   early motion practice would be helpful.  And really I'm

16   just sort of interested in hearing more collective

17   thoughts on how issues are being defined.

18       It may be possible for the County to follow up after

19   today with the revised set of issues of our own.  I think

20   that was something that the court was seeking, but I

21   wasn't sure exactly how or when that would be required.

22   And I think right now from the County's point of view, we

23   are just trying to get that level of sort of resolution

24   dialed in so it's most helpful.

25                     JUDGE TOREM:  Yep, I'm definitely
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 1   hearing what the chorus is saying, and we have a little

 2   bit more breathing room to establish and get that done.

 3       All right.  Let me ask then, Ms. Reyneveld, any

 4   thoughts on the tribal issues that were submitted today,

 5   or comments that would guide me between now and our next

 6   prehearing conference?

 7                     MS. REYNEVELD:  I haven't had

 8   sufficient time to review these to be able to provide any

 9   sort of comprehensive thoughts or analysis, but from an

10   initial reading they look okay, but I would like some

11   additional time to review them.

12                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And we are

13   all going to have some additional time to flesh out the

14   disputed issues.

15       Mr. Aramburu, any thoughts on the list that came in

16   this morning from Ms. Voelckers?

17                     MR. ARAMBURU:  I certainly have no

18   objections to it.  Of course we have similar issues that

19   we have raised.  We are in agreement with the procedural

20   issues certainly, and we raised issues of wildlife and

21   other things as well.  I think it does kind of raise the

22   question of what we are going to do with this issues

23   list.  Are we going to have a list that reflects -- is

24   there some consolidation that you have in mind, Judge

25   Torem?  Are we going to list the issues that have been
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 1   brought up, sort of what happened, I guess, in Tesoro.  I

 2   don't have any objection, but I kind of am wondering what

 3   our exercise is here as we go through this.

 4                     JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, it's a

 5   good question.  I am trying to decide which rocks I want

 6   counsel to bring me, but, frankly, what I want to do is,

 7   as you hinted, something that might have occurred in

 8   previous adjudications where the judge sits down with

 9   staff and tries to figure out where there might be

10   overlap, trying to figure out where there might be some

11   opportunity for simplification, and creating a way for

12   parties that have the same issue to maybe decide who

13   amongst them is taking the lead so that only one witness

14   is called jointly.

15       It may be that there's a need for somebody that --

16   let's take this Ferruginous hawk issue.  Maybe there are

17   competing experts, Tri-Cities CARES, the Yakama Nation,

18   and Counsel for the Environment all see that Ferruginous

19   hawk issue slightly different and we really need three

20   witnesses.  I may come back and say on that issue, for

21   instance, I see that all three parties are raising this.

22   It's been covered in the application.  We will find out

23   who the Applicant's witness is, and not to say that

24   there's not a fourth party that might also join in that,

25   but that's what I'm looking at doing, Mr. Aramburu, is
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 1   trying to take these issues lists that have come in for

 2   the first prehearing conference, and those in the

 3   interval between March 10th and today, and see if I can

 4   comb through this and come up with hey, this is what I

 5   have heard so far, and put them into one comprehensive

 6   list and send it back to the parties.  And it may be a

 7   little ambitious to get it by next Monday afternoon, but

 8   I do have some holes in the schedule this week that might

 9   allow it.  If I can get those to you by close of the

10   week's business on Friday then you have will at least

11   Monday morning to look at that comprehensive list and we

12   will have further discussion about it, and you can tell

13   me if I'm missing anything.  You can tell me which issues

14   people might be aligned with to collaborate on a single

15   witness as opposed to two and three witnesses on a

16   similar topic.

17       Again, I don't want to portend I'm going to limit

18   anybody if their particular expert and we can agree you

19   want to hire the same one, or you think that two or three

20   experts on a topic will add to the record and help the

21   Council decide the issue.  I do think what I'm trying to

22   do is head off some motion practice from the Applicant or

23   other parties that might be moving to strike witnesses as

24   cumulative or duplicative.  By doing the work up front,

25   it may save me and all of you some work down the road.
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 1       So I hope, Mr. Aramburu, those random thoughts from

 2   the judge give you a little bit more guidance on what I'm

 3   thinking.

 4                     MR. ARAMBURU:  They do.  Thank you.

 5                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think we

 6   have covered everybody's response to both the Counsel for

 7   the Environment and the Tribe's issues, so Mr. Aramburu

 8   that brings us back to the email you filed, I think, on

 9   Friday afternoon and then filed a supplemental correction

10   to on Saturday morning; is that right?

11                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Yes, spell check caught

12   me.

13                     JUDGE TOREM:  Fair enough.  I am going

14   to see if I can find your motion.  I think I know where I

15   filed that one.  Yes.  And yours was not an attachment

16   but a listing of Roman numeral one through twelve, and

17   then you highlighted that word "amenities" in Roman

18   numeral eight as the change.  And I think your issues

19   again speak, as you have sent in previous filings, and

20   again I have considered these as cumulative to the

21   thought process, so I will look at your initial filings

22   from last week from that time and these as well.

23       Did you want to say anything further about the

24   issues before I go around the horn again to see what

25   other comments there might be?
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 1                     MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  I think my issues

 2   are -- I think Tri-Cities CARES' issues are

 3   self-explanatory.

 4                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let me push

 5   Mr. Aramburu's issues off the Council's table for this

 6   time.

 7       Let's turn then to the Applicant and see if the

 8   Applicant had a chance to review the email that came in

 9   last Friday and the change on amenities on Saturday

10   morning.  Ms. Chase?

11                     MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.

12   This is Ms. Chase.  We have had a chance to look at this

13   on a preliminary basis.  I think -- and this really goes

14   to both the issues submitted by the Yakama Nation and

15   issues to be submitted by the County, as well as this

16   one, we would like the opportunity to provide some more

17   detailed comments before -- for considering these issues.

18   I think our overarching concern is that many of those

19   seem a bit overbroad and don't quite define the issues

20   with enough specificity that the other parties can,

21   including the Applicant, can reasonably respond.  And I

22   will just highlight a couple of those here.  I think

23   issue seven, which raises general concerns about natural

24   assets of our national heritage, for example.  And nine,

25   which talks about the adverse impacts generally that have
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 1   not been mitigated.

 2       So I do think we have some concerns about the

 3   breadth of these issues and those are just a couple of

 4   examples.

 5       I'm happy to answer any questions you might have

 6   about those comments.

 7                     JUDGE TOREM:  The only question I

 8   would like to pose to the Applicant, and if you can

 9   answer it to today, fantastic.  If you can't answer

10   today, I know I will get something further in writing

11   once you and your colleagues have had a little bit more

12   time.

13       But as we talked about with the Tribe's procedural

14   issues number one and two that were labeled that way in

15   Ms. Voelckers' filing, are there any of these 12 issues

16   that you see are procedural in nature and would be

17   subject to pre-adjudication motion practice to either

18   clarify them as jurisdictional or otherwise?

19                     MS. CHASE:  I will think on that.  I

20   don't see them as being procedural in quite the same way

21   that I think the issues that Ms. Voelckers identified in

22   her submittal are procedural, although, I do think some

23   of them are -- so this is one example, we need to place

24   this hearing in the context of the existing land use

25   decision that's already been issued.  And so, for
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 1   example, the Applicant has some concerns about

 2   relitigating, and I will let Mr. McMahan speak in more

 3   detail to this if you have further questions today, but

 4   relitigating what's already been decided in that language

 5   consistency order.  And so when I look at issue number

 6   three I think that's one place where we think maybe some

 7   motion practice potentially could be useful, depending on

 8   how everyone wants to frame issues to make clear what's

 9   been decided in that order already and what remains live

10   for the adjudication.

11       I'm looking at Mr. McMahon in case he as anything to

12   add and he's telling me he does not at this time.

13                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Frankly, I

14   was expecting the Applicant to also raise the questions

15   of whether the scope of the adjudication could possibly

16   take on number one and number two.  I'm not saying that

17   it can't, but as far as meaningful reductions of

18   omissions to justify any adverse impacts caused by the

19   wind farm as proposed and Washington policy legislative

20   priorities, I'm going to need some further explanation,

21   Mr. Aramburu, for TCC's position on whether or not the

22   question of abundant useful power at reasonable cost is

23   something that's before EFSEC or more likely before the

24   Utilities and Transportation Commission.  And as much as

25   these two agencies used to be co-housed, I don't think
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 1   their missions are continuous.  They might be adjacent in

 2   the big scheme of things with Governor Inslee and the

 3   policies he's signed into law during his terms in office,

 4   but I have some concerns.  And if no one else asks for

 5   briefing on those, I want you to, Mr. Aramburu, as I

 6   consider these think that I might be asking you for

 7   briefing to see if they come within the scope of 80.50.

 8   I just want to tee that up if the Applicant wasn't ready

 9   to have those thoughts today, I am, and just a question

10   mark that I want to put over those.

11       All right.  Let me move to the County and see, Mr.

12   Harper, if you have looked at Tri-Cities CARES' issues as

13   submitted by Mr. Aramburu.  Do you have any comments?

14                     MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper, Your Honor.

15   I have looked at those.  No particular item by item

16   comments, Your Honor.  I think one of the things I want

17   to comment on, though, and this is really just to elicit

18   further comment from you, if I understand correctly, what

19   we are doing here is really just kind of engaged in s

20   focusing process?

21       And so if an issue statement is inartfully

22   expressed, or heaven forbid some sub issue is omitted in

23   this process, it's Your Honor's expectation that there

24   will be sort of a -- sort of a funneling down to or

25   sifting down to a final sort of set of issues that will
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 1   then define the case?  Am I channelling you correctly

 2   there, Your Honor?

 3                     JUDGE TOREM:  Yes, your crystal ball

 4   is correct.  The sorting and sifting, I don't have a hat

 5   like the Harry Potter school did but we will do the

 6   sorting.

 7                     MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, with that in

 8   mind, I don't have anything further to add to our

 9   discussion so far on Mr. Aramburu's comments.  I think

10   his issues, I don't have anything else on that.

11                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.

12   Voelckers, let me come next to you on what Tri-Cities

13   CARES submitted.  Do you have any anything you want to

14   add today as I kind of do this sifting and sorting?

15                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

16   I don't have anything else to add specific to this list,

17   but I do appreciate the question as I have been better

18   understanding the goal here of this discussion.  And so I

19   would, as things are sifted and sorted, and I think

20   preserved this in what I filed this morning, but we would

21   anticipate that parties would be able to argue any

22   dispute issue even if they are not the ones initially

23   listing it, so we didn't want to create duplication, and

24   so therefore didn't list certain things that were part of

25   Mr. Aramburu's list, or Ms. Reyneveld's list, but did

0070

 1   preserve the ability to still join in the discussion of

 2   those issues throughout the adjudication.  I just wanted

 3   to raise that as another potential point of clarification

 4   if that causes any concern.

 5                     JUDGE TOREM:  No, not whatsoever.  I

 6   think that's the general spirit, Ms. Voelckers, of where

 7   we are going with this.  There may be a party that

 8   decides they are the lead and other parties are in

 9   support, ask similar issues in cross-examination but

10   essentially adopt the previous questions, if you will,

11   once we get to that stage.  And when it comes to

12   testimony, parties that have issues that are aligned.

13   Like let's say I list a party issue as Mr. Aramburu has

14   listed, does the project have unacceptable impact on

15   wildlife and heir habitat.  Well, once we get more

16   specifics on his issue number five, which habitats and

17   which wildlife, and it may be that a number of parties

18   have similar concerns, maybe all parties, and choose

19   amongst themselves as to who is going to file the issue

20   on this species and which biologist will be called on

21   another, but all parties might have those similar

22   concerns.  I hope that helps.

23       Through the sifting and sorting and narrowing

24   process, it may reduce some of the filing burden from one

25   party and it can be shared amongst two or three.  It
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 1   might be that, you know, two or three parties sponsor the

 2   testimony of one witness because it speaks to all of

 3   their issues, and then I just need to know who the lead

 4   party is that will be sponsoring the witness and go from

 5   there on further examination.  I hope that helps.

 6                     MS. VOELCKERS:  It does.  Thank you,

 7   Your Honor.

 8                     JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, you have

 9   your mic opened right now.  I can hear you in the

10   background.  I am about to turn to Ms. Reyneveld and talk

11   about your issue there.  So if you all can make sure we

12   have the microphone discipline continue.  We've been

13   pretty good today.

14       Ms. Reyneveld, anything else on the issues filed

15   last week by Mr. Aramburu on behalf TCC?

16                     MS. REYNEVELD:  I agree with the

17   Applicant that some of these issues appear to be a little

18   broad, and so it would be great to add a little more

19   specificity to understand what is being at issue

20   specifically.  There's also some redundancy in all of

21   the -- some of these issues, both the Counsel for the

22   Environment and also Yakima Nation and these issues, so

23   I'm assuming that the sifting and sorting process as you

24   say that we are going to be narrowing these down to kind

25   of come up with kind of what -- the question on each of
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 1   these issues.  And then I agree with their comments

 2   regarding some following up on the scope of this

 3   adjudication.  Generally, you know, they look fine.

 4       I'm kind of interested in what are the next steps in

 5   terms of combining of the issues and narrowing the issues

 6   here.

 7                     JUDGE TOREM:  And as we had at the end

 8   of the last prehearing conference when you asked for next

 9   steps, and I'm developing what do you really want, Judge,

10   I think we have covered a lot of progress in the last ten

11   days to get these issue statements and to work on the

12   neutral tone and the more specifics to the topics we are

13   looking at, so we will continue to make some more steps.

14       I want to reiterate what I said last time about

15   these proposed issues having a basis in existing law.

16   And, you know, there is a good faith argument for some of

17   what I'm indicating might not be within the expected

18   scope of the adjudication.  When the motions come in to

19   say, Judge, here's why we think you are wrong, or at

20   least based on comments you've made at prehearing

21   conferences, here's why we think this is a legitimate

22   issue under 80.50 and other applicable laws.  That's the

23   kind of motion practice I expect to see if the issues are

24   essentially flagged for a need for prehearing motions

25   before they are added to the list.
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 1       From here, Ms. Reyneveld, and to all the other

 2   parties, what I hope to do is take everything you talked

 3   about today, the filings that came in by email last

 4   Friday and this morning, and all the previous letters

 5   that came in based on the parties collaboration before

 6   the first prehearing conference, sift and sort, come up

 7   with that comprehensive list and get it back to you.  I

 8   am going to see if I can work independently and then with

 9   EFSEC staff, including Mr. Thomson, to refine that so

10   it's not just my thoughts, that I have the benefit of the

11   AG's office opinion as servicing the Council, and any

12   other staff members that might want to help me to comment

13   on that.  Some of those may be more substantive in citing

14   staff.  We might have some of the SEPA staff involved,

15   and definitely just the good minds of the rest of the

16   ladies and gentlemen that are supporting this

17   adjudication in the background.  They have had some great

18   insight along the way and I want to continue to take

19   advantage of what they are hearing from their

20   perspective.

21       So I think that's really all we can get through on

22   issue number five on my agenda today.  And once again I

23   have some homework to turn around for you.

24       I think on discovery, on item number six, we have

25   covered as much as we needed to before the break, so

0074

 1   let's turn to the last item on today's agenda, prehearing

 2   motion practice and briefing.  We need to have a better

 3   look at the schedule, and I look at all of the other

 4   things about when testimony might due and have a proposal

 5   for you on that next time around.

 6       The deadline for nondispositive motions will

 7   probably be set in the timing after prefiled testimony

 8   comes in, so I don't know how long we will have in

 9   between.  Maybe my questions on this are premature, but I

10   think it's good practice to have all the motions decided

11   with time for parties to file a motion for

12   reconsideration before the first day of the adjudication.

13       That's the thought process that I'm looking at, and,

14   again, a good reason why we maybe settle on the

15   adjudication dates and then roll backwards as far as we

16   need to to get this motion practice in between, testimony

17   filing, and then back to what's realistic for that first

18   round of prefiled testimony.

19       Ms. Chase, any thoughts on that?

20                     MS. CHASE:  Judge Torem, this is Ms.

21   Chase, and I'm thinking -- and I don't think that we

22   have -- I don't have any particular thoughts on that

23   other than I agree with that general comment about the

24   importance of having the issues resolved prior to the

25   actual adjudication, but I think we are flexible on how
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 1   you would like to set those deadlines.  If I think of

 2   anything else I will let I know, but that's my initial

 3   thought on that point.

 4                     JUDGE TOREM:  There are a couple of

 5   issues -- well, before I let you go back, some of the

 6   ones that the Tribe has flagged as those procedural

 7   issues that I don't think we really need to wait for the

 8   filing of testimony.  This may be a simultaneous or even

 9   before the testimony comes in motion practice, and we can

10   talk about a schedule for that next week.  I hope that

11   all the parties will kind of collaborate and say these

12   are some issues that we are prepared to file a motion

13   sooner rather than later that are not dependent on the

14   filing of testimony as proposed for prefiled and

15   responsive or rebuttal testimony, but some of these scope

16   of adjudication issues, I think, could be handled well in

17   advance or simultaneously with the parties filing their

18   actual testimony.  That's what I'm thinking about kind of

19   two different timelines or time periods for motions to

20   come in an be decided.

21       Does the Applicant have any thoughts on two periods

22   of time or should we put it all off until after testimony

23   is filed?

24                     MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.

25   That clarification was helpful to me in terms of what you
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 1   are thinking and asking.  And yes, it's Applicant's

 2   preference that we do set an initial motion deadline.  I

 3   think it would be a motion deadline that would include,

 4   among other things as you noted, motions on the

 5   procedural issues that the Yakima Nation and others have

 6   indicated they may wish to raise, as well as to the

 7   extent that it's not resolved as part of the issues

 8   shaping and sorting process.  Motions on some of the

 9   issues such as TCC issues one and two are issues that may

10   be redundant of the existing land use approval process

11   that's already taken place.

12       So I agree with that.  I agree we can do that sooner

13   rather than later.  I think we can set that deadline

14   pretty soon after the prehearing conference on the 27th,

15   and that that could run in parallel with the parties

16   preparation of the prefiled testimony.  In other words,

17   we could get those motions resolved hopefully either

18   before or while prefiled testimony was still being

19   submitted so that we can keep the process moving.

20                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

21   That's kind of what I'm thinking as well, but I'm open to

22   other parties telling me we should wait even longer on

23   some of those because if they are dependent on the

24   testimony, or at least a finalization of the issues list,

25   which, again, that would hopefully be sooner rather than
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 1   later.

 2       Let me turn to Mr. Harper for Benton County and get

 3   your thoughts on those same questions.

 4                     MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, Ken harper

 5   for the County.  My concern is that I generally think

 6   that it would be helpful to get some motions filed sooner

 7   rather than later.  I think that almost seems like just

 8   should certainly be allowed.  My reservation, Your Honor,

 9   is that it's not necessarily clear to me how we will

10   decide what is a procedural issue that might be subject

11   to some kind of early cutoff or deadline compared to what

12   may not be a procedural issue.  It may be that a

13   procedural issue seems substantive or vice versa only at

14   some later date, so I think my suggestion would be if you

15   could indicate to the parties that motion practice is

16   open and encourage early motions on procedural issues

17   that may help streamline matters, I think that might

18   prove to be more manageable.  I'm just not totally

19   convinced that it's going to be helpful to have a hard

20   cutoff on something that is, you know, sort of perceived

21   to be procedural at this early stage of the adjudication.

22       Other than that, Your Honor, I do support the idea

23   of getting motions filed.  And I think most of the

24   parties that think they have a motion would probably like

25   to file those soon, so maybe that is a sort of self
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 1   correcting thing to allow motions and then not

 2   necessarily worry too much about deadlines over

 3   procedural versus substantive categorizations.

 4                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think

 5   that's fair.  Some issues you kind of -- I think the

 6   Supreme Court has said, you know it when you see it, and

 7   others they say develop over the course of litigation.  I

 8   like the idea of having kind of an open filing for that

 9   the judge says this is the time to file your initial

10   motions, and have another round after testimony.  Again,

11   I don't think I can preclude and just, you know, tell you

12   don't file a motion if you think you have one at any

13   given time now that the adjudication has been commenced.

14       I would appreciate parties following some guidelines

15   if we can agree on windows of time, but I also say if you

16   file something that I think should be for later, I may

17   issues a preliminary ruling just deferring any further

18   action on it until another date certain or milestone in

19   the process.

20       So I like what Mr. Harper is suggesting, and if I

21   see something that I think is just not right for action,

22   I imagine either with responsive pleading or on my own

23   sua sponte if I read it fast enough getting an order out

24   telling parties hold off, don't put your energy into this

25   until later and we will tell you what the response
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 1   deadline is.  That's the kind of thing I'm thinking, Mr.

 2   Harper, based on your comments might be helpful for all

 3   the parties.  Is that fair enough?

 4                     MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper again for the

 5   County.  I think what you just said, if I understand

 6   correctly, is maybe a transition from the sort of

 7   distinguishing procedural from substantive and instead

 8   thinking of initial motions as the parties may perceive

 9   them, and then Your Honor sort of picking up, you know,

10   the motion as filed and then responding to it.  If it's

11   an initial motion that's procedural, then great.  If it's

12   an initial motion that's  substantive and premature, then

13   you can make a ruling accordingly.

14       And if somebody holds back on what is perceived to

15   be an initial motion and they hold it back and hold it

16   back, then I suppose it may not be very well received,

17   but I think that's the kind of idea, you know, initial

18   motion opportunities that the County would like to see,

19   and, frankly, what we would like to take advantage of.

20                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

21   That's helping to guide the discussion quite well.

22       Let me turn to Mr. Aramburu and Tri-Cities CARES and

23   see, Mr. Aramburu, you have been in these motion battles

24   before, what are your thoughts?

25                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Well, I kind of have a
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 1   general thought about how we proceed here.  I looked at

 2   dozens of prehearing orders and many of them are pretty

 3   specific as to deadlines, events, those kinds of things.

 4       Judge Torem, are we in a position now that perhaps

 5   you can put together what would be a prehearing order for

 6   draft consideration by everyone, and include within that

 7   to set some deadlines we know we are going to have to

 8   deal with, and testimony is certainly one.  There may be

 9   objections, motions to strike, that would be another one.

10   There would be opportunities for discovery, motion

11   practice that would be included.  And I think it would be

12   good for -- at least in my opinion, for us to take a look

13   at this comprehensive list of things and start to -- and

14   leaving dates blank.  Again, this is my suggestion, so

15   that we can start to fill in these issues.

16       Now more specifically to the motions, obviously

17   there may be procedural motions that are being discussed.

18   A dispositive motion would be one that would seek to get

19   rid of an issue, if that's something that the parties

20   have in mind.  And then there may be motion practice

21   following the submission of testimony.  And, again, the

22   prehearing order would set times and dates and responses

23   and reconsiderations and all those kinds of things.  I

24   hope I haven't gone on too long, but I think we are

25   probably at the point where we really need to start to
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 1   look at that in a comprehensive order.  And deadlines for

 2   motions are certainly one of those things that we would

 3   need the fill in.  I kind of think that -- I think Ms.

 4   Voelckers and Mr. Harper pointed out that we kind of need

 5   to work backwards on these issues to kind of see where we

 6   are instead of trying to do it forward.  That's my

 7   suggestion.

 8                     JUDGE TOREM:  And I appreciate that,

 9   Mr. Aramburu.  I like the idea of -- and I will have a

10   skeleton order laying out all of these things and I will

11   be filling in the dates I know I can, or a date range,

12   and maybe sets of intervals.  Once I have a chance when

13   we hang up today to review the Applicant's extension

14   request and see what Mr. Thompson and I can work with

15   getting a more expedited review and decision on that from

16   the Council, then we will have a better time frame on

17   picking a date to work backwards from.

18       You are right.  I have some homework to do as I look

19   at the nonavailability and what the rest of the calendar

20   holds through September 30th to start giving you the hard

21   and fast dates or date ranges and then figuring this

22   whole thing out as you suggest.

23       And that would include, it sounds like, a

24   preliminary round of motions followed by a post filing of

25   testimony round of motions, exactly as you suggest for
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 1   motions to strike, or maybe a dispositive motion to

 2   strike an issue altogether.  I do hope that in that time

 3   frame that I'm referring to now the parties will also see

 4   where there might be agreement, and if there are

 5   litigation measures that can be agreed upon for a

 6   particular issue, settlements of certain issues that

 7   might obviate the need for testimony, or disputed

 8   cross-examination of a witness, or maybe just limit it

 9   for things that the Council might still have questions on

10   where the parties have a meeting of all five minds, the

11   Council may still have its own concerns that they want to

12   ask.  Those are some other thoughts that I will add to

13   your skeleton order and overall comprehensive timeframe

14   and chronology.  I hope that's responsive, Mr. Aramburu.

15                     MR. ARAMBURU:  I think so.  There's a

16   question about one of the issues that perhaps we could

17   seek some guidance on.  There is an issue that's been

18   discussed about the need to have the final impact

19   statement available for the adjudication, but that, given

20   some extension in time here, it may be that if the final

21   impact statement is going to be out in advance of us

22   getting in the adjudication that's not really an issue.

23       And I wonder if we might get some guidance from

24   staff as to dates that we might expect to see that

25   document.
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 1                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr. Thompson

 2   and I will talk to the appropriate staff to see if they

 3   have any news that can be shared with everybody, but,

 4   again, without putting any undue pressure on them to

 5   finish early.  And as I said, maybe there's still need

 6   for the legal briefing on that so I can make a formal

 7   ruling on the suggestions and comments I made last

 8   prehearing conference, Mr. Aramburu.  I don't want to

 9   make you do work just for -- if you think that the FEIS

10   would somehow be done sooner and obviate the need for the

11   motion, but if I can give you a date certain if it's

12   available to me, I'm happy to pass it along.

13       All right.  Let me turn to Ms. Voelckers and the

14   Tribe and see on this discussion of the overall schedule

15   and the motions timeframe as we wrap up today's

16   conference, I will come to Ms. Reyneveld last.

17       Ms. Voelckers any thoughts from the Tribe on this

18   matter?

19                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

20   I think I'm most aligned with counsel for Benton County

21   here, although I do support the requests for stretching

22   this out.  And I certainly would reiterate, and I think I

23   already said this, that we think the hearing should be

24   set and we should walk back from that.  I think that the

25   proposal that Mr. Harper made makes a lot of sense.  And
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 1   rather than having a cutoff for motions necessary next

 2   week, as I think I heard from Ms. Chase, but to have a

 3   period of time where those procedural issues can be dealt

 4   with.  Certainly, also finalization issue statements I

 5   think is a really good idea.

 6       The only thing I would add to that is an

 7   understanding of what you just said about the work that

 8   staff is doing, the FEIS or Supplemental EIS, I'm not

 9   sure, but it did sound like the discussion last week was

10   about a proposed schedule, and so if there was any

11   finalization of a schedule for the next EFSEC meeting

12   that would be helpful to inform what we are talking

13   about.  I don't know if that was a moot or not moot

14   procedural issue without knowing more about the schedule,

15   but that would helpfully help inform a deadline for

16   procedural motions.

17                     JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I think I

18   understood all of that.  Let me turn to Ms. Reyneveld and

19   see if she has anything else on the motion practice as it

20   fits into the overall timeframe, and thoughts on any

21   issues that that might be keyed up earlier rather than

22   later.

23                     MS. REYNEVELD:  I don't have much to

24   add.  I agree with what the parties have stated,

25   including Ms. Voelckers and the other parties, we should
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 1   set a hearing and then walk back from there.  And I

 2   agree, Judge, that the procedural issue motion that might

 3   be one percent, and we can absolutely start having that

 4   motion practice as kind of the first part of this

 5   adjudication.

 6                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Those are

 7   all the things I had for today.  The comments that I have

 8   got on item number seven, let's talk about prehearing

 9   opening statements and any supporting briefing, and, of

10   course, posthearing closing arguments and briefing.

11       I just want the parties to anticipate there will be

12   an opportunity to file those in writing.  There's going

13   to be a lot, just a lot of reading for this Council and I

14   don't know that any of our council members have

15   participated in an adjudication before, or in any complex

16   litigation where they have got to be decision makers and

17   digest all the information.

18       So as you think about between now and next week, the

19   witnesses you are going to be calling in the months

20   ahead, and the position you want to put in front of the

21   council members, any opening statements or opening

22   briefing that you present, consider the audience.  I'm

23   not hinting at all that they are unrefined in any way,

24   but just their inexperience at these matters, and a

25   precise opening statement that you want the members to
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 1   read essentially on the morning of the first adjudication

 2   date.  I'm thinking they could read three to five pages

 3   and capture what each of the five parties is going to say

 4   as an overall perspective, and then they will be ready

 5   witness by witness, topic by topic however we schedule

 6   the dates up to maybe as you said two weeks of

 7   adjudication.  I just want you to think about, as you

 8   structure things, what that opening statement filed in

 9   writing might be so that at my insistence they will have

10   read that before they hear the first witness and be keyed

11   up to hear what each party is going to have based on

12   whatever order we present it.

13       Now when the adjudication is all done, that, in my

14   experience, is when you really want to have a chance to

15   file that posthearing brief so that I can digest with Mr.

16   Thompson's help all the legal issues you might be raising

17   and answer questions of the Council accordingly during

18   their deliberations, and that they can hear, based on

19   what the testimony showed or perhaps didn't through

20   cross-examination, have a better view of here is what we

21   heard and here is what the parties really think this is

22   why he should do X or Y with particular impacts for

23   mitigation, or perhaps with the overall project and its

24   recommendation for approval or denial to the governor.

25       So the opening statements I just think you don't
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 1   want to be too much time on your positions, but more

 2   again about what you want them to pay attention to over

 3   the course of the adjudication.  Save that super advocacy

 4   role for the posthearing brief, and then the Council will

 5   be in a better position to understand how and why you are

 6   taking the positions you do.

 7       I hope that's helpful just in this sort of practice

 8   as it's not a criminal proceeding.  It is an explanatory

 9   proceeding and an evaluative proceeding.  It's truly an

10   adjudication of all the issues that we are going to

11   settle on, and I hope that sets a tone for when I put

12   that in there for prehearing opening statements what that

13   means, an posthearing closing arguments.

14       I know those are words that we all learned in law

15   school and sometimes statements and arguments get

16   confused, and I just invite you to, as you develop your

17   cases, keep that in mind.  I don't think anybody is going

18   to move to strike an opening argument as too -- an

19   opening statement as too argumentative in this position,

20   but if we all keep that in mind no one will even think

21   to.

22       Let me go around the horn to see if there were any

23   other issues that were left unaddressed.  Ms. Chase,

24   anything for the Applicant you wanted to bring up before

25   we close out today's conference?
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 1                     MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.

 2   This is Ms. Chase, nothing further for the Applicant.

 3   Thank you.

 4                     JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper, how about

 5   for the County?

 6                     MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for the

 7   County, nothing further.  Thank you, Your Honor.

 8                     JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, Counsel

 9   for the Environment?

10                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld,

11   Counsel for the Environment, nothing further.  Thank you,

12   Judge.

13                     JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, anything

14   on behalf of the Yakama Nation?

15                     MS. VOELCKERS:  Shona Voelckers on

16   behalf of the Yakama Nation, we have nothing else.

17                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And for

18   Tri-Cities CARES, Mr. Aramburu?

19                     MR. ARAMBURU:  Nothing further at this

20   time, Your Honor.

21                     JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Well our

22   conference then is adjourned at 3:47 p.m.  We are off the

23   record.

24                           (Proceedings concluded

25                            at 3:47 p.m.)
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		136						LN		6		7		false		            7      Andrea, you might have been muted if you could unmute				false

		137						LN		6		8		false		            8      yourself.  Try star six or pound six.  Try star six or				false

		138						LN		6		9		false		            9      pound six since you are calling in.				false

		139						LN		6		10		false		           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  It sounds like				false

		140						LN		6		11		false		           11      I'm no longer muted.				false

		141						LN		6		12		false		           12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  There you go.				false

		142						LN		6		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you staff for				false

		143						LN		6		14		false		           14      helping me.  I heard some other lines so maybe you just				false

		144						LN		6		15		false		           15      muted all the other lines.  If there's other folks				false

		145						LN		6		16		false		           16      listening in today, that's great.  This is a procedural				false

		146						LN		6		17		false		           17      prehearing conference to go over details about scheduling				false

		147						LN		6		18		false		           18      the upcoming adjudication and a number of other rules				false

		148						LN		6		19		false		           19      that we are working on.  If you are listening in, please				false

		149						LN		6		20		false		           20      keep your microphone muted so we don't have to do that				false

		150						LN		6		21		false		           21      all mute again and result in actual people that are				false

		151						LN		6		22		false		           22      having a speaking role get cut back.  There is no public				false

		152						LN		6		23		false		           23      comments opportunity today, but there will be at the				false

		153						LN		6		24		false		           24      adjudication.  Contact EFSEC staff if you are worried				false

		154						LN		6		25		false		           25      about or want to know what the procedures will be.				false

		155						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		156						LN		7		1		false		            1          And, finally, just to be sure, there is no evidence				false

		157						LN		7		2		false		            2      being taken today.  These are just planning discussions				false

		158						LN		7		3		false		            3      with the parties.				false

		159						LN		7		4		false		            4          All right.  Our prehearing conference order got out				false

		160						LN		7		5		false		            5      to the parties quite later than I thought it would, but				false

		161						LN		7		6		false		            6      it's been a busy week since we last talked on March 10th,				false

		162						LN		7		7		false		            7      and the agenda hopefully went out with it.				false

		163						LN		7		8		false		            8          For those that are following along, I believe the				false

		164						LN		7		9		false		            9      agenda got posted on the EFSEC website, but I will walk				false

		165						LN		7		10		false		           10      everybody through it so if you don't have it in front of				false

		166						LN		7		11		false		           11      you it's obvious what we are doing.				false

		167						LN		7		12		false		           12          We have a total of seven listed items, the first of				false

		168						LN		7		13		false		           13      which is the roll call I have already gone through.  And				false

		169						LN		7		14		false		           14      the second one we are going to get to now is an update on				false

		170						LN		7		15		false		           15      the venue for the adjudication.				false

		171						LN		7		16		false		           16          I, after our call on March 10th, reached out and				false

		172						LN		7		17		false		           17      talked to the EFSEC manager and relayed the parties'				false

		173						LN		7		18		false		           18      feelings about wanting to have this either virtual,				false

		174						LN		7		19		false		           19      hybrid, or in person in the county, in Benton County.  As				false

		175						LN		7		20		false		           20      I said in the agenda, it has been raised with Sonia				false

		176						LN		7		21		false		           21      Bumpus and she was going to meet with Chair Drew sometime				false

		177						LN		7		22		false		           22      after last week's Wednesday regular monthly meeting of				false

		178						LN		7		23		false		           23      the EFSEC Council.  I haven't heard anything back from				false

		179						LN		7		24		false		           24      Ms. Bumpus upon that.  We last talked by email at least				false

		180						LN		7		25		false		           25      on Thursday, and I don't have any updates on decisions.				false

		181						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		182						LN		8		1		false		            1      There's some question as to whether or not having some				false

		183						LN		8		2		false		            2      portion of the adjudication in Benton County might be				false

		184						LN		8		3		false		            3      approved so that at least the parties and the judge and				false

		185						LN		8		4		false		            4      whatever staff we need might be present in the county.				false

		186						LN		8		5		false		            5      And perhaps the Council members would not be imposed upon				false

		187						LN		8		6		false		            6      to travel to each and every session, but might be able to				false

		188						LN		8		7		false		            7      make it to some if not all of them.  For some council				false

		189						LN		8		8		false		            8      members it may prove too much of a burden to do the				false

		190						LN		8		9		false		            9      travel, and I know that Chair Drew is considering those				false

		191						LN		8		10		false		           10      kinds of things.				false

		192						LN		8		11		false		           11          What I would like to do is, as it says in the				false

		193						LN		8		12		false		           12      agenda, ask for those parties that would like to, write a				false

		194						LN		8		13		false		           13      letter to Chair Drew and to me with the reasons, in your				false

		195						LN		8		14		false		           14      own words rather than the ones I might have relayed to				false

		196						LN		8		15		false		           15      the manager last week, stating why you believe it should				false

		197						LN		8		16		false		           16      be held however you want.  Today being the 20th, I would				false

		198						LN		8		17		false		           17      hope that those could be -- if by next Monday, March				false

		199						LN		8		18		false		           18      27th, all the parties that are interested in filing their				false

		200						LN		8		19		false		           19      request for inperson, hybrid, virtual you could file				false

		201						LN		8		20		false		           20      those -- they are totally optional, but if we could get				false

		202						LN		8		21		false		           21      that in by next Monday the 27th, that would help, I				false

		203						LN		8		22		false		           22      think, Chair Drew understand where everybody is coming				false

		204						LN		8		23		false		           23      from and be able to make a more informed discussion.				false

		205						LN		8		24		false		           24          Ms. Voelckers, I did relay, and I think you heard a				false

		206						LN		8		25		false		           25      little bit of that at the council meeting, the importance				false

		207						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		208						LN		9		1		false		            1      that -- of the special request you made on behalf of the				false

		209						LN		9		2		false		            2      Yakama Tribe for your elders to testify, and you might				false

		210						LN		9		3		false		            3      want to have an additional portion of your letter				false

		211						LN		9		4		false		            4      explaining essentially the logistics that might be				false

		212						LN		9		5		false		            5      necessary, and any support on how to record the voices				false

		213						LN		9		6		false		            6      that they might speak in.  Again, you said they would				false

		214						LN		9		7		false		            7      speak in perhaps native tongue as well as in English to				false

		215						LN		9		8		false		            8      express their positions.  And my only concern as we				false

		216						LN		9		9		false		            9      talked about ten days ago is if there would be any				false

		217						LN		9		10		false		           10      gesturing or other things that couldn't be captured in a				false

		218						LN		9		11		false		           11      written transcript of words in English, whether we need				false

		219						LN		9		12		false		           12      an interpreter or some other way to capture that for the				false

		220						LN		9		13		false		           13      record.  I leave that for you to describe if there be any				false

		221						LN		9		14		false		           14      necessary additional support to capture the testimony and				false

		222						LN		9		15		false		           15      presentation of your elders.				false

		223						LN		9		16		false		           16          Does any party, and I will survey one at a time,				false

		224						LN		9		17		false		           17      have any concerns about filing a letter by next Monday				false

		225						LN		9		18		false		           18      the 27th, and, Ms. Voelckers, when I get to you any other				false

		226						LN		9		19		false		           19      special requests.				false

		227						LN		9		20		false		           20          Let me start with the Applicant, Ms. Chase.				false

		228						LN		9		21		false		           21                        MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, and no				false

		229						LN		9		22		false		           22      concern about the deadline.				false

		230						LN		9		23		false		           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.				false

		231						LN		9		24		false		           24      Reyneveld for CFE?				false

		232						LN		9		25		false		           25                        MS. REYNEVELD:  This is Ms. Reyneveld,				false

		233						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		234						LN		10		1		false		            1      and I have no concerns about the deadline either.  Thank				false

		235						LN		10		2		false		            2      you, Judge.				false

		236						LN		10		3		false		            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  You're welcome.  Mr.				false

		237						LN		10		4		false		            4      Harper?				false

		238						LN		10		5		false		            5                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton				false

		239						LN		10		6		false		            6      County, no, Your Honor, that's fine.				false

		240						LN		10		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.				false

		241						LN		10		8		false		            8      Voelckers for the Tribe?				false

		242						LN		10		9		false		            9                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		243						LN		10		10		false		           10      No concerns.  Just to confirm you would like this letter				false

		244						LN		10		11		false		           11      addressed to Chair Drew or to yourself?				false

		245						LN		10		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  To both of us, please,				false

		246						LN		10		13		false		           13      that way she and I may have cause to talk about all of				false

		247						LN		10		14		false		           14      the inputs once they are all in.				false

		248						LN		10		15		false		           15                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Understood.  Thank				false

		249						LN		10		16		false		           16      you.				false

		250						LN		10		17		false		           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu?				false

		251						LN		10		18		false		           18                        MR. ARAMBURU:  For Tri-Cities CARES,				false

		252						LN		10		19		false		           19      no concerns with that schedule.				false

		253						LN		10		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I hope all				false

		254						LN		10		21		false		           21      of you will take advantage of that opportunity to				false

		255						LN		10		22		false		           22      communicate directly with me and the Chair with regard to				false

		256						LN		10		23		false		           23      your preferences for venue, and it will, again, just give				false

		257						LN		10		24		false		           24      you all a forum to get that out in your words.				false

		258						LN		10		25		false		           25          All right.  Let's turn to the third item on the				false

		259						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		260						LN		11		1		false		            1      agenda for today, the actual scheduling of the				false

		261						LN		11		2		false		            2      adjudication itself.  We are still working with the				false

		262						LN		11		3		false		            3      deadline of July 8th, 2023.  I think a number of you				false

		263						LN		11		4		false		            4      heard what I had to say about that at the monthly meeting				false

		264						LN		11		5		false		            5      last week.  Let's take a look on the agenda.  What I have				false

		265						LN		11		6		false		            6      stated is that the approved second extension request from				false

		266						LN		11		7		false		            7      the Applicant does require us to get a recommendation to				false

		267						LN		11		8		false		            8      the governor no later than July 8th of this year.  We				false

		268						LN		11		9		false		            9      have had at least 25 months that have elapsed since the				false

		269						LN		11		10		false		           10      application came in, and the current statutory deadline				false

		270						LN		11		11		false		           11      has certainly been passed.  That 12-month processing time				false

		271						LN		11		12		false		           12      for 80.50.100 is well past, and we are projecting a total				false

		272						LN		11		13		false		           13      of 29 months at this time to get a full vote and				false

		273						LN		11		14		false		           14      consideration on the application.				false

		274						LN		11		15		false		           15          Based on our discussions ten days ago, you can see				false

		275						LN		11		16		false		           16      the proposed dates that would have started perhaps as				false

		276						LN		11		17		false		           17      early as Monday, May 15th for the hearing, are now based				false

		277						LN		11		18		false		           18      on prefiled testimony coming in no earlier than April 3rd				false

		278						LN		11		19		false		           19      or maybe April 10th.  The earliest hearing dates, Ms.				false

		279						LN		11		20		false		           20      Chase, that I can offer the Applicant and the other				false

		280						LN		11		21		false		           21      parties look to be Monday June 5th for that entire week,				false

		281						LN		11		22		false		           22      and the remainder of the week after Juneteenth, on that				false

		282						LN		11		23		false		           23      holiday from June 20th to the 23rd.				false

		283						LN		11		24		false		           24          I'm wondering, for the parties, just how many days				false

		284						LN		11		25		false		           25      of hearing you would each estimate this case might take.				false

		285						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		286						LN		12		1		false		            1      And I realize it's a little bit of a shot in the dark				false

		287						LN		12		2		false		            2      because you don't know -- we haven't agreed on what				false

		288						LN		12		3		false		            3      issues will be adjudicated or what witnesses, but based				false

		289						LN		12		4		false		            4      on your prior experience, and I know many of you on the				false

		290						LN		12		5		false		            5      line have been in complex litigation like this, including				false

		291						LN		12		6		false		            6      before this council, so I want to ask you, I can't hold				false

		292						LN		12		7		false		            7      you to it, but just your today estimate of how many days				false

		293						LN		12		8		false		            8      of hearing time you each think it might take.				false

		294						LN		12		9		false		            9          Let me start with the Applicant, again, and see, Ms.				false

		295						LN		12		10		false		           10      Chase, between you and Mr. McMahan and Ms. Schimelpfenig				false

		296						LN		12		11		false		           11      what you are thinking for the number of days?				false

		297						LN		12		12		false		           12                        MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.				false

		298						LN		12		13		false		           13      This is Ms. Chase.  We -- I think based on information we				false

		299						LN		12		14		false		           14      have now, we would anticipate a couple weeks, so two				false

		300						LN		12		15		false		           15      weeks total.  I'm recognizing that that will depend on				false

		301						LN		12		16		false		           16      large part on how the issues get finalized.				false

		302						LN		12		17		false		           17          And then also for the scheduling discussion, I did				false

		303						LN		12		18		false		           18      want to share that Applicant will be submitting a third				false

		304						LN		12		19		false		           19      extension request shortly, if it hasn't already been				false

		305						LN		12		20		false		           20      submitted, that will extend the time to complete the				false

		306						LN		12		21		false		           21      adjudication through the timeline that you have been				false

		307						LN		12		22		false		           22      discussing at the last prehearing conference, which was				false

		308						LN		12		23		false		           23      September 2023.  I wanted to share that now as it may				false

		309						LN		12		24		false		           24      inform the parties' scheduling discussions.				false

		310						LN		12		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that if the				false

		311						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		312						LN		13		1		false		            1      application extension request is actually being filed				false

		313						LN		13		2		false		            2      today, it won't be acted upon until the Council can				false

		314						LN		13		3		false		            3      receive it, but it notionally will release a lot of				false

		315						LN		13		4		false		            4      pressure on everybody on the line today.  I do appreciate				false

		316						LN		13		5		false		            5      that very much, and I will thank the Applicant for				false

		317						LN		13		6		false		            6      allowing the Council to be able to do a thorough job, and				false

		318						LN		13		7		false		            7      all the other parties, frankly, to prepare testimony less				false

		319						LN		13		8		false		            8      under the gun and really get a thorough adjudication on				false

		320						LN		13		9		false		            9      the issues they would like to present.  So your estimate				false

		321						LN		13		10		false		           10      for the amount of time is going to be approximately two				false

		322						LN		13		11		false		           11      weeks.				false

		323						LN		13		12		false		           12          Let me turn next to the Counsel for the Environment				false

		324						LN		13		13		false		           13      and see, Ms. Reyneveld, your thoughts on how many days of				false

		325						LN		13		14		false		           14      adjudication this might take.				false

		326						LN		13		15		false		           15                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I would be in				false

		327						LN		13		16		false		           16      agreement with the Applicant, although I do think that				false

		328						LN		13		17		false		           17      there are a lot of unknowns to this ligation, including				false

		329						LN		13		18		false		           18      just the number of witnesses that are going to be called				false

		330						LN		13		19		false		           19      so it's difficult to determine without that.  I would say				false

		331						LN		13		20		false		           20      at most we will likely be calling one to two witnesses,				false

		332						LN		13		21		false		           21      and so I just don't know the number of witnesses from the				false

		333						LN		13		22		false		           22      other parties.  But I think, you know, probably one and a				false

		334						LN		13		23		false		           23      half to two weeks would be a good estimate.				false

		335						LN		13		24		false		           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Mr. Harper, for				false

		336						LN		13		25		false		           25      the County?				false

		337						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		338						LN		14		1		false		            1                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton				false

		339						LN		14		2		false		            2      County.  Yeah, I think Ms. Chase has a pretty good best				false

		340						LN		14		3		false		            3      estimate there.  I don't think I can really add to that.				false

		341						LN		14		4		false		            4      Two weeks sounds about right with all the disclaimers,				false

		342						LN		14		5		false		            5      but it does sound about appropriate.				false

		343						LN		14		6		false		            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,				false

		344						LN		14		7		false		            7      Mr. Harper.				false

		345						LN		14		8		false		            8          Ms. Voelckers, how does the Tribe feel about				false

		346						LN		14		9		false		            9      predicting how long this might take?				false

		347						LN		14		10		false		           10                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		348						LN		14		11		false		           11      I don't have any better ability to predict and would				false

		349						LN		14		12		false		           12      agree with the statements that have already been made by				false

		350						LN		14		13		false		           13      other counsel.				false

		351						LN		14		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.				false

		352						LN		14		15		false		           15      Aramburu?				false

		353						LN		14		16		false		           16                        MR. ARAMBURU:  My understanding is				false

		354						LN		14		17		false		           17      that the hearing time that we are going to take is going				false

		355						LN		14		18		false		           18      to be principally cross-examination with some exceptions.				false

		356						LN		14		19		false		           19      So if that's the understanding, then I think two weeks				false

		357						LN		14		20		false		           20      would probably be fine, although these dates that you				false

		358						LN		14		21		false		           21      have here probably are not the appropriate two weeks in				false

		359						LN		14		22		false		           22      our view.  So we think two weeks is fine, closely				false

		360						LN		14		23		false		           23      coordinating cross-examination time and those kinds of				false

		361						LN		14		24		false		           24      things.				false

		362						LN		14		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		363						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		364						LN		15		1		false		            1      When you say these two weeks I have here, you are				false

		365						LN		15		2		false		            2      referring to the weeks in June that I mentioned and that				false

		366						LN		15		3		false		            3      are listed on the agenda?				false

		367						LN		15		4		false		            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  That's correct, Your				false

		368						LN		15		5		false		            5      Honor.				false

		369						LN		15		6		false		            6                        THE JUDGE:  And as Ms. Chase				false

		370						LN		15		7		false		            7      indicated, if the Council approves an extension to the				false

		371						LN		15		8		false		            8      end of September, which is what I understood, Ms. Chase,				false

		372						LN		15		9		false		            9      it would be through September 30th?				false

		373						LN		15		10		false		           10                        MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, yes.				false

		374						LN		15		11		false		           11      That's correct.				false

		375						LN		15		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  So, Mr. Aramburu, that's				false

		376						LN		15		13		false		           13      going to give us the month of July, the month of August,				false

		377						LN		15		14		false		           14      and the month of September to process the application,				false

		378						LN		15		15		false		           15      and the hearing time would certainly not have to start as				false

		379						LN		15		16		false		           16      of June 5th if that extension is approved at the April				false

		380						LN		15		17		false		           17      council meeting.				false

		381						LN		15		18		false		           18          All right.  Thank you all for validating what I told				false

		382						LN		15		19		false		           19      the EFSEC manager last week on Wednesday afternoon or				false

		383						LN		15		20		false		           20      Thursday, whenever it was Ms. Bumpus and I spoke, I				false

		384						LN		15		21		false		           21      estimated two weeks.  I think she was a little bit				false

		385						LN		15		22		false		           22      surprised that we would have two weeks' worth of hearing				false

		386						LN		15		23		false		           23      time.  I hope we can knock it down to less as we sort out				false

		387						LN		15		24		false		           24      the issues and the number of witnesses.  And particularly				false

		388						LN		15		25		false		           25      knowing, as Mr. Aramburu pointed out, that the prefiled				false

		389						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		390						LN		16		1		false		            1      written testimony comes in then we will be able to have				false

		391						LN		16		2		false		            2      mainly an adoption of that on the record and a				false

		392						LN		16		3		false		            3      cross-examination.  And, Mr. Aramburu, as you pointed out				false

		393						LN		16		4		false		            4      previously we will be working with exhibits and a number				false

		394						LN		16		5		false		            5      of other things, if we do our prehearing housekeeping				false

		395						LN		16		6		false		            6      correctly everybody will have exhibits and know exactly				false

		396						LN		16		7		false		            7      where we are going with them.  For each witness, we will				false

		397						LN		16		8		false		            8      be doing exams, discussion, and preparation so that the				false

		398						LN		16		9		false		            9      hearing time itself can be used efficiently and everybody				false

		399						LN		16		10		false		           10      won't have to pause to get exhibits and things like that.				false

		400						LN		16		11		false		           11          I'm not sure today that I can tell you what weeks				false

		401						LN		16		12		false		           12      are available.  I received in an email earlier today a				false

		402						LN		16		13		false		           13      listing of council unavailability out through September				false

		403						LN		16		14		false		           14      30th, so notionally we could talk about that if I'd				false

		404						LN		16		15		false		           15      actually read that email yet, and I will confess I have				false

		405						LN		16		16		false		           16      not.  I have that information, and I believe all parties				false

		406						LN		16		17		false		           17      have also filed their notices of unavailability.  If				false

		407						LN		16		18		false		           18      there's any party who has not done so as of today, I				false

		408						LN		16		19		false		           19      won't have you self-identify on the line, but I think all				false

		409						LN		16		20		false		           20      five parties have submitted their requests for				false

		410						LN		16		21		false		           21      unavailability, and if not, if you can get it in by close				false

		411						LN		16		22		false		           22      of business today that will give me time tomorrow to				false

		412						LN		16		23		false		           23      start doing some cross comparison of council availability				false

		413						LN		16		24		false		           24      and party availability and see what we have notionally				false

		414						LN		16		25		false		           25      beyond the July 8th current deadline.				false

		415						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		416						LN		17		1		false		            1          If I make an assumption that the Council might act				false

		417						LN		17		2		false		            2      at their next meeting to approve it then we can start to				false

		418						LN		17		3		false		            3      sketch out a schedule.				false

		419						LN		17		4		false		            4          So let me turn then to the prefiled testimony piece				false

		420						LN		17		5		false		            5      of our agenda, item number four.  I think last time we				false

		421						LN		17		6		false		            6      talked about having three rounds of testimony.  And I				false

		422						LN		17		7		false		            7      initially, based on discussions with staff, had proposed				false

		423						LN		17		8		false		            8      the Applicant file first and then a bunch of other				false

		424						LN		17		9		false		            9      testimony come in in response and then reply.				false

		425						LN		17		10		false		           10          I can't remember which of you wisely pointed out				false

		426						LN		17		11		false		           11      that in past practice we allowed all testimony to come in				false

		427						LN		17		12		false		           12      in the first round from all parties, based on their				false

		428						LN		17		13		false		           13      issues, and then all parties have a chance to respond,				false

		429						LN		17		14		false		           14      and if necessary, rebuttal on the third round.				false

		430						LN		17		15		false		           15          I don't know, but I want to survey again if parties				false

		431						LN		17		16		false		           16      have a preference on ordering and the type of three				false

		432						LN		17		17		false		           17      rounds of testimony and the intervals in between.  I				false

		433						LN		17		18		false		           18      think we talked about potentially 28 days after the first				false

		434						LN		17		19		false		           19      filing for the next round, and then 21 days for the third				false

		435						LN		17		20		false		           20      round to come in.				false

		436						LN		17		21		false		           21          So I am going to ask counsel for all of the parties,				false

		437						LN		17		22		false		           22      and I will go in the same order as usual, to comment on				false

		438						LN		17		23		false		           23      that if they have thoughts and I will take notes as we				false

		439						LN		17		24		false		           24      go.				false

		440						LN		17		25		false		           25          Let me start with the Applicant, Ms. Chase?				false

		441						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		442						LN		18		1		false		            1                        MS. CHASE:  The Applicant has no				false

		443						LN		18		2		false		            2      preference between the two approaches.  And it's fine				false

		444						LN		18		3		false		            3      with the allotted 28, 21 intervals, acknowledging that				false

		445						LN		18		4		false		            4      based on parties' different availability those dates may				false

		446						LN		18		5		false		            5      end up needing to shift a few days as we plot out the				false

		447						LN		18		6		false		            6      schedule.				false

		448						LN		18		7		false		            7          I think it would be helpful to have -- I think				false

		449						LN		18		8		false		            8      I'm -- it would be -- it would make more sense for all				false

		450						LN		18		9		false		            9      parties to file simultaneously because then Applicant, at				false

		451						LN		18		10		false		           10      least from our perspective, would have the ability to				false

		452						LN		18		11		false		           11      respond to the issues that were presented by the parties				false

		453						LN		18		12		false		           12      on the issues that they are wishing to present in this				false

		454						LN		18		13		false		           13      proceeding.				false

		455						LN		18		14		false		           14          And then I think the last comment would be as to				false

		456						LN		18		15		false		           15      timing.  Given that we still need to finalize the issues,				false

		457						LN		18		16		false		           16      the initial discussions of April 3rd and April 10th may				false

		458						LN		18		17		false		           17      be slightly ambitious, but we do want to make sure that				false

		459						LN		18		18		false		           18      we are getting an initial deadline as soon as possible.				false

		460						LN		18		19		false		           19          Thank you, Judge Torem.  I'm happy to answer any				false

		461						LN		18		20		false		           20      questions.				false

		462						LN		18		21		false		           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Given that the				false

		463						LN		18		22		false		           22      Council may not act on the extension request until the				false

		464						LN		18		23		false		           23      third week in April, which would put us at the April 19th				false

		465						LN		18		24		false		           24      meeting, would the Applicant and all parties, I guess, if				false

		466						LN		18		25		false		           25      we are going to do it simultaneously, be comfortable with				false

		467						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		468						LN		19		1		false		            1      the first round of testimony coming in not knowing quite				false

		469						LN		19		2		false		            2      what the hearing dates are, but notionally knowing that				false

		470						LN		19		3		false		            3      they won't be in June, what are your thoughts on filing a				false

		471						LN		19		4		false		            4      first round of testimony ahead of next month's council				false

		472						LN		19		5		false		            5      meeting so we can get things rolling?  And, again, that's				false

		473						LN		19		6		false		            6      subject to identifying all the disputed issues, if not				false

		474						LN		19		7		false		            7      today, then shortly after today.				false

		475						LN		19		8		false		            8                        MS. CHASE:  As Applicant we have no				false

		476						LN		19		9		false		            9      objection, and agree that we should start with our first				false

		477						LN		19		10		false		           10      round of filings before the Council has the opportunity				false

		478						LN		19		11		false		           11      to act on that request.  Understanding that everybody				false

		479						LN		19		12		false		           12      seems to acknowledge that the June dates are not				false

		480						LN		19		13		false		           13      practically realistic.  We have no objection to that as				false

		481						LN		19		14		false		           14      long as there is adequate time between when the issues				false

		482						LN		19		15		false		           15      are finalized for the parties to have a couple of weeks				false

		483						LN		19		16		false		           16      to get their third round of testimony together.				false

		484						LN		19		17		false		           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Anything				false

		485						LN		19		18		false		           18      else from the Applicant on the scheduling of prefiled				false

		486						LN		19		19		false		           19      testimony or the topics we are covering before I shift to				false

		487						LN		19		20		false		           20      Counsel for the Environment?				false

		488						LN		19		21		false		           21          Okay.  All right.  Hearing none, let me shift to Ms.				false

		489						LN		19		22		false		           22      Reyneveld, and ask for your input on the round of				false

		490						LN		19		23		false		           23      testimony, the intervals, and potentially starting the				false

		491						LN		19		24		false		           24      filing if we do it simultaneously then that would apply				false

		492						LN		19		25		false		           25      to CFE and all the other parties to be ready sometime				false

		493						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		494						LN		20		1		false		            1      between now and April, middle of the month, when the				false

		495						LN		20		2		false		            2      Council has their meeting.				false

		496						LN		20		3		false		            3                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Thank you, Judge.  The				false

		497						LN		20		4		false		            4      Counsel for the Environment has a slight preference for				false

		498						LN		20		5		false		            5      the Applicant filing first and then other parties				false

		499						LN		20		6		false		            6      responding and then reply or rebuttal.  I don't have a				false

		500						LN		20		7		false		            7      preference on the intervals other than that they be				false

		501						LN		20		8		false		            8      sufficiently spaced out.  And I would prefer to have the				false

		502						LN		20		9		false		            9      hearing scheduled and then to work from there in terms of				false

		503						LN		20		10		false		           10      the filing schedule.  I don't think it necessarily makes				false

		504						LN		20		11		false		           11      sense to establish an arbitrary filing schedule in April				false

		505						LN		20		12		false		           12      and then have the hearing potentially be in July.  It's				false

		506						LN		20		13		false		           13      just -- from a kind of litigation perspective I think we				false

		507						LN		20		14		false		           14      should schedule the hearing and then schedule kind of				false

		508						LN		20		15		false		           15      those filing deadlines accordingly.				false

		509						LN		20		16		false		           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, I				false

		510						LN		20		17		false		           17      think in a perfect world I would agree a hundred percent.				false

		511						LN		20		18		false		           18      There's a certain part of me that remembers somebody in				false

		512						LN		20		19		false		           19      our federal government talking about unknown unknowns,				false

		513						LN		20		20		false		           20      and we are dealing with those right now, but I don't want				false

		514						LN		20		21		false		           21      to waste the time between now and the next counsel				false

		515						LN		20		22		false		           22      meeting because every day is valuable.  I think as of				false

		516						LN		20		23		false		           23      last week we had 115 days to go to the July 8th				false

		517						LN		20		24		false		           24      extension, and if we do get an approved extension to				false

		518						LN		20		25		false		           25      September 30th, today might be the first day of Spring				false

		519						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		520						LN		21		1		false		            1      but the first day of Fall may be the date that the				false

		521						LN		21		2		false		            2      council members are deliberating and we are trying to get				false

		522						LN		21		3		false		            3      an order out, so that September time I don't want to be				false

		523						LN		21		4		false		            4      holding a hearing in September.  I want to be evaluating				false

		524						LN		21		5		false		            5      what's going on with the filings and post hearing briefs				false

		525						LN		21		6		false		            6      by then.  I just want the parties to think that the judge				false

		526						LN		21		7		false		            7      and the council need time to after the adjudication read				false

		527						LN		21		8		false		            8      your post hearing briefs, make decisions, draft the				false

		528						LN		21		9		false		            9      recommendation, and work accordingly to get everything				false

		529						LN		21		10		false		           10      ready to announce and deliver to the governor.				false

		530						LN		21		11		false		           11          One other piece that's come to my attention in				false

		531						LN		21		12		false		           12      looking past the SEPA questions is that the final EIS has				false

		532						LN		21		13		false		           13      to be part of the recommendation.  That has to be				false

		533						LN		21		14		false		           14      finalized, I believe, seven days according to law before				false

		534						LN		21		15		false		           15      the recommendation goes to the governor, so that's				false

		535						LN		21		16		false		           16      another week of backing up time for many to grant an				false

		536						LN		21		17		false		           17      extension to have to be considered.				false

		537						LN		21		18		false		           18          But that said, Ms. Reyneveld, I want to know when				false

		538						LN		21		19		false		           19      the hearing is too so that we get -- we don't				false

		539						LN		21		20		false		           20      artificially put pressure to file that first round of				false

		540						LN		21		21		false		           21      testimony.  So my thought is we may get a feel and a				false

		541						LN		21		22		false		           22      decision today on the intervals and the soon as possible				false

		542						LN		21		23		false		           23      date.  We may yet schedule a shorter prehearing				false

		543						LN		21		24		false		           24      conference to announce dates and then work through those				false

		544						LN		21		25		false		           25      and then set the schedule depending on how far we get				false

		545						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		546						LN		22		1		false		            1      today.				false

		547						LN		22		2		false		            2          Ms. Reyneveld, anything else?				false

		548						LN		22		3		false		            3                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That makes sense,				false

		549						LN		22		4		false		            4      Judge.  I just want to make sure that there's ample time				false

		550						LN		22		5		false		            5      to be able to, you know, actually submit testimony and				false

		551						LN		22		6		false		            6      call witnesses, and so I think that's my concern about				false

		552						LN		22		7		false		            7      just the -- to expediting the process for filing prior to				false

		553						LN		22		8		false		            8      knowing the hearing date.  I appreciate that.				false

		554						LN		22		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  A hundred percent				false

		555						LN		22		10		false		           10      understood.  I don't want to rush anybody further.  And				false

		556						LN		22		11		false		           11      if we do have ample time, and thanks to the Applicant's				false

		557						LN		22		12		false		           12      intention or already filed extension request, we probably				false

		558						LN		22		13		false		           13      should, but I have to look at all those notices of				false

		559						LN		22		14		false		           14      unavailability and see where the jigsaw puzzle lines up.				false

		560						LN		22		15		false		           15          All right.  That's my problem to deal with.  Let's				false

		561						LN		22		16		false		           16      shift to the County now.  Mr. Harper, thoughts on				false

		562						LN		22		17		false		           17      prefiled testimony?				false

		563						LN		22		18		false		           18                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton				false

		564						LN		22		19		false		           19      County, Your Honor.  I have strong concerns about the				false

		565						LN		22		20		false		           20      concept of simultaneous filing with a target date of mid				false

		566						LN		22		21		false		           21      April.  I just, you know, I'm very concerned about the				false

		567						LN		22		22		false		           22      definition of the issues.  I'm concerned about the status				false

		568						LN		22		23		false		           23      of SEPA.  I share Ms. Reyneveld's concern, and we don't				false

		569						LN		22		24		false		           24      need to go over that again regarding the sequence here				false

		570						LN		22		25		false		           25      from hearing date forward.  But, Your Honor, I don't know				false

		571						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		572						LN		23		1		false		            1      what really is going to be sort of the focal point of the				false

		573						LN		23		2		false		            2      hearing of the Applicant's position.  I don't really know				false

		574						LN		23		3		false		            3      how the respondents/interveners may be able to work				false

		575						LN		23		4		false		            4      between themselves and streamline testimony with having				false

		576						LN		23		5		false		            5      to simultaneously hit that date as part of our own				false

		577						LN		23		6		false		            6      prefiled testimony due date.  So, Your Honor, from the				false

		578						LN		23		7		false		            7      County's perspective we would strongly request at least a				false

		579						LN		23		8		false		            8      staggered series of filings and/or -- I know this isn't				false

		580						LN		23		9		false		            9      really what you want to know, but and/or an initial				false

		581						LN		23		10		false		           10      prefiled testimony due date somewhat later than April.				false

		582						LN		23		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I was going to ask				false

		583						LN		23		12		false		           12      you if the nature of your concern is more of the timing				false

		584						LN		23		13		false		           13      of a mid April filing date without the full fleshing out				false

		585						LN		23		14		false		           14      of issues and other things, or is it the you don't want				false

		586						LN		23		15		false		           15      to file simultaneously with the Applicant with the				false

		587						LN		23		16		false		           16      County's issues?  Is it both or is it weighted more				false

		588						LN		23		17		false		           17      toward the timing?				false

		589						LN		23		18		false		           18                        MR. HARPER:  Thanks, Your Honor, for				false

		590						LN		23		19		false		           19      the chance to clarify.  It's a combination of the two.  I				false

		591						LN		23		20		false		           20      don't know that I have a strong reservation about the				false

		592						LN		23		21		false		           21      idea of simultaneous filing, but that clearly puts more				false

		593						LN		23		22		false		           22      onus on the County, possibly the other responding party				false

		594						LN		23		23		false		           23      and interveners to really, you know, very carefully				false

		595						LN		23		24		false		           24      structure what their prefiled testimony will be, which				false

		596						LN		23		25		false		           25      takes time.				false

		597						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		598						LN		24		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Agreed.  And I know the				false

		599						LN		24		2		false		            2      Applicant knows what it's applying for.  And the				false

		600						LN		24		3		false		            3      Applicant knows what it thinks its disputed issues are				false

		601						LN		24		4		false		            4      going to be may be in a better position, but I do think				false

		602						LN		24		5		false		            5      each of the parties know why they are here in the case.				false

		603						LN		24		6		false		            6      They filed petitions for intervention, or as the County				false

		604						LN		24		7		false		            7      has been involved in the beginning as well, Mr. Harper,				false

		605						LN		24		8		false		            8      before your firm filed its appearance so everybody knows				false

		606						LN		24		9		false		            9      why they are here.				false

		607						LN		24		10		false		           10          I'm a little bit honestly less concerned with the				false

		608						LN		24		11		false		           11      question of what are we going to do.  You are going to				false

		609						LN		24		12		false		           12      identify your witnesses at the same rate, if you haven't				false

		610						LN		24		13		false		           13      already.  So you will have a full period of time to				false

		611						LN		24		14		false		           14      respond.  It looks like the 28-day interval to respond to				false

		612						LN		24		15		false		           15      the Applicant's witnesses that they file.				false

		613						LN		24		16		false		           16          Again, if we need to extend it from 28 days if we				false

		614						LN		24		17		false		           17      have a little more grace time longer to perhaps allow for				false

		615						LN		24		18		false		           18      some informal discovery, or formal if necessary.  That				false

		616						LN		24		19		false		           19      may be some way to accommodate the concern you are				false

		617						LN		24		20		false		           20      expressing, and I hope we can do that fairly so you don't				false

		618						LN		24		21		false		           21      feel that there's any trial by ambush or any other				false

		619						LN		24		22		false		           22      concern of any party surprising the others, anymore than				false

		620						LN		24		23		false		           23      any other filing that comes into court might do.				false

		621						LN		24		24		false		           24          Mr. Harper, I will give you a chance to respond on				false

		622						LN		24		25		false		           25      how I'm evaluating your concerns.				false

		623						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		624						LN		25		1		false		            1                        MR. HARPER:  No. I think you have				false

		625						LN		25		2		false		            2      stated it, Your Honor.  Thank you.				false

		626						LN		25		3		false		            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let's move				false

		627						LN		25		4		false		            4      on then to Ms. Voelckers working with prefiled testimony				false

		628						LN		25		5		false		            5      questions and about intervals as well.				false

		629						LN		25		6		false		            6                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		630						LN		25		7		false		            7      We are not opposed to filing simultaneously, although I				false

		631						LN		25		8		false		            8      would note that we have been operating on the last				false

		632						LN		25		9		false		            9      discussion, the last hearing conference in preparation				false

		633						LN		25		10		false		           10      to -- we anticipate that we would not be asked to file				false

		634						LN		25		11		false		           11      that direct testimony in the same time line that				false

		635						LN		25		12		false		           12      Applicant is comfortable with, but depending on when the				false

		636						LN		25		13		false		           13      date is that we are not opposed to filing testimony				false

		637						LN		25		14		false		           14      simultaneously.				false

		638						LN		25		15		false		           15          I will say that I also have very strong concerns				false

		639						LN		25		16		false		           16      about the timing and especially knowing that Applicant				false

		640						LN		25		17		false		           17      has submitted an application to extend the deadline.				false

		641						LN		25		18		false		           18      That is still, frankly, quite ambitious.  I think that				false

		642						LN		25		19		false		           19      walking back from the date of the hearing being set is				false

		643						LN		25		20		false		           20      what makes the most sense here and sets everyone up for				false

		644						LN		25		21		false		           21      the best possible process, even though we are under this				false

		645						LN		25		22		false		           22      timeline or time crunch.				false

		646						LN		25		23		false		           23          And I would just respectfully also push back a				false

		647						LN		25		24		false		           24      little bit on the language about wasting time.  I think				false

		648						LN		25		25		false		           25      we are all working really hard to get caught up on a lot				false

		649						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		650						LN		26		1		false		            1      of materials the Applicant has had years to put together,				false

		651						LN		26		2		false		            2      including the amended site verification application that				false

		652						LN		26		3		false		            3      was filed just months ago.  So we, you know, do need that				false

		653						LN		26		4		false		            4      time to have a fair process here.  So those are my				false

		654						LN		26		5		false		            5      comments on the timing.  I think that we should wait				false

		655						LN		26		6		false		            6      until the hearing is set and walk back from the hearing,				false

		656						LN		26		7		false		            7      and do so in a way that is fair, regardless of whether or				false

		657						LN		26		8		false		            8      not we are filing simultaneously.				false

		658						LN		26		9		false		            9          And lastly I would just note that those 28 days were				false

		659						LN		26		10		false		           10      agreed before the Applicant went on the record and said				false

		660						LN		26		11		false		           11      that they were prepared to file in just a few weeks.  So				false

		661						LN		26		12		false		           12      when we had that the discussion about the 28-day timeline				false

		662						LN		26		13		false		           13      there were no dates that were being proposed or agreed to				false

		663						LN		26		14		false		           14      by the Applicant to inform that discussion.  Again, I				false

		664						LN		26		15		false		           15      would submit that that should be as much time as possible				false

		665						LN		26		16		false		           16      given that the hearing date -- once the hearing date is				false

		666						LN		26		17		false		           17      put on the calendar.				false

		667						LN		26		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Voelckers, I				false

		668						LN		26		19		false		           19      just want to validate for you that when I said there was				false

		669						LN		26		20		false		           20      going to be any wasting of time, that would be from my				false

		670						LN		26		21		false		           21      perspective of my time and the Council's time to elapsing				false

		671						LN		26		22		false		           22      towards that perhaps now September 30th deadline.  I				false

		672						LN		26		23		false		           23      didn't mean any implication or offense that parties are				false

		673						LN		26		24		false		           24      wasting time.  From a procedural standpoint, though,				false

		674						LN		26		25		false		           25      every day to me is precious and I don't want to sit on my				false

		675						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		676						LN		27		1		false		            1      hands until the council meeting on April 19th.  You know,				false

		677						LN		27		2		false		            2      that's a full month away from today, and we can make good				false

		678						LN		27		3		false		            3      use of that time even if it doesn't include a filing				false

		679						LN		27		4		false		            4      deadline.  It can involve a lot of other procedural				false

		680						LN		27		5		false		            5      progress to get to the first filing round.  So, again,				false

		681						LN		27		6		false		            6      that's what I meant there.				false

		682						LN		27		7		false		            7          I do see that my notes reflect that these other				false

		683						LN		27		8		false		            8      filing deadlines of being ready as soon -- April 3rd or				false

		684						LN		27		9		false		            9      April 10th were not offered by anybody that I recall				false

		685						LN		27		10		false		           10      other than Ms. Chase as to when the Applicant might be				false

		686						LN		27		11		false		           11      ready to file.  You are correct to bring that up and make				false

		687						LN		27		12		false		           12      a clarification.  Thank you.				false

		688						LN		27		13		false		           13                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		689						LN		27		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  With those comments, Ms.				false

		690						LN		27		15		false		           15      Voelckers, did you have anything else to add?				false

		691						LN		27		16		false		           16                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		692						LN		27		17		false		           17      I would add one other thing, which is that I did listen				false

		693						LN		27		18		false		           18      to the discussion during the EFSEC meeting last week, and				false

		694						LN		27		19		false		           19      I also heard that the staff team is working really hard				false

		695						LN		27		20		false		           20      on the SEPA side and did not have a schedule to commit to				false

		696						LN		27		21		false		           21      on issuance of the SEIS, and so it seemed like that would				false

		697						LN		27		22		false		           22      also be something that we would want to avoid setting,				false

		698						LN		27		23		false		           23      arbitrarily limiting deadlines when the SEIS might also				false

		699						LN		27		24		false		           24      not be ready as early as the Applicant would like it.  So				false

		700						LN		27		25		false		           25      that's my only other comment in terms of timelines is				false

		701						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		702						LN		28		1		false		            1      that I don't know that we would need to have the				false

		703						LN		28		2		false		            2      adjudication be done any earlier than -- given reasonable				false

		704						LN		28		3		false		            3      time to review, but if the SEIS is going to be months				false

		705						LN		28		4		false		            4      away as well, I would hate to have all of us working				false

		706						LN		28		5		false		            5      under really hard deadlines on the adjudication side that				false

		707						LN		28		6		false		            6      are months ahead of an SEIS.				false

		708						LN		28		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  And that's a fine point				false

		709						LN		28		8		false		            8      to make.  I have no reason to believe that the staff				false

		710						LN		28		9		false		            9      would need an exorbitant amount of time to respond.  I				false

		711						LN		28		10		false		           10      know there's a lot of comments on the draft EIS, but				false

		712						LN		28		11		false		           11      unless there's going to be requests from staff based on				false

		713						LN		28		12		false		           12      comments for a supplemental environmental review, I				false

		714						LN		28		13		false		           13      haven't been given any such indication yet, but that may				false

		715						LN		28		14		false		           14      be premature.  I will bring that up with the staff that				false

		716						LN		28		15		false		           15      is handling the parallel SEPA evaluation that will be				false

		717						LN		28		16		false		           16      going alongside but separate from the adjudication and				false

		718						LN		28		17		false		           17      make sure that that's a valid concern.  If they think				false

		719						LN		28		18		false		           18      that they can't get things done within the times frames				false

		720						LN		28		19		false		           19      that are currently set or might be approved for September				false

		721						LN		28		20		false		           20      30th, I will count on Ms. Lune (phonetic) and the rest of				false

		722						LN		28		21		false		           21      the SEPA staff to make sure the adjudication team is				false

		723						LN		28		22		false		           22      aware so the right hand and the left hand of the EFSEC				false

		724						LN		28		23		false		           23      Council and staff know what's going on here.  Thank you,				false

		725						LN		28		24		false		           24      Ms. Voelckers.				false

		726						LN		28		25		false		           25                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		727						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		728						LN		29		1		false		            1      Nothing else at this time.				false

		729						LN		29		2		false		            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  Mr.				false

		730						LN		29		3		false		            3      Aramburu?				false

		731						LN		29		4		false		            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Richard Aramburu for				false

		732						LN		29		5		false		            5      Tri-Cities CARES.  A couple of issues.  Number one, I				false

		733						LN		29		6		false		            6      appreciate that the EFSEC Council does meet once a month,				false

		734						LN		29		7		false		            7      but with no objections to the Applicant's request, I				false

		735						LN		29		8		false		            8      don't know why we necessarily need to wait for that				false

		736						LN		29		9		false		            9      period of time.  Isn't there some process available so				false

		737						LN		29		10		false		           10      that we can have a more rapid decision about that?  That				false

		738						LN		29		11		false		           11      would be the request that's coming from me so we know				false

		739						LN		29		12		false		           12      where we are.				false

		740						LN		29		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Let me address that				false

		741						LN		29		14		false		           14      right away, Mr. Aramburu, and just say it's possible that				false

		742						LN		29		15		false		           15      there would be a special meeting, but Mr. Thompson would				false

		743						LN		29		16		false		           16      have to work with the Chair and indicate whether or not				false

		744						LN		29		17		false		           17      we can waive notice periods or give special notice				false

		745						LN		29		18		false		           18      periods, so there are still laws to comply with to get				false

		746						LN		29		19		false		           19      things done ahead of April 19th and clarify the dates for				false

		747						LN		29		20		false		           20      us.  I'm sure Mr. Thompson hearing that concern, if he				false

		748						LN		29		21		false		           21      hasn't already, had that motion as making notes and will				false

		749						LN		29		22		false		           22      be reaching out to the Chair shortly after we hang up				false

		750						LN		29		23		false		           23      today.  So that's in the cards as well if it can be				false

		751						LN		29		24		false		           24      accelerated.  And if there truly is no objection, the				false

		752						LN		29		25		false		           25      Applicant is just getting that filed today.  We do need				false

		753						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		754						LN		30		1		false		            1      to give all the other parties an opportunity to respond				false

		755						LN		30		2		false		            2      and see.  I don't want to assume that anybody on the line				false

		756						LN		30		3		false		            3      here today that's a party to this matter won't have a				false

		757						LN		30		4		false		            4      concern or objection.  There may be one that we haven't				false

		758						LN		30		5		false		            5      thought about or hasn't been voiced yet.				false

		759						LN		30		6		false		            6          All right.  So on to the other pieces of prefiled				false

		760						LN		30		7		false		            7      testimony, Mr. Aramburu.				false

		761						LN		30		8		false		            8                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I agree with some of				false

		762						LN		30		9		false		            9      the other parties that the agenda for prefiled testimony				false

		763						LN		30		10		false		           10      is aggressive.  I think we should be looking at dates for				false

		764						LN		30		11		false		           11      testimony in -- testimony submission, in perhaps mid to				false

		765						LN		30		12		false		           12      late June.				false

		766						LN		30		13		false		           13          One of the other concerns that we have had has to do				false

		767						LN		30		14		false		           14      with the preparation of the final environmental impact				false

		768						LN		30		15		false		           15      statement.  We believe that the final impact statement				false

		769						LN		30		16		false		           16      should be available during the time the testimony is				false

		770						LN		30		17		false		           17      prepared, not after.  So we would like to see if a				false

		771						LN		30		18		false		           18      schedule can be worked out to have that testimony -- or				false

		772						LN		30		19		false		           19      have that document ready at the time we go into our				false

		773						LN		30		20		false		           20      filing of testimony.  That would be another request.				false

		774						LN		30		21		false		           21          Regarding the timing, and I appreciate, Judge Torem,				false

		775						LN		30		22		false		           22      us being active during this interim time, additional time				false

		776						LN		30		23		false		           23      we may have.  I do think there are some motions that				false

		777						LN		30		24		false		           24      perhaps will be filed.  I also think there may be some				false

		778						LN		30		25		false		           25      discovery that some of the parties would like.  I think				false

		779						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		780						LN		31		1		false		            1      some of that can take place in the next month or so.  It				false

		781						LN		31		2		false		            2      might be having some productive time available to us at				false

		782						LN		31		3		false		            3      that point.				false

		783						LN		31		4		false		            4          Regarding the testimony, I think I am an advocate of				false

		784						LN		31		5		false		            5      all of the parties filing at the same time and responses				false

		785						LN		31		6		false		            6      and replies for -- there may be some issues that will				false

		786						LN		31		7		false		            7      come up that a party will be filing on the subject matter				false

		787						LN		31		8		false		            8      and that the Applicant is not filing on at all.  So from				false

		788						LN		31		9		false		            9      that standpoint, getting the direct testimony in at one				false

		789						LN		31		10		false		           10      time, and having responses and replies, I think, is the				false

		790						LN		31		11		false		           11      preferable way to proceed.  So those are my thoughts.				false

		791						LN		31		12		false		           12      The 28/21 day agenda or schedule for submission of				false

		792						LN		31		13		false		           13      testimony is probably fine.  So those are my thoughts.				false

		793						LN		31		14		false		           14      Thank you.				false

		794						LN		31		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Mr. Aramburu.				false

		795						LN		31		16		false		           16      And I know you have been through this before, so it's not				false

		796						LN		31		17		false		           17      that I'm giving it any additional weight, but I know you				false

		797						LN		31		18		false		           18      are commenting from a position of been there and done				false

		798						LN		31		19		false		           19      that, and I appreciate that the insight is there.				false

		799						LN		31		20		false		           20          I think I do agree with all the parties' concerns				false

		800						LN		31		21		false		           21      about being ready to file next month.  The applicant has				false

		801						LN		31		22		false		           22      said that, and may have a better idea of a list of				false

		802						LN		31		23		false		           23      witnesses, but I do hope everybody on the line is getting				false

		803						LN		31		24		false		           24      ready and identifying witnesses now.  And as Mr. Aramburu				false

		804						LN		31		25		false		           25      stated, starting to do the drafting of any motions you				false

		805						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		806						LN		32		1		false		            1      think might be necessary on a sooner rather than later				false

		807						LN		32		2		false		            2      basis, and, frankly, any informal discovery that can be				false

		808						LN		32		3		false		            3      done until we establish the actual rules that will apply				false

		809						LN		32		4		false		            4      beyond those that are in the law and the Administrative				false

		810						LN		32		5		false		            5      Procedures Act of RCW 34.05, and those that are already				false

		811						LN		32		6		false		            6      adopted for EFSEC practice I think within WAC 463.  I				false

		812						LN		32		7		false		            7      don't have the exact citation off the top of my head.				false

		813						LN		32		8		false		            8      It's been a few years.  Look at those rules.  That's what				false

		814						LN		32		9		false		            9      applies now if you are going to ask for formal discovery				false

		815						LN		32		10		false		           10      until we adopt specific procedures for this adjudication,				false

		816						LN		32		11		false		           11      that WAC will govern and hopefully all parties will				false

		817						LN		32		12		false		           12      adhere to those deadlines that are set in the WAC until				false

		818						LN		32		13		false		           13      we can figure out any special accommodations for this				false

		819						LN		32		14		false		           14      Horse Heaven adjudication.				false

		820						LN		32		15		false		           15          I wish I could tell you we could resolve everything				false

		821						LN		32		16		false		           16      about the prefiled testimony today under Item No. 4, but				false

		822						LN		32		17		false		           17      I don't think we should or will given the breathing room				false

		823						LN		32		18		false		           18      that we are being offered by the Applicant's extension				false

		824						LN		32		19		false		           19      request that's announced to all of us today.				false

		825						LN		32		20		false		           20          I want to skip over the disputed issues list until				false

		826						LN		32		21		false		           21      we have our first break because I don't think it does us				false

		827						LN		32		22		false		           22      any favors to start on that and then have to stop for a				false

		828						LN		32		23		false		           23      ten minute comfort and court reporter rest break.				false

		829						LN		32		24		false		           24          I think if we go for another 15 or 20 minutes and				false

		830						LN		32		25		false		           25      talk a little bit more about discovery, and maybe even				false

		831						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		832						LN		33		1		false		            1      the schedule for our next prehearing conference that that				false

		833						LN		33		2		false		            2      would be productive use of our time in the next 15 to 20				false

		834						LN		33		3		false		            3      minutes.				false

		835						LN		33		4		false		            4          So let's turn to Item No. 6, the discovery.  As I				false

		836						LN		33		5		false		            5      have already covered, there's informal discovery				false

		837						LN		33		6		false		            6      available under the Administrative Procedures Act.  And I				false

		838						LN		33		7		false		            7      have listed three different adjudications from past				false

		839						LN		33		8		false		            8      experience.  The Kittitas Valley wind power project,				false

		840						LN		33		9		false		            9      which I presided over.  The Whispering Ridge project that				false

		841						LN		33		10		false		           10      I believe that Bob Wallace was the ALJ on that one.  And				false

		842						LN		33		11		false		           11      then Cassandra Noble, I believe, presided over the Tesoro				false

		843						LN		33		12		false		           12      Vancouver Energy project.  Each of us probably issued				false

		844						LN		33		13		false		           13      different prehearing conference orders with slightly				false

		845						LN		33		14		false		           14      different discovery practices.				false

		846						LN		33		15		false		           15          I wish I could tell you that I had time to read all				false

		847						LN		33		16		false		           16      three of those orders before today's proceeding, but I				false

		848						LN		33		17		false		           17      have not.  I just know notionally how it went the last				false

		849						LN		33		18		false		           18      time I had been in complex adjudication before this				false

		850						LN		33		19		false		           19      Council, as well as other proceedings I have been				false

		851						LN		33		20		false		           20      involved in.				false

		852						LN		33		21		false		           21          I wanted to hear from all five parties on what your				false

		853						LN		33		22		false		           22      thoughts are for any special needs for discovery that				false

		854						LN		33		23		false		           23      aren't addressed in one of those three orders, or if				false

		855						LN		33		24		false		           24      there's something in one of those three orders and you				false

		856						LN		33		25		false		           25      have had a chance to look at it and I haven't that you				false

		857						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		858						LN		34		1		false		            1      want to call my attention to, or just out of the WAC 463				false

		859						LN		34		2		false		            2      provision if there's any need to tailor those for this				false

		860						LN		34		3		false		            3      adjudication.  So, Ms. Chase, I am going to come back to				false

		861						LN		34		4		false		            4      you to start us off.				false

		862						LN		34		5		false		            5                        MS. CHASE:  Sure.  Thank you, Judge				false

		863						LN		34		6		false		            6      Torem.  I think Applicant's view is that informal -- or				false

		864						LN		34		7		false		            7      discovery is likely not particularly necessary here, but				false

		865						LN		34		8		false		            8      we understand that the current WAC and other provisions				false

		866						LN		34		9		false		            9      apply to operate informal discovery, and we will				false

		867						LN		34		10		false		           10      cooperate as contemplated by those items.  I think our				false

		868						LN		34		11		false		           11      view is that the procedure in the Kittitas Valley, and				false

		869						LN		34		12		false		           12      I'm looking at the order on discovery procedures,				false

		870						LN		34		13		false		           13      prehearing order number eight that you provided the				false

		871						LN		34		14		false		           14      parties, or referred the parties to in connection with				false

		872						LN		34		15		false		           15      your -- your agenda last week.  I think that makes sense				false

		873						LN		34		16		false		           16      to encourage the parties to cooperate informally if we				false

		874						LN		34		17		false		           17      are going to have informal discovery, and you serve as				false

		875						LN		34		18		false		           18      the presiding officer if there are formal discovery				false

		876						LN		34		19		false		           19      issues that need to be resolved.				false

		877						LN		34		20		false		           20          And I think the other note that we would make is				false

		878						LN		34		21		false		           21      that, in our view, the use of the prefiled testimony				false

		879						LN		34		22		false		           22      largely supplants some of the other items that you might				false

		880						LN		34		23		false		           23      need discovery for, so that's just a comment about how				false

		881						LN		34		24		false		           24      the parties will be working together in advance of the				false

		882						LN		34		25		false		           25      adjudication to narrow the issues and the scope of items				false

		883						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		884						LN		35		1		false		            1      to be discussed with the prefiled written testimony.				false

		885						LN		35		2		false		            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Chase, let me ask, I				false

		886						LN		35		3		false		            3      think all the parties may have a concern with wanting to				false

		887						LN		35		4		false		            4      do maybe some formal discovery, such as the discovery				false

		888						LN		35		5		false		            5      deposition of some witnesses.  I know it's an incredible				false

		889						LN		35		6		false		            6      expense, and trying to get people together to do those				false

		890						LN		35		7		false		            7      kind of things, particularly when you have prefiled				false

		891						LN		35		8		false		            8      testimony that allows for the preparation of any				false

		892						LN		35		9		false		            9      cross-exam, but I believe there have been some limited				false

		893						LN		35		10		false		           10      discovery depositions authorized in the past, or at least				false

		894						LN		35		11		false		           11      agreed to by parties in these types of matters.  I don't				false

		895						LN		35		12		false		           12      remember them necessarily in the Kittitas Valley case.				false

		896						LN		35		13		false		           13          Has the Applicant had any experience where their				false

		897						LN		35		14		false		           14      witnesses have been subjected to a pre-adjudication				false

		898						LN		35		15		false		           15      discovery deposition on or before the prefiled testimony				false

		899						LN		35		16		false		           16      came in?				false

		900						LN		35		17		false		           17                        MR. MCMAHON:  Your Honor, Tim McMahan,				false

		901						LN		35		18		false		           18      here for the record.  Having been involved in Wild Horse,				false

		902						LN		35		19		false		           19      Kittitas Valley, Whistling Ridge, in none of those cases				false

		903						LN		35		20		false		           20      have pre -- have the parties been allowed or have even				false

		904						LN		35		21		false		           21      requested really, there was some request for discovery in				false

		905						LN		35		22		false		           22      the Kittitas Valley case with depositions, but that did				false

		906						LN		35		23		false		           23      not end up being as necessary or allowed.  You know, if				false

		907						LN		35		24		false		           24      you are asking about experience in prior EFSEC				false

		908						LN		35		25		false		           25      proceedings, I don't recall that ever occurring.  And it				false

		909						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		910						LN		36		1		false		            1      was considered to be a successful process to engage in				false

		911						LN		36		2		false		            2      informal discovery.  And as Ms. Chase indicates, the				false

		912						LN		36		3		false		            3      prefiled testimony largely, I believe, supplants the need				false

		913						LN		36		4		false		            4      for much of that.				false

		914						LN		36		5		false		            5          The only use of the depositions that I can recall				false

		915						LN		36		6		false		            6      was after the Kittitas Valley case was actually				false

		916						LN		36		7		false		            7      completed, and there were pre -- there were depositions				false

		917						LN		36		8		false		            8      taken prior to submittal of the record to the Washington				false

		918						LN		36		9		false		            9      State Supreme Court.  And those depositions had a lot to				false

		919						LN		36		10		false		           10      do with accusations of ex parte contact and inappropriate				false

		920						LN		36		11		false		           11      behaviors which were pretty soundly rejected by the				false

		921						LN		36		12		false		           12      Washington State Supreme Court.				false

		922						LN		36		13		false		           13          Again, I have not participated in actual cases where				false

		923						LN		36		14		false		           14      depositions were taken in lieu of informal discovery.				false

		924						LN		36		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, did you				false

		925						LN		36		16		false		           16      participate in the Whispering Ridge matter?				false

		926						LN		36		17		false		           17                        MR. MCMAHAN:  I did.				false

		927						LN		36		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I had a notion				false

		928						LN		36		19		false		           19      from staff or other things that I had heard about that				false

		929						LN		36		20		false		           20      case that maybe there had been formal discovery and				false

		930						LN		36		21		false		           21      depositions taken, but it's been many years ago so maybe				false

		931						LN		36		22		false		           22      memories are a little foggy.				false

		932						LN		36		23		false		           23                        MR. MCMAHAN:  Well, I don't recall				false

		933						LN		36		24		false		           24      that happening with Whispering Ridge.				false

		934						LN		36		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  I was referring to --				false

		935						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		936						LN		37		1		false		            1      it's my recollection that I wasn't directly involved so				false

		937						LN		37		2		false		            2      who knows.  I don't know for sure what happened, but				false

		938						LN		37		3		false		            3      there are other parties, and Mr. Aramburu I will come to				false

		939						LN		37		4		false		            4      you shortly, but I don't want you to -- I don't mean to				false

		940						LN		37		5		false		            5      encourage that parties should be seeking this kind of				false

		941						LN		37		6		false		            6      discovery simply because it will eat up more time and				false

		942						LN		37		7		false		            7      cause more expense.  And I do believe this practice of				false

		943						LN		37		8		false		            8      having everybody put their cards on their table up front				false

		944						LN		37		9		false		            9      avoids the need to prefile testimony for most, if not				false

		945						LN		37		10		false		           10      all, depositions of parties until you at least read what				false

		946						LN		37		11		false		           11      they are going to be saying, if you think that there's				false

		947						LN		37		12		false		           12      more that you need to get, then we can talk about a				false

		948						LN		37		13		false		           13      motion for additional inquiry or essentially voir dire a				false

		949						LN		37		14		false		           14      witness in an efficient manner that allows for the				false

		950						LN		37		15		false		           15      information for all parties to prepare for the				false

		951						LN		37		16		false		           16      adjudication.				false

		952						LN		37		17		false		           17          Mr. Aramburu, you were going to maybe enlighten us				false

		953						LN		37		18		false		           18      on your experience?				false

		954						LN		37		19		false		           19                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Yes.  Mr. McMahan and I				false

		955						LN		37		20		false		           20      were involved in the Whispering Ridge case.  There were				false

		956						LN		37		21		false		           21      some discovery issues there but there were not				false

		957						LN		37		22		false		           22      depositions that were taken in that case.  I will just				false

		958						LN		37		23		false		           23      wait until I'm called on for other issues.				false

		959						LN		37		24		false		           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  I will tell you what, I				false

		960						LN		37		25		false		           25      will call on you now since you are already thinking about				false

		961						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		962						LN		38		1		false		            1      it.  Go ahead, Mr. Aramburu.				false

		963						LN		38		2		false		            2                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Well, I don't want to				false

		964						LN		38		3		false		            3      cut in line here.  So for the issue of discovery, again,				false

		965						LN		38		4		false		            4      I think opportunity for depositions should be given, but				false

		966						LN		38		5		false		            5      I think they are of limited use here.  More often we have				false

		967						LN		38		6		false		            6      witnesses that are preparing and need information from				false

		968						LN		38		7		false		            7      the Applicant or perhaps from another party.  And there				false

		969						LN		38		8		false		            8      would be requests for documents, data requests, those				false

		970						LN		38		9		false		            9      kinds of things.  That's what's more likely here as our				false

		971						LN		38		10		false		           10      witnesses prepare.  So on the subject of discovery I				false

		972						LN		38		11		false		           11      think we should have an opportunity for that kind of				false

		973						LN		38		12		false		           12      discovery formal or informal.  And perhaps we start with				false

		974						LN		38		13		false		           13      informal discovery where you make documents available et				false

		975						LN		38		14		false		           14      cetera, et cetera, and then if we ran into problems we				false

		976						LN		38		15		false		           15      can go into more detail procedures connected with				false

		977						LN		38		16		false		           16      discovery, including motions.  So that's my thought on				false

		978						LN		38		17		false		           17      that.				false

		979						LN		38		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And I				false

		980						LN		38		19		false		           19      appreciate, Mr. Aramburu, the insights there because I				false

		981						LN		38		20		false		           20      know in my day job as Board of Industrial Insurance				false

		982						LN		38		21		false		           21      Appeals industrial appeals judge, if that's not a				false

		983						LN		38		22		false		           22      mouthful, I typically rely on perpetuation depositions				false

		984						LN		38		23		false		           23      for the expert testimony, and that is the testimony that				false

		985						LN		38		24		false		           24      comes in.  So sometimes counsel perform discovery				false

		986						LN		38		25		false		           25      depositions before they are ready to cross-examine a				false

		987						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		988						LN		39		1		false		            1      witness they haven't seen before, but I -- in this				false

		989						LN		39		2		false		            2      context, I don't think so that same practice adds the				false

		990						LN		39		3		false		            3      value that it does in the Labor & Industries practice.				false

		991						LN		39		4		false		            4          So I would -- at risk of wondering what the other				false

		992						LN		39		5		false		            5      parties are going to say, concur with what you have				false

		993						LN		39		6		false		            6      indicated so far.  I think the parties can get most of it				false

		994						LN		39		7		false		            7      done, especially on a more relaxed schedule we are				false

		995						LN		39		8		false		            8      anticipating informally.				false

		996						LN		39		9		false		            9          Let me turn to Ms. Reyneveld and see if in your				false

		997						LN		39		10		false		           10      experience, Ms. Reyneveld, if you are anticipating any				false

		998						LN		39		11		false		           11      formal discovery or any special needs?				false

		999						LN		39		12		false		           12                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Counsel for the				false

		1000						LN		39		13		false		           13      Environment agrees with the informal discovery procedures				false

		1001						LN		39		14		false		           14      under the APA and proceeding with more formal discovery				false

		1002						LN		39		15		false		           15      only if necessary.				false

		1003						LN		39		16		false		           16          I also practiced before the Board of Industrial				false

		1004						LN		39		17		false		           17      Insurance Appeals for about nine years representing L&I				false

		1005						LN		39		18		false		           18      so I did take many discovery depositions in that context,				false

		1006						LN		39		19		false		           19      but I don't anticipate taking pre-adjudication discovery				false

		1007						LN		39		20		false		           20      depositions in this context just because of the prefiled				false

		1008						LN		39		21		false		           21      testimony requirement and the nature of prefiled				false

		1009						LN		39		22		false		           22      testimony.  And the Counsel for the Environment doesn't				false

		1010						LN		39		23		false		           23      anticipate any special discovery needs or preferences for				false

		1011						LN		39		24		false		           24      this adjudication at this time.				false

		1012						LN		39		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,				false

		1013						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1014						LN		40		1		false		            1      Ms. Reyneveld.				false

		1015						LN		40		2		false		            2          Mr. Harper, for the County?				false

		1016						LN		40		3		false		            3                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton				false

		1017						LN		40		4		false		            4      County.  Your Honor, I think it seems like kind of a				false

		1018						LN		40		5		false		            5      consensus is emerging, and I am not going to dissent.  We				false

		1019						LN		40		6		false		            6      don't see a great likelihood of any special needs for				false

		1020						LN		40		7		false		            7      discovery, any special preferences for discovery.  I				false

		1021						LN		40		8		false		            8      can't foreclose the possibility of some pre-adjudication				false

		1022						LN		40		9		false		            9      deposition, but it doesn't seem like that's going to be				false

		1023						LN		40		10		false		           10      the direction that the County goes.  So, Your Honor, I				false

		1024						LN		40		11		false		           11      think we are pretty comfortable with relying on good				false

		1025						LN		40		12		false		           12      faith and APA-based discovery concepts.  I will just				false

		1026						LN		40		13		false		           13      leave it at that unless you have any questions, Judge.				false

		1027						LN		40		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  I don't.  Let me hear				false

		1028						LN		40		15		false		           15      from Ms. Voelckers and then we will kind of -- I will				false

		1029						LN		40		16		false		           16      give you my thoughts on how we might handle any disputes				false

		1030						LN		40		17		false		           17      in discovery, which I will say up front judges hate.  Ms.				false

		1031						LN		40		18		false		           18      Voelckers?				false

		1032						LN		40		19		false		           19                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1033						LN		40		20		false		           20      I would like to share a few thoughts and just acknowledge				false

		1034						LN		40		21		false		           21      that a few of the terms being used are not ones I'm as				false

		1035						LN		40		22		false		           22      familiar with, so I might be imprecise in my language				false

		1036						LN		40		23		false		           23      here in terms of formal or informal.  We agree with the				false

		1037						LN		40		24		false		           24      statement that was made earlier that there's likely not a				false

		1038						LN		40		25		false		           25      need to depose witnesses before they file their written				false

		1039						PG		41		0		false		page 41				false

		1040						LN		41		1		false		            1      testimony, but we would like to reserve the right to file				false

		1041						LN		41		2		false		            2      pre-adjudication depositions of witnesses that have				false

		1042						LN		41		3		false		            3      submitted testimony and we would like to see that				false

		1043						LN		41		4		false		            4      testimony before we make that decision.  There might be				false

		1044						LN		41		5		false		            5      an instance where we would be asking to depose a witness				false

		1045						LN		41		6		false		            6      after they have filed their direct testimony.				false

		1046						LN		41		7		false		            7          The other areas of discovery we are interested in				false

		1047						LN		41		8		false		            8      are data requests, as Mr. Aramburu mentioned, more so				false

		1048						LN		41		9		false		            9      than depositions, but we do think we might need to depose				false

		1049						LN		41		10		false		           10      one or two third party witnesses, given the lack of a				false

		1050						LN		41		11		false		           11      final EIS to have as part of the record.  So likely to be				false

		1051						LN		41		12		false		           12      technical staff on impacts of the project.  The technical				false

		1052						LN		41		13		false		           13      staff that carry knowledge that's important to this case,				false

		1053						LN		41		14		false		           14      such as WDFW.				false

		1054						LN		41		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So if I				false

		1055						LN		41		16		false		           16      understand you correctly, the Yakama Tribe would concur				false

		1056						LN		41		17		false		           17      that informal discovery will likely work for most things,				false

		1057						LN		41		18		false		           18      but once you see the first round of prefiled testimony				false

		1058						LN		41		19		false		           19      you might want to file a data request before you file				false

		1059						LN		41		20		false		           20      your responsive testimony to flesh something out; is that				false

		1060						LN		41		21		false		           21      an understanding, first?				false

		1061						LN		41		22		false		           22                        MS. VOELCKERS:  I think, Your Honor,				false

		1062						LN		41		23		false		           23      need to, I think, clarify my statement further.  So the				false

		1063						LN		41		24		false		           24      two types of discovery we anticipate would be data				false

		1064						LN		41		25		false		           25      requests or some limited number of depositions.  And as				false

		1065						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1066						LN		42		1		false		            1      for depositions of witnesses of other parties, we would				false

		1067						LN		42		2		false		            2      not request those until their direct, you know,				false

		1068						LN		42		3		false		            3      prewritten, direct written testimony has been submitted.				false

		1069						LN		42		4		false		            4      In the meantime, though, we would potentially be				false

		1070						LN		42		5		false		            5      requesting data in depositions of third parties,				false

		1071						LN		42		6		false		            6      specifically technical staff with expertise on the impact				false

		1072						LN		42		7		false		            7      of the project.				false

		1073						LN		42		8		false		            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  I wanted to ask you				false

		1074						LN		42		9		false		            9      about that second point separately.  When you say third				false

		1075						LN		42		10		false		           10      parties that may imply to me, at least, that we are not				false

		1076						LN		42		11		false		           11      talking about a witness being sponsored or called by any				false

		1077						LN		42		12		false		           12      of the other four parties that might have interests				false

		1078						LN		42		13		false		           13      different from or adverse to the Tribe.  You mentioned				false

		1079						LN		42		14		false		           14      the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, WDFW, as				false

		1080						LN		42		15		false		           15      a potential party that you might want to seek a				false

		1081						LN		42		16		false		           16      deposition from.  And I would have to, I think, tell you				false

		1082						LN		42		17		false		           17      I may not have the jurisdiction to, you know, force them				false

		1083						LN		42		18		false		           18      to testify in this matter, or, you know, be in a position				false

		1084						LN		42		19		false		           19      to exclude testimony as a penalty for failing to respond				false

		1085						LN		42		20		false		           20      to a request or a deposition discovery request.				false

		1086						LN		42		21		false		           21          So I'm also trying to think from the perspective of				false

		1087						LN		42		22		false		           22      who is really at the table here to present evidence, and				false

		1088						LN		42		23		false		           23      what do you really need for the adjudication issues, and				false

		1089						LN		42		24		false		           24      then what are other issues that the Tribe may think need				false

		1090						LN		42		25		false		           25      to be covered through either its independent consultation				false

		1091						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1092						LN		43		1		false		            1      rights or through the SEPA process, which are separate				false

		1093						LN		43		2		false		            2      and apart from what we are doing here in the				false

		1094						LN		43		3		false		            3      adjudication.  So I don't say that to prejudge.  It's not				false

		1095						LN		43		4		false		            4      a no by any means, but it's tell me more if and when that				false

		1096						LN		43		5		false		            5      comes up so that I can decide is it something within the				false

		1097						LN		43		6		false		            6      gambit of an administrative law judge for EFSEC with an				false

		1098						LN		43		7		false		            7      adjudication, or is that a decision that I have to defer				false

		1099						LN		43		8		false		            8      and essentially say no, I don't have the power to grant				false

		1100						LN		43		9		false		            9      what you are questioning, and figure out what other				false

		1101						LN		43		10		false		           10      alternate relief would allow the Tribe to feel that they				false

		1102						LN		43		11		false		           11      have had their day in court, not only in the				false

		1103						LN		43		12		false		           12      adjudication, but before the Council makes its ultimate				false

		1104						LN		43		13		false		           13      recommendation, which includes some other moving parts				false

		1105						LN		43		14		false		           14      that are not part of the adjudication.  Fair enough?				false

		1106						LN		43		15		false		           15                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes.  Thank you, Your				false

		1107						LN		43		16		false		           16      Honor.				false

		1108						LN		43		17		false		           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So when we				false

		1109						LN		43		18		false		           18      get to that portion of any more formal discovery, and,				false

		1110						LN		43		19		false		           19      again, when I use that term, Ms. Voelckers, I'm thinking				false

		1111						LN		43		20		false		           20      in my mind about things that would happen under the Civil				false

		1112						LN		43		21		false		           21      Rules, such as formal interrogatories, requests for				false

		1113						LN		43		22		false		           22      production, requests for admission, or the actual				false

		1114						LN		43		23		false		           23      discovery depositions we have been talking about this				false

		1115						LN		43		24		false		           24      morning, or this afternoon.  I forgot, it's 2:30.				false

		1116						LN		43		25		false		           25          All right.  So, Counsel, it sounds like a discovery				false

		1117						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1118						LN		44		1		false		            1      process can be adapted from what I have done previously				false

		1119						LN		44		2		false		            2      in the Kittitas Valley process.  I remember there were				false

		1120						LN		44		3		false		            3      motion practice in that case that I had to discover				false

		1121						LN		44		4		false		            4      some -- or make some decisions.  They were motions to				false

		1122						LN		44		5		false		            5      strike testimony.  There were motions to disqualify				false

		1123						LN		44		6		false		            6      council members.  There were a variety of things that				false

		1124						LN		44		7		false		            7      happened.  It wasn't quite everything under the sun, but				false

		1125						LN		44		8		false		            8      it was an expansive and thorough, you know, weighing of				false

		1126						LN		44		9		false		            9      issue before we even go to the adjudication.  So we will				false

		1127						LN		44		10		false		           10      talk a little bit more about the timelines at another				false

		1128						LN		44		11		false		           11      prehearing conference, I think, once -- and maybe like				false

		1129						LN		44		12		false		           12      Mr. Aramburu said, maybe we will have a decision or at				false

		1130						LN		44		13		false		           13      least a pending council meeting before April 19th to				false

		1131						LN		44		14		false		           14      specially decide once we all see the extension request				false

		1132						LN		44		15		false		           15      filed by the Applicant today.				false

		1133						LN		44		16		false		           16          Before we take our break, I want to ask everybody to				false

		1134						LN		44		17		false		           17      look at their calendar and see if next week a shorter				false

		1135						LN		44		18		false		           18      period of time on Monday afternoon might be available to				false

		1136						LN		44		19		false		           19      meet again and wrap up these issues and maybe by then I				false

		1137						LN		44		20		false		           20      will have had a moment to come back with new timelines				false

		1138						LN		44		21		false		           21      when the Council might be available and have a chance to				false

		1139						LN		44		22		false		           22      look at your notices of unavailability, and, frankly, to				false

		1140						LN		44		23		false		           23      see how many of those requests can be accommodated and				false

		1141						LN		44		24		false		           24      fit into the notional new schedule of getting a				false

		1142						LN		44		25		false		           25      recommendation out by September 30th.  My schedule next				false

		1143						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1144						LN		45		1		false		            1      Monday doesn't really allow any time before the noon				false

		1145						LN		45		2		false		            2      hour, and I have a 1:30 hearing that would have had me in				false

		1146						LN		45		3		false		            3      Moses Lake but the parties have agreed to do it by Zoom.				false

		1147						LN		45		4		false		            4      I doubt very much it's going to take more than 60 minutes				false

		1148						LN		45		5		false		            5      to take one witness' testimony, so I think I could				false

		1149						LN		45		6		false		            6      available at 2:30 or 2:45 to have a much shorter				false

		1150						LN		45		7		false		            7      prehearing conference and nail down dates.				false

		1151						LN		45		8		false		            8          I hope that's not too optimistic, but if we nailed a				false

		1152						LN		45		9		false		            9      schedule down next Monday afternoon for the hearing, with				false

		1153						LN		45		10		false		           10      the contingency of knowing that the Council is going to				false

		1154						LN		45		11		false		           11      meet to approve this extension request, if we go on that				false

		1155						LN		45		12		false		           12      assumption, who is available Monday afternoon the 27th of				false

		1156						LN		45		13		false		           13      March at 2:45?  Would the Applicant be available?				false

		1157						LN		45		14		false		           14                        MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, yes,				false

		1158						LN		45		15		false		           15      Applicant would be available.				false

		1159						LN		45		16		false		           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  And let me put a bumper				false

		1160						LN		45		17		false		           17      on the end time of that of 4:30, so that when you are				false

		1161						LN		45		18		false		           18      saying yes you would be available, you know, I'm hoping				false

		1162						LN		45		19		false		           19      that we will be done by four, but if I go to 4:30 is that				false

		1163						LN		45		20		false		           20      still a yes, Ms. Chase?				false

		1164						LN		45		21		false		           21                        MS. CHASE:  It is a still a yes for				false

		1165						LN		45		22		false		           22      Applicant.  Thank you.				false

		1166						LN		45		23		false		           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, would				false

		1167						LN		45		24		false		           24      your schedule accommodate that?				false

		1168						LN		45		25		false		           25                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, my schedule would				false

		1169						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1170						LN		46		1		false		            1      accommodate that.  Thank you, Judge.				false

		1171						LN		46		2		false		            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.				false

		1172						LN		46		3		false		            3      Aramburu?				false

		1173						LN		46		4		false		            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  That would -- 2:30 to				false

		1174						LN		46		5		false		            5      4:00, that would work with my schedule.  Thank you.				false

		1175						LN		46		6		false		            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  Specifically I'm looking				false

		1176						LN		46		7		false		            7      at 2:45 to 4:30.				false

		1177						LN		46		8		false		            8                        MR. ARAMBURU:  2:45 to 4:30, I will be				false

		1178						LN		46		9		false		            9      available.				false

		1179						LN		46		10		false		           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,				false

		1180						LN		46		11		false		           11      sir.  Ms. Voelckers?				false

		1181						LN		46		12		false		           12                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor, that				false

		1182						LN		46		13		false		           13      time works for me.				false

		1183						LN		46		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And, Mr.				false

		1184						LN		46		15		false		           15      Harper?				false

		1185						LN		46		16		false		           16                        MR. HARPER:  Unfortunately, Your				false

		1186						LN		46		17		false		           17      Honor, I have a problem.  Your Honor, that's the date				false

		1187						LN		46		18		false		           18      that we secured many months ago for a significant				false

		1188						LN		46		19		false		           19      mediation involving a number of attorneys.  If we could				false

		1189						LN		46		20		false		           20      revisit this perhaps after the break I may be able to				false

		1190						LN		46		21		false		           21      make some accommodations so that we could handle that on				false

		1191						LN		46		22		false		           22      the 27th.				false

		1192						LN		46		23		false		           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  What I will				false

		1193						LN		46		24		false		           24      offer you since there's a potential problem, if all the				false

		1194						LN		46		25		false		           25      parties would take a look at either the morning hours of				false

		1195						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1196						LN		47		1		false		            1      the next day, the 28th, the hearing that I have in the				false

		1197						LN		47		2		false		            2      Tri-Cities is scheduled to go from ten a.m. until three				false

		1198						LN		47		3		false		            3      p.m., so I have no objections to my old military hours as				false

		1199						LN		47		4		false		            4      early as 7:30, but I think the court reporter contract is				false

		1200						LN		47		5		false		            5      probably no earlier than eight.  We could do things from				false

		1201						LN		47		6		false		            6      eight to ten or somewhere in that range, or possibly I				false

		1202						LN		47		7		false		            7      would delay my return travel and we could do this between				false

		1203						LN		47		8		false		            8      three and five on the 28th.				false

		1204						LN		47		9		false		            9          My schedule after that gets a little more difficult,				false

		1205						LN		47		10		false		           10      but I think I have time also on the 30th between ten a.m.				false

		1206						LN		47		11		false		           11      and one p.m. that I could chew on two hours of time in.				false

		1207						LN		47		12		false		           12      Wednesday is out, and I have got another couple of things				false

		1208						LN		47		13		false		           13      cooking on the 31st.  Maybe we could do it on the morning				false

		1209						LN		47		14		false		           14      of the 31st as well.  So if other parties could check				false

		1210						LN		47		15		false		           15      their calendars again for a morning block of time, a				false

		1211						LN		47		16		false		           16      couple of hours in the afternoon on March 28th, Thursday				false

		1212						LN		47		17		false		           17      midday from ten to one on the 30th, and maybe eight to				false

		1213						LN		47		18		false		           18      10:30'ish on the 31st.  I will ask staff for our normal				false

		1214						LN		47		19		false		           19      check-in on this to maybe move it to 10:30 to accommodate				false

		1215						LN		47		20		false		           20      a prehearing conference if that's what we need to do.				false

		1216						LN		47		21		false		           21          Counsel, it's now 2:40.  I want to take break until				false

		1217						LN		47		22		false		           22      2:50 and give the court reporter a rest.  We will come				false

		1218						LN		47		23		false		           23      back at 2:50 and pick up with our discussion of the				false

		1219						LN		47		24		false		           24      disputed issues.  I know some emails came in earlier				false

		1220						LN		47		25		false		           25      today from several parties.  I think Ms. Voelckers and				false

		1221						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1222						LN		48		1		false		            1      and I think Counsel for the Environment submitted their				false

		1223						LN		48		2		false		            2      disputed issues this morning that I saw come in, so if				false

		1224						LN		48		3		false		            3      you haven't received those maybe reach out to other				false

		1225						LN		48		4		false		            4      counsel by email or pick up the phone while we are on				false

		1226						LN		48		5		false		            5      break, but I think it went out to everybody.				false

		1227						LN		48		6		false		            6          All right.  Will the court reporter show us off the				false

		1228						LN		48		7		false		            7      record.				false

		1229						LN		48		8		false		            8                             (Recess from 2:39 p.m.				false

		1230						LN		48		9		false		            9                               to 2:50 p.m.)				false

		1231						LN		48		10		false		           10				false

		1232						LN		48		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  I will do a quick roll				false

		1233						LN		48		12		false		           12      call.  Is Ms. Chase here for the Applicant?				false

		1234						LN		48		13		false		           13                        MS. CHASE:  Yes, Judge, this is Ms.				false

		1235						LN		48		14		false		           14      Chase.				false

		1236						LN		48		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  Mr. Harper				false

		1237						LN		48		16		false		           16      for the County?				false

		1238						LN		48		17		false		           17                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton				false

		1239						LN		48		18		false		           18      County present.				false

		1240						LN		48		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld?				false

		1241						LN		48		20		false		           20                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I am present.  Thank				false

		1242						LN		48		21		false		           21      you, Your Honor.				false

		1243						LN		48		22		false		           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers for the				false

		1244						LN		48		23		false		           23      Tribe?				false

		1245						LN		48		24		false		           24                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Shona Voelckers				false

		1246						LN		48		25		false		           25      present on behalf of Yakama Nation.				false

		1247						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1248						LN		49		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And Mr.				false

		1249						LN		49		2		false		            2      Aramburu for TCC?				false

		1250						LN		49		3		false		            3                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Present on behalf of				false

		1251						LN		49		4		false		            4      Tri-Cities CARES.				false

		1252						LN		49		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		1253						LN		49		6		false		            6      Mr. Harper, what did you find out about that schedule on				false

		1254						LN		49		7		false		            7      Monday the 27th?  Do you think that will that work or do				false

		1255						LN		49		8		false		            8      we need to look at an alternate date that week?				false

		1256						LN		49		9		false		            9                        MR. HARPER:  We can make it work, Your				false

		1257						LN		49		10		false		           10      Honor.				false

		1258						LN		49		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So Monday.  I				false

		1259						LN		49		12		false		           12      appreciate the accommodation.  It sounded like it might				false

		1260						LN		49		13		false		           13      have been a big lift, but I'm glad you got it done.				false

		1261						LN		49		14		false		           14      Let's count on then having a notice issued and I will				false

		1262						LN		49		15		false		           15      work with staff but tell you now on the record, at 2:45				false

		1263						LN		49		16		false		           16      p.m. we will get together next Monday and we will hope to				false

		1264						LN		49		17		false		           17      be done by four but will schedule it to end no later than				false

		1265						LN		49		18		false		           18      4:30 on March 27th.  And by then I hope to have feedback				false

		1266						LN		49		19		false		           19      from the Chair on potential venue concerns and, again,				false

		1267						LN		49		20		false		           20      have sorted out all of the unavailability orders as well.				false

		1268						LN		49		21		false		           21          Let's turn to the disputed issues list.  And, Ms.				false

		1269						LN		49		22		false		           22      Chase, did the Applicant submit anything since the last				false

		1270						LN		49		23		false		           23      prehearing conference?				false

		1271						LN		49		24		false		           24                        MS. CHASE:  No, Judge Torem, Applicant				false

		1272						LN		49		25		false		           25      has not submitted a disputed issues lists or anything on				false

		1273						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1274						LN		50		1		false		            1      this point since the last prehearing conference.  I think				false

		1275						LN		50		2		false		            2      Applicant's view is that the -- we have submitted the				false

		1276						LN		50		3		false		            3      application or prepared to defend the application and so				false

		1277						LN		50		4		false		            4      the specific issues in terms of the concerns about the				false

		1278						LN		50		5		false		            5      applications are for the other parties to identify.  And				false

		1279						LN		50		6		false		            6      just on that point that you just wrapped up, I wonder if				false

		1280						LN		50		7		false		            7      we have a prehearing conference on the 27th if it makes				false

		1281						LN		50		8		false		            8      sense for folks to submit their venue items on a shorter				false

		1282						LN		50		9		false		            9      timeline so that you can receive and consider those				false

		1283						LN		50		10		false		           10      before the prehearing conference?				false

		1284						LN		50		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  That is a				false

		1285						LN		50		12		false		           12      good point.  So let's circle back to that first.  How				false

		1286						LN		50		13		false		           13      soon do you think the Applicant would be ready to submit				false

		1287						LN		50		14		false		           14      their letter.				false

		1288						LN		50		15		false		           15                        MS. CHASE:  We can submit it by				false

		1289						LN		50		16		false		           16      Wednesday of this week or any other time this week that				false

		1290						LN		50		17		false		           17      works for the other parties.				false

		1291						LN		50		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And if we are				false

		1292						LN		50		19		false		           19      going to have feedback on that matter next Monday, and I				false

		1293						LN		50		20		false		           20      would hope to so we can decide maybe all of the				false

		1294						LN		50		21		false		           21      scheduling issues, that might be overly optimistic.  If				false

		1295						LN		50		22		false		           22      we give folks to the close of business today when we are				false

		1296						LN		50		23		false		           23      done, or close to, until say Thursday morning, that would				false

		1297						LN		50		24		false		           24      give two full days, tomorrow and Wednesday.  Does any				false

		1298						LN		50		25		false		           25      party have an objection to me having you turn in your				false

		1299						PG		51		0		false		page 51				false

		1300						LN		51		1		false		            1      venue discussion that we talked about earlier, that				false

		1301						LN		51		2		false		            2      letter by the morning of say 9:30 in the morning on				false

		1302						LN		51		3		false		            3      Thursday the 23rd of this month?  It sounds like the				false

		1303						LN		51		4		false		            4      Applicant is okay with that.				false

		1304						LN		51		5		false		            5          Would the County be okay with that, Mr. Harper?				false

		1305						LN		51		6		false		            6                        MR. HARPER:  Yes.  Ken Harper for the				false

		1306						LN		51		7		false		            7      County.				false

		1307						LN		51		8		false		            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers for the				false

		1308						LN		51		9		false		            9      Tribe, would that be sufficient time to get your venue				false

		1309						LN		51		10		false		           10      request, the concerns stated in a letter to me and to the				false

		1310						LN		51		11		false		           11      Chair?				false

		1311						LN		51		12		false		           12                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1312						LN		51		13		false		           13      We can do that by Thursday morning.				false

		1313						LN		51		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Ms. Reyneveld,				false

		1314						LN		51		15		false		           15      does that work for you?				false

		1315						LN		51		16		false		           16                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That will work for me.				false

		1316						LN		51		17		false		           17      Thank you, Judge.				false

		1317						LN		51		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.				false

		1318						LN		51		19		false		           19      Aramburu, will that work for you as well?				false

		1319						LN		51		20		false		           20                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Fine with us.				false

		1320						LN		51		21		false		           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So we are				false

		1321						LN		51		22		false		           22      accelerating that deadline to March 23rd, that's Thursday				false

		1322						LN		51		23		false		           23      at 9:30 a.m.  Thank you all for that.				false

		1323						LN		51		24		false		           24          On to the other point Ms. Chase raised.  I do				false

		1324						LN		51		25		false		           25      appreciate the approach of, hey, we filed the application				false
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		1329						LN		52		4		false		            4      correspondence from the Applicant in that regard, so				false
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		1366						LN		53		15		false		           15      have any objections or concerns with these issues.				false
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		1369						LN		53		18		false		           18      to on the five issues that Counsel for the Environment				false
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		1380						LN		54		3		false		            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  Well, Ms. Reyneveld, you				false
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		1382						LN		54		5		false		            5      substance from this group so that may bode well for how				false

		1383						LN		54		6		false		            6      the other ones look.  Thank you.  I will close that email				false
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		1392						LN		54		15		false		           15      Let me start with the procedural issues, and the first				false

		1393						LN		54		16		false		           16      one I see is looking at a SEPA question, and the second				false

		1394						LN		54		17		false		           17      is a timing issue under 80.50.100.  My thought initially				false
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		1408						LN		55		5		false		            5                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1409						LN		55		6		false		            6      I don't.  I do think that these should be handled through				false

		1410						LN		55		7		false		            7      motions practice.  I know that during the last prehearing				false
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		1418						LN		55		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  I would concur because				false

		1419						LN		55		16		false		           16      some of these look like they are jurisdictional.  I don't				false

		1420						LN		55		17		false		           17      know that they would be dispositive motions, but they are				false
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		1426						LN		55		23		false		           23      any of these issues, but we are creatures of statutes in				false
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		1431						LN		56		2		false		            2      might all consider whether a joint motion on some of				false
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		1433						LN		56		4		false		            4      the most efficient use of pleadings so you are not all				false
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		1473						LN		57		18		false		           18      time today, but I'm on the record here thinking out loud.				false
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		1480						LN		57		25		false		           25      a general environmental statement?				false

		1481						PG		58		0		false		page 58				false

		1482						LN		58		1		false		            1                        MS. VOELCKERS:  I think, Your Honor,				false
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		1499						LN		58		18		false		           18          And since the substantive issue is labeled				false
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		1502						LN		58		21		false		           21      opportunity to review them in as great a detail as to				false
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		1523						LN		59		16		false		           16      actually be.  Today I totally confess I was on the bench				false
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		1525						LN		59		18		false		           18      connect with the call, but that's about as much prep as I				false

		1526						LN		59		19		false		           19      got today, at least for those email that came in this				false
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		1548						LN		60		15		false		           15      early motion practice would be helpful.  And really I'm				false
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		1558						LN		60		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yep, I'm definitely				false

		1559						PG		61		0		false		page 61				false

		1560						LN		61		1		false		            1      hearing what the chorus is saying, and we have a little				false

		1561						LN		61		2		false		            2      bit more breathing room to establish and get that done.				false

		1562						LN		61		3		false		            3          All right.  Let me ask then, Ms. Reyneveld, any				false

		1563						LN		61		4		false		            4      thoughts on the tribal issues that were submitted today,				false

		1564						LN		61		5		false		            5      or comments that would guide me between now and our next				false

		1565						LN		61		6		false		            6      prehearing conference?				false

		1566						LN		61		7		false		            7                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I haven't had				false

		1567						LN		61		8		false		            8      sufficient time to review these to be able to provide any				false

		1568						LN		61		9		false		            9      sort of comprehensive thoughts or analysis, but from an				false

		1569						LN		61		10		false		           10      initial reading they look okay, but I would like some				false

		1570						LN		61		11		false		           11      additional time to review them.				false

		1571						LN		61		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And we are				false

		1572						LN		61		13		false		           13      all going to have some additional time to flesh out the				false

		1573						LN		61		14		false		           14      disputed issues.				false

		1574						LN		61		15		false		           15          Mr. Aramburu, any thoughts on the list that came in				false

		1575						LN		61		16		false		           16      this morning from Ms. Voelckers?				false

		1576						LN		61		17		false		           17                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I certainly have no				false

		1577						LN		61		18		false		           18      objections to it.  Of course we have similar issues that				false

		1578						LN		61		19		false		           19      we have raised.  We are in agreement with the procedural				false

		1579						LN		61		20		false		           20      issues certainly, and we raised issues of wildlife and				false

		1580						LN		61		21		false		           21      other things as well.  I think it does kind of raise the				false

		1581						LN		61		22		false		           22      question of what we are going to do with this issues				false

		1582						LN		61		23		false		           23      list.  Are we going to have a list that reflects -- is				false

		1583						LN		61		24		false		           24      there some consolidation that you have in mind, Judge				false

		1584						LN		61		25		false		           25      Torem?  Are we going to list the issues that have been				false

		1585						PG		62		0		false		page 62				false

		1586						LN		62		1		false		            1      brought up, sort of what happened, I guess, in Tesoro.  I				false

		1587						LN		62		2		false		            2      don't have any objection, but I kind of am wondering what				false

		1588						LN		62		3		false		            3      our exercise is here as we go through this.				false

		1589						LN		62		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, it's a				false

		1590						LN		62		5		false		            5      good question.  I am trying to decide which rocks I want				false

		1591						LN		62		6		false		            6      counsel to bring me, but, frankly, what I want to do is,				false

		1592						LN		62		7		false		            7      as you hinted, something that might have occurred in				false

		1593						LN		62		8		false		            8      previous adjudications where the judge sits down with				false

		1594						LN		62		9		false		            9      staff and tries to figure out where there might be				false

		1595						LN		62		10		false		           10      overlap, trying to figure out where there might be some				false

		1596						LN		62		11		false		           11      opportunity for simplification, and creating a way for				false

		1597						LN		62		12		false		           12      parties that have the same issue to maybe decide who				false

		1598						LN		62		13		false		           13      amongst them is taking the lead so that only one witness				false

		1599						LN		62		14		false		           14      is called jointly.				false

		1600						LN		62		15		false		           15          It may be that there's a need for somebody that --				false

		1601						LN		62		16		false		           16      let's take this Ferruginous hawk issue.  Maybe there are				false

		1602						LN		62		17		false		           17      competing experts, Tri-Cities CARES, the Yakama Nation,				false

		1603						LN		62		18		false		           18      and Counsel for the Environment all see that Ferruginous				false

		1604						LN		62		19		false		           19      hawk issue slightly different and we really need three				false

		1605						LN		62		20		false		           20      witnesses.  I may come back and say on that issue, for				false

		1606						LN		62		21		false		           21      instance, I see that all three parties are raising this.				false

		1607						LN		62		22		false		           22      It's been covered in the application.  We will find out				false

		1608						LN		62		23		false		           23      who the Applicant's witness is, and not to say that				false

		1609						LN		62		24		false		           24      there's not a fourth party that might also join in that,				false

		1610						LN		62		25		false		           25      but that's what I'm looking at doing, Mr. Aramburu, is				false
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		1612						LN		63		1		false		            1      trying to take these issues lists that have come in for				false

		1613						LN		63		2		false		            2      the first prehearing conference, and those in the				false

		1614						LN		63		3		false		            3      interval between March 10th and today, and see if I can				false

		1615						LN		63		4		false		            4      comb through this and come up with hey, this is what I				false

		1616						LN		63		5		false		            5      have heard so far, and put them into one comprehensive				false

		1617						LN		63		6		false		            6      list and send it back to the parties.  And it may be a				false

		1618						LN		63		7		false		            7      little ambitious to get it by next Monday afternoon, but				false

		1619						LN		63		8		false		            8      I do have some holes in the schedule this week that might				false

		1620						LN		63		9		false		            9      allow it.  If I can get those to you by close of the				false

		1621						LN		63		10		false		           10      week's business on Friday then you have will at least				false

		1622						LN		63		11		false		           11      Monday morning to look at that comprehensive list and we				false

		1623						LN		63		12		false		           12      will have further discussion about it, and you can tell				false

		1624						LN		63		13		false		           13      me if I'm missing anything.  You can tell me which issues				false

		1625						LN		63		14		false		           14      people might be aligned with to collaborate on a single				false

		1626						LN		63		15		false		           15      witness as opposed to two and three witnesses on a				false

		1627						LN		63		16		false		           16      similar topic.				false

		1628						LN		63		17		false		           17          Again, I don't want to portend I'm going to limit				false

		1629						LN		63		18		false		           18      anybody if their particular expert and we can agree you				false

		1630						LN		63		19		false		           19      want to hire the same one, or you think that two or three				false

		1631						LN		63		20		false		           20      experts on a topic will add to the record and help the				false

		1632						LN		63		21		false		           21      Council decide the issue.  I do think what I'm trying to				false

		1633						LN		63		22		false		           22      do is head off some motion practice from the Applicant or				false

		1634						LN		63		23		false		           23      other parties that might be moving to strike witnesses as				false

		1635						LN		63		24		false		           24      cumulative or duplicative.  By doing the work up front,				false

		1636						LN		63		25		false		           25      it may save me and all of you some work down the road.				false
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		1638						LN		64		1		false		            1          So I hope, Mr. Aramburu, those random thoughts from				false

		1639						LN		64		2		false		            2      the judge give you a little bit more guidance on what I'm				false

		1640						LN		64		3		false		            3      thinking.				false

		1641						LN		64		4		false		            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  They do.  Thank you.				false

		1642						LN		64		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think we				false

		1643						LN		64		6		false		            6      have covered everybody's response to both the Counsel for				false

		1644						LN		64		7		false		            7      the Environment and the Tribe's issues, so Mr. Aramburu				false

		1645						LN		64		8		false		            8      that brings us back to the email you filed, I think, on				false

		1646						LN		64		9		false		            9      Friday afternoon and then filed a supplemental correction				false

		1647						LN		64		10		false		           10      to on Saturday morning; is that right?				false

		1648						LN		64		11		false		           11                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Yes, spell check caught				false

		1649						LN		64		12		false		           12      me.				false

		1650						LN		64		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Fair enough.  I am going				false

		1651						LN		64		14		false		           14      to see if I can find your motion.  I think I know where I				false

		1652						LN		64		15		false		           15      filed that one.  Yes.  And yours was not an attachment				false

		1653						LN		64		16		false		           16      but a listing of Roman numeral one through twelve, and				false

		1654						LN		64		17		false		           17      then you highlighted that word "amenities" in Roman				false

		1655						LN		64		18		false		           18      numeral eight as the change.  And I think your issues				false

		1656						LN		64		19		false		           19      again speak, as you have sent in previous filings, and				false

		1657						LN		64		20		false		           20      again I have considered these as cumulative to the				false

		1658						LN		64		21		false		           21      thought process, so I will look at your initial filings				false

		1659						LN		64		22		false		           22      from last week from that time and these as well.				false

		1660						LN		64		23		false		           23          Did you want to say anything further about the				false

		1661						LN		64		24		false		           24      issues before I go around the horn again to see what				false

		1662						LN		64		25		false		           25      other comments there might be?				false
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		1664						LN		65		1		false		            1                        MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  I think my issues				false

		1665						LN		65		2		false		            2      are -- I think Tri-Cities CARES' issues are				false

		1666						LN		65		3		false		            3      self-explanatory.				false

		1667						LN		65		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let me push				false

		1668						LN		65		5		false		            5      Mr. Aramburu's issues off the Council's table for this				false

		1669						LN		65		6		false		            6      time.				false

		1670						LN		65		7		false		            7          Let's turn then to the Applicant and see if the				false

		1671						LN		65		8		false		            8      Applicant had a chance to review the email that came in				false

		1672						LN		65		9		false		            9      last Friday and the change on amenities on Saturday				false

		1673						LN		65		10		false		           10      morning.  Ms. Chase?				false

		1674						LN		65		11		false		           11                        MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.				false

		1675						LN		65		12		false		           12      This is Ms. Chase.  We have had a chance to look at this				false

		1676						LN		65		13		false		           13      on a preliminary basis.  I think -- and this really goes				false

		1677						LN		65		14		false		           14      to both the issues submitted by the Yakama Nation and				false

		1678						LN		65		15		false		           15      issues to be submitted by the County, as well as this				false

		1679						LN		65		16		false		           16      one, we would like the opportunity to provide some more				false

		1680						LN		65		17		false		           17      detailed comments before -- for considering these issues.				false

		1681						LN		65		18		false		           18      I think our overarching concern is that many of those				false

		1682						LN		65		19		false		           19      seem a bit overbroad and don't quite define the issues				false

		1683						LN		65		20		false		           20      with enough specificity that the other parties can,				false

		1684						LN		65		21		false		           21      including the Applicant, can reasonably respond.  And I				false

		1685						LN		65		22		false		           22      will just highlight a couple of those here.  I think				false

		1686						LN		65		23		false		           23      issue seven, which raises general concerns about natural				false

		1687						LN		65		24		false		           24      assets of our national heritage, for example.  And nine,				false

		1688						LN		65		25		false		           25      which talks about the adverse impacts generally that have				false
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		1690						LN		66		1		false		            1      not been mitigated.				false

		1691						LN		66		2		false		            2          So I do think we have some concerns about the				false

		1692						LN		66		3		false		            3      breadth of these issues and those are just a couple of				false

		1693						LN		66		4		false		            4      examples.				false

		1694						LN		66		5		false		            5          I'm happy to answer any questions you might have				false

		1695						LN		66		6		false		            6      about those comments.				false

		1696						LN		66		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  The only question I				false

		1697						LN		66		8		false		            8      would like to pose to the Applicant, and if you can				false

		1698						LN		66		9		false		            9      answer it to today, fantastic.  If you can't answer				false

		1699						LN		66		10		false		           10      today, I know I will get something further in writing				false

		1700						LN		66		11		false		           11      once you and your colleagues have had a little bit more				false

		1701						LN		66		12		false		           12      time.				false

		1702						LN		66		13		false		           13          But as we talked about with the Tribe's procedural				false

		1703						LN		66		14		false		           14      issues number one and two that were labeled that way in				false

		1704						LN		66		15		false		           15      Ms. Voelckers' filing, are there any of these 12 issues				false

		1705						LN		66		16		false		           16      that you see are procedural in nature and would be				false

		1706						LN		66		17		false		           17      subject to pre-adjudication motion practice to either				false

		1707						LN		66		18		false		           18      clarify them as jurisdictional or otherwise?				false

		1708						LN		66		19		false		           19                        MS. CHASE:  I will think on that.  I				false

		1709						LN		66		20		false		           20      don't see them as being procedural in quite the same way				false

		1710						LN		66		21		false		           21      that I think the issues that Ms. Voelckers identified in				false

		1711						LN		66		22		false		           22      her submittal are procedural, although, I do think some				false

		1712						LN		66		23		false		           23      of them are -- so this is one example, we need to place				false

		1713						LN		66		24		false		           24      this hearing in the context of the existing land use				false

		1714						LN		66		25		false		           25      decision that's already been issued.  And so, for				false
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		1716						LN		67		1		false		            1      example, the Applicant has some concerns about				false

		1717						LN		67		2		false		            2      relitigating, and I will let Mr. McMahan speak in more				false

		1718						LN		67		3		false		            3      detail to this if you have further questions today, but				false

		1719						LN		67		4		false		            4      relitigating what's already been decided in that language				false

		1720						LN		67		5		false		            5      consistency order.  And so when I look at issue number				false

		1721						LN		67		6		false		            6      three I think that's one place where we think maybe some				false

		1722						LN		67		7		false		            7      motion practice potentially could be useful, depending on				false

		1723						LN		67		8		false		            8      how everyone wants to frame issues to make clear what's				false

		1724						LN		67		9		false		            9      been decided in that order already and what remains live				false

		1725						LN		67		10		false		           10      for the adjudication.				false

		1726						LN		67		11		false		           11          I'm looking at Mr. McMahon in case he as anything to				false

		1727						LN		67		12		false		           12      add and he's telling me he does not at this time.				false

		1728						LN		67		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Frankly, I				false

		1729						LN		67		14		false		           14      was expecting the Applicant to also raise the questions				false

		1730						LN		67		15		false		           15      of whether the scope of the adjudication could possibly				false

		1731						LN		67		16		false		           16      take on number one and number two.  I'm not saying that				false

		1732						LN		67		17		false		           17      it can't, but as far as meaningful reductions of				false

		1733						LN		67		18		false		           18      omissions to justify any adverse impacts caused by the				false

		1734						LN		67		19		false		           19      wind farm as proposed and Washington policy legislative				false

		1735						LN		67		20		false		           20      priorities, I'm going to need some further explanation,				false

		1736						LN		67		21		false		           21      Mr. Aramburu, for TCC's position on whether or not the				false

		1737						LN		67		22		false		           22      question of abundant useful power at reasonable cost is				false

		1738						LN		67		23		false		           23      something that's before EFSEC or more likely before the				false

		1739						LN		67		24		false		           24      Utilities and Transportation Commission.  And as much as				false

		1740						LN		67		25		false		           25      these two agencies used to be co-housed, I don't think				false
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		1742						LN		68		1		false		            1      their missions are continuous.  They might be adjacent in				false

		1743						LN		68		2		false		            2      the big scheme of things with Governor Inslee and the				false

		1744						LN		68		3		false		            3      policies he's signed into law during his terms in office,				false

		1745						LN		68		4		false		            4      but I have some concerns.  And if no one else asks for				false

		1746						LN		68		5		false		            5      briefing on those, I want you to, Mr. Aramburu, as I				false

		1747						LN		68		6		false		            6      consider these think that I might be asking you for				false

		1748						LN		68		7		false		            7      briefing to see if they come within the scope of 80.50.				false

		1749						LN		68		8		false		            8      I just want to tee that up if the Applicant wasn't ready				false

		1750						LN		68		9		false		            9      to have those thoughts today, I am, and just a question				false

		1751						LN		68		10		false		           10      mark that I want to put over those.				false

		1752						LN		68		11		false		           11          All right.  Let me move to the County and see, Mr.				false

		1753						LN		68		12		false		           12      Harper, if you have looked at Tri-Cities CARES' issues as				false

		1754						LN		68		13		false		           13      submitted by Mr. Aramburu.  Do you have any comments?				false

		1755						LN		68		14		false		           14                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper, Your Honor.				false

		1756						LN		68		15		false		           15      I have looked at those.  No particular item by item				false

		1757						LN		68		16		false		           16      comments, Your Honor.  I think one of the things I want				false

		1758						LN		68		17		false		           17      to comment on, though, and this is really just to elicit				false

		1759						LN		68		18		false		           18      further comment from you, if I understand correctly, what				false

		1760						LN		68		19		false		           19      we are doing here is really just kind of engaged in s				false

		1761						LN		68		20		false		           20      focusing process?				false

		1762						LN		68		21		false		           21          And so if an issue statement is inartfully				false

		1763						LN		68		22		false		           22      expressed, or heaven forbid some sub issue is omitted in				false

		1764						LN		68		23		false		           23      this process, it's Your Honor's expectation that there				false

		1765						LN		68		24		false		           24      will be sort of a -- sort of a funneling down to or				false

		1766						LN		68		25		false		           25      sifting down to a final sort of set of issues that will				false
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		1768						LN		69		1		false		            1      then define the case?  Am I channelling you correctly				false

		1769						LN		69		2		false		            2      there, Your Honor?				false

		1770						LN		69		3		false		            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yes, your crystal ball				false

		1771						LN		69		4		false		            4      is correct.  The sorting and sifting, I don't have a hat				false

		1772						LN		69		5		false		            5      like the Harry Potter school did but we will do the				false

		1773						LN		69		6		false		            6      sorting.				false

		1774						LN		69		7		false		            7                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, with that in				false

		1775						LN		69		8		false		            8      mind, I don't have anything further to add to our				false

		1776						LN		69		9		false		            9      discussion so far on Mr. Aramburu's comments.  I think				false

		1777						LN		69		10		false		           10      his issues, I don't have anything else on that.				false

		1778						LN		69		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.				false

		1779						LN		69		12		false		           12      Voelckers, let me come next to you on what Tri-Cities				false

		1780						LN		69		13		false		           13      CARES submitted.  Do you have any anything you want to				false

		1781						LN		69		14		false		           14      add today as I kind of do this sifting and sorting?				false

		1782						LN		69		15		false		           15                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1783						LN		69		16		false		           16      I don't have anything else to add specific to this list,				false

		1784						LN		69		17		false		           17      but I do appreciate the question as I have been better				false

		1785						LN		69		18		false		           18      understanding the goal here of this discussion.  And so I				false

		1786						LN		69		19		false		           19      would, as things are sifted and sorted, and I think				false

		1787						LN		69		20		false		           20      preserved this in what I filed this morning, but we would				false

		1788						LN		69		21		false		           21      anticipate that parties would be able to argue any				false

		1789						LN		69		22		false		           22      dispute issue even if they are not the ones initially				false

		1790						LN		69		23		false		           23      listing it, so we didn't want to create duplication, and				false

		1791						LN		69		24		false		           24      so therefore didn't list certain things that were part of				false

		1792						LN		69		25		false		           25      Mr. Aramburu's list, or Ms. Reyneveld's list, but did				false

		1793						PG		70		0		false		page 70				false

		1794						LN		70		1		false		            1      preserve the ability to still join in the discussion of				false

		1795						LN		70		2		false		            2      those issues throughout the adjudication.  I just wanted				false

		1796						LN		70		3		false		            3      to raise that as another potential point of clarification				false

		1797						LN		70		4		false		            4      if that causes any concern.				false

		1798						LN		70		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  No, not whatsoever.  I				false

		1799						LN		70		6		false		            6      think that's the general spirit, Ms. Voelckers, of where				false

		1800						LN		70		7		false		            7      we are going with this.  There may be a party that				false

		1801						LN		70		8		false		            8      decides they are the lead and other parties are in				false

		1802						LN		70		9		false		            9      support, ask similar issues in cross-examination but				false

		1803						LN		70		10		false		           10      essentially adopt the previous questions, if you will,				false

		1804						LN		70		11		false		           11      once we get to that stage.  And when it comes to				false

		1805						LN		70		12		false		           12      testimony, parties that have issues that are aligned.				false

		1806						LN		70		13		false		           13      Like let's say I list a party issue as Mr. Aramburu has				false

		1807						LN		70		14		false		           14      listed, does the project have unacceptable impact on				false

		1808						LN		70		15		false		           15      wildlife and heir habitat.  Well, once we get more				false

		1809						LN		70		16		false		           16      specifics on his issue number five, which habitats and				false

		1810						LN		70		17		false		           17      which wildlife, and it may be that a number of parties				false

		1811						LN		70		18		false		           18      have similar concerns, maybe all parties, and choose				false

		1812						LN		70		19		false		           19      amongst themselves as to who is going to file the issue				false

		1813						LN		70		20		false		           20      on this species and which biologist will be called on				false

		1814						LN		70		21		false		           21      another, but all parties might have those similar				false

		1815						LN		70		22		false		           22      concerns.  I hope that helps.				false

		1816						LN		70		23		false		           23          Through the sifting and sorting and narrowing				false

		1817						LN		70		24		false		           24      process, it may reduce some of the filing burden from one				false

		1818						LN		70		25		false		           25      party and it can be shared amongst two or three.  It				false

		1819						PG		71		0		false		page 71				false

		1820						LN		71		1		false		            1      might be that, you know, two or three parties sponsor the				false

		1821						LN		71		2		false		            2      testimony of one witness because it speaks to all of				false

		1822						LN		71		3		false		            3      their issues, and then I just need to know who the lead				false

		1823						LN		71		4		false		            4      party is that will be sponsoring the witness and go from				false

		1824						LN		71		5		false		            5      there on further examination.  I hope that helps.				false

		1825						LN		71		6		false		            6                        MS. VOELCKERS:  It does.  Thank you,				false

		1826						LN		71		7		false		            7      Your Honor.				false

		1827						LN		71		8		false		            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, you have				false

		1828						LN		71		9		false		            9      your mic opened right now.  I can hear you in the				false

		1829						LN		71		10		false		           10      background.  I am about to turn to Ms. Reyneveld and talk				false

		1830						LN		71		11		false		           11      about your issue there.  So if you all can make sure we				false

		1831						LN		71		12		false		           12      have the microphone discipline continue.  We've been				false

		1832						LN		71		13		false		           13      pretty good today.				false

		1833						LN		71		14		false		           14          Ms. Reyneveld, anything else on the issues filed				false

		1834						LN		71		15		false		           15      last week by Mr. Aramburu on behalf TCC?				false

		1835						LN		71		16		false		           16                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I agree with the				false

		1836						LN		71		17		false		           17      Applicant that some of these issues appear to be a little				false

		1837						LN		71		18		false		           18      broad, and so it would be great to add a little more				false

		1838						LN		71		19		false		           19      specificity to understand what is being at issue				false

		1839						LN		71		20		false		           20      specifically.  There's also some redundancy in all of				false

		1840						LN		71		21		false		           21      the -- some of these issues, both the Counsel for the				false

		1841						LN		71		22		false		           22      Environment and also Yakima Nation and these issues, so				false

		1842						LN		71		23		false		           23      I'm assuming that the sifting and sorting process as you				false

		1843						LN		71		24		false		           24      say that we are going to be narrowing these down to kind				false

		1844						LN		71		25		false		           25      of come up with kind of what -- the question on each of				false

		1845						PG		72		0		false		page 72				false

		1846						LN		72		1		false		            1      these issues.  And then I agree with their comments				false

		1847						LN		72		2		false		            2      regarding some following up on the scope of this				false

		1848						LN		72		3		false		            3      adjudication.  Generally, you know, they look fine.				false

		1849						LN		72		4		false		            4          I'm kind of interested in what are the next steps in				false

		1850						LN		72		5		false		            5      terms of combining of the issues and narrowing the issues				false

		1851						LN		72		6		false		            6      here.				false

		1852						LN		72		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  And as we had at the end				false

		1853						LN		72		8		false		            8      of the last prehearing conference when you asked for next				false

		1854						LN		72		9		false		            9      steps, and I'm developing what do you really want, Judge,				false

		1855						LN		72		10		false		           10      I think we have covered a lot of progress in the last ten				false

		1856						LN		72		11		false		           11      days to get these issue statements and to work on the				false

		1857						LN		72		12		false		           12      neutral tone and the more specifics to the topics we are				false

		1858						LN		72		13		false		           13      looking at, so we will continue to make some more steps.				false

		1859						LN		72		14		false		           14          I want to reiterate what I said last time about				false

		1860						LN		72		15		false		           15      these proposed issues having a basis in existing law.				false

		1861						LN		72		16		false		           16      And, you know, there is a good faith argument for some of				false

		1862						LN		72		17		false		           17      what I'm indicating might not be within the expected				false

		1863						LN		72		18		false		           18      scope of the adjudication.  When the motions come in to				false

		1864						LN		72		19		false		           19      say, Judge, here's why we think you are wrong, or at				false

		1865						LN		72		20		false		           20      least based on comments you've made at prehearing				false

		1866						LN		72		21		false		           21      conferences, here's why we think this is a legitimate				false

		1867						LN		72		22		false		           22      issue under 80.50 and other applicable laws.  That's the				false

		1868						LN		72		23		false		           23      kind of motion practice I expect to see if the issues are				false

		1869						LN		72		24		false		           24      essentially flagged for a need for prehearing motions				false

		1870						LN		72		25		false		           25      before they are added to the list.				false

		1871						PG		73		0		false		page 73				false

		1872						LN		73		1		false		            1          From here, Ms. Reyneveld, and to all the other				false

		1873						LN		73		2		false		            2      parties, what I hope to do is take everything you talked				false

		1874						LN		73		3		false		            3      about today, the filings that came in by email last				false

		1875						LN		73		4		false		            4      Friday and this morning, and all the previous letters				false

		1876						LN		73		5		false		            5      that came in based on the parties collaboration before				false

		1877						LN		73		6		false		            6      the first prehearing conference, sift and sort, come up				false

		1878						LN		73		7		false		            7      with that comprehensive list and get it back to you.  I				false

		1879						LN		73		8		false		            8      am going to see if I can work independently and then with				false

		1880						LN		73		9		false		            9      EFSEC staff, including Mr. Thomson, to refine that so				false

		1881						LN		73		10		false		           10      it's not just my thoughts, that I have the benefit of the				false

		1882						LN		73		11		false		           11      AG's office opinion as servicing the Council, and any				false

		1883						LN		73		12		false		           12      other staff members that might want to help me to comment				false

		1884						LN		73		13		false		           13      on that.  Some of those may be more substantive in citing				false

		1885						LN		73		14		false		           14      staff.  We might have some of the SEPA staff involved,				false

		1886						LN		73		15		false		           15      and definitely just the good minds of the rest of the				false

		1887						LN		73		16		false		           16      ladies and gentlemen that are supporting this				false

		1888						LN		73		17		false		           17      adjudication in the background.  They have had some great				false

		1889						LN		73		18		false		           18      insight along the way and I want to continue to take				false

		1890						LN		73		19		false		           19      advantage of what they are hearing from their				false

		1891						LN		73		20		false		           20      perspective.				false

		1892						LN		73		21		false		           21          So I think that's really all we can get through on				false

		1893						LN		73		22		false		           22      issue number five on my agenda today.  And once again I				false

		1894						LN		73		23		false		           23      have some homework to turn around for you.				false

		1895						LN		73		24		false		           24          I think on discovery, on item number six, we have				false

		1896						LN		73		25		false		           25      covered as much as we needed to before the break, so				false

		1897						PG		74		0		false		page 74				false

		1898						LN		74		1		false		            1      let's turn to the last item on today's agenda, prehearing				false

		1899						LN		74		2		false		            2      motion practice and briefing.  We need to have a better				false

		1900						LN		74		3		false		            3      look at the schedule, and I look at all of the other				false

		1901						LN		74		4		false		            4      things about when testimony might due and have a proposal				false

		1902						LN		74		5		false		            5      for you on that next time around.				false

		1903						LN		74		6		false		            6          The deadline for nondispositive motions will				false

		1904						LN		74		7		false		            7      probably be set in the timing after prefiled testimony				false

		1905						LN		74		8		false		            8      comes in, so I don't know how long we will have in				false

		1906						LN		74		9		false		            9      between.  Maybe my questions on this are premature, but I				false

		1907						LN		74		10		false		           10      think it's good practice to have all the motions decided				false

		1908						LN		74		11		false		           11      with time for parties to file a motion for				false

		1909						LN		74		12		false		           12      reconsideration before the first day of the adjudication.				false

		1910						LN		74		13		false		           13          That's the thought process that I'm looking at, and,				false

		1911						LN		74		14		false		           14      again, a good reason why we maybe settle on the				false

		1912						LN		74		15		false		           15      adjudication dates and then roll backwards as far as we				false

		1913						LN		74		16		false		           16      need to to get this motion practice in between, testimony				false

		1914						LN		74		17		false		           17      filing, and then back to what's realistic for that first				false

		1915						LN		74		18		false		           18      round of prefiled testimony.				false

		1916						LN		74		19		false		           19          Ms. Chase, any thoughts on that?				false

		1917						LN		74		20		false		           20                        MS. CHASE:  Judge Torem, this is Ms.				false

		1918						LN		74		21		false		           21      Chase, and I'm thinking -- and I don't think that we				false

		1919						LN		74		22		false		           22      have -- I don't have any particular thoughts on that				false

		1920						LN		74		23		false		           23      other than I agree with that general comment about the				false

		1921						LN		74		24		false		           24      importance of having the issues resolved prior to the				false

		1922						LN		74		25		false		           25      actual adjudication, but I think we are flexible on how				false

		1923						PG		75		0		false		page 75				false

		1924						LN		75		1		false		            1      you would like to set those deadlines.  If I think of				false

		1925						LN		75		2		false		            2      anything else I will let I know, but that's my initial				false

		1926						LN		75		3		false		            3      thought on that point.				false

		1927						LN		75		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  There are a couple of				false

		1928						LN		75		5		false		            5      issues -- well, before I let you go back, some of the				false

		1929						LN		75		6		false		            6      ones that the Tribe has flagged as those procedural				false

		1930						LN		75		7		false		            7      issues that I don't think we really need to wait for the				false

		1931						LN		75		8		false		            8      filing of testimony.  This may be a simultaneous or even				false

		1932						LN		75		9		false		            9      before the testimony comes in motion practice, and we can				false

		1933						LN		75		10		false		           10      talk about a schedule for that next week.  I hope that				false

		1934						LN		75		11		false		           11      all the parties will kind of collaborate and say these				false

		1935						LN		75		12		false		           12      are some issues that we are prepared to file a motion				false

		1936						LN		75		13		false		           13      sooner rather than later that are not dependent on the				false

		1937						LN		75		14		false		           14      filing of testimony as proposed for prefiled and				false

		1938						LN		75		15		false		           15      responsive or rebuttal testimony, but some of these scope				false

		1939						LN		75		16		false		           16      of adjudication issues, I think, could be handled well in				false

		1940						LN		75		17		false		           17      advance or simultaneously with the parties filing their				false

		1941						LN		75		18		false		           18      actual testimony.  That's what I'm thinking about kind of				false

		1942						LN		75		19		false		           19      two different timelines or time periods for motions to				false

		1943						LN		75		20		false		           20      come in an be decided.				false

		1944						LN		75		21		false		           21          Does the Applicant have any thoughts on two periods				false

		1945						LN		75		22		false		           22      of time or should we put it all off until after testimony				false

		1946						LN		75		23		false		           23      is filed?				false

		1947						LN		75		24		false		           24                        MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.				false

		1948						LN		75		25		false		           25      That clarification was helpful to me in terms of what you				false

		1949						PG		76		0		false		page 76				false

		1950						LN		76		1		false		            1      are thinking and asking.  And yes, it's Applicant's				false

		1951						LN		76		2		false		            2      preference that we do set an initial motion deadline.  I				false

		1952						LN		76		3		false		            3      think it would be a motion deadline that would include,				false

		1953						LN		76		4		false		            4      among other things as you noted, motions on the				false

		1954						LN		76		5		false		            5      procedural issues that the Yakima Nation and others have				false

		1955						LN		76		6		false		            6      indicated they may wish to raise, as well as to the				false

		1956						LN		76		7		false		            7      extent that it's not resolved as part of the issues				false

		1957						LN		76		8		false		            8      shaping and sorting process.  Motions on some of the				false

		1958						LN		76		9		false		            9      issues such as TCC issues one and two are issues that may				false

		1959						LN		76		10		false		           10      be redundant of the existing land use approval process				false

		1960						LN		76		11		false		           11      that's already taken place.				false

		1961						LN		76		12		false		           12          So I agree with that.  I agree we can do that sooner				false

		1962						LN		76		13		false		           13      rather than later.  I think we can set that deadline				false

		1963						LN		76		14		false		           14      pretty soon after the prehearing conference on the 27th,				false

		1964						LN		76		15		false		           15      and that that could run in parallel with the parties				false

		1965						LN		76		16		false		           16      preparation of the prefiled testimony.  In other words,				false

		1966						LN		76		17		false		           17      we could get those motions resolved hopefully either				false

		1967						LN		76		18		false		           18      before or while prefiled testimony was still being				false

		1968						LN		76		19		false		           19      submitted so that we can keep the process moving.				false

		1969						LN		76		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		1970						LN		76		21		false		           21      That's kind of what I'm thinking as well, but I'm open to				false

		1971						LN		76		22		false		           22      other parties telling me we should wait even longer on				false

		1972						LN		76		23		false		           23      some of those because if they are dependent on the				false

		1973						LN		76		24		false		           24      testimony, or at least a finalization of the issues list,				false

		1974						LN		76		25		false		           25      which, again, that would hopefully be sooner rather than				false

		1975						PG		77		0		false		page 77				false

		1976						LN		77		1		false		            1      later.				false

		1977						LN		77		2		false		            2          Let me turn to Mr. Harper for Benton County and get				false

		1978						LN		77		3		false		            3      your thoughts on those same questions.				false

		1979						LN		77		4		false		            4                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, Ken harper				false

		1980						LN		77		5		false		            5      for the County.  My concern is that I generally think				false

		1981						LN		77		6		false		            6      that it would be helpful to get some motions filed sooner				false

		1982						LN		77		7		false		            7      rather than later.  I think that almost seems like just				false

		1983						LN		77		8		false		            8      should certainly be allowed.  My reservation, Your Honor,				false

		1984						LN		77		9		false		            9      is that it's not necessarily clear to me how we will				false

		1985						LN		77		10		false		           10      decide what is a procedural issue that might be subject				false

		1986						LN		77		11		false		           11      to some kind of early cutoff or deadline compared to what				false

		1987						LN		77		12		false		           12      may not be a procedural issue.  It may be that a				false

		1988						LN		77		13		false		           13      procedural issue seems substantive or vice versa only at				false

		1989						LN		77		14		false		           14      some later date, so I think my suggestion would be if you				false

		1990						LN		77		15		false		           15      could indicate to the parties that motion practice is				false

		1991						LN		77		16		false		           16      open and encourage early motions on procedural issues				false

		1992						LN		77		17		false		           17      that may help streamline matters, I think that might				false

		1993						LN		77		18		false		           18      prove to be more manageable.  I'm just not totally				false

		1994						LN		77		19		false		           19      convinced that it's going to be helpful to have a hard				false

		1995						LN		77		20		false		           20      cutoff on something that is, you know, sort of perceived				false

		1996						LN		77		21		false		           21      to be procedural at this early stage of the adjudication.				false

		1997						LN		77		22		false		           22          Other than that, Your Honor, I do support the idea				false

		1998						LN		77		23		false		           23      of getting motions filed.  And I think most of the				false

		1999						LN		77		24		false		           24      parties that think they have a motion would probably like				false

		2000						LN		77		25		false		           25      to file those soon, so maybe that is a sort of self				false

		2001						PG		78		0		false		page 78				false

		2002						LN		78		1		false		            1      correcting thing to allow motions and then not				false

		2003						LN		78		2		false		            2      necessarily worry too much about deadlines over				false

		2004						LN		78		3		false		            3      procedural versus substantive categorizations.				false

		2005						LN		78		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think				false

		2006						LN		78		5		false		            5      that's fair.  Some issues you kind of -- I think the				false

		2007						LN		78		6		false		            6      Supreme Court has said, you know it when you see it, and				false

		2008						LN		78		7		false		            7      others they say develop over the course of litigation.  I				false

		2009						LN		78		8		false		            8      like the idea of having kind of an open filing for that				false

		2010						LN		78		9		false		            9      the judge says this is the time to file your initial				false

		2011						LN		78		10		false		           10      motions, and have another round after testimony.  Again,				false

		2012						LN		78		11		false		           11      I don't think I can preclude and just, you know, tell you				false

		2013						LN		78		12		false		           12      don't file a motion if you think you have one at any				false

		2014						LN		78		13		false		           13      given time now that the adjudication has been commenced.				false

		2015						LN		78		14		false		           14          I would appreciate parties following some guidelines				false

		2016						LN		78		15		false		           15      if we can agree on windows of time, but I also say if you				false

		2017						LN		78		16		false		           16      file something that I think should be for later, I may				false

		2018						LN		78		17		false		           17      issues a preliminary ruling just deferring any further				false

		2019						LN		78		18		false		           18      action on it until another date certain or milestone in				false

		2020						LN		78		19		false		           19      the process.				false

		2021						LN		78		20		false		           20          So I like what Mr. Harper is suggesting, and if I				false

		2022						LN		78		21		false		           21      see something that I think is just not right for action,				false

		2023						LN		78		22		false		           22      I imagine either with responsive pleading or on my own				false

		2024						LN		78		23		false		           23      sua sponte if I read it fast enough getting an order out				false

		2025						LN		78		24		false		           24      telling parties hold off, don't put your energy into this				false

		2026						LN		78		25		false		           25      until later and we will tell you what the response				false

		2027						PG		79		0		false		page 79				false

		2028						LN		79		1		false		            1      deadline is.  That's the kind of thing I'm thinking, Mr.				false
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		2045						LN		79		18		false		           18      motion opportunities that the County would like to see,				false

		2046						LN		79		19		false		           19      and, frankly, what we would like to take advantage of.				false
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		2107						LN		82		2		false		            2      strike an issue altogether.  I do hope that in that time				false
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		2126						LN		82		21		false		           21      impact statement is going to be out in advance of us				false
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		2133						LN		83		2		false		            2      and I will talk to the appropriate staff to see if they				false
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		2148						LN		83		17		false		           17          Ms. Voelckers any thoughts from the Tribe on this				false
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		2166						LN		84		9		false		            9      sure, but it did sound like the discussion last week was				false

		2167						LN		84		10		false		           10      about a proposed schedule, and so if there was any				false

		2168						LN		84		11		false		           11      finalization of a schedule for the next EFSEC meeting				false

		2169						LN		84		12		false		           12      that would be helpful to inform what we are talking				false

		2170						LN		84		13		false		           13      about.  I don't know if that was a moot or not moot				false

		2171						LN		84		14		false		           14      procedural issue without knowing more about the schedule,				false

		2172						LN		84		15		false		           15      but that would helpfully help inform a deadline for				false

		2173						LN		84		16		false		           16      procedural motions.				false

		2174						LN		84		17		false		           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I think I				false
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		2205						LN		85		22		false		           22      briefing that you present, consider the audience.  I'm				false

		2206						LN		85		23		false		           23      not hinting at all that they are unrefined in any way,				false
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            1                         BE IT REMEMBERED that on Monday, March



            2      20, 2023, via Zoom, at 1:32 p.m., before Christy



            3      Sheppard, Certified Court Reporter, CCR, RPR;



            4                         WHEREUPON, the following proceedings



            5      were had, to wit:



            6



            7                            <<<<<< >>>>>>



            8



            9



           10



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  This is Judge Torem



           12      calling our prehearing conference, the second one, for



           13      March 20th, 2023.  It was supposed to start at 1:30 today



           14      and it's now 1:34.



           15          This is in the matter of the application of Scout



           16      Clean Energy, LLC, and better known as the Horse Heaven



           17      Wind Farm project in Benton County.



           18          I am going to do a roll call now for the Applicant.



           19      Do we have Crystal Chase?



           20                        MS. CHASE:  We do, Judge Torem.  This



           21      is Crystal Chase and with me in the same conference room



           22      is Ms. Schimelpfenig and Mr. McMahan.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Chase, I



           24      am going to ask you to spell the last names of all of the



           25      parties that you just mentioned and we will take it the
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            1      first names the court reporter will pick up.



            2                        MS. CHASE:  Great.  Happy to do that.



            3      This is Crystal Chase, last name C-H-A-S-E.  With me in



            4      the room is Tim McMahan, M-C-M-A-H-A-N.  Also with me in



            5      the room is Emily Schimelpfenig,



            6      S-C-H-I-M-E-L-P-F-E-N-I-G.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



            8      Counsel for the Environment, do we have Ms. Reyneveld?



            9                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Ms. Reyneveld is



           10      present.  Sarah Reyneveld, and Reyneveld is spelled



           11      R-E-Y-N-E-V-E-L-D.  Thank you.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  God



           13      afternoon.  And for Benton Country, do we have Mr.



           14      Harper?



           15                        MR. HARPER:  This is Ken Harper for



           16      Benton County, H-A-R-P-E-R.



           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  Anybody else with you



           18      today, Mr. Harper?



           19                        MR. HARPER:  My colleague, Zi Foster



           20      is also with us today.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Sheppard, if



           22      you need any of these other names spelled again later



           23      just be in touch with me.  Staff will make sure you have



           24      my phone number and email contact.



           25          All right.  Our intervening parties, the
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            1      Confederated Tribes and Band of the Yakama Nation.



            2      Shona Voelckers, are you with us today?



            3                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.  I'm



            4      Shona Voelckers on behalf of the Yakama Nation.  My last



            5      name is V-O-E-L-C-K-E-R-S.  My colleague Ethan Jones is



            6      not present today, but my colleague Jessica Houston is



            7      also on the line.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.  Welcome all.



            9      And, finally, Tri-Cities CARES, and that's an acronym



           10      CARES and it stands for Community Action for Responsible



           11      Environmental Stewardship.  Do we have Mr. Richard



           12      Aramburu?



           13                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Present, Your Honor.



           14      The last name is spelled A-R-A-M-B-U-R-U.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you



           16      very much.  We have got all of our parties accounted for



           17      today, and I wanted to see who else is on the line for



           18      EFSEC staff.  I believe we have Jonathan Thompson, our



           19      assistant attorney general.  Mr. Thompson, if you could



           20      just acknowledge?



           21                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yes, I'm present.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  And we also have Lisa



           23      Masengale, M-A-S-E-N-G-A-L-E, and Andrea Grantham



           24      indicate they could hear me on the voice check earlier.



           25      Is there any other EFSEC staff present that wants to be
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            1      acknowledged?



            2          All right.  Not hearing anybody come off mute right



            3      away, we will move on to the next agenda item.



            4                              (Unidentified speaker.)



            5



            6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Judge Torem, this is



            7      Andrea, you might have been muted if you could unmute



            8      yourself.  Try star six or pound six.  Try star six or



            9      pound six since you are calling in.



           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  It sounds like



           11      I'm no longer muted.



           12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  There you go.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you staff for



           14      helping me.  I heard some other lines so maybe you just



           15      muted all the other lines.  If there's other folks



           16      listening in today, that's great.  This is a procedural



           17      prehearing conference to go over details about scheduling



           18      the upcoming adjudication and a number of other rules



           19      that we are working on.  If you are listening in, please



           20      keep your microphone muted so we don't have to do that



           21      all mute again and result in actual people that are



           22      having a speaking role get cut back.  There is no public



           23      comments opportunity today, but there will be at the



           24      adjudication.  Contact EFSEC staff if you are worried



           25      about or want to know what the procedures will be.
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            1          And, finally, just to be sure, there is no evidence



            2      being taken today.  These are just planning discussions



            3      with the parties.



            4          All right.  Our prehearing conference order got out



            5      to the parties quite later than I thought it would, but



            6      it's been a busy week since we last talked on March 10th,



            7      and the agenda hopefully went out with it.



            8          For those that are following along, I believe the



            9      agenda got posted on the EFSEC website, but I will walk



           10      everybody through it so if you don't have it in front of



           11      you it's obvious what we are doing.



           12          We have a total of seven listed items, the first of



           13      which is the roll call I have already gone through.  And



           14      the second one we are going to get to now is an update on



           15      the venue for the adjudication.



           16          I, after our call on March 10th, reached out and



           17      talked to the EFSEC manager and relayed the parties'



           18      feelings about wanting to have this either virtual,



           19      hybrid, or in person in the county, in Benton County.  As



           20      I said in the agenda, it has been raised with Sonia



           21      Bumpus and she was going to meet with Chair Drew sometime



           22      after last week's Wednesday regular monthly meeting of



           23      the EFSEC Council.  I haven't heard anything back from



           24      Ms. Bumpus upon that.  We last talked by email at least



           25      on Thursday, and I don't have any updates on decisions.





                                                                            7

�







            1      There's some question as to whether or not having some



            2      portion of the adjudication in Benton County might be



            3      approved so that at least the parties and the judge and



            4      whatever staff we need might be present in the county.



            5      And perhaps the Council members would not be imposed upon



            6      to travel to each and every session, but might be able to



            7      make it to some if not all of them.  For some council



            8      members it may prove too much of a burden to do the



            9      travel, and I know that Chair Drew is considering those



           10      kinds of things.



           11          What I would like to do is, as it says in the



           12      agenda, ask for those parties that would like to, write a



           13      letter to Chair Drew and to me with the reasons, in your



           14      own words rather than the ones I might have relayed to



           15      the manager last week, stating why you believe it should



           16      be held however you want.  Today being the 20th, I would



           17      hope that those could be -- if by next Monday, March



           18      27th, all the parties that are interested in filing their



           19      request for inperson, hybrid, virtual you could file



           20      those -- they are totally optional, but if we could get



           21      that in by next Monday the 27th, that would help, I



           22      think, Chair Drew understand where everybody is coming



           23      from and be able to make a more informed discussion.



           24          Ms. Voelckers, I did relay, and I think you heard a



           25      little bit of that at the council meeting, the importance
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            1      that -- of the special request you made on behalf of the



            2      Yakama Tribe for your elders to testify, and you might



            3      want to have an additional portion of your letter



            4      explaining essentially the logistics that might be



            5      necessary, and any support on how to record the voices



            6      that they might speak in.  Again, you said they would



            7      speak in perhaps native tongue as well as in English to



            8      express their positions.  And my only concern as we



            9      talked about ten days ago is if there would be any



           10      gesturing or other things that couldn't be captured in a



           11      written transcript of words in English, whether we need



           12      an interpreter or some other way to capture that for the



           13      record.  I leave that for you to describe if there be any



           14      necessary additional support to capture the testimony and



           15      presentation of your elders.



           16          Does any party, and I will survey one at a time,



           17      have any concerns about filing a letter by next Monday



           18      the 27th, and, Ms. Voelckers, when I get to you any other



           19      special requests.



           20          Let me start with the Applicant, Ms. Chase.



           21                        MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, and no



           22      concern about the deadline.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.



           24      Reyneveld for CFE?



           25                        MS. REYNEVELD:  This is Ms. Reyneveld,
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            1      and I have no concerns about the deadline either.  Thank



            2      you, Judge.



            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  You're welcome.  Mr.



            4      Harper?



            5                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton



            6      County, no, Your Honor, that's fine.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.



            8      Voelckers for the Tribe?



            9                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           10      No concerns.  Just to confirm you would like this letter



           11      addressed to Chair Drew or to yourself?



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  To both of us, please,



           13      that way she and I may have cause to talk about all of



           14      the inputs once they are all in.



           15                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Understood.  Thank



           16      you.



           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu?



           18                        MR. ARAMBURU:  For Tri-Cities CARES,



           19      no concerns with that schedule.



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I hope all



           21      of you will take advantage of that opportunity to



           22      communicate directly with me and the Chair with regard to



           23      your preferences for venue, and it will, again, just give



           24      you all a forum to get that out in your words.



           25          All right.  Let's turn to the third item on the
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            1      agenda for today, the actual scheduling of the



            2      adjudication itself.  We are still working with the



            3      deadline of July 8th, 2023.  I think a number of you



            4      heard what I had to say about that at the monthly meeting



            5      last week.  Let's take a look on the agenda.  What I have



            6      stated is that the approved second extension request from



            7      the Applicant does require us to get a recommendation to



            8      the governor no later than July 8th of this year.  We



            9      have had at least 25 months that have elapsed since the



           10      application came in, and the current statutory deadline



           11      has certainly been passed.  That 12-month processing time



           12      for 80.50.100 is well past, and we are projecting a total



           13      of 29 months at this time to get a full vote and



           14      consideration on the application.



           15          Based on our discussions ten days ago, you can see



           16      the proposed dates that would have started perhaps as



           17      early as Monday, May 15th for the hearing, are now based



           18      on prefiled testimony coming in no earlier than April 3rd



           19      or maybe April 10th.  The earliest hearing dates, Ms.



           20      Chase, that I can offer the Applicant and the other



           21      parties look to be Monday June 5th for that entire week,



           22      and the remainder of the week after Juneteenth, on that



           23      holiday from June 20th to the 23rd.



           24          I'm wondering, for the parties, just how many days



           25      of hearing you would each estimate this case might take.
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            1      And I realize it's a little bit of a shot in the dark



            2      because you don't know -- we haven't agreed on what



            3      issues will be adjudicated or what witnesses, but based



            4      on your prior experience, and I know many of you on the



            5      line have been in complex litigation like this, including



            6      before this council, so I want to ask you, I can't hold



            7      you to it, but just your today estimate of how many days



            8      of hearing time you each think it might take.



            9          Let me start with the Applicant, again, and see, Ms.



           10      Chase, between you and Mr. McMahan and Ms. Schimelpfenig



           11      what you are thinking for the number of days?



           12                        MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.



           13      This is Ms. Chase.  We -- I think based on information we



           14      have now, we would anticipate a couple weeks, so two



           15      weeks total.  I'm recognizing that that will depend on



           16      large part on how the issues get finalized.



           17          And then also for the scheduling discussion, I did



           18      want to share that Applicant will be submitting a third



           19      extension request shortly, if it hasn't already been



           20      submitted, that will extend the time to complete the



           21      adjudication through the timeline that you have been



           22      discussing at the last prehearing conference, which was



           23      September 2023.  I wanted to share that now as it may



           24      inform the parties' scheduling discussions.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that if the
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            1      application extension request is actually being filed



            2      today, it won't be acted upon until the Council can



            3      receive it, but it notionally will release a lot of



            4      pressure on everybody on the line today.  I do appreciate



            5      that very much, and I will thank the Applicant for



            6      allowing the Council to be able to do a thorough job, and



            7      all the other parties, frankly, to prepare testimony less



            8      under the gun and really get a thorough adjudication on



            9      the issues they would like to present.  So your estimate



           10      for the amount of time is going to be approximately two



           11      weeks.



           12          Let me turn next to the Counsel for the Environment



           13      and see, Ms. Reyneveld, your thoughts on how many days of



           14      adjudication this might take.



           15                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I would be in



           16      agreement with the Applicant, although I do think that



           17      there are a lot of unknowns to this ligation, including



           18      just the number of witnesses that are going to be called



           19      so it's difficult to determine without that.  I would say



           20      at most we will likely be calling one to two witnesses,



           21      and so I just don't know the number of witnesses from the



           22      other parties.  But I think, you know, probably one and a



           23      half to two weeks would be a good estimate.



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Mr. Harper, for



           25      the County?
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            1                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton



            2      County.  Yeah, I think Ms. Chase has a pretty good best



            3      estimate there.  I don't think I can really add to that.



            4      Two weeks sounds about right with all the disclaimers,



            5      but it does sound about appropriate.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,



            7      Mr. Harper.



            8          Ms. Voelckers, how does the Tribe feel about



            9      predicting how long this might take?



           10                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           11      I don't have any better ability to predict and would



           12      agree with the statements that have already been made by



           13      other counsel.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.



           15      Aramburu?



           16                        MR. ARAMBURU:  My understanding is



           17      that the hearing time that we are going to take is going



           18      to be principally cross-examination with some exceptions.



           19      So if that's the understanding, then I think two weeks



           20      would probably be fine, although these dates that you



           21      have here probably are not the appropriate two weeks in



           22      our view.  So we think two weeks is fine, closely



           23      coordinating cross-examination time and those kinds of



           24      things.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.
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            1      When you say these two weeks I have here, you are



            2      referring to the weeks in June that I mentioned and that



            3      are listed on the agenda?



            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  That's correct, Your



            5      Honor.



            6                        THE JUDGE:  And as Ms. Chase



            7      indicated, if the Council approves an extension to the



            8      end of September, which is what I understood, Ms. Chase,



            9      it would be through September 30th?



           10                        MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, yes.



           11      That's correct.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  So, Mr. Aramburu, that's



           13      going to give us the month of July, the month of August,



           14      and the month of September to process the application,



           15      and the hearing time would certainly not have to start as



           16      of June 5th if that extension is approved at the April



           17      council meeting.



           18          All right.  Thank you all for validating what I told



           19      the EFSEC manager last week on Wednesday afternoon or



           20      Thursday, whenever it was Ms. Bumpus and I spoke, I



           21      estimated two weeks.  I think she was a little bit



           22      surprised that we would have two weeks' worth of hearing



           23      time.  I hope we can knock it down to less as we sort out



           24      the issues and the number of witnesses.  And particularly



           25      knowing, as Mr. Aramburu pointed out, that the prefiled
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            1      written testimony comes in then we will be able to have



            2      mainly an adoption of that on the record and a



            3      cross-examination.  And, Mr. Aramburu, as you pointed out



            4      previously we will be working with exhibits and a number



            5      of other things, if we do our prehearing housekeeping



            6      correctly everybody will have exhibits and know exactly



            7      where we are going with them.  For each witness, we will



            8      be doing exams, discussion, and preparation so that the



            9      hearing time itself can be used efficiently and everybody



           10      won't have to pause to get exhibits and things like that.



           11          I'm not sure today that I can tell you what weeks



           12      are available.  I received in an email earlier today a



           13      listing of council unavailability out through September



           14      30th, so notionally we could talk about that if I'd



           15      actually read that email yet, and I will confess I have



           16      not.  I have that information, and I believe all parties



           17      have also filed their notices of unavailability.  If



           18      there's any party who has not done so as of today, I



           19      won't have you self-identify on the line, but I think all



           20      five parties have submitted their requests for



           21      unavailability, and if not, if you can get it in by close



           22      of business today that will give me time tomorrow to



           23      start doing some cross comparison of council availability



           24      and party availability and see what we have notionally



           25      beyond the July 8th current deadline.
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            1          If I make an assumption that the Council might act



            2      at their next meeting to approve it then we can start to



            3      sketch out a schedule.



            4          So let me turn then to the prefiled testimony piece



            5      of our agenda, item number four.  I think last time we



            6      talked about having three rounds of testimony.  And I



            7      initially, based on discussions with staff, had proposed



            8      the Applicant file first and then a bunch of other



            9      testimony come in in response and then reply.



           10          I can't remember which of you wisely pointed out



           11      that in past practice we allowed all testimony to come in



           12      in the first round from all parties, based on their



           13      issues, and then all parties have a chance to respond,



           14      and if necessary, rebuttal on the third round.



           15          I don't know, but I want to survey again if parties



           16      have a preference on ordering and the type of three



           17      rounds of testimony and the intervals in between.  I



           18      think we talked about potentially 28 days after the first



           19      filing for the next round, and then 21 days for the third



           20      round to come in.



           21          So I am going to ask counsel for all of the parties,



           22      and I will go in the same order as usual, to comment on



           23      that if they have thoughts and I will take notes as we



           24      go.



           25          Let me start with the Applicant, Ms. Chase?
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            1                        MS. CHASE:  The Applicant has no



            2      preference between the two approaches.  And it's fine



            3      with the allotted 28, 21 intervals, acknowledging that



            4      based on parties' different availability those dates may



            5      end up needing to shift a few days as we plot out the



            6      schedule.



            7          I think it would be helpful to have -- I think



            8      I'm -- it would be -- it would make more sense for all



            9      parties to file simultaneously because then Applicant, at



           10      least from our perspective, would have the ability to



           11      respond to the issues that were presented by the parties



           12      on the issues that they are wishing to present in this



           13      proceeding.



           14          And then I think the last comment would be as to



           15      timing.  Given that we still need to finalize the issues,



           16      the initial discussions of April 3rd and April 10th may



           17      be slightly ambitious, but we do want to make sure that



           18      we are getting an initial deadline as soon as possible.



           19          Thank you, Judge Torem.  I'm happy to answer any



           20      questions.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Given that the



           22      Council may not act on the extension request until the



           23      third week in April, which would put us at the April 19th



           24      meeting, would the Applicant and all parties, I guess, if



           25      we are going to do it simultaneously, be comfortable with
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            1      the first round of testimony coming in not knowing quite



            2      what the hearing dates are, but notionally knowing that



            3      they won't be in June, what are your thoughts on filing a



            4      first round of testimony ahead of next month's council



            5      meeting so we can get things rolling?  And, again, that's



            6      subject to identifying all the disputed issues, if not



            7      today, then shortly after today.



            8                        MS. CHASE:  As Applicant we have no



            9      objection, and agree that we should start with our first



           10      round of filings before the Council has the opportunity



           11      to act on that request.  Understanding that everybody



           12      seems to acknowledge that the June dates are not



           13      practically realistic.  We have no objection to that as



           14      long as there is adequate time between when the issues



           15      are finalized for the parties to have a couple of weeks



           16      to get their third round of testimony together.



           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Anything



           18      else from the Applicant on the scheduling of prefiled



           19      testimony or the topics we are covering before I shift to



           20      Counsel for the Environment?



           21          Okay.  All right.  Hearing none, let me shift to Ms.



           22      Reyneveld, and ask for your input on the round of



           23      testimony, the intervals, and potentially starting the



           24      filing if we do it simultaneously then that would apply



           25      to CFE and all the other parties to be ready sometime
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            1      between now and April, middle of the month, when the



            2      Council has their meeting.



            3                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Thank you, Judge.  The



            4      Counsel for the Environment has a slight preference for



            5      the Applicant filing first and then other parties



            6      responding and then reply or rebuttal.  I don't have a



            7      preference on the intervals other than that they be



            8      sufficiently spaced out.  And I would prefer to have the



            9      hearing scheduled and then to work from there in terms of



           10      the filing schedule.  I don't think it necessarily makes



           11      sense to establish an arbitrary filing schedule in April



           12      and then have the hearing potentially be in July.  It's



           13      just -- from a kind of litigation perspective I think we



           14      should schedule the hearing and then schedule kind of



           15      those filing deadlines accordingly.



           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, I



           17      think in a perfect world I would agree a hundred percent.



           18      There's a certain part of me that remembers somebody in



           19      our federal government talking about unknown unknowns,



           20      and we are dealing with those right now, but I don't want



           21      to waste the time between now and the next counsel



           22      meeting because every day is valuable.  I think as of



           23      last week we had 115 days to go to the July 8th



           24      extension, and if we do get an approved extension to



           25      September 30th, today might be the first day of Spring
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            1      but the first day of Fall may be the date that the



            2      council members are deliberating and we are trying to get



            3      an order out, so that September time I don't want to be



            4      holding a hearing in September.  I want to be evaluating



            5      what's going on with the filings and post hearing briefs



            6      by then.  I just want the parties to think that the judge



            7      and the council need time to after the adjudication read



            8      your post hearing briefs, make decisions, draft the



            9      recommendation, and work accordingly to get everything



           10      ready to announce and deliver to the governor.



           11          One other piece that's come to my attention in



           12      looking past the SEPA questions is that the final EIS has



           13      to be part of the recommendation.  That has to be



           14      finalized, I believe, seven days according to law before



           15      the recommendation goes to the governor, so that's



           16      another week of backing up time for many to grant an



           17      extension to have to be considered.



           18          But that said, Ms. Reyneveld, I want to know when



           19      the hearing is too so that we get -- we don't



           20      artificially put pressure to file that first round of



           21      testimony.  So my thought is we may get a feel and a



           22      decision today on the intervals and the soon as possible



           23      date.  We may yet schedule a shorter prehearing



           24      conference to announce dates and then work through those



           25      and then set the schedule depending on how far we get
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            1      today.



            2          Ms. Reyneveld, anything else?



            3                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That makes sense,



            4      Judge.  I just want to make sure that there's ample time



            5      to be able to, you know, actually submit testimony and



            6      call witnesses, and so I think that's my concern about



            7      just the -- to expediting the process for filing prior to



            8      knowing the hearing date.  I appreciate that.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  A hundred percent



           10      understood.  I don't want to rush anybody further.  And



           11      if we do have ample time, and thanks to the Applicant's



           12      intention or already filed extension request, we probably



           13      should, but I have to look at all those notices of



           14      unavailability and see where the jigsaw puzzle lines up.



           15          All right.  That's my problem to deal with.  Let's



           16      shift to the County now.  Mr. Harper, thoughts on



           17      prefiled testimony?



           18                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton



           19      County, Your Honor.  I have strong concerns about the



           20      concept of simultaneous filing with a target date of mid



           21      April.  I just, you know, I'm very concerned about the



           22      definition of the issues.  I'm concerned about the status



           23      of SEPA.  I share Ms. Reyneveld's concern, and we don't



           24      need to go over that again regarding the sequence here



           25      from hearing date forward.  But, Your Honor, I don't know
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            1      what really is going to be sort of the focal point of the



            2      hearing of the Applicant's position.  I don't really know



            3      how the respondents/interveners may be able to work



            4      between themselves and streamline testimony with having



            5      to simultaneously hit that date as part of our own



            6      prefiled testimony due date.  So, Your Honor, from the



            7      County's perspective we would strongly request at least a



            8      staggered series of filings and/or -- I know this isn't



            9      really what you want to know, but and/or an initial



           10      prefiled testimony due date somewhat later than April.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I was going to ask



           12      you if the nature of your concern is more of the timing



           13      of a mid April filing date without the full fleshing out



           14      of issues and other things, or is it the you don't want



           15      to file simultaneously with the Applicant with the



           16      County's issues?  Is it both or is it weighted more



           17      toward the timing?



           18                        MR. HARPER:  Thanks, Your Honor, for



           19      the chance to clarify.  It's a combination of the two.  I



           20      don't know that I have a strong reservation about the



           21      idea of simultaneous filing, but that clearly puts more



           22      onus on the County, possibly the other responding party



           23      and interveners to really, you know, very carefully



           24      structure what their prefiled testimony will be, which



           25      takes time.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Agreed.  And I know the



            2      Applicant knows what it's applying for.  And the



            3      Applicant knows what it thinks its disputed issues are



            4      going to be may be in a better position, but I do think



            5      each of the parties know why they are here in the case.



            6      They filed petitions for intervention, or as the County



            7      has been involved in the beginning as well, Mr. Harper,



            8      before your firm filed its appearance so everybody knows



            9      why they are here.



           10          I'm a little bit honestly less concerned with the



           11      question of what are we going to do.  You are going to



           12      identify your witnesses at the same rate, if you haven't



           13      already.  So you will have a full period of time to



           14      respond.  It looks like the 28-day interval to respond to



           15      the Applicant's witnesses that they file.



           16          Again, if we need to extend it from 28 days if we



           17      have a little more grace time longer to perhaps allow for



           18      some informal discovery, or formal if necessary.  That



           19      may be some way to accommodate the concern you are



           20      expressing, and I hope we can do that fairly so you don't



           21      feel that there's any trial by ambush or any other



           22      concern of any party surprising the others, anymore than



           23      any other filing that comes into court might do.



           24          Mr. Harper, I will give you a chance to respond on



           25      how I'm evaluating your concerns.
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            1                        MR. HARPER:  No. I think you have



            2      stated it, Your Honor.  Thank you.



            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let's move



            4      on then to Ms. Voelckers working with prefiled testimony



            5      questions and about intervals as well.



            6                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



            7      We are not opposed to filing simultaneously, although I



            8      would note that we have been operating on the last



            9      discussion, the last hearing conference in preparation



           10      to -- we anticipate that we would not be asked to file



           11      that direct testimony in the same time line that



           12      Applicant is comfortable with, but depending on when the



           13      date is that we are not opposed to filing testimony



           14      simultaneously.



           15          I will say that I also have very strong concerns



           16      about the timing and especially knowing that Applicant



           17      has submitted an application to extend the deadline.



           18      That is still, frankly, quite ambitious.  I think that



           19      walking back from the date of the hearing being set is



           20      what makes the most sense here and sets everyone up for



           21      the best possible process, even though we are under this



           22      timeline or time crunch.



           23          And I would just respectfully also push back a



           24      little bit on the language about wasting time.  I think



           25      we are all working really hard to get caught up on a lot
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            1      of materials the Applicant has had years to put together,



            2      including the amended site verification application that



            3      was filed just months ago.  So we, you know, do need that



            4      time to have a fair process here.  So those are my



            5      comments on the timing.  I think that we should wait



            6      until the hearing is set and walk back from the hearing,



            7      and do so in a way that is fair, regardless of whether or



            8      not we are filing simultaneously.



            9          And lastly I would just note that those 28 days were



           10      agreed before the Applicant went on the record and said



           11      that they were prepared to file in just a few weeks.  So



           12      when we had that the discussion about the 28-day timeline



           13      there were no dates that were being proposed or agreed to



           14      by the Applicant to inform that discussion.  Again, I



           15      would submit that that should be as much time as possible



           16      given that the hearing date -- once the hearing date is



           17      put on the calendar.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Voelckers, I



           19      just want to validate for you that when I said there was



           20      going to be any wasting of time, that would be from my



           21      perspective of my time and the Council's time to elapsing



           22      towards that perhaps now September 30th deadline.  I



           23      didn't mean any implication or offense that parties are



           24      wasting time.  From a procedural standpoint, though,



           25      every day to me is precious and I don't want to sit on my
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            1      hands until the council meeting on April 19th.  You know,



            2      that's a full month away from today, and we can make good



            3      use of that time even if it doesn't include a filing



            4      deadline.  It can involve a lot of other procedural



            5      progress to get to the first filing round.  So, again,



            6      that's what I meant there.



            7          I do see that my notes reflect that these other



            8      filing deadlines of being ready as soon -- April 3rd or



            9      April 10th were not offered by anybody that I recall



           10      other than Ms. Chase as to when the Applicant might be



           11      ready to file.  You are correct to bring that up and make



           12      a clarification.  Thank you.



           13                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  With those comments, Ms.



           15      Voelckers, did you have anything else to add?



           16                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           17      I would add one other thing, which is that I did listen



           18      to the discussion during the EFSEC meeting last week, and



           19      I also heard that the staff team is working really hard



           20      on the SEPA side and did not have a schedule to commit to



           21      on issuance of the SEIS, and so it seemed like that would



           22      also be something that we would want to avoid setting,



           23      arbitrarily limiting deadlines when the SEIS might also



           24      not be ready as early as the Applicant would like it.  So



           25      that's my only other comment in terms of timelines is
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            1      that I don't know that we would need to have the



            2      adjudication be done any earlier than -- given reasonable



            3      time to review, but if the SEIS is going to be months



            4      away as well, I would hate to have all of us working



            5      under really hard deadlines on the adjudication side that



            6      are months ahead of an SEIS.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  And that's a fine point



            8      to make.  I have no reason to believe that the staff



            9      would need an exorbitant amount of time to respond.  I



           10      know there's a lot of comments on the draft EIS, but



           11      unless there's going to be requests from staff based on



           12      comments for a supplemental environmental review, I



           13      haven't been given any such indication yet, but that may



           14      be premature.  I will bring that up with the staff that



           15      is handling the parallel SEPA evaluation that will be



           16      going alongside but separate from the adjudication and



           17      make sure that that's a valid concern.  If they think



           18      that they can't get things done within the times frames



           19      that are currently set or might be approved for September



           20      30th, I will count on Ms. Lune (phonetic) and the rest of



           21      the SEPA staff to make sure the adjudication team is



           22      aware so the right hand and the left hand of the EFSEC



           23      Council and staff know what's going on here.  Thank you,



           24      Ms. Voelckers.



           25                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.
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            1      Nothing else at this time.



            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  Mr.



            3      Aramburu?



            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Richard Aramburu for



            5      Tri-Cities CARES.  A couple of issues.  Number one, I



            6      appreciate that the EFSEC Council does meet once a month,



            7      but with no objections to the Applicant's request, I



            8      don't know why we necessarily need to wait for that



            9      period of time.  Isn't there some process available so



           10      that we can have a more rapid decision about that?  That



           11      would be the request that's coming from me so we know



           12      where we are.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Let me address that



           14      right away, Mr. Aramburu, and just say it's possible that



           15      there would be a special meeting, but Mr. Thompson would



           16      have to work with the Chair and indicate whether or not



           17      we can waive notice periods or give special notice



           18      periods, so there are still laws to comply with to get



           19      things done ahead of April 19th and clarify the dates for



           20      us.  I'm sure Mr. Thompson hearing that concern, if he



           21      hasn't already, had that motion as making notes and will



           22      be reaching out to the Chair shortly after we hang up



           23      today.  So that's in the cards as well if it can be



           24      accelerated.  And if there truly is no objection, the



           25      Applicant is just getting that filed today.  We do need
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            1      to give all the other parties an opportunity to respond



            2      and see.  I don't want to assume that anybody on the line



            3      here today that's a party to this matter won't have a



            4      concern or objection.  There may be one that we haven't



            5      thought about or hasn't been voiced yet.



            6          All right.  So on to the other pieces of prefiled



            7      testimony, Mr. Aramburu.



            8                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I agree with some of



            9      the other parties that the agenda for prefiled testimony



           10      is aggressive.  I think we should be looking at dates for



           11      testimony in -- testimony submission, in perhaps mid to



           12      late June.



           13          One of the other concerns that we have had has to do



           14      with the preparation of the final environmental impact



           15      statement.  We believe that the final impact statement



           16      should be available during the time the testimony is



           17      prepared, not after.  So we would like to see if a



           18      schedule can be worked out to have that testimony -- or



           19      have that document ready at the time we go into our



           20      filing of testimony.  That would be another request.



           21          Regarding the timing, and I appreciate, Judge Torem,



           22      us being active during this interim time, additional time



           23      we may have.  I do think there are some motions that



           24      perhaps will be filed.  I also think there may be some



           25      discovery that some of the parties would like.  I think
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            1      some of that can take place in the next month or so.  It



            2      might be having some productive time available to us at



            3      that point.



            4          Regarding the testimony, I think I am an advocate of



            5      all of the parties filing at the same time and responses



            6      and replies for -- there may be some issues that will



            7      come up that a party will be filing on the subject matter



            8      and that the Applicant is not filing on at all.  So from



            9      that standpoint, getting the direct testimony in at one



           10      time, and having responses and replies, I think, is the



           11      preferable way to proceed.  So those are my thoughts.



           12      The 28/21 day agenda or schedule for submission of



           13      testimony is probably fine.  So those are my thoughts.



           14      Thank you.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Mr. Aramburu.



           16      And I know you have been through this before, so it's not



           17      that I'm giving it any additional weight, but I know you



           18      are commenting from a position of been there and done



           19      that, and I appreciate that the insight is there.



           20          I think I do agree with all the parties' concerns



           21      about being ready to file next month.  The applicant has



           22      said that, and may have a better idea of a list of



           23      witnesses, but I do hope everybody on the line is getting



           24      ready and identifying witnesses now.  And as Mr. Aramburu



           25      stated, starting to do the drafting of any motions you
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            1      think might be necessary on a sooner rather than later



            2      basis, and, frankly, any informal discovery that can be



            3      done until we establish the actual rules that will apply



            4      beyond those that are in the law and the Administrative



            5      Procedures Act of RCW 34.05, and those that are already



            6      adopted for EFSEC practice I think within WAC 463.  I



            7      don't have the exact citation off the top of my head.



            8      It's been a few years.  Look at those rules.  That's what



            9      applies now if you are going to ask for formal discovery



           10      until we adopt specific procedures for this adjudication,



           11      that WAC will govern and hopefully all parties will



           12      adhere to those deadlines that are set in the WAC until



           13      we can figure out any special accommodations for this



           14      Horse Heaven adjudication.



           15          I wish I could tell you we could resolve everything



           16      about the prefiled testimony today under Item No. 4, but



           17      I don't think we should or will given the breathing room



           18      that we are being offered by the Applicant's extension



           19      request that's announced to all of us today.



           20          I want to skip over the disputed issues list until



           21      we have our first break because I don't think it does us



           22      any favors to start on that and then have to stop for a



           23      ten minute comfort and court reporter rest break.



           24          I think if we go for another 15 or 20 minutes and



           25      talk a little bit more about discovery, and maybe even
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            1      the schedule for our next prehearing conference that that



            2      would be productive use of our time in the next 15 to 20



            3      minutes.



            4          So let's turn to Item No. 6, the discovery.  As I



            5      have already covered, there's informal discovery



            6      available under the Administrative Procedures Act.  And I



            7      have listed three different adjudications from past



            8      experience.  The Kittitas Valley wind power project,



            9      which I presided over.  The Whispering Ridge project that



           10      I believe that Bob Wallace was the ALJ on that one.  And



           11      then Cassandra Noble, I believe, presided over the Tesoro



           12      Vancouver Energy project.  Each of us probably issued



           13      different prehearing conference orders with slightly



           14      different discovery practices.



           15          I wish I could tell you that I had time to read all



           16      three of those orders before today's proceeding, but I



           17      have not.  I just know notionally how it went the last



           18      time I had been in complex adjudication before this



           19      Council, as well as other proceedings I have been



           20      involved in.



           21          I wanted to hear from all five parties on what your



           22      thoughts are for any special needs for discovery that



           23      aren't addressed in one of those three orders, or if



           24      there's something in one of those three orders and you



           25      have had a chance to look at it and I haven't that you
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            1      want to call my attention to, or just out of the WAC 463



            2      provision if there's any need to tailor those for this



            3      adjudication.  So, Ms. Chase, I am going to come back to



            4      you to start us off.



            5                        MS. CHASE:  Sure.  Thank you, Judge



            6      Torem.  I think Applicant's view is that informal -- or



            7      discovery is likely not particularly necessary here, but



            8      we understand that the current WAC and other provisions



            9      apply to operate informal discovery, and we will



           10      cooperate as contemplated by those items.  I think our



           11      view is that the procedure in the Kittitas Valley, and



           12      I'm looking at the order on discovery procedures,



           13      prehearing order number eight that you provided the



           14      parties, or referred the parties to in connection with



           15      your -- your agenda last week.  I think that makes sense



           16      to encourage the parties to cooperate informally if we



           17      are going to have informal discovery, and you serve as



           18      the presiding officer if there are formal discovery



           19      issues that need to be resolved.



           20          And I think the other note that we would make is



           21      that, in our view, the use of the prefiled testimony



           22      largely supplants some of the other items that you might



           23      need discovery for, so that's just a comment about how



           24      the parties will be working together in advance of the



           25      adjudication to narrow the issues and the scope of items
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            1      to be discussed with the prefiled written testimony.



            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Chase, let me ask, I



            3      think all the parties may have a concern with wanting to



            4      do maybe some formal discovery, such as the discovery



            5      deposition of some witnesses.  I know it's an incredible



            6      expense, and trying to get people together to do those



            7      kind of things, particularly when you have prefiled



            8      testimony that allows for the preparation of any



            9      cross-exam, but I believe there have been some limited



           10      discovery depositions authorized in the past, or at least



           11      agreed to by parties in these types of matters.  I don't



           12      remember them necessarily in the Kittitas Valley case.



           13          Has the Applicant had any experience where their



           14      witnesses have been subjected to a pre-adjudication



           15      discovery deposition on or before the prefiled testimony



           16      came in?



           17                        MR. MCMAHON:  Your Honor, Tim McMahan,



           18      here for the record.  Having been involved in Wild Horse,



           19      Kittitas Valley, Whistling Ridge, in none of those cases



           20      have pre -- have the parties been allowed or have even



           21      requested really, there was some request for discovery in



           22      the Kittitas Valley case with depositions, but that did



           23      not end up being as necessary or allowed.  You know, if



           24      you are asking about experience in prior EFSEC



           25      proceedings, I don't recall that ever occurring.  And it
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            1      was considered to be a successful process to engage in



            2      informal discovery.  And as Ms. Chase indicates, the



            3      prefiled testimony largely, I believe, supplants the need



            4      for much of that.



            5          The only use of the depositions that I can recall



            6      was after the Kittitas Valley case was actually



            7      completed, and there were pre -- there were depositions



            8      taken prior to submittal of the record to the Washington



            9      State Supreme Court.  And those depositions had a lot to



           10      do with accusations of ex parte contact and inappropriate



           11      behaviors which were pretty soundly rejected by the



           12      Washington State Supreme Court.



           13          Again, I have not participated in actual cases where



           14      depositions were taken in lieu of informal discovery.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, did you



           16      participate in the Whispering Ridge matter?



           17                        MR. MCMAHAN:  I did.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I had a notion



           19      from staff or other things that I had heard about that



           20      case that maybe there had been formal discovery and



           21      depositions taken, but it's been many years ago so maybe



           22      memories are a little foggy.



           23                        MR. MCMAHAN:  Well, I don't recall



           24      that happening with Whispering Ridge.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  I was referring to --
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            1      it's my recollection that I wasn't directly involved so



            2      who knows.  I don't know for sure what happened, but



            3      there are other parties, and Mr. Aramburu I will come to



            4      you shortly, but I don't want you to -- I don't mean to



            5      encourage that parties should be seeking this kind of



            6      discovery simply because it will eat up more time and



            7      cause more expense.  And I do believe this practice of



            8      having everybody put their cards on their table up front



            9      avoids the need to prefile testimony for most, if not



           10      all, depositions of parties until you at least read what



           11      they are going to be saying, if you think that there's



           12      more that you need to get, then we can talk about a



           13      motion for additional inquiry or essentially voir dire a



           14      witness in an efficient manner that allows for the



           15      information for all parties to prepare for the



           16      adjudication.



           17          Mr. Aramburu, you were going to maybe enlighten us



           18      on your experience?



           19                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Yes.  Mr. McMahan and I



           20      were involved in the Whispering Ridge case.  There were



           21      some discovery issues there but there were not



           22      depositions that were taken in that case.  I will just



           23      wait until I'm called on for other issues.



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  I will tell you what, I



           25      will call on you now since you are already thinking about
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            1      it.  Go ahead, Mr. Aramburu.



            2                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Well, I don't want to



            3      cut in line here.  So for the issue of discovery, again,



            4      I think opportunity for depositions should be given, but



            5      I think they are of limited use here.  More often we have



            6      witnesses that are preparing and need information from



            7      the Applicant or perhaps from another party.  And there



            8      would be requests for documents, data requests, those



            9      kinds of things.  That's what's more likely here as our



           10      witnesses prepare.  So on the subject of discovery I



           11      think we should have an opportunity for that kind of



           12      discovery formal or informal.  And perhaps we start with



           13      informal discovery where you make documents available et



           14      cetera, et cetera, and then if we ran into problems we



           15      can go into more detail procedures connected with



           16      discovery, including motions.  So that's my thought on



           17      that.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And I



           19      appreciate, Mr. Aramburu, the insights there because I



           20      know in my day job as Board of Industrial Insurance



           21      Appeals industrial appeals judge, if that's not a



           22      mouthful, I typically rely on perpetuation depositions



           23      for the expert testimony, and that is the testimony that



           24      comes in.  So sometimes counsel perform discovery



           25      depositions before they are ready to cross-examine a
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            1      witness they haven't seen before, but I -- in this



            2      context, I don't think so that same practice adds the



            3      value that it does in the Labor & Industries practice.



            4          So I would -- at risk of wondering what the other



            5      parties are going to say, concur with what you have



            6      indicated so far.  I think the parties can get most of it



            7      done, especially on a more relaxed schedule we are



            8      anticipating informally.



            9          Let me turn to Ms. Reyneveld and see if in your



           10      experience, Ms. Reyneveld, if you are anticipating any



           11      formal discovery or any special needs?



           12                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Counsel for the



           13      Environment agrees with the informal discovery procedures



           14      under the APA and proceeding with more formal discovery



           15      only if necessary.



           16          I also practiced before the Board of Industrial



           17      Insurance Appeals for about nine years representing L&I



           18      so I did take many discovery depositions in that context,



           19      but I don't anticipate taking pre-adjudication discovery



           20      depositions in this context just because of the prefiled



           21      testimony requirement and the nature of prefiled



           22      testimony.  And the Counsel for the Environment doesn't



           23      anticipate any special discovery needs or preferences for



           24      this adjudication at this time.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,
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            1      Ms. Reyneveld.



            2          Mr. Harper, for the County?



            3                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton



            4      County.  Your Honor, I think it seems like kind of a



            5      consensus is emerging, and I am not going to dissent.  We



            6      don't see a great likelihood of any special needs for



            7      discovery, any special preferences for discovery.  I



            8      can't foreclose the possibility of some pre-adjudication



            9      deposition, but it doesn't seem like that's going to be



           10      the direction that the County goes.  So, Your Honor, I



           11      think we are pretty comfortable with relying on good



           12      faith and APA-based discovery concepts.  I will just



           13      leave it at that unless you have any questions, Judge.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  I don't.  Let me hear



           15      from Ms. Voelckers and then we will kind of -- I will



           16      give you my thoughts on how we might handle any disputes



           17      in discovery, which I will say up front judges hate.  Ms.



           18      Voelckers?



           19                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           20      I would like to share a few thoughts and just acknowledge



           21      that a few of the terms being used are not ones I'm as



           22      familiar with, so I might be imprecise in my language



           23      here in terms of formal or informal.  We agree with the



           24      statement that was made earlier that there's likely not a



           25      need to depose witnesses before they file their written
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            1      testimony, but we would like to reserve the right to file



            2      pre-adjudication depositions of witnesses that have



            3      submitted testimony and we would like to see that



            4      testimony before we make that decision.  There might be



            5      an instance where we would be asking to depose a witness



            6      after they have filed their direct testimony.



            7          The other areas of discovery we are interested in



            8      are data requests, as Mr. Aramburu mentioned, more so



            9      than depositions, but we do think we might need to depose



           10      one or two third party witnesses, given the lack of a



           11      final EIS to have as part of the record.  So likely to be



           12      technical staff on impacts of the project.  The technical



           13      staff that carry knowledge that's important to this case,



           14      such as WDFW.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So if I



           16      understand you correctly, the Yakama Tribe would concur



           17      that informal discovery will likely work for most things,



           18      but once you see the first round of prefiled testimony



           19      you might want to file a data request before you file



           20      your responsive testimony to flesh something out; is that



           21      an understanding, first?



           22                        MS. VOELCKERS:  I think, Your Honor,



           23      need to, I think, clarify my statement further.  So the



           24      two types of discovery we anticipate would be data



           25      requests or some limited number of depositions.  And as
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            1      for depositions of witnesses of other parties, we would



            2      not request those until their direct, you know,



            3      prewritten, direct written testimony has been submitted.



            4      In the meantime, though, we would potentially be



            5      requesting data in depositions of third parties,



            6      specifically technical staff with expertise on the impact



            7      of the project.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  I wanted to ask you



            9      about that second point separately.  When you say third



           10      parties that may imply to me, at least, that we are not



           11      talking about a witness being sponsored or called by any



           12      of the other four parties that might have interests



           13      different from or adverse to the Tribe.  You mentioned



           14      the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, WDFW, as



           15      a potential party that you might want to seek a



           16      deposition from.  And I would have to, I think, tell you



           17      I may not have the jurisdiction to, you know, force them



           18      to testify in this matter, or, you know, be in a position



           19      to exclude testimony as a penalty for failing to respond



           20      to a request or a deposition discovery request.



           21          So I'm also trying to think from the perspective of



           22      who is really at the table here to present evidence, and



           23      what do you really need for the adjudication issues, and



           24      then what are other issues that the Tribe may think need



           25      to be covered through either its independent consultation
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            1      rights or through the SEPA process, which are separate



            2      and apart from what we are doing here in the



            3      adjudication.  So I don't say that to prejudge.  It's not



            4      a no by any means, but it's tell me more if and when that



            5      comes up so that I can decide is it something within the



            6      gambit of an administrative law judge for EFSEC with an



            7      adjudication, or is that a decision that I have to defer



            8      and essentially say no, I don't have the power to grant



            9      what you are questioning, and figure out what other



           10      alternate relief would allow the Tribe to feel that they



           11      have had their day in court, not only in the



           12      adjudication, but before the Council makes its ultimate



           13      recommendation, which includes some other moving parts



           14      that are not part of the adjudication.  Fair enough?



           15                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes.  Thank you, Your



           16      Honor.



           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So when we



           18      get to that portion of any more formal discovery, and,



           19      again, when I use that term, Ms. Voelckers, I'm thinking



           20      in my mind about things that would happen under the Civil



           21      Rules, such as formal interrogatories, requests for



           22      production, requests for admission, or the actual



           23      discovery depositions we have been talking about this



           24      morning, or this afternoon.  I forgot, it's 2:30.



           25          All right.  So, Counsel, it sounds like a discovery
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            1      process can be adapted from what I have done previously



            2      in the Kittitas Valley process.  I remember there were



            3      motion practice in that case that I had to discover



            4      some -- or make some decisions.  They were motions to



            5      strike testimony.  There were motions to disqualify



            6      council members.  There were a variety of things that



            7      happened.  It wasn't quite everything under the sun, but



            8      it was an expansive and thorough, you know, weighing of



            9      issue before we even go to the adjudication.  So we will



           10      talk a little bit more about the timelines at another



           11      prehearing conference, I think, once -- and maybe like



           12      Mr. Aramburu said, maybe we will have a decision or at



           13      least a pending council meeting before April 19th to



           14      specially decide once we all see the extension request



           15      filed by the Applicant today.



           16          Before we take our break, I want to ask everybody to



           17      look at their calendar and see if next week a shorter



           18      period of time on Monday afternoon might be available to



           19      meet again and wrap up these issues and maybe by then I



           20      will have had a moment to come back with new timelines



           21      when the Council might be available and have a chance to



           22      look at your notices of unavailability, and, frankly, to



           23      see how many of those requests can be accommodated and



           24      fit into the notional new schedule of getting a



           25      recommendation out by September 30th.  My schedule next
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            1      Monday doesn't really allow any time before the noon



            2      hour, and I have a 1:30 hearing that would have had me in



            3      Moses Lake but the parties have agreed to do it by Zoom.



            4      I doubt very much it's going to take more than 60 minutes



            5      to take one witness' testimony, so I think I could



            6      available at 2:30 or 2:45 to have a much shorter



            7      prehearing conference and nail down dates.



            8          I hope that's not too optimistic, but if we nailed a



            9      schedule down next Monday afternoon for the hearing, with



           10      the contingency of knowing that the Council is going to



           11      meet to approve this extension request, if we go on that



           12      assumption, who is available Monday afternoon the 27th of



           13      March at 2:45?  Would the Applicant be available?



           14                        MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase, yes,



           15      Applicant would be available.



           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  And let me put a bumper



           17      on the end time of that of 4:30, so that when you are



           18      saying yes you would be available, you know, I'm hoping



           19      that we will be done by four, but if I go to 4:30 is that



           20      still a yes, Ms. Chase?



           21                        MS. CHASE:  It is a still a yes for



           22      Applicant.  Thank you.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, would



           24      your schedule accommodate that?



           25                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, my schedule would
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            1      accommodate that.  Thank you, Judge.



            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.



            3      Aramburu?



            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  That would -- 2:30 to



            5      4:00, that would work with my schedule.  Thank you.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  Specifically I'm looking



            7      at 2:45 to 4:30.



            8                        MR. ARAMBURU:  2:45 to 4:30, I will be



            9      available.



           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,



           11      sir.  Ms. Voelckers?



           12                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor, that



           13      time works for me.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And, Mr.



           15      Harper?



           16                        MR. HARPER:  Unfortunately, Your



           17      Honor, I have a problem.  Your Honor, that's the date



           18      that we secured many months ago for a significant



           19      mediation involving a number of attorneys.  If we could



           20      revisit this perhaps after the break I may be able to



           21      make some accommodations so that we could handle that on



           22      the 27th.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  What I will



           24      offer you since there's a potential problem, if all the



           25      parties would take a look at either the morning hours of
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            1      the next day, the 28th, the hearing that I have in the



            2      Tri-Cities is scheduled to go from ten a.m. until three



            3      p.m., so I have no objections to my old military hours as



            4      early as 7:30, but I think the court reporter contract is



            5      probably no earlier than eight.  We could do things from



            6      eight to ten or somewhere in that range, or possibly I



            7      would delay my return travel and we could do this between



            8      three and five on the 28th.



            9          My schedule after that gets a little more difficult,



           10      but I think I have time also on the 30th between ten a.m.



           11      and one p.m. that I could chew on two hours of time in.



           12      Wednesday is out, and I have got another couple of things



           13      cooking on the 31st.  Maybe we could do it on the morning



           14      of the 31st as well.  So if other parties could check



           15      their calendars again for a morning block of time, a



           16      couple of hours in the afternoon on March 28th, Thursday



           17      midday from ten to one on the 30th, and maybe eight to



           18      10:30'ish on the 31st.  I will ask staff for our normal



           19      check-in on this to maybe move it to 10:30 to accommodate



           20      a prehearing conference if that's what we need to do.



           21          Counsel, it's now 2:40.  I want to take break until



           22      2:50 and give the court reporter a rest.  We will come



           23      back at 2:50 and pick up with our discussion of the



           24      disputed issues.  I know some emails came in earlier



           25      today from several parties.  I think Ms. Voelckers and
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            1      and I think Counsel for the Environment submitted their



            2      disputed issues this morning that I saw come in, so if



            3      you haven't received those maybe reach out to other



            4      counsel by email or pick up the phone while we are on



            5      break, but I think it went out to everybody.



            6          All right.  Will the court reporter show us off the



            7      record.



            8                             (Recess from 2:39 p.m.



            9                               to 2:50 p.m.)



           10



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  I will do a quick roll



           12      call.  Is Ms. Chase here for the Applicant?



           13                        MS. CHASE:  Yes, Judge, this is Ms.



           14      Chase.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  Mr. Harper



           16      for the County?



           17                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for Benton



           18      County present.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld?



           20                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I am present.  Thank



           21      you, Your Honor.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers for the



           23      Tribe?



           24                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Shona Voelckers



           25      present on behalf of Yakama Nation.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And Mr.



            2      Aramburu for TCC?



            3                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Present on behalf of



            4      Tri-Cities CARES.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



            6      Mr. Harper, what did you find out about that schedule on



            7      Monday the 27th?  Do you think that will that work or do



            8      we need to look at an alternate date that week?



            9                        MR. HARPER:  We can make it work, Your



           10      Honor.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So Monday.  I



           12      appreciate the accommodation.  It sounded like it might



           13      have been a big lift, but I'm glad you got it done.



           14      Let's count on then having a notice issued and I will



           15      work with staff but tell you now on the record, at 2:45



           16      p.m. we will get together next Monday and we will hope to



           17      be done by four but will schedule it to end no later than



           18      4:30 on March 27th.  And by then I hope to have feedback



           19      from the Chair on potential venue concerns and, again,



           20      have sorted out all of the unavailability orders as well.



           21          Let's turn to the disputed issues list.  And, Ms.



           22      Chase, did the Applicant submit anything since the last



           23      prehearing conference?



           24                        MS. CHASE:  No, Judge Torem, Applicant



           25      has not submitted a disputed issues lists or anything on
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            1      this point since the last prehearing conference.  I think



            2      Applicant's view is that the -- we have submitted the



            3      application or prepared to defend the application and so



            4      the specific issues in terms of the concerns about the



            5      applications are for the other parties to identify.  And



            6      just on that point that you just wrapped up, I wonder if



            7      we have a prehearing conference on the 27th if it makes



            8      sense for folks to submit their venue items on a shorter



            9      timeline so that you can receive and consider those



           10      before the prehearing conference?



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  That is a



           12      good point.  So let's circle back to that first.  How



           13      soon do you think the Applicant would be ready to submit



           14      their letter.



           15                        MS. CHASE:  We can submit it by



           16      Wednesday of this week or any other time this week that



           17      works for the other parties.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And if we are



           19      going to have feedback on that matter next Monday, and I



           20      would hope to so we can decide maybe all of the



           21      scheduling issues, that might be overly optimistic.  If



           22      we give folks to the close of business today when we are



           23      done, or close to, until say Thursday morning, that would



           24      give two full days, tomorrow and Wednesday.  Does any



           25      party have an objection to me having you turn in your
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            1      venue discussion that we talked about earlier, that



            2      letter by the morning of say 9:30 in the morning on



            3      Thursday the 23rd of this month?  It sounds like the



            4      Applicant is okay with that.



            5          Would the County be okay with that, Mr. Harper?



            6                        MR. HARPER:  Yes.  Ken Harper for the



            7      County.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers for the



            9      Tribe, would that be sufficient time to get your venue



           10      request, the concerns stated in a letter to me and to the



           11      Chair?



           12                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           13      We can do that by Thursday morning.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Ms. Reyneveld,



           15      does that work for you?



           16                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That will work for me.



           17      Thank you, Judge.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr.



           19      Aramburu, will that work for you as well?



           20                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Fine with us.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So we are



           22      accelerating that deadline to March 23rd, that's Thursday



           23      at 9:30 a.m.  Thank you all for that.



           24          On to the other point Ms. Chase raised.  I do



           25      appreciate the approach of, hey, we filed the application
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            1      so we already know what issues we think are necessary for



            2      the Council to consider.  I think that is just fine.  I



            3      just wanted to make sure I hadn't missed any



            4      correspondence from the Applicant in that regard, so



            5      thank you for clarifying that's the approach the



            6      Applicant is taking.



            7          Let me turn to the County then and see, Mr. Harper,



            8      you had filed a disputed issues list last week and some



            9      of that in conjunction with other parties.  Was there any



           10      new filing since then that the County submitted?



           11                        MR. HARPER:  There has not been a new



           12      filing to date.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  All right.  Thank



           14      you.



           15          Ms. Reyneveld, let me come to you because your email



           16      came in mid-morning today if I'm correct in the timing.



           17                        MS. REYNEVELD:  It came in just right



           18      prior to this meeting, or this prehearing conference,



           19      Judge.



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I'm pulling that up.



           21      I see it at 12:28 p.m. so you are operating on the same



           22      just in time production as I am on some of these things.



           23      I appreciate that very much.  And hopefully with time I



           24      will get caught up where I'm several days in advance and



           25      thinking ahead of all of you.
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            1          All right.  I am looking at Counsel for the



            2      Environment's preliminary list of disputed issues, and as



            3      I would expect they are mainly focused on environmental



            4      impact issues.  All right.  I am going to ask the



            5      Applicant to respond if they have had a chance first to



            6      review these five enumerated issues, and if there's any



            7      objection or concern with how Counsel for the Environment



            8      has phrased this list of disputed issues with the limited



            9      additional guidance I was able to provide last week?



           10                        MS. CHASE:  This is Ms. Chase for the



           11      Applicant, and we have had an opportunity to review these



           12      issues, including -- because Counsel for the Environment



           13      shared these with us, and I think in essentially the same



           14      form last week, which we appreciated, and so we don't



           15      have any objections or concerns with these issues.



           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Did any of



           17      the other parties have any concerns they wanted to speak



           18      to on the five issues that Counsel for the Environment



           19      listed?  I will ask the County first.



           20                        MR. HARPER:  No, Ken Harber for the



           21      County.  Thank you.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.



           23      Voelckers, from the tribal perspective?



           24                        MS. VOELCKERS:  No.  Thank you, Your



           25      Honor.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Mr. Aramburu?



            2                        MR. ARAMBURU:  No objections.



            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  Well, Ms. Reyneveld, you



            4      have got the first unanimous grouping on something of



            5      substance from this group so that may bode well for how



            6      the other ones look.  Thank you.  I will close that email



            7      and see if I can find Ms. Voelckers' email.



            8          Your email came in this morning, I think, a couple



            9      hours ahead of Counsel for the Environment, but I have



           10      got to find it.  It's  10:14 a.m. on my receipt.  Let me



           11      open that up and do the same process here to review what



           12      you have submitted.



           13          You have some procedural issues, some environmental



           14      impact issues, and then some location specific issues.



           15      Let me start with the procedural issues, and the first



           16      one I see is looking at a SEPA question, and the second



           17      is a timing issue under 80.50.100.  My thought initially



           18      on those is that they are not adjudicative issues that



           19      we'll pull out of the application and the specific items



           20      there.  Would you be willing to file a motion regarding



           21      these items?  And, you know, I spoke on the record of



           22      this counsel prehearing conference like ten days ago



           23      about the position of the SEPA questions, so I think my



           24      statement should be challenged in a formal motion as to



           25      whether or not we are going to take up SEPA issues during
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            1      the adjudication.



            2          Do you have any concern about styling those



            3      procedural issues into a motion that you would file at



            4      some point that we agree on the timing?



            5                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



            6      I don't.  I do think that these should be handled through



            7      motions practice.  I know that during the last prehearing



            8      conference I asked for a briefing schedule to that point,



            9      given the different discussions we spent on timing I



           10      think it makes sense that the overall schedule worked



           11      out.  There was a comment made earlier by Mr. Aramburu



           12      that these procedural type issues could be handled



           13      through motions practice on the earlier rather than the



           14      later end of the schedule.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  I would concur because



           16      some of these look like they are jurisdictional.  I don't



           17      know that they would be dispositive motions, but they are



           18      things that parties want to know what the ruling is right



           19      away so that if they are ruled out of the adjudication



           20      you can preserve those issues for appeal and maybe save



           21      yourself finding a witness on those matters that I might



           22      rule against you.  So, again, I don't want to prejudge



           23      any of these issues, but we are creatures of statutes in



           24      this administrative law under the APA, and I will make



           25      sure that for you, and I would imagine that Mr. Aramburu
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            1      might join you, and perhaps Mr. Harper and the County you



            2      might all consider whether a joint motion on some of



            3      these procedural issues once we establish a schedule with



            4      the most efficient use of pleadings so you are not all



            5      recreating the same wheel.  I can see already from the



            6      limited discussions we have had and the filings that some



            7      of these procedural issues seem to cross interests of at



            8      least three of the parties we have at the table.



            9          Ms. Voelckers, anything else on those two issues?



           10                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, nothing



           11      else on the specific issues, but if I could, though, I



           12      would like to just confirm that we still -- that this is



           13      not -- our filing of these preliminary issues this



           14      morning does not negate the joint letter that we filed



           15      with the County, and so we are still joining with the



           16      County in the identification of issues that we identified



           17      together, including this procedural issue.  This was our



           18      best case effort to try to incorporate the feedback that



           19      you provided, and our review of the orders that you



           20      directed us to, so this list is, I think, consistent with



           21      the letter that we submitted along with the County



           22      previously, and this is meant to further clarify the



           23      issues themselves.



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you for that



           25      clarification. I fully agree this is a cumulative process
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            1      where all that has been submitted before.  It's going to



            2      be in consideration as I help with other parts of the



            3      staff come up with my proposed issues list that will be



            4      more comprehensive than the samples I sent you, but it



            5      takes all of this into consideration, and maybe by next



            6      Monday afternoon I will have something to present in



            7      advance of that, so that everybody can say okay, this is



            8      what Judge Torem is thinking all of the issues that have



            9      been raised so far might be that are in dispute based on



           10      the filing of the application and whatever else might



           11      have been informed by the draft EIS; is that fair, Ms.



           12      Voelckers?



           13                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Perfect.  Let's



           15      move on to the environmental impact issues that you have.



           16      Some of these, I think, are pretty self explanatory, and



           17      I'm just going through them honestly for maybe the second



           18      time today, but I'm on the record here thinking out loud.



           19      When you -- your issue number five about whether the



           20      project might negatively impact plants, wildlife, and



           21      habitat, and, again, you reference threatened,



           22      endangered, and sensitive species, is that an overlap of



           23      the Tribe's gathering concern of other plants and other



           24      species that are important culturally, or is that more of



           25      a general environmental statement?





                                                                           57

�







            1                        MS. VOELCKERS:  I think, Your Honor,



            2      there is some overlap but that is more of a general



            3      environmental statement.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Because I see



            5      that in your location specific issues you focus more on



            6      cultural properties and potential impacts.  I



            7      appreciate -- I won't go through all of the other



            8      preliminary issues, but I will ask the Applicant if they



            9      have any questions or concerns about the filing that came



           10      in this morning from Ms. Voelckers.  Ms. Chase, any



           11      comments or other items I should consider as I review



           12      these?



           13                        MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.



           14      So we agree that the first two procedural issues should



           15      be resolved via motion.  I think that that process could



           16      occur on an earlier rather than later to agree with



           17      everything, I think, that's been discussed there.



           18          And since the substantive issue is labeled



           19      environmental impact issues and location specific issues,



           20      I will acknowledge that I don't think we have had the



           21      opportunity to review them in as great a detail as to



           22      provide sort of full reactions on these, and I especially



           23      am a little -- I didn't understand until this afternoon



           24      that they were cumulative of the issues that had been



           25      offered in conjunction with the County, and so I want to
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            1      have the opportunity to look at that overlap.  We are



            2      happy to provide some written comments on the issues if



            3      that would be helpful to you this week in advance of the



            4      prehearing conference.  I am not fully prepared to react



            5      to this issue that was submitted this morning.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  So unlike me reading



            7      these for the first or second time today you don't have



            8      some special power to divine these things faster?



            9                        MS. CHASE:  Unfortunately, no, Judge



           10      Torem.  My apologies for that.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Well, we are



           12      all in the same boat here.  And, again, I say it partly



           13      in jest because I am working on this just in time



           14      schedule as well.  And I want to be transparent about



           15      maybe sounding more prepared at times than I might



           16      actually be.  Today I totally confess I was on the bench



           17      until ten after one and rushed home and was on time to



           18      connect with the call, but that's about as much prep as I



           19      got today, at least for those email that came in this



           20      morning.



           21          Let me turn to other parties then and see if they



           22      have had any further time to digest these, or maybe they



           23      have discussed them with Ms. Voelckers before she filed



           24      them.



           25          Mr. Harper, did the County have any further
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            1      collaboration with Ms. Voelckers or comments on what she



            2      submitted today?



            3                        MR. HARPER:  Ms. Voelckers and I spoke



            4      after those were submitted, but what she filed on behalf



            5      of the Yakama Nation today is not -- it doesn't need to



            6      be collaborated on, so I really -- it really doesn't



            7      speak for the County's position from our earlier issue



            8      statement.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Any thoughts from



           10      the County on the short amount of time you have had to



           11      review and discuss them with Ms. Voelckers.



           12                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, they



           13      generally strike me as appropriate issue statements.  I



           14      am going to join the chorus, though, and I think some



           15      early motion practice would be helpful.  And really I'm



           16      just sort of interested in hearing more collective



           17      thoughts on how issues are being defined.



           18          It may be possible for the County to follow up after



           19      today with the revised set of issues of our own.  I think



           20      that was something that the court was seeking, but I



           21      wasn't sure exactly how or when that would be required.



           22      And I think right now from the County's point of view, we



           23      are just trying to get that level of sort of resolution



           24      dialed in so it's most helpful.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yep, I'm definitely
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            1      hearing what the chorus is saying, and we have a little



            2      bit more breathing room to establish and get that done.



            3          All right.  Let me ask then, Ms. Reyneveld, any



            4      thoughts on the tribal issues that were submitted today,



            5      or comments that would guide me between now and our next



            6      prehearing conference?



            7                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I haven't had



            8      sufficient time to review these to be able to provide any



            9      sort of comprehensive thoughts or analysis, but from an



           10      initial reading they look okay, but I would like some



           11      additional time to review them.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And we are



           13      all going to have some additional time to flesh out the



           14      disputed issues.



           15          Mr. Aramburu, any thoughts on the list that came in



           16      this morning from Ms. Voelckers?



           17                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I certainly have no



           18      objections to it.  Of course we have similar issues that



           19      we have raised.  We are in agreement with the procedural



           20      issues certainly, and we raised issues of wildlife and



           21      other things as well.  I think it does kind of raise the



           22      question of what we are going to do with this issues



           23      list.  Are we going to have a list that reflects -- is



           24      there some consolidation that you have in mind, Judge



           25      Torem?  Are we going to list the issues that have been
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            1      brought up, sort of what happened, I guess, in Tesoro.  I



            2      don't have any objection, but I kind of am wondering what



            3      our exercise is here as we go through this.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, it's a



            5      good question.  I am trying to decide which rocks I want



            6      counsel to bring me, but, frankly, what I want to do is,



            7      as you hinted, something that might have occurred in



            8      previous adjudications where the judge sits down with



            9      staff and tries to figure out where there might be



           10      overlap, trying to figure out where there might be some



           11      opportunity for simplification, and creating a way for



           12      parties that have the same issue to maybe decide who



           13      amongst them is taking the lead so that only one witness



           14      is called jointly.



           15          It may be that there's a need for somebody that --



           16      let's take this Ferruginous hawk issue.  Maybe there are



           17      competing experts, Tri-Cities CARES, the Yakama Nation,



           18      and Counsel for the Environment all see that Ferruginous



           19      hawk issue slightly different and we really need three



           20      witnesses.  I may come back and say on that issue, for



           21      instance, I see that all three parties are raising this.



           22      It's been covered in the application.  We will find out



           23      who the Applicant's witness is, and not to say that



           24      there's not a fourth party that might also join in that,



           25      but that's what I'm looking at doing, Mr. Aramburu, is
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            1      trying to take these issues lists that have come in for



            2      the first prehearing conference, and those in the



            3      interval between March 10th and today, and see if I can



            4      comb through this and come up with hey, this is what I



            5      have heard so far, and put them into one comprehensive



            6      list and send it back to the parties.  And it may be a



            7      little ambitious to get it by next Monday afternoon, but



            8      I do have some holes in the schedule this week that might



            9      allow it.  If I can get those to you by close of the



           10      week's business on Friday then you have will at least



           11      Monday morning to look at that comprehensive list and we



           12      will have further discussion about it, and you can tell



           13      me if I'm missing anything.  You can tell me which issues



           14      people might be aligned with to collaborate on a single



           15      witness as opposed to two and three witnesses on a



           16      similar topic.



           17          Again, I don't want to portend I'm going to limit



           18      anybody if their particular expert and we can agree you



           19      want to hire the same one, or you think that two or three



           20      experts on a topic will add to the record and help the



           21      Council decide the issue.  I do think what I'm trying to



           22      do is head off some motion practice from the Applicant or



           23      other parties that might be moving to strike witnesses as



           24      cumulative or duplicative.  By doing the work up front,



           25      it may save me and all of you some work down the road.
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            1          So I hope, Mr. Aramburu, those random thoughts from



            2      the judge give you a little bit more guidance on what I'm



            3      thinking.



            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  They do.  Thank you.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think we



            6      have covered everybody's response to both the Counsel for



            7      the Environment and the Tribe's issues, so Mr. Aramburu



            8      that brings us back to the email you filed, I think, on



            9      Friday afternoon and then filed a supplemental correction



           10      to on Saturday morning; is that right?



           11                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Yes, spell check caught



           12      me.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Fair enough.  I am going



           14      to see if I can find your motion.  I think I know where I



           15      filed that one.  Yes.  And yours was not an attachment



           16      but a listing of Roman numeral one through twelve, and



           17      then you highlighted that word "amenities" in Roman



           18      numeral eight as the change.  And I think your issues



           19      again speak, as you have sent in previous filings, and



           20      again I have considered these as cumulative to the



           21      thought process, so I will look at your initial filings



           22      from last week from that time and these as well.



           23          Did you want to say anything further about the



           24      issues before I go around the horn again to see what



           25      other comments there might be?
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            1                        MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  I think my issues



            2      are -- I think Tri-Cities CARES' issues are



            3      self-explanatory.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let me push



            5      Mr. Aramburu's issues off the Council's table for this



            6      time.



            7          Let's turn then to the Applicant and see if the



            8      Applicant had a chance to review the email that came in



            9      last Friday and the change on amenities on Saturday



           10      morning.  Ms. Chase?



           11                        MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.



           12      This is Ms. Chase.  We have had a chance to look at this



           13      on a preliminary basis.  I think -- and this really goes



           14      to both the issues submitted by the Yakama Nation and



           15      issues to be submitted by the County, as well as this



           16      one, we would like the opportunity to provide some more



           17      detailed comments before -- for considering these issues.



           18      I think our overarching concern is that many of those



           19      seem a bit overbroad and don't quite define the issues



           20      with enough specificity that the other parties can,



           21      including the Applicant, can reasonably respond.  And I



           22      will just highlight a couple of those here.  I think



           23      issue seven, which raises general concerns about natural



           24      assets of our national heritage, for example.  And nine,



           25      which talks about the adverse impacts generally that have
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            1      not been mitigated.



            2          So I do think we have some concerns about the



            3      breadth of these issues and those are just a couple of



            4      examples.



            5          I'm happy to answer any questions you might have



            6      about those comments.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  The only question I



            8      would like to pose to the Applicant, and if you can



            9      answer it to today, fantastic.  If you can't answer



           10      today, I know I will get something further in writing



           11      once you and your colleagues have had a little bit more



           12      time.



           13          But as we talked about with the Tribe's procedural



           14      issues number one and two that were labeled that way in



           15      Ms. Voelckers' filing, are there any of these 12 issues



           16      that you see are procedural in nature and would be



           17      subject to pre-adjudication motion practice to either



           18      clarify them as jurisdictional or otherwise?



           19                        MS. CHASE:  I will think on that.  I



           20      don't see them as being procedural in quite the same way



           21      that I think the issues that Ms. Voelckers identified in



           22      her submittal are procedural, although, I do think some



           23      of them are -- so this is one example, we need to place



           24      this hearing in the context of the existing land use



           25      decision that's already been issued.  And so, for
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            1      example, the Applicant has some concerns about



            2      relitigating, and I will let Mr. McMahan speak in more



            3      detail to this if you have further questions today, but



            4      relitigating what's already been decided in that language



            5      consistency order.  And so when I look at issue number



            6      three I think that's one place where we think maybe some



            7      motion practice potentially could be useful, depending on



            8      how everyone wants to frame issues to make clear what's



            9      been decided in that order already and what remains live



           10      for the adjudication.



           11          I'm looking at Mr. McMahon in case he as anything to



           12      add and he's telling me he does not at this time.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Frankly, I



           14      was expecting the Applicant to also raise the questions



           15      of whether the scope of the adjudication could possibly



           16      take on number one and number two.  I'm not saying that



           17      it can't, but as far as meaningful reductions of



           18      omissions to justify any adverse impacts caused by the



           19      wind farm as proposed and Washington policy legislative



           20      priorities, I'm going to need some further explanation,



           21      Mr. Aramburu, for TCC's position on whether or not the



           22      question of abundant useful power at reasonable cost is



           23      something that's before EFSEC or more likely before the



           24      Utilities and Transportation Commission.  And as much as



           25      these two agencies used to be co-housed, I don't think
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            1      their missions are continuous.  They might be adjacent in



            2      the big scheme of things with Governor Inslee and the



            3      policies he's signed into law during his terms in office,



            4      but I have some concerns.  And if no one else asks for



            5      briefing on those, I want you to, Mr. Aramburu, as I



            6      consider these think that I might be asking you for



            7      briefing to see if they come within the scope of 80.50.



            8      I just want to tee that up if the Applicant wasn't ready



            9      to have those thoughts today, I am, and just a question



           10      mark that I want to put over those.



           11          All right.  Let me move to the County and see, Mr.



           12      Harper, if you have looked at Tri-Cities CARES' issues as



           13      submitted by Mr. Aramburu.  Do you have any comments?



           14                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper, Your Honor.



           15      I have looked at those.  No particular item by item



           16      comments, Your Honor.  I think one of the things I want



           17      to comment on, though, and this is really just to elicit



           18      further comment from you, if I understand correctly, what



           19      we are doing here is really just kind of engaged in s



           20      focusing process?



           21          And so if an issue statement is inartfully



           22      expressed, or heaven forbid some sub issue is omitted in



           23      this process, it's Your Honor's expectation that there



           24      will be sort of a -- sort of a funneling down to or



           25      sifting down to a final sort of set of issues that will
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            1      then define the case?  Am I channelling you correctly



            2      there, Your Honor?



            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yes, your crystal ball



            4      is correct.  The sorting and sifting, I don't have a hat



            5      like the Harry Potter school did but we will do the



            6      sorting.



            7                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, with that in



            8      mind, I don't have anything further to add to our



            9      discussion so far on Mr. Aramburu's comments.  I think



           10      his issues, I don't have anything else on that.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms.



           12      Voelckers, let me come next to you on what Tri-Cities



           13      CARES submitted.  Do you have any anything you want to



           14      add today as I kind of do this sifting and sorting?



           15                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           16      I don't have anything else to add specific to this list,



           17      but I do appreciate the question as I have been better



           18      understanding the goal here of this discussion.  And so I



           19      would, as things are sifted and sorted, and I think



           20      preserved this in what I filed this morning, but we would



           21      anticipate that parties would be able to argue any



           22      dispute issue even if they are not the ones initially



           23      listing it, so we didn't want to create duplication, and



           24      so therefore didn't list certain things that were part of



           25      Mr. Aramburu's list, or Ms. Reyneveld's list, but did
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            1      preserve the ability to still join in the discussion of



            2      those issues throughout the adjudication.  I just wanted



            3      to raise that as another potential point of clarification



            4      if that causes any concern.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  No, not whatsoever.  I



            6      think that's the general spirit, Ms. Voelckers, of where



            7      we are going with this.  There may be a party that



            8      decides they are the lead and other parties are in



            9      support, ask similar issues in cross-examination but



           10      essentially adopt the previous questions, if you will,



           11      once we get to that stage.  And when it comes to



           12      testimony, parties that have issues that are aligned.



           13      Like let's say I list a party issue as Mr. Aramburu has



           14      listed, does the project have unacceptable impact on



           15      wildlife and heir habitat.  Well, once we get more



           16      specifics on his issue number five, which habitats and



           17      which wildlife, and it may be that a number of parties



           18      have similar concerns, maybe all parties, and choose



           19      amongst themselves as to who is going to file the issue



           20      on this species and which biologist will be called on



           21      another, but all parties might have those similar



           22      concerns.  I hope that helps.



           23          Through the sifting and sorting and narrowing



           24      process, it may reduce some of the filing burden from one



           25      party and it can be shared amongst two or three.  It
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            1      might be that, you know, two or three parties sponsor the



            2      testimony of one witness because it speaks to all of



            3      their issues, and then I just need to know who the lead



            4      party is that will be sponsoring the witness and go from



            5      there on further examination.  I hope that helps.



            6                        MS. VOELCKERS:  It does.  Thank you,



            7      Your Honor.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, you have



            9      your mic opened right now.  I can hear you in the



           10      background.  I am about to turn to Ms. Reyneveld and talk



           11      about your issue there.  So if you all can make sure we



           12      have the microphone discipline continue.  We've been



           13      pretty good today.



           14          Ms. Reyneveld, anything else on the issues filed



           15      last week by Mr. Aramburu on behalf TCC?



           16                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I agree with the



           17      Applicant that some of these issues appear to be a little



           18      broad, and so it would be great to add a little more



           19      specificity to understand what is being at issue



           20      specifically.  There's also some redundancy in all of



           21      the -- some of these issues, both the Counsel for the



           22      Environment and also Yakima Nation and these issues, so



           23      I'm assuming that the sifting and sorting process as you



           24      say that we are going to be narrowing these down to kind



           25      of come up with kind of what -- the question on each of
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            1      these issues.  And then I agree with their comments



            2      regarding some following up on the scope of this



            3      adjudication.  Generally, you know, they look fine.



            4          I'm kind of interested in what are the next steps in



            5      terms of combining of the issues and narrowing the issues



            6      here.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  And as we had at the end



            8      of the last prehearing conference when you asked for next



            9      steps, and I'm developing what do you really want, Judge,



           10      I think we have covered a lot of progress in the last ten



           11      days to get these issue statements and to work on the



           12      neutral tone and the more specifics to the topics we are



           13      looking at, so we will continue to make some more steps.



           14          I want to reiterate what I said last time about



           15      these proposed issues having a basis in existing law.



           16      And, you know, there is a good faith argument for some of



           17      what I'm indicating might not be within the expected



           18      scope of the adjudication.  When the motions come in to



           19      say, Judge, here's why we think you are wrong, or at



           20      least based on comments you've made at prehearing



           21      conferences, here's why we think this is a legitimate



           22      issue under 80.50 and other applicable laws.  That's the



           23      kind of motion practice I expect to see if the issues are



           24      essentially flagged for a need for prehearing motions



           25      before they are added to the list.
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            1          From here, Ms. Reyneveld, and to all the other



            2      parties, what I hope to do is take everything you talked



            3      about today, the filings that came in by email last



            4      Friday and this morning, and all the previous letters



            5      that came in based on the parties collaboration before



            6      the first prehearing conference, sift and sort, come up



            7      with that comprehensive list and get it back to you.  I



            8      am going to see if I can work independently and then with



            9      EFSEC staff, including Mr. Thomson, to refine that so



           10      it's not just my thoughts, that I have the benefit of the



           11      AG's office opinion as servicing the Council, and any



           12      other staff members that might want to help me to comment



           13      on that.  Some of those may be more substantive in citing



           14      staff.  We might have some of the SEPA staff involved,



           15      and definitely just the good minds of the rest of the



           16      ladies and gentlemen that are supporting this



           17      adjudication in the background.  They have had some great



           18      insight along the way and I want to continue to take



           19      advantage of what they are hearing from their



           20      perspective.



           21          So I think that's really all we can get through on



           22      issue number five on my agenda today.  And once again I



           23      have some homework to turn around for you.



           24          I think on discovery, on item number six, we have



           25      covered as much as we needed to before the break, so
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            1      let's turn to the last item on today's agenda, prehearing



            2      motion practice and briefing.  We need to have a better



            3      look at the schedule, and I look at all of the other



            4      things about when testimony might due and have a proposal



            5      for you on that next time around.



            6          The deadline for nondispositive motions will



            7      probably be set in the timing after prefiled testimony



            8      comes in, so I don't know how long we will have in



            9      between.  Maybe my questions on this are premature, but I



           10      think it's good practice to have all the motions decided



           11      with time for parties to file a motion for



           12      reconsideration before the first day of the adjudication.



           13          That's the thought process that I'm looking at, and,



           14      again, a good reason why we maybe settle on the



           15      adjudication dates and then roll backwards as far as we



           16      need to to get this motion practice in between, testimony



           17      filing, and then back to what's realistic for that first



           18      round of prefiled testimony.



           19          Ms. Chase, any thoughts on that?



           20                        MS. CHASE:  Judge Torem, this is Ms.



           21      Chase, and I'm thinking -- and I don't think that we



           22      have -- I don't have any particular thoughts on that



           23      other than I agree with that general comment about the



           24      importance of having the issues resolved prior to the



           25      actual adjudication, but I think we are flexible on how
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            1      you would like to set those deadlines.  If I think of



            2      anything else I will let I know, but that's my initial



            3      thought on that point.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  There are a couple of



            5      issues -- well, before I let you go back, some of the



            6      ones that the Tribe has flagged as those procedural



            7      issues that I don't think we really need to wait for the



            8      filing of testimony.  This may be a simultaneous or even



            9      before the testimony comes in motion practice, and we can



           10      talk about a schedule for that next week.  I hope that



           11      all the parties will kind of collaborate and say these



           12      are some issues that we are prepared to file a motion



           13      sooner rather than later that are not dependent on the



           14      filing of testimony as proposed for prefiled and



           15      responsive or rebuttal testimony, but some of these scope



           16      of adjudication issues, I think, could be handled well in



           17      advance or simultaneously with the parties filing their



           18      actual testimony.  That's what I'm thinking about kind of



           19      two different timelines or time periods for motions to



           20      come in an be decided.



           21          Does the Applicant have any thoughts on two periods



           22      of time or should we put it all off until after testimony



           23      is filed?



           24                        MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.



           25      That clarification was helpful to me in terms of what you
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            1      are thinking and asking.  And yes, it's Applicant's



            2      preference that we do set an initial motion deadline.  I



            3      think it would be a motion deadline that would include,



            4      among other things as you noted, motions on the



            5      procedural issues that the Yakima Nation and others have



            6      indicated they may wish to raise, as well as to the



            7      extent that it's not resolved as part of the issues



            8      shaping and sorting process.  Motions on some of the



            9      issues such as TCC issues one and two are issues that may



           10      be redundant of the existing land use approval process



           11      that's already taken place.



           12          So I agree with that.  I agree we can do that sooner



           13      rather than later.  I think we can set that deadline



           14      pretty soon after the prehearing conference on the 27th,



           15      and that that could run in parallel with the parties



           16      preparation of the prefiled testimony.  In other words,



           17      we could get those motions resolved hopefully either



           18      before or while prefiled testimony was still being



           19      submitted so that we can keep the process moving.



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



           21      That's kind of what I'm thinking as well, but I'm open to



           22      other parties telling me we should wait even longer on



           23      some of those because if they are dependent on the



           24      testimony, or at least a finalization of the issues list,



           25      which, again, that would hopefully be sooner rather than
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            1      later.



            2          Let me turn to Mr. Harper for Benton County and get



            3      your thoughts on those same questions.



            4                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, Ken harper



            5      for the County.  My concern is that I generally think



            6      that it would be helpful to get some motions filed sooner



            7      rather than later.  I think that almost seems like just



            8      should certainly be allowed.  My reservation, Your Honor,



            9      is that it's not necessarily clear to me how we will



           10      decide what is a procedural issue that might be subject



           11      to some kind of early cutoff or deadline compared to what



           12      may not be a procedural issue.  It may be that a



           13      procedural issue seems substantive or vice versa only at



           14      some later date, so I think my suggestion would be if you



           15      could indicate to the parties that motion practice is



           16      open and encourage early motions on procedural issues



           17      that may help streamline matters, I think that might



           18      prove to be more manageable.  I'm just not totally



           19      convinced that it's going to be helpful to have a hard



           20      cutoff on something that is, you know, sort of perceived



           21      to be procedural at this early stage of the adjudication.



           22          Other than that, Your Honor, I do support the idea



           23      of getting motions filed.  And I think most of the



           24      parties that think they have a motion would probably like



           25      to file those soon, so maybe that is a sort of self
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            1      correcting thing to allow motions and then not



            2      necessarily worry too much about deadlines over



            3      procedural versus substantive categorizations.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think



            5      that's fair.  Some issues you kind of -- I think the



            6      Supreme Court has said, you know it when you see it, and



            7      others they say develop over the course of litigation.  I



            8      like the idea of having kind of an open filing for that



            9      the judge says this is the time to file your initial



           10      motions, and have another round after testimony.  Again,



           11      I don't think I can preclude and just, you know, tell you



           12      don't file a motion if you think you have one at any



           13      given time now that the adjudication has been commenced.



           14          I would appreciate parties following some guidelines



           15      if we can agree on windows of time, but I also say if you



           16      file something that I think should be for later, I may



           17      issues a preliminary ruling just deferring any further



           18      action on it until another date certain or milestone in



           19      the process.



           20          So I like what Mr. Harper is suggesting, and if I



           21      see something that I think is just not right for action,



           22      I imagine either with responsive pleading or on my own



           23      sua sponte if I read it fast enough getting an order out



           24      telling parties hold off, don't put your energy into this



           25      until later and we will tell you what the response
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            1      deadline is.  That's the kind of thing I'm thinking, Mr.



            2      Harper, based on your comments might be helpful for all



            3      the parties.  Is that fair enough?



            4                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper again for the



            5      County.  I think what you just said, if I understand



            6      correctly, is maybe a transition from the sort of



            7      distinguishing procedural from substantive and instead



            8      thinking of initial motions as the parties may perceive



            9      them, and then Your Honor sort of picking up, you know,



           10      the motion as filed and then responding to it.  If it's



           11      an initial motion that's procedural, then great.  If it's



           12      an initial motion that's  substantive and premature, then



           13      you can make a ruling accordingly.



           14          And if somebody holds back on what is perceived to



           15      be an initial motion and they hold it back and hold it



           16      back, then I suppose it may not be very well received,



           17      but I think that's the kind of idea, you know, initial



           18      motion opportunities that the County would like to see,



           19      and, frankly, what we would like to take advantage of.



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



           21      That's helping to guide the discussion quite well.



           22          Let me turn to Mr. Aramburu and Tri-Cities CARES and



           23      see, Mr. Aramburu, you have been in these motion battles



           24      before, what are your thoughts?



           25                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Well, I kind of have a
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            1      general thought about how we proceed here.  I looked at



            2      dozens of prehearing orders and many of them are pretty



            3      specific as to deadlines, events, those kinds of things.



            4          Judge Torem, are we in a position now that perhaps



            5      you can put together what would be a prehearing order for



            6      draft consideration by everyone, and include within that



            7      to set some deadlines we know we are going to have to



            8      deal with, and testimony is certainly one.  There may be



            9      objections, motions to strike, that would be another one.



           10      There would be opportunities for discovery, motion



           11      practice that would be included.  And I think it would be



           12      good for -- at least in my opinion, for us to take a look



           13      at this comprehensive list of things and start to -- and



           14      leaving dates blank.  Again, this is my suggestion, so



           15      that we can start to fill in these issues.



           16          Now more specifically to the motions, obviously



           17      there may be procedural motions that are being discussed.



           18      A dispositive motion would be one that would seek to get



           19      rid of an issue, if that's something that the parties



           20      have in mind.  And then there may be motion practice



           21      following the submission of testimony.  And, again, the



           22      prehearing order would set times and dates and responses



           23      and reconsiderations and all those kinds of things.  I



           24      hope I haven't gone on too long, but I think we are



           25      probably at the point where we really need to start to
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            1      look at that in a comprehensive order.  And deadlines for



            2      motions are certainly one of those things that we would



            3      need the fill in.  I kind of think that -- I think Ms.



            4      Voelckers and Mr. Harper pointed out that we kind of need



            5      to work backwards on these issues to kind of see where we



            6      are instead of trying to do it forward.  That's my



            7      suggestion.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I appreciate that,



            9      Mr. Aramburu.  I like the idea of -- and I will have a



           10      skeleton order laying out all of these things and I will



           11      be filling in the dates I know I can, or a date range,



           12      and maybe sets of intervals.  Once I have a chance when



           13      we hang up today to review the Applicant's extension



           14      request and see what Mr. Thompson and I can work with



           15      getting a more expedited review and decision on that from



           16      the Council, then we will have a better time frame on



           17      picking a date to work backwards from.



           18          You are right.  I have some homework to do as I look



           19      at the nonavailability and what the rest of the calendar



           20      holds through September 30th to start giving you the hard



           21      and fast dates or date ranges and then figuring this



           22      whole thing out as you suggest.



           23          And that would include, it sounds like, a



           24      preliminary round of motions followed by a post filing of



           25      testimony round of motions, exactly as you suggest for





                                                                           81

�







            1      motions to strike, or maybe a dispositive motion to



            2      strike an issue altogether.  I do hope that in that time



            3      frame that I'm referring to now the parties will also see



            4      where there might be agreement, and if there are



            5      litigation measures that can be agreed upon for a



            6      particular issue, settlements of certain issues that



            7      might obviate the need for testimony, or disputed



            8      cross-examination of a witness, or maybe just limit it



            9      for things that the Council might still have questions on



           10      where the parties have a meeting of all five minds, the



           11      Council may still have its own concerns that they want to



           12      ask.  Those are some other thoughts that I will add to



           13      your skeleton order and overall comprehensive timeframe



           14      and chronology.  I hope that's responsive, Mr. Aramburu.



           15                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I think so.  There's a



           16      question about one of the issues that perhaps we could



           17      seek some guidance on.  There is an issue that's been



           18      discussed about the need to have the final impact



           19      statement available for the adjudication, but that, given



           20      some extension in time here, it may be that if the final



           21      impact statement is going to be out in advance of us



           22      getting in the adjudication that's not really an issue.



           23          And I wonder if we might get some guidance from



           24      staff as to dates that we might expect to see that



           25      document.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr. Thompson



            2      and I will talk to the appropriate staff to see if they



            3      have any news that can be shared with everybody, but,



            4      again, without putting any undue pressure on them to



            5      finish early.  And as I said, maybe there's still need



            6      for the legal briefing on that so I can make a formal



            7      ruling on the suggestions and comments I made last



            8      prehearing conference, Mr. Aramburu.  I don't want to



            9      make you do work just for -- if you think that the FEIS



           10      would somehow be done sooner and obviate the need for the



           11      motion, but if I can give you a date certain if it's



           12      available to me, I'm happy to pass it along.



           13          All right.  Let me turn to Ms. Voelckers and the



           14      Tribe and see on this discussion of the overall schedule



           15      and the motions timeframe as we wrap up today's



           16      conference, I will come to Ms. Reyneveld last.



           17          Ms. Voelckers any thoughts from the Tribe on this



           18      matter?



           19                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           20      I think I'm most aligned with counsel for Benton County



           21      here, although I do support the requests for stretching



           22      this out.  And I certainly would reiterate, and I think I



           23      already said this, that we think the hearing should be



           24      set and we should walk back from that.  I think that the



           25      proposal that Mr. Harper made makes a lot of sense.  And
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            1      rather than having a cutoff for motions necessary next



            2      week, as I think I heard from Ms. Chase, but to have a



            3      period of time where those procedural issues can be dealt



            4      with.  Certainly, also finalization issue statements I



            5      think is a really good idea.



            6          The only thing I would add to that is an



            7      understanding of what you just said about the work that



            8      staff is doing, the FEIS or Supplemental EIS, I'm not



            9      sure, but it did sound like the discussion last week was



           10      about a proposed schedule, and so if there was any



           11      finalization of a schedule for the next EFSEC meeting



           12      that would be helpful to inform what we are talking



           13      about.  I don't know if that was a moot or not moot



           14      procedural issue without knowing more about the schedule,



           15      but that would helpfully help inform a deadline for



           16      procedural motions.



           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I think I



           18      understood all of that.  Let me turn to Ms. Reyneveld and



           19      see if she has anything else on the motion practice as it



           20      fits into the overall timeframe, and thoughts on any



           21      issues that that might be keyed up earlier rather than



           22      later.



           23                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I don't have much to



           24      add.  I agree with what the parties have stated,



           25      including Ms. Voelckers and the other parties, we should
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            1      set a hearing and then walk back from there.  And I



            2      agree, Judge, that the procedural issue motion that might



            3      be one percent, and we can absolutely start having that



            4      motion practice as kind of the first part of this



            5      adjudication.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Those are



            7      all the things I had for today.  The comments that I have



            8      got on item number seven, let's talk about prehearing



            9      opening statements and any supporting briefing, and, of



           10      course, posthearing closing arguments and briefing.



           11          I just want the parties to anticipate there will be



           12      an opportunity to file those in writing.  There's going



           13      to be a lot, just a lot of reading for this Council and I



           14      don't know that any of our council members have



           15      participated in an adjudication before, or in any complex



           16      litigation where they have got to be decision makers and



           17      digest all the information.



           18          So as you think about between now and next week, the



           19      witnesses you are going to be calling in the months



           20      ahead, and the position you want to put in front of the



           21      council members, any opening statements or opening



           22      briefing that you present, consider the audience.  I'm



           23      not hinting at all that they are unrefined in any way,



           24      but just their inexperience at these matters, and a



           25      precise opening statement that you want the members to
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            1      read essentially on the morning of the first adjudication



            2      date.  I'm thinking they could read three to five pages



            3      and capture what each of the five parties is going to say



            4      as an overall perspective, and then they will be ready



            5      witness by witness, topic by topic however we schedule



            6      the dates up to maybe as you said two weeks of



            7      adjudication.  I just want you to think about, as you



            8      structure things, what that opening statement filed in



            9      writing might be so that at my insistence they will have



           10      read that before they hear the first witness and be keyed



           11      up to hear what each party is going to have based on



           12      whatever order we present it.



           13          Now when the adjudication is all done, that, in my



           14      experience, is when you really want to have a chance to



           15      file that posthearing brief so that I can digest with Mr.



           16      Thompson's help all the legal issues you might be raising



           17      and answer questions of the Council accordingly during



           18      their deliberations, and that they can hear, based on



           19      what the testimony showed or perhaps didn't through



           20      cross-examination, have a better view of here is what we



           21      heard and here is what the parties really think this is



           22      why he should do X or Y with particular impacts for



           23      mitigation, or perhaps with the overall project and its



           24      recommendation for approval or denial to the governor.



           25          So the opening statements I just think you don't
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            1      want to be too much time on your positions, but more



            2      again about what you want them to pay attention to over



            3      the course of the adjudication.  Save that super advocacy



            4      role for the posthearing brief, and then the Council will



            5      be in a better position to understand how and why you are



            6      taking the positions you do.



            7          I hope that's helpful just in this sort of practice



            8      as it's not a criminal proceeding.  It is an explanatory



            9      proceeding and an evaluative proceeding.  It's truly an



           10      adjudication of all the issues that we are going to



           11      settle on, and I hope that sets a tone for when I put



           12      that in there for prehearing opening statements what that



           13      means, an posthearing closing arguments.



           14          I know those are words that we all learned in law



           15      school and sometimes statements and arguments get



           16      confused, and I just invite you to, as you develop your



           17      cases, keep that in mind.  I don't think anybody is going



           18      to move to strike an opening argument as too -- an



           19      opening statement as too argumentative in this position,



           20      but if we all keep that in mind no one will even think



           21      to.



           22          Let me go around the horn to see if there were any



           23      other issues that were left unaddressed.  Ms. Chase,



           24      anything for the Applicant you wanted to bring up before



           25      we close out today's conference?
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            1                        MS. CHASE:  Thank you, Judge Torem.



            2      This is Ms. Chase, nothing further for the Applicant.



            3      Thank you.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper, how about



            5      for the County?



            6                        MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper for the



            7      County, nothing further.  Thank you, Your Honor.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, Counsel



            9      for the Environment?



           10                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld,



           11      Counsel for the Environment, nothing further.  Thank you,



           12      Judge.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, anything



           14      on behalf of the Yakama Nation?



           15                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Shona Voelckers on



           16      behalf of the Yakama Nation, we have nothing else.



           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And for



           18      Tri-Cities CARES, Mr. Aramburu?



           19                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Nothing further at this



           20      time, Your Honor.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Well our



           22      conference then is adjourned at 3:47 p.m.  We are off the



           23      record.



           24                              (Proceedings concluded



           25                               at 3:47 p.m.)





                                                                           88

�







             1      STATE OF WASHINGTON )    I, Christy Sheppard, CCR, RPR,

                                        ) ss a certified court reporter

             2      County of Pierce    )    in the State of Washington, do

                                             hereby certify:

             3



             4

                         That the foregoing Prehearing Conference was taken

             5      before me and completed on March 20, 2023, and thereafter

                    was transcribed under my direction; that the transcript is a

             6      full, true and complete transcript of the proceedings;



             7           That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

                    of any party to this action or relative or employee of any

             8      such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

                    interested in the said action or the outcome thereof;

             9

                         That I am herewith securely sealing the said deposition

            10      and promptly delivering the same to EFSEC.



            11           IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my signature on

                    April 3, 2023.

            12



            13



            14



            15

                                              ________________________________

            16                                Christy Sheppard, CCR, RPR

                                              Certified Court Reporter No. 1932

            17                                (Certification expires 05/06/24.)



            18



            19



            20



            21



            22



            23



            24



            25





                                                                              89





